
Board Agenda, March 2, 2023  
 

1 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
MEETING AND WORKSHOP  

 
Board of Education Members    
Chinua Rhodes, President (Trustee Area 5) 
Lavinia Grace Phillips, Vice President (Trustee Area 7) 
Jasjit Singh, Second Vice President (Trustee Area 2) 
Tara Jeane (Trustee Area 1) 
Christina Pritchett (Trustee Area 3) 
Jamee Villa (Trustee Area 4) 
Taylor Kayatta (Trustee Area 6) 
Liam McGurk, Student Member 
 

Thursday, March 2, 2023 
4:30 p.m. Closed Session  

6:30 p.m. Open Session 
 

Serna Center 
Community Conference Rooms 

5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA  95824 

 

AGENDA 
 

2022/23-22 
 

       Allotted Time 
4:30 p.m. 1.0 OPEN SESSION / CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL 

 
 

 2.0 ANNOUNCEMENT AND PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING ITEMS TO BE 
DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION 
 

 
 3.0  CLOSED SESSION 

 
 While the Brown Act creates broad public access rights to the meetings of the Board of Education, it also  

recognizes the legitimate need to conduct some of its meetings outside of the public eye.  Closed session 
meetings are specifically defined and limited in scope.  They primarily involve personnel issues, pending 
litigation, labor negotiations, and real property matters.  

 
 3.1 Government Code 54956.9 - Conference with Legal Counsel: 

a) Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(2) of Government 
Code section 54956.9 (Two Potential Cases) 

b) Existing litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(1) of Government Code section 
54956.9 (Sacramento County Superior Court Case No. 34-2020-00282457)  

 
3.2 Government Code 54957.6 (a) and (b) Negotiations/Collective Bargaining SCTA 

SEIU, TCS, Teamsters, UPE, Non-Represented/Confidential Management  
(District Representative Pam Manwiller) 

 
3.3 Government Code 54957 – Public Employee 

Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Reassignment 
 

3.4      Education Code 35146- The Board will hear staff recommendation on the 
           following student expulsion: Expulsion # 11 2022/2023 

 



Board Agenda, March 2, 2023  
 

2 

6:30 p.m. 4.0 CALL BACK TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
4.1 The Pledge of Allegiance 
 
4.2 Broadcast Statement 
 
4.3       Stellar Student introduced by Board Member Tara Jeane 

 
6:35 p.m. 5.0 ANNOUNCEMENT OF ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 

 
 

6:40 p.m. 
 

6.0 AGENDA ADOPTION 
 

 
6:45 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7.0 PUBLIC COMMENT                                                                                               15 minutes 
Members of the public may address the Board on non-agenda items that are within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the Board.  Public comment may be (1) emailed to publiccomment@scusd.edu; (2) 
submitted in writing through the district’s website at https://www.scusd.edu/submit-public-comment; or 
(3) provided in-person at the meeting.  The submission deadline for written public comments shall be 
no later than noon on the day of the meeting.  If you intend to address the Board in-person, please fill 
out a yellow card available at the entrance.  Speakers may be called in the order that requests are 
received, or grouped by subject area.  We ask that comments are limited to two (2) minutes with no 
more than 15 minutes per single topic so that as many people as possible may be heard.  By law, the 
Board is allowed to take action only on items on the agenda.  The Board may, at its discretion, refer a 
matter to district staff or calendar the issue for future discussion.    

 
7:00 p.m. 8.0 COMMUNICATIONS 

 
 

 8.1 Employee Organization Reports:   

 SCTA  
 SEIU 
 TCS 
 Teamsters  
 UPE 

Information 
SCTA – 15 minutes  

SEIU – 3 minutes 
TCS – 3 minutes 

Teamsters – 3 minutes 
UPE – 3 minutes  

 

7:27 p.m.            8.2 District Advisory Committees: 

 Community Advisory Committee  

 District English Learner Advisory Committee 

 Local Control Accountability Plan/Parent Advisory Committee 

 Student Advisory Council 

 Black/African American Advisory Board 

Information 
3 minutes each 

 

 
 

7:30 p.m.         8.3 Student Member Report (Liam McGurk) Information 
         5 minutes 

 



Board Agenda, March 2, 2023  
 

3 

 

 
 11.0 BOARD WORKSHOP/STRATEGIC PLAN AND OTHER INITIATIVES 

 
8:45 p.m 

. 

              11.1  Revision of Board Policy 6170.1 Transitional  
                       Kindergarten (Yvonne Wright) 
 

                 First Reading 
            15 minute presentation 

     10 minute discussion 

9:10 p.m 

 

 

             11.2  Review and Approve Amendment No. 1 to Agreement for 
                     Consultant Services- SA23-00118 (Jorge A. Aguilar) 
 
  

Action  
    5  minute presentation 

        10 minute discussion 
 

 

 12.0 COMMUNICATIONS 
 

 

9:25 p.m 

 

12.1 Superintendent’s Report (Jorge A. Aguilar)  Information 
5 minutes 

 

9:30 p.m 

 

12.2 President’s Report (Chinua Rhodes) Information 
5 minutes 

 

9:35 p.m 

. 

12.3 Information Sharing by Board Members Information 
10 minutes 

 
9:45 p.m. 13.0 CONSENT AGENDA                                                                                              Action 

                                                                                                                                                               2 minutes 
Generally routine items are approved by one motion without discussion.  The Superintendent or a Board 
member may request an item be pulled from the consent agenda and voted upon separately. 

 
13.1  Items Subject or Not Subject to Closed Session: 
 

 9.0    SPECIAL PRESENTATION 
 

 

7:35 p.m.                 9.1   Update on Direct Technical Assistance Update through  
                        the California Collaborative for Educational Excellence 
                        (CCEE) (Yvonne Wright)  

                 Information 
       15 minute presentation 
          15 minute discussion 
 

8:05 p.m 

 

10.0    PUBLIC HEARING  
 
              10.1 History/Social Science K-12 Instructional Materials 
                     Adoption: Program Recommendations (Erin Hanson,  
                     Assistant Superintendent Curriculum and Instruction  
                     Shannon Pella, Director Professional Learning Literacy,  
                    ELA, Humanities Kari Lofing, Coordinator GATE and AP  
                    Programs Erinn Leone, Teacher and History/Social Science 
                    Department Chair, Luther Burbank High School) 
 
 

 
 

Information   
      30  minute presentation 
          10 minute discussion 

 



Board Agenda, March 2, 2023  
 

4 

13.1a Approve Grants, Entitlements and Other Income Agreements, Ratification of 
Other Agreements, Approval of Bid Awards, Approval of Declared Surplus 
Materials and Equipment, Change Notices and Notices of Completion  

  (Rose Ramos) 
 
13.1b Approve Personnel Transactions (Cancy McArn) 

 
                                  13.1c Approve Minutes for the February 16, 2023, Regular Board of Education Meeting 
                                              (Jorge A. Aguilar)  
 

13.1d Approve Minutes for the October 13, 2022, Regular Board of Education Meeting 
(Jorge A. Aguilar)  

 
13.1e Approve Resolution No. 3310: Resolution Regarding Board Stipends 
          (Jorge A. Aguilar) 
 

                      13.1f Approve Staff Recommendations for Expulsion, #11  2022/2023 (Lisa Allen and 
                                Stephan Brown) 

 
 
9:47 p.m.        14.0   BUISNESS AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION/ REPORTS     Receive Information 
  
                                      14.1 Business and Financial Information: 
                                      Enrollment Report- Month 4 (Rose Ramos) 
 
 

 9:49 p.m. 15.0 FUTURE BOARD MEETING DATES / LOCATIONS 
 

 March 16, 2023, 4:30 p.m. Closed Session, 6:30 p.m. Open Session, Serna Center,  
5735 47th Avenue, Community Room, Regular Workshop Meeting 
 

 April 13, 2023, 4:30 p.m. Closed Session, 6:30 p.m. Open Session, Serna Center,  
5735 47th Avenue, Community Room, Regular Workshop Meeting 
 
 

 9:51 p.m. 

 

16.0 ADJOURNMENT  
 
NOTE:  The Sacramento City Unified School District encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the 
public meeting process.  If you need a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or 
services, to participate in the public meeting, please contact the Board of Education Office at (916) 643-9314 at least 
48 hours before the scheduled Board of Education meeting so that we may make every reasonable effort to 
accommodate you.  [Government Code § 54953.2; Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, § 202 (42 U.S.C. §12132)]   
Any public records distributed to the Board of Education less than 72 hours in advance of the meeting and relating to 
an open session item will be available on the district’s website at www.scusd.edu 

  
 

http://www.scusd.edu/


Page 1 of 2 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION  

 
Agenda Item 9.1 

 
Meeting Date:  March 2, 2023 
 
 
Subject:  Update on Direct Technical Assistance Update through the California 

Collaborative for Educational Excellence (CCEE) (Yvonne Wright) 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Academic Office 
 
Recommendation:  NA 
 
Background/Rationale:   
In December 2019, the California School Dashboard data for the 2018-2019 school year 
was released and resulted in SCUSD qualifying for Comprehensive Support under CA 
System of Support. The qualification for support was triggered because of persistent 
performance challenges of three student groups—foster youth, students experiencing 
homelessness, and students with disabilities—in meeting various priority outcomes for 
three of four consecutive years. The California’s System of Support focuses on 
providing districts with technical assistance to build their capacity to meet student 
needs, sustain improvement, and effectively address disparities in opportunities and 
outcomes.  
 
SCUSD’s technical assistance provider for comprehensive support includes the 
California Collaborative for Educational Excellence (CCEE), a statewide agency that 
partners with the CA Department of Education (CDE) and County Office of Educations 
(COEs) and other educational service organizations to form a statewide network of 
experts who support districts under the System of Support and specialize in instructional 
practices targeting students with disabilities, as well as those who are English Learners, 
socio-economically disadvantaged, experiencing homelessness and foster youth.   
 
This Special Presentation will feature leaders from CCEE and will include an overview 
of the supports and technical assistance the district has been provided and an update 
on the district’s current support status and recommendations for next steps.  
 
 
Financial Considerations:   
 



Page 2 of 2 

LCAP Goal(s):  Goal 1: College Career Readiness 
Goal 2: Foundational Educational Experience with Equitable 
Opportunities for ALL students  
Goal 3: Integrated Supports 
Goal 4: Culture and Climate – Dismantling Systems 
Goal 5: Engagement/Empowerment 
Goal 6: Implementation of MTSS/Data-Based Decision Making 
Goal 8: Basic Services and Districtwide Operations/Supports  
Goal 9: Focus on Students with Disabilities 
Goal 10: Focus on Homeless Youth 
Goal 11: Focus on Foster Youth 
 

 
Documents Attached: NA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Estimated Time of Presentation:  15 min 

Submitted by:  Yvonne Wright, Chief Academic Officer 

Approved by:  Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 



 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Agenda Item 10.1 
 

 
Meeting Date:  March 2, 2023 
 
Subject:  History/Social Science K-12 Instructional Materials Adoption: Program 
Recommendations 
 

X Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading  (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Academic Office and Curriculum and Instruction 
 
 
Recommendation:  N/A 
 
 
Background/Rationale:  Sacramento City Unified School District Board Policy 6161.1 
states the following: “The Superintendent or designee shall establish instructional 
material evaluation committees. These committees shall include teachers, 
administrators and other staff who have subject-matter expertise, as well as 
students, parents/guardians and/or community members broadly representative 
of the district's ethnic and socioeconomic composition. Staff members who 
participate in selecting and/or evaluating instructional materials shall be those most 
competent for the task because of their professional training, experience and 
assignments. The majority of each evaluation committee members shall be teachers.” 
Additionally, SCUSD Board Policy 6161.1 states “All Recommended materials shall 
be displayed and available for public inspection at a central district location.”  
This presentation to the Board has three purposes: 1. To provide an overview of the 
SCUSD Instructional Materials Adoption process and 2. To share the History/Social 
Sciences K-12 In structional Materials process, consistent with Board Policy 6161.1 and 
3. To recommend the selected instructional materials for Board consideration and for 
Approval at the March 16, 2023 meeting. 
 

 
 



Financial Considerations:  8M has been budgeted to adopt K-12 and AP 
History/Social Science Instructional materials and teacher professional learning. Price 
quotes from each selected publisher are consistent with the amount allocated. 
 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Goal 1: Increase the percent of students who are on-track to graduate 
college and career ready. • Provide standards-aligned curriculum, assessments and 
high-quality instruction to prepare students to graduate college and career ready. 
(Action 1.1) • Provide a variety of learning supports including differentiated instruction 
and interventions for all students as needed. (Action 1.2) • Develop an infrastructure for 
ongoing analysis of student performance and progress by providing teacher release 
time and collaborative learning time. (Action 1.3) • Provide effective core instruction, as 
well as appropriate learning supports and interventions, to ensure that English Learners 
make expected progress in attaining English and in academic achievement. (Action 1.4) 
 
Documents Attached:  N/A 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: 30 minutes  
 
Submitted by:  Erin Hanson, Assistant Superintendent of Curriculum and Instruction 
and Shannon Pella, Director of Professional Learning ELA, Literacy, Humanities 
 
Approved by: Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 
 
 
 

 
Page 1 of 1 



 

Page 1 of 2 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION  

 
Agenda Item 11.1 

 
Meeting Date:  March 2, 2023 
 
 
Subject: Revision of Board Policy 6170.1 Transitional Kindergarten 
 
☐ Information Item Only 
☐ Approval on Consent Agenda 
☐ Conference (for discussion only) 
X Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: 3/16/2023)  
☐ Conference/Action 
☐ Action 
☐ Public Hearing 
 
Division:  Academic Office/Early Learning and Care 
 
Recommendation:  NA 
 
Background/Rationale: 
The research clearly indicates that high-quality education for young learners is vitally 
important in assuring school success and plays a pivotal role in closing the achievement 
gap among groups of students. Children who participate in high-quality early childhood 
programs tend to perform at/above the proficiency level, have greater language abilities, 
and fewer grade retentions (Lynch, 2005). According to a study conducted by the RAND 
Corporation in 2007, the readiness gap mirrors the achievement gap of students in the 
primary grades. However, the report denoted that entering Kindergarten at an older age 
is an important predictor for student success. Students who are older when they enter 
Kindergarten demonstrate a significant boost in academic achievement, self-confidence, 
and positive attitudes about school and learning. 

Consequently, to ensure student readiness, it is vital that SCUSD provides quality 
Transitional Kindergarten (TK) programming to give students an additional year to 
mature socially, emotionally, cognitively, and physically. The proposed revisions to the 
Transitional Kindergarten (TK) Policy will provide the guidelines necessary to create the 
learning environments that support quality instruction and learning for students in the 
district’s TK classrooms while meeting the requirements of AB 130. 

In 2021, legislation was passed that requires any school district operating a 
kindergarten to also provide a TK program for all children who turn four years old by 
September 1 by the year 2025–26. TK uses a modified kindergarten curriculum that is 
age and developmentally appropriate and based on California's Preschool Learning 
Foundations and Frameworks (California Department of Education, Transitional 
Kindergarten FAQs, https://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/gs/em/kinderfaq.asp).   
 
Financial Considerations:  N/A 

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ci/gs/em/kinderfaq.asp


 

Page 2 of 2 

 
LCAP Goal(s):   
Goal 1: College Career Readiness 
Goal 2: Foundational Educational Experience with Equitable Opportunities for ALL 
students  
 
Documents Attached:  
List the documents included: 
Executive Summary 
Original copy of BP 6170.1, Transitional Kindergarten 
Redlined copy of BP 6170.1, Transitional Kindergarten 
Revised copy of BP 6170.1, Transitional Kindergarten 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Estimated Time of Presentation:  15 min 

Submitted by:  Yvonne Wright, Chief Academic Officer 

Approved by:  Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Department: Academic Office 
Title: Revision of Board Policy 6170.1 Transitional Kindergarten 
Date of Meeting: March 2, 2023  
  

 

 
Academic Office 
 1 

 
I. Overview of Transitional Kindergarten, (formerly named Early Kindergarten) 

 
In 2010, California enacted the Kindergarten Readiness Act, S.B. 1381. Prior to that time, 
children in Sacramento City Unified School District (SCUSD) and throughout the state began 
Kindergarten at a younger age than almost all other states. These early age students often 
began school before they had maturity, early literacy and pre-math skills needed to meet the 
challenges of a rigorous academic Kindergarten program. Moving back the Kindergarten entry 
date was a welcome response addressing this longstanding practice and created a new 
educational opportunity, Transitional Kindergarten (TK), formerly referred to as Early 
Kindergarten (EK) in SCUSD.  

 
This gift of time affords children who turn five at the beginning of a school year or at a later 
time in that same year, an additional year of school and serves as a bridge between preschool 
and Kindergarten. Transitional Kindergarten uses developmentally appropriate curricula aligned 
to the California Preschool Learning Foundations, Common Core, and State Standards taught by 
credentialed teachers in an enriching environment. 
 
The district continues to deepen its implementation of Transitional Kindergarten for its 
students and families. Since its implementation in 2011 with four pilot school sites: Alice Birney 
Waldorf Inspired K-8, Leonardo da Vinci K-8, Theodore Judah, and Hubert Bancroft, the TK has 
expanded to H.W. Harkness, A.M. Winn, Pacific, Crocker/Riverside (relocated to Washington for 
the 2016/2017 school year), John Sloat, Pacific, Tahoe, Earl Warren, Edward Kemble, Ethel 
Phillips, Isador Cohen, John Bidwell, Mark Twain, Martin Luther King, Parkway, and Susan B. 
Anthony, and for the 2023/2024 school year will further expand to David Lubin, Elder Creek, 
Ethel I. Baker, Genevieve Didion, Golden Empire, Hollywood Park, and John Cabrillo by 
providing students and families regional access for this early educational opportunity.  The 
response from parents and school staff strongly indicate that Transitional Kindergarten 
provides the extra support to help students develop the social, emotional and academic skills 
needed for regular Kindergarten and success in school. It is the district’s intent to expand the 
program to each school that is able to support this educational opportunity for its school 
community.   
 
An important first step for sustaining Transitional Kindergarten, was the adoption of Board 
Policy # 6170.1 which was adopted by the Board in November 2014, introducing Early 
Kindergarten (now identified as Transitional Kindergarten) as an essential regular grade school 
regulations and prescribed essential program components needed to provide our students with 
the knowledge, skills, and attitudes that will position them for success in subsequent grades.  
 
The California Department of Education (CDE) has recently amended Education Code (EC) 
48000 for Transitional Kindergarten. The request to revise/amend Board Policy #6170.1 

 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Department: Academic Office 
Title: Revision of Board Policy 6170.1 Transitional Kindergarten 
Date of Meeting: March 2, 2023  
  

 

 
Academic Office 
 2 

appropriately complies with CDE and the needed changes suggested by the California School 
Board Association. 
 
II. Driving Governance: 
 
The research clearly indicates that high-quality education for young learners is vitally important 
in assuring school success and plays a pivotal role in closing the achievement gap among groups 
of students. Children who participate in high-quality early childhood programs tend to perform 
at/above the proficiency level, have greater language abilities, and fewer grade retentions 
(Lynch, 2005). According to a study conducted by the RAND Corporation in 2007, the readiness 
gap mirrors the achievement gap of students in the primary grades. However, the report 
denoted that entering Kindergarten at an older age is an important predictor for student 
success. Students who are older when they enter Kindergarten demonstrate a significant boost 
in academic achievement, self-confidence, and positive attitudes about school and learning. 
Consequently, to ensure student readiness, it is vital that SCUSD provides quality Transitional 
Kindergarten to give students an additional year to mature socially, emotionally, cognitively, 
and physically. The proposed revisions to the Transitional Kindergarten Policy will provide the 
guidelines necessary to create the learning environments that support quality instruction and 
learning for students in the district’s Transitional Kindergarten classrooms. 
 
III. Budget: 
 
The adoption of the proposed revisions to the existing Transitional Kindergarten Board Policy 
#6170.1 does not have any budget implications. Transitional Kindergarten is supported with 
Local Control Formula Funds. (LCFF)  
 
IV. Goals, Objectives and Measures: 
 
The district is fully committed to preparing its students for college and career. Its goal is to 
provide students with experiences, beginning with the formative years, which will place them 
on a trajectory that will position them for success beyond their preschool- grade 12 tenure. 
Hence, Transitional Kindergarten is critical to accomplishing this end.  
 
To ensure the program’s success, the district is committed to providing an infrastructure of 
support based on research, reform initiatives and exemplary practices. This includes quality 
professional learning that is continuous and fosters a deepening of subject matter knowledge 
and a greater understanding of learning for improving classroom practice and student learning, 
as well as customized targeted support. 
 
Transitional Kindergarten effectiveness is measured by student performance to the district 
standards developed and adopted from the California Learning Foundations and state and 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Department: Academic Office 
Title: Revision of Board Policy 6170.1 Transitional Kindergarten 
Date of Meeting: March 2, 2023  
  

 

 
Academic Office 
 3 

Common Core standards for this grade level. Student progress is assessed and reported to 
parents each trimester and conference times. Parents and staff are surveyed annually to gain 
community comment and evaluate the overall program and the instructional delivery the 
measure program effectiveness. 
 
 
V. Major Initiatives: 
 
The following education revisions are requested for the existing Transitional K Board Policy 
#6170.1 

• Section one, Eligibility, page one - replaces the term “Early Kindergarten” with Transitional 
Kindergarten  

• Section one, Eligibility, page one – expands the prioritized enrollment dates to extend eligibility 
to children who will turn four years old by September 1 by the 2025-2026 school year. 

• Section two, Waivers, page two- replaces the term “Early Kindergarten” with Transitional 
Kindergarten. 

• Section two , Waivers, page two and three- establishes a waiver process for children whose fifth 
birthday is on or before September 1 and for students whose fifth birthday are after the given 
year’s eligibility window for the 2023-24 and 2024-25 school years only. 

• Section three, Curriculum and Instruction, page three and four - replaces the term “Early 
Kindergarten” with Transitional Kindergarten. Page 3 includes requirements when TK students 
are commingled in the same classroom with four-year-old students from a CSPP program 

• Section four, Staffing, pages four and five- replaces the term “Early Kindergarten” with 
Transitional Kindergarten. 

• Section five, Continuation to Kindergarten, page five, - replaces the term “Early Kindergarten” 
with Transitional Kindergarten. 

• Section six, Program Evaluation, page five, - replaces the term “Early Kindergarten” with 
Transitional Kindergarten. 
 

 
VI. Results: 
 
While the program continues to evolve, data from varying sources indicate that the program is 
indeed making a difference and is positively impacting student learning. It has grown from 
serving approximately 185 students and their families to potentially serving 792 students in 
schools regionally placed throughout the district. Parents and staff are surveyed each spring at 
each Transitional Kindergarten school site to gain community comment and evaluate the 
overall program and instructional delivery to meet the needs for this age student.   
 
VII. Lessons Learned/Next Steps: 
 



Board of Education Executive Summary  
Department: Academic Office 
Title: Revision of Board Policy 6170.1 Transitional Kindergarten 
Date of Meeting: March 2, 2023  
  

 

 
Academic Office 
 4 

The next steps in seeking approval for the proposed revisions to Board Policy 6170.1, 
Transitional Kindergarten include the following:  

• Present the proposed revisions in a second reading to the Board 
• Once approved, update the administrative regulations for the policy to provide alignment and 

further guidance on policy implementation  
• Continue to provide professional learning in Transitional Kindergarten Curriculum and 

Instructional 
• Continue to provide developmentally appropriate instructional materials  
• Continue to develop the Early Kinder student assessment model  
• Continue to evaluate program success through student assessments and program evaluation 

from parents, site principals, and teachers 
• Enhance communication to provide information to the school community and build future 

enrollment at the school sites  
• Develop new program sites as the district budget allows 

 



Board Policy Manual 
Sacramento City Unified School District 

Policy 6170.1: Transitional Kindergarten Status: Adopted 

Original Adopted Date: November 2014  
 

The governing board desires to offer a high-quality Transitional Kindergarten Program for eligible children 
who do not yet meet the minimum age criterion for kindergarten. The program shall assist children in 
developing the academic, social, and emotional skills they need to succeed in kindergarten and beyond. 

The district's Transitional Kindergarten shall be the first year of a two-year kindergarten program 
(Education Code 48000) 

The Board encourages ongoing collaboration among district preschool staff, other preschool providers, 
elementary teachers, administrators, and parents/guardians in program development, implementation, 
and evaluation. 

(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 

(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement 

Eligibility 

The district's Transitional Kindergarten Program shall prioritize student enrollment for children whose fifth 
birthday lies between: (Education Code: 48000) 

September 2nd and February 2nd for the 2022–23 school year 
 
September 2nd and April 2nd for 2023-24 school year. 
 
September 2nd and June 2nd for the 2024–25 school year. 
 
In the 2025–26 school year, and in each school year thereafter, children who will turn four-years old by 
September 1 are eligible for Transitional Kindergarten.   

Parents/guardians of eligible children shall be notified of the availability of this program and the age, 
residency, and any other enrollment requirements. Enrollment in the Transitional Kindergarten Program 
shall be voluntary. 

(cf. 5111 - Admission) 

(cf. 5111.1 - District Residency) 

(cf. 5111.12 - Residency Based on Parent/Guardian Employment) 

(cf. 5111.13 - Residency for Homeless Children) 

(cf. 5141.22 - Infectious Diseases) 

(cf. 5141.3 - Health Examinations) 

(cf. 5141.31 - Immunizations) 



(cf. 5141.32 - Health Screening for School Entry 

Out of District Transfers into Transitional Kindergarten 

Students transferring from a Transitional Kindergarten program in an out-of-district public school may be 
admitted to Transitional Kindergarten to allow for continuity of service, pending receipt and review of 
school records.  

Transitional Kindergarten Waivers 

The District will implement the following transitional kindergarten waiver programs as outlined in the 
accompanying AR and consistent with the Education Code if transitional kindergarten classes are not fully 
enrolled with age-eligible students:  

Over-Age Transitional Kindergarten Waiver 

Upon request of a child's parents/guardians, the district may, on a case-by-case basis after the 
Superintendent or designee determines that it is in the child's best interest, admit into the district's 
Transitional Kindergarten program a child whose fifth birthday is on or before September 1 and 
who is therefore eligible for kindergarten.  

Under-Age Transitional Kindergarten Waiver 
 
Upon request of a child’s parents/guardians, the district may, on a case-by-case basis, admit into 
the district’s Transitional Kindergarten program, a child who will have their fifth birthday between 
April 2, 2024 and September 1, 2024 for the 2023-24 school year and fifth birthday between June 
2, 2025 and September 1, 2025 for the 2024-25 school year.  This waiver shall apply if transitional 
kindergarten classes are not fully enrolled to capacity for the 2023-24 or the 2024-25 school years 
only.   
 
Special Under-Age Transitional Kindergarten Waiver 
 
To provide maximum continuity of services, children who are eligible for a waiver as described 
above and who have an active Individual Education Program (“IEP”) through the school district and 
who have a sibling at a school with a transitional kindergarten program such that the child will 
attend kindergarten at that school, will be eligible for a “Special Temporary Transitional 
Kindergarten Waiver.”   

 
A Special Temporary Transitional Kindergarten Waiver allows a qualifying child to 
participate in the regular transitional kindergarten enrollment process as though they were 
born before the codified cut-off date.  
 
To qualify, parents or guardians must apply for a “Special Waiver” within the timeframe 
allowed for ordinary transitional kindergarten enrollment.    

 
 

Education Code Title II, Division 4, Part 27, Chapter 1, Article I §48000(c). 

Id. at §48000(c)(2)(A) 

 

Curriculum and Instruction 



The district's Transitional Kindergarten Program shall be based on a modified kindergarten curriculum that 
is age and developmentally appropriate (Education Code: 48000) 

(cf. 6141 - Curriculum Development and Evaluation) 

(cf. 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials) 

The program shall be aligned to the preschool learning foundations and preschool curriculum frameworks 
developed by the California Department of Education. It shall be designed to facilitate students' 
development in essential skills related to language and literacy, mathematics, physical development health, 
visual and performing arts, science, history-social studies, English language development, and social-
emotional development. 

(cf. 5148.3 -Preschool/Early Childhood Education) 

(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 

(cf. 6174 - Education for English Language Learners) 

The Board shall fix the length of the school day in district's Transitional Kindergarten program, which shall 
be at least three hours but no more than four hours. 

(cf. 6111 - School Calendar) 

(cf. 6112 - School Day) 

Transitional Kindergarten students may be placed in the same classrooms as Kindergarten students when 
necessary, provided that the instructional program is differentiated to meet student needs. 

TK students may be commingled in the same classroom with four-year-old students from a CSPP program 
as long as the commingled program meets all of the requirements of each program as well as the following 
requirements (Education Code 8207, 48000):   

1. The classroom does not include students enrolled in TK for a second year or students enrolled in a 
regular kindergarten 
   

2. An early childhood environment rating scale, as specified in 5 CCR 18281, is completed for the 
classroom 
   

3. All children enrolled for 10 or more hours per week are evaluated using the Desired Results 
Developmental Profile, as specified in 5 CCR 18272 
   

4. The classroom is taught by a teacher that holds a credential issued by the Commission on Teacher 
Credentialing in accordance with Education Code 44065 and 44256 
   

5. The classroom is in compliance with the adult-child ratio specified in Education Code 8241 
   

6. Contractors of the district report the services, revenues, and expenditures for children in the 
preschool program in accordance with 5 CCR 18068 except for contractors of the TK program  

 

 

Staffing 



The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that teachers assigned to teach in the Transitional 
Kindergarten classes possess a teaching credential or permit from the Commission on Teacher 
Credentialing (CTC) that authorizes such instruction. 

(cf. 4112.2 - Certification) 

A credentialed teacher who is first assigned to an Transitional Kindergarten class after July 1, 2015, shall, by 
August 1, 2020, have at least 24 units in early childhood education and/or child development, comparable 
experience in a preschool setting, and/or a child development teacher permit issued by the CTC. (Education 
code 48000) 

The Superintendent or designee may provide professional development as needed to ensure that 
Transitional Kindergarten teachers are knowledgeable about standards and effective instructional methods 
for teaching young children. 

(cf. 4131- Staff Development) 

Continuation to Kindergarten 

Students who complete the Transitional Kindergarten program shall be eligible to continue in kindergarten 
the following school year. Parents /guardians of such students shall not be required to submit a signed 
Kindergarten Continuance Form for kindergarten attendance. However, whenever children who would 
otherwise be age-eligible for kindergarten are enrolled in Transitional Kindergarten, the Superintendent or 
designee shall obtain a Kindergarten Continuance Form signed by the parent/guardian near the end of the 
Transitional Kindergarten year consenting to the child's enrollment in kindergarten the following year. 

Students enrolled at a regional non-neighborhood Transitional Kindergarten school site shall return to their 
assigned/neighborhood home school to continue their regular 2nd year in kindergarten. Parents requesting 
to continue the second year of kindergarten at a regional non-neighborhood school would apply to do so 
through the Open Enrollment Process. 

A student shall not attend more than two years in a combination of Transitional Kindergarten and 
kindergarten. (Education Code 46300) 

(cf. 5123 - Promotion/Acceleration/Retention) 

Program Evaluation 

The Superintendent or designee shall develop or identify appropriate formal and/or informal assessments 
of Transitional Kindergarten  students' development and progress. He/she shall monitor and regularly 
report to the Board regarding program implementation and the progress of students in meeting related 
academic standards. 

(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 

(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) 

 
Policy Reference Disclaimer: 
These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority 
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in 
the subject matter of the policy.  
State Description 
5 CCR 18000-18434 Child care and development programs 



5 CCR 18068 Attendance and expenditure reports 
5 CCR 18272 Developmental profile 
5 CCR 18281 Environment rating scales 
Ed. Code 17375 California Preschool, Transitional Kindergarten, and Full-Day 

Kindergarten Facilities Grant Program 
Ed. Code 37202 Equal time in all schools 
Ed. Code 44065 Issuance of and functions requiring credentials 
Ed. Code 44256 Authorization for teaching credentials 
Ed. Code 44258.9 County superintendent review of teacher assignment 
Ed. Code 46111 Kindergarten; hours of attendance 
Ed. Code 46114-46119 Minimum school day; kindergarten 
Ed. Code 46120 Expanded learning opportunities 
Ed. Code 46300 Method of computing average daily attendance 
Ed. Code 48000 Minimum age of admission for kindergarten; transitional 

kindergarten 
Ed. Code 48002 Evidence of minimum age required to enter kindergarten or first 

grade 
Ed. Code 48003 Kindergarten annual report 
Ed. Code 48011 Promotion/retention following one year of kindergarten 
Ed. Code 48200 Compulsory attendance 
Ed. Code 8207 California State Preschool Program administration 
Ed. Code 8241 Staffing ratios for center-based program 
Ed. Code 8322 California Prekindergarten Planning and Implementation Grant 

Program 
Ed. Code 8970-8974 Early primary program, including extended-day kindergarten 
Ed. Code 8973 Extended-day kindergarten 
Management Resources Description 
California Department of Education 
Publication 

Desired Results Developmental Profile:  A Developmental 
Continuum from Early Infancy up to Kindergarten Entry, 2015 

California Department of Education 
Publication 

California Preschool Curriculum Framework, Vol. 1, 2010 

California Department of Education 
Publication 

California Preschool Curriculum Framework, Vol. 2, 2011 

California Department of Education 
Publication 

California Preschool Curriculum Framework, Vol. 3, 2013 

California Department of Education 
Publication 

California Preschool Learning Foundations, Vol. 1, 2008 

California Department of Education 
Publication 

Transitional Kindergarten FAQs 

California Department of Education 
Publication 

Transitional Kindergarten Implementation Guide: A Resource for 
California Public School District Administrators and Teachers, 2013 

California Department of Education 
Publication 

California Preschool Learning Foundations, Vol. 2, 2010 

California Department of Education 
Publication 

California Preschool Learning Foundations, Vol. 3, 2012 

CSBA Publication What Boards of Education Can Do About Kindergarten Readiness, 
Governance Brief, May 2016 

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services 
Website Transitional Kindergarten California 
Website California Kindergarten Association 
Website Commission on Teacher Credentialing 
Website CSBA 
Website California Department of Education 

Cross References 

https://legalservices.csba.org/#
http://www.tkcalifornia.org/#
https://californiakindergartenassociation.org/#
http://www.ctc.ca.gov/#
http://www.csba.org/#
http://www.cde.ca.gov/#


Code Description 
0500 Accountability 
1220 Citizen Advisory Committees 
1220 Citizen Advisory Committees 
4112.2 Certification 
4112.2 Certification 
4131 Staff Development 
4131 Staff Development 
5111 Admission 
5111 Admission 
5111.1 District Residency 
5111.1 District Residency 
5123 Promotion/Acceleration/Retention 
5123 Promotion/Acceleration/Retention 
5123-E PDF(1) Promotion/Acceleration/Retention 
5141.22 Infectious Diseases 
5141.22 Infectious Diseases 
5141.3 Health Examinations 
5141.3 Health Examinations 
5141.31 Immunizations 
5141.31 Immunizations 
5145.6 Parent/Guardian Notifications 
5145.6-E PDF(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications 
6011 Academic Standards 
6111 School Calendar 
6112 School Day 
6141 Curriculum Development And Evaluation 
6151 Class Size 
6151 Class Size 
6161.1 Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials 
6161.1 Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials 
6162.5 Student Assessment 
6162.5 Student Assessment 
 

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=J9lJbplusm2slshUJYEFyZPcRH2A==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=NHWslshPCPvVKj1IIIYAByslsh2Q==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=0JU1AdkzoZxjZgRh6FlCDA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=55Su6fy1LCR733JTIw5sCQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=i43w754rYf8pIvttvfIJ4Q==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=XTrjwplusgq0vDZtvJxo6wdGg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=ussXplushUslshXByW8KNwCuU1tw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=sDCiuksEa6mDs9hEFshHslshw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=aY05bDeslshJJ45kcxT3fjJqQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=plusRQO85k5OUzbJHpIaSEQ3Q==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=P6CPKkTng7TZ5C1iADzplusbg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=ul0d60yrBlAj6JbRLTpyCA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=sSQimjUdKrmtBKinOzSotA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=lVR9Xuynp0yQSNj1dafqpw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=38EpWD636KoUQOaQevt0VQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=EbOjVOyjxqZipak3TUWaPQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=0DoCWlugTMoGplus9gbG43tEA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=l76pluscdj8h7sJmcHplusmdXGDg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=71bcNK3lYucTEtNWSDslshplustA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=NYplusJm42J9S2EQ1bslsh9WlWmw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=fD0VBYxIrBaWMddhnR3l8w==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=Qbslsh6Q62O6LMQTPBlW4V9Vg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=rnslshF5injSuJrslsh1zLgO0ZTw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=oanisB0oYJY5oqulRyaBpQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=r9VUwCSpKOuUP3kPP7tQ2Q==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=UHA2Y7tWJ4ClipX43Os9sQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=Him37fcaXGLL54L5hcSugQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=m7zKKsv9EUuMDbO3qYvMlw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=ob8MHtuOwlfplusNplus3KLslsh21slshA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=sg2AMrvIkoZRuCJZyOgUkA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=L46YjO3K4DsIfHr8plusigSwQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=H1Zk84zVxpluscMiHIFGAp6yQ==#


Board Policy Manual 
Sacramento City Unified School District 

Policy 6170.1: Transitional Kindergarten Status: Adopted 

Original Adopted Date: November 2014  
 

The governing board desires to offer a high-quality Early Kinder/Transitional KindergartenTransitional 
Kindergarten Program for eligible children who do not yet meet the minimum age criterion for 
kindergarten. The program shall assist children in developing the academic, social, and emotional skills 
they need to succeed in kindergarten and beyond. 

The district's Early Kinder/Transitional KindergartenTransitional Kindergarten shall be the first year of a 
two-year kindergarten program (Education Code 48000) 

The Board encourages ongoing collaboration among district preschool staff, other preschool providers, 
elementary teachers, administrators, and parents/guardians in program development, implementation, 
and evaluation. 

(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 

(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement 

Eligibility 

The district's Early Kinder/Transitional KindergartenTransitional Kindergarten Program shall prioritize 
student enrollment for children whose fifth birthday lies between: (Education Code: 48000) 

September 2nd and February 2nd for the 2022–23 school year 
 
September 2nd and April 2nd for 2023-24 school year. 
 
September 2nd and June 2nd for the 2024–25 school year. 
 
In the 2025–26 school year, and in each school year thereafter, children who will turn four-years old by 
September 1 are eligible for Transitional Kindergarten.   

* September 2 and December 2 

Parents/guardians of eligible children shall be notified of the availability of this program and the age, 
residency, and any other enrollment requirements. Enrollment in the Early Kinder/Transitional 
KindergartenTransitional Kindergarten Program shall be voluntary. 

(cf. 5111 - Admission) 

(cf. 5111.1 - District Residency) 

(cf. 5111.12 - Residency Based on Parent/Guardian Employment) 

(cf. 5111.13 - Residency for Homeless Children) 

(cf. 5141.22 - Infectious Diseases) 

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri)



(cf. 5141.3 - Health Examinations) 

(cf. 5141.31 - Immunizations) 

(cf. 5141.32 - Health Screening for School Entry 

Out of District Transfers into Transitional Kindergarten 

Students transferring from a Transitional Kindergarten program in an out-of-district public school may be 
admitted to Transitional Kindergarten to allow for continuity of service, pending receipt and review of 
school records.  

Transitional Kindergarten Waivers 

The District will implement the following transitional kindergarten waiver programs as outlined in the 
accompanying AR and consistent with the Education Code if transitional kindergarten classes are not fully 
enrolled with age-eligible students:  

Over-Age Transitional Kindergarten Waiver 

Upon request of a child's parents/guardians, the district may, on a case-by-case basis after the 
Superintendent or designee determines that it is in the child's best interest, admit into the district's 
Transitional Kindergarten program a child whose fifth birthday is on or before September 1 and 
who is therefore eligible for kindergarten.  

Under-Age Transitional Kindergarten Waiver 
 
Upon request of a child’s parents/guardians, the district may, on a case-by-case basis, admit into 
the district’s Transitional Kindergarten program, a child who will have their fifth birthday between 
April 2, 2024 and September 1, 2024 for the 2023-24 school year and fifth birthday between June 
2, 2025 and September 1, 2025 for the 2024-25 school year.  This waiver shall apply if transitional 
kindergarten classes are not fully enrolled to capacity for the 2023-24 or the 2024-25 school years 
only.   
 
Special Under-Age Transitional Kindergarten Waiver 
 
To provide maximum continuity of services, children who are eligible for a waiver as described 
above and who have an active Individual Education Program (“IEP”) through the school district and 
who have a sibling at a school with a transitional kindergarten program such that the child will 
attend kindergarten at that school, will be eligible for a “Special Temporary Transitional 
Kindergarten Waiver.”   

 
A Special Temporary Transitional Kindergarten Waiver allows a qualifying child to 
participate in the regular transitional kindergarten enrollment process as though they were 
born before the codified cut-off date.  
 
To qualify, parents or guardians must apply for a “Special Waiver” within the timeframe 
allowed for ordinary transitional kindergarten enrollment.    

 
 

Education Code Title II, Division 4, Part 27, Chapter 1, Article I §48000(c). 

Id. at §48000(c)(2)(A) 



 

Curriculum and Instruction 

The district's Transitional KindergartenEarly Kinder Program shall be based on a modified kindergarten 
curriculum that is age and developmentally appropriate (Education Code: 48000) 

(cf. 6141 - Curriculum Development and Evaluation) 

(cf. 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials) 

The program shall be aligned to the preschool learning foundations and preschool curriculum frameworks 
developed by the California Department of Education. It shall be designed to facilitate students' 
development in essential skills related to language and literacy, mathematics, physical development health, 
visual and performing arts, science, history-social studies, English language development, and social-
emotional development. 

(cf. 5148.3 -Preschool/Early Childhood Education) 

(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 

(cf. 6174 - Education for English Language Learners) 

The Board shall fix the length of the school day in district's Transitional KindergartenEarly Kinder program, 
which shall be at least three hours but no more than four hours. 

(cf. 6111 - School Calendar) 

(cf. 6112 - School Day) 

Transitional KindergartenEarly Kinder students may be placed in the same classrooms as Kindergarten 
students when necessary, provided that the instructional program is differentiated to meet student needs. 

TK students may be commingled in the same classroom with four-year-old students from a CSPP 
program as long as the commingled program meets all of the requirements of each program as 
well as the following requirements:  (Education Code 8207, 48000):   

1. The classroom does not include students enrolled in TK for a second year or students 
enrolled in a regular kindergarten 
   

2. An early childhood environment rating scale, as specified in 5 CCR 18281, is completed for 
the classroom 
   

3. All children enrolled for 10 or more hours per week are evaluated using the Desired 
Results Developmental Profile, as specified in 5 CCR 18272 
   

4. The classroom is taught by a teacher that holds a credential issued by the Commission on 
Teacher Credentialing in accordance with Education Code 44065 and 44256 
   

5. The classroom is in compliance with the adult-child ratio specified in Education Code 8241 
   

6. Contractors of the district report the services, revenues, and expenditures for children in 
the preschool program in accordance with 5 CCR 18068 except for contractors of the TK 
program  

 

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri)

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), Not
Highlight

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri)



 

Staffing 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that teachers assigned to teach in the Transitional 
Kindergarten Early Kinder classes possess a teaching credential or permit from the Commission on Teacher 
Credentialing (CTC) that authorizes such instruction. 

(cf. 4112.2 - Certification) 

A credentialed teacher who is first assigned to an Transitional KindergartenE K class after July 1, 2015, shall, 
by August 1, 2020, have at least 24 units in early childhood education and/or child development, 
comparable experience in a preschool setting, and/or a child development teacher permit issued by the 
CTC. (Education code 48000) 

The Superintendent or designee may provide professional development as needed to ensure that 
Transitional Kindergarten Early Kinder teachers are knowledgeable about standards and effective 
instructional methods for teaching young children. 

(cf. 4131- Staff Development) 

Continuation to Kindergarten 

Students who complete the Early Kinder/Transitional KindergartenTransitional Kindergarten program shall 
be eligible to continue in kindergarten the following school year. Parents /guardians of such students shall 
not be required to submit a signed Kindergarten Continuance Form for kindergarten attendance. However, 
whenever children who would otherwise be age-eligible for kindergarten are enrolled in Transitional 
Kindergarten, the Superintendent or designee shall obtain a Kindergarten Continuance Form signed by the 
parent/guardian near the end of the Transitional Kindergarten year consenting to the child's enrollment in 
kindergarten the following year. 

Students enrolled at a regional non-neighborhood Transitional Kindergarten Early Kinder school site shall 
return to their assigned/neighborhood home school to continue their regular 2nd year in kindergarten. 
Parents requesting to continue the second year of kindergarten at a regional non-neighborhood school 
would apply to do so through the Open Enrollment Process. 

A student shall not attend more than two years in a combination of Early Kinder/Transitional 
KindergartenTransitional Kindergarten and kindergarten. (Education Code 46300) 

(cf. 5123 - Promotion/Acceleration/Retention) 

Program Evaluation 

The Superintendent or designee shall develop or identify appropriate formal and/or informal assessments 
of Transitional Kindergarten Early Kinder students' development and progress. He/she shall monitor and 
regularly report to the Board regarding program implementation and the progress of students in meeting 
related academic standards. 

(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 

(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) 

 
Policy Reference Disclaimer: 

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri)

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri)

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri)

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri)

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri)



These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority 
for the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in 
the subject matter of the policy.  
State Description 
5 CCR 18000-18434 Child care and development programs 
5 CCR 18068 Attendance and expenditure reports 
5 CCR 18272 Developmental profile 
5 CCR 18281 Environment rating scales 
Ed. Code 17375 California Preschool, Transitional Kindergarten, and Full-Day 

Kindergarten Facilities Grant Program 
Ed. Code 37202 Equal time in all schools 
Ed. Code 44065 Issuance of and functions requiring credentials 
Ed. Code 44256 Authorization for teaching credentials 
Ed. Code 44258.9 County superintendent review of teacher assignment 
Ed. Code 46111 Kindergarten; hours of attendance 
Ed. Code 46114-46119 Minimum school day; kindergarten 
Ed. Code 46120 Expanded learning opportunities 
Ed. Code 46300 Method of computing average daily attendance 
Ed. Code 48000 Minimum age of admission for kindergarten; transitional 

kindergarten 
Ed. Code 48002 Evidence of minimum age required to enter kindergarten or first 

grade 
Ed. Code 48003 Kindergarten annual report 
Ed. Code 48011 Promotion/retention following one year of kindergarten 
Ed. Code 48200 Compulsory attendance 
Ed. Code 8207 California State Preschool Program administration 
Ed. Code 8241 Staffing ratios for center-based program 
Ed. Code 8322 California Prekindergarten Planning and Implementation Grant 

Program 
Ed. Code 8970-8974 Early primary program, including extended-day kindergarten 
Ed. Code 8973 Extended-day kindergarten 
Management Resources Description 
California Department of Education 
Publication 

Desired Results Developmental Profile:  A Developmental 
Continuum from Early Infancy up to Kindergarten Entry, 2015 

California Department of Education 
Publication 

California Preschool Curriculum Framework, Vol. 1, 2010 

California Department of Education 
Publication 

California Preschool Curriculum Framework, Vol. 2, 2011 

California Department of Education 
Publication 

California Preschool Curriculum Framework, Vol. 3, 2013 

California Department of Education 
Publication 

California Preschool Learning Foundations, Vol. 1, 2008 

California Department of Education 
Publication 

Transitional Kindergarten FAQs 

California Department of Education 
Publication 

Transitional Kindergarten Implementation Guide: A Resource for 
California Public School District Administrators and Teachers, 2013 

California Department of Education 
Publication 

California Preschool Learning Foundations, Vol. 2, 2010 

California Department of Education 
Publication 

California Preschool Learning Foundations, Vol. 3, 2012 

CSBA Publication What Boards of Education Can Do About Kindergarten Readiness, 
Governance Brief, May 2016 

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal Services 
Website Transitional Kindergarten California 
Website California Kindergarten Association 

https://legalservices.csba.org/#
http://www.tkcalifornia.org/#
https://californiakindergartenassociation.org/#


Website Commission on Teacher Credentialing 
Website CSBA 
Website California Department of Education 

Cross References 

Code Description 
0500 Accountability 
1220 Citizen Advisory Committees 
1220 Citizen Advisory Committees 
4112.2 Certification 
4112.2 Certification 
4131 Staff Development 
4131 Staff Development 
5111 Admission 
5111 Admission 
5111.1 District Residency 
5111.1 District Residency 
5123 Promotion/Acceleration/Retention 
5123 Promotion/Acceleration/Retention 
5123-E PDF(1) Promotion/Acceleration/Retention 
5141.22 Infectious Diseases 
5141.22 Infectious Diseases 
5141.3 Health Examinations 
5141.3 Health Examinations 
5141.31 Immunizations 
5141.31 Immunizations 
5145.6 Parent/Guardian Notifications 
5145.6-E PDF(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications 
6011 Academic Standards 
6111 School Calendar 
6112 School Day 
6141 Curriculum Development And Evaluation 
6151 Class Size 
6151 Class Size 
6161.1 Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials 
6161.1 Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials 
6162.5 Student Assessment 
6162.5 Student Assessment 
 

http://www.ctc.ca.gov/#
http://www.csba.org/#
http://www.cde.ca.gov/#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=J9lJbplusm2slshUJYEFyZPcRH2A==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=NHWslshPCPvVKj1IIIYAByslsh2Q==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=0JU1AdkzoZxjZgRh6FlCDA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=55Su6fy1LCR733JTIw5sCQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=i43w754rYf8pIvttvfIJ4Q==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=XTrjwplusgq0vDZtvJxo6wdGg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=ussXplushUslshXByW8KNwCuU1tw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=sDCiuksEa6mDs9hEFshHslshw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=aY05bDeslshJJ45kcxT3fjJqQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=plusRQO85k5OUzbJHpIaSEQ3Q==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=P6CPKkTng7TZ5C1iADzplusbg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=ul0d60yrBlAj6JbRLTpyCA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=sSQimjUdKrmtBKinOzSotA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=lVR9Xuynp0yQSNj1dafqpw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=38EpWD636KoUQOaQevt0VQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=EbOjVOyjxqZipak3TUWaPQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=0DoCWlugTMoGplus9gbG43tEA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=l76pluscdj8h7sJmcHplusmdXGDg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=71bcNK3lYucTEtNWSDslshplustA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=NYplusJm42J9S2EQ1bslsh9WlWmw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=fD0VBYxIrBaWMddhnR3l8w==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=Qbslsh6Q62O6LMQTPBlW4V9Vg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=rnslshF5injSuJrslsh1zLgO0ZTw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=oanisB0oYJY5oqulRyaBpQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=r9VUwCSpKOuUP3kPP7tQ2Q==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=UHA2Y7tWJ4ClipX43Os9sQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=Him37fcaXGLL54L5hcSugQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=m7zKKsv9EUuMDbO3qYvMlw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=ob8MHtuOwlfplusNplus3KLslsh21slshA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=sg2AMrvIkoZRuCJZyOgUkA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=L46YjO3K4DsIfHr8plusigSwQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=H1Zk84zVxpluscMiHIFGAp6yQ==#


Board Policy Manual 
Sacramento City Unified School District 

Policy 6170.1: Transitional Kindergarten Status: Adopted 
Original Adopted Date: November 2014  

 

The governing board desires to offer a high-quality Early Kinder/Transitional Kindergarten Program 
for eligible children who do not yet meet the minimum age criterion for kindergarten. The program 
shall assist children in developing the academic, social, and emotional skills they need to succeed 
in kindergarten and beyond. 

The district's Early Kinder/Transitional Kindergarten shall be the first year of a two-year 
kindergarten program (Education Code 48000) 

The Board encourages ongoing collaboration among district preschool staff, other preschool 
providers, elementary teachers, administrators, and parents/guardians in program development, 
implementation, and evaluation. 

(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 

(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement 

Eligibility 

The district's Early Kinder/Transitional Kindergarten Program shall prioritize student enrollment for 
children whose fifth birthday lies between: (Education Code: 48000) 

* September 2 and December 2 

Parents/guardians of eligible children shall be notified of the availability of this program and the 
age, residency, and any other enrollment requirements. Enrollment in the Early Kinder/Transitional 
Kindergarten Program shall be voluntary. 

(cf. 5111 - Admission) 

(cf. 5111.1 - District Residency) 

(cf. 5111.12 - Residency Based on Parent/Guardian Employment) 

(cf. 5111.13 - Residency for Homeless Children) 

(cf. 5141.22 - Infectious Diseases) 

(cf. 5141.3 - Health Examinations) 

(cf. 5141.31 - Immunizations) 

(cf. 5141.32 - Health Screening for School Entry 

Curriculum and Instruction 

The district's Early Kinder Program shall be based on a modified kindergarten curriculum that is 
age and developmentally appropriate (Education Code: 48000) 



(cf. 6141 - Curriculum Development and Evaluation) 

(cf. 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials) 

The program shall be aligned to the preschool learning foundations and preschool curriculum 
frameworks developed by the California Department of Education. It shall be designed to facilitate 
students' development in essential skills related to language and literacy, mathematics, physical 
development health, visual and performing arts, science, history-social studies, English language 
development, and social-emotional development. 

(cf. 5148.3 -Preschool/Early Childhood Education) 

(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 

(cf. 6174 - Education for English Language Learners) 

The Board shall fix the length of the school day in district's Early Kinder program, which shall be at 
least three hours but no more than four hours. 

(cf. 6111 - School Calendar) 

(cf. 6112 - School Day) 

Early Kinder students may be placed in the same classrooms as Kindergarten students when 
necessary, provided that the instructional program is differentiated to meet student needs. 

Staffing 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that teachers assigned to teach in the Early Kinder 
classes possess a teaching credential or permit from the Commission on Teacher Credentialing 
(CTC) that authorizes such instruction. 

(cf. 4112.2 - Certification) 

A credentialed teacher who is first assigned to an E K class after July 1, 2015, shall, by August 1, 
2020, have at least 24 units in early childhood education and/or child development, comparable 
experience in a preschool setting, and/or a child development teacher permit issued by the CTC. 
(Education code 48000) 

The Superintendent or designee may provide professional development as needed to ensure that 
Early Kinder teachers are knowledgeable about standards and effective instructional methods for 
teaching young children. 

(cf. 4131- Staff Development) 

Continuation to Kindergarten 

Students who complete the Early Kinder/Transitional Kindergarten program shall be eligible to 
continue in kindergarten the following school year. Parents /guardians of such students shall not 
be required to submit a signed Kindergarten Continuance Form for kindergarten attendance. 

Students enrolled at a regional non-neighborhood Early Kinder school site shall return to their 
assigned/neighborhood home school to continue their regular 2nd year in kindergarten. Parents 
requesting to continue the second year of kindergarten at a regional non-neighborhood school 
would apply to do so through the Open Enrollment Process. 



A student shall not attend more than two years in a combination of Early Kinder/Transitional 
Kindergarten and kindergarten. (Education Code 46300) 

(cf. 5123 - Promotion/Acceleration/Retention) 

Program Evaluation 

The Superintendent or designee shall develop or identify appropriate formal and/or informal 
assessments of Early Kinder students' development and progress. He/she shall monitor and 
regularly report to the Board regarding program implementation and the progress of students in 
meeting related academic standards. 

(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 

(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) 

 
Policy Reference Disclaimer: 
These references are not intended to be part of the policy itself, nor do they indicate the basis or authority for 
the board to enact this policy. Instead, they are provided as additional resources for those interested in the 
subject matter of the policy.  
State Description 
5 CCR 18000-18434 Child care and development programs 
5 CCR 18068 Attendance and expenditure reports 
5 CCR 18272 Developmental profile 
5 CCR 18281 Environment rating scales 
Ed. Code 17375 California Preschool, Transitional Kindergarten, and 

Full-Day Kindergarten Facilities Grant Program 
Ed. Code 37202 Equal time in all schools 
Ed. Code 44065 Issuance of and functions requiring credentials 
Ed. Code 44256 Authorization for teaching credentials 
Ed. Code 44258.9 County superintendent review of teacher assignment 
Ed. Code 46111 Kindergarten; hours of attendance 
Ed. Code 46114-46119 Minimum school day; kindergarten 
Ed. Code 46120 Expanded learning opportunities 
Ed. Code 46300 Method of computing average daily attendance 
Ed. Code 48000 Minimum age of admission for kindergarten; transitional 

kindergarten 
Ed. Code 48002 Evidence of minimum age required to enter 

kindergarten or first grade 
Ed. Code 48003 Kindergarten annual report 
Ed. Code 48011 Promotion/retention following one year of kindergarten 
Ed. Code 48200 Compulsory attendance 
Ed. Code 8207 California State Preschool Program administration 
Ed. Code 8241 Staffing ratios for center-based program 
Ed. Code 8322 California Prekindergarten Planning and 

Implementation Grant Program 
Ed. Code 8970-8974 Early primary program, including extended-day 

kindergarten 
Ed. Code 8973 Extended-day kindergarten 
Management Resources Description 
California Department of Education 
Publication 

Desired Results Developmental Profile:  A 
Developmental Continuum from Early Infancy up to 
Kindergarten Entry, 2015 



California Department of Education 
Publication 

California Preschool Curriculum Framework, Vol. 1, 
2010 

California Department of Education 
Publication 

California Preschool Curriculum Framework, Vol. 2, 
2011 

California Department of Education 
Publication 

California Preschool Curriculum Framework, Vol. 3, 
2013 

California Department of Education 
Publication 

California Preschool Learning Foundations, Vol. 1, 
2008 

California Department of Education 
Publication 

Transitional Kindergarten FAQs 

California Department of Education 
Publication 

Transitional Kindergarten Implementation Guide: A 
Resource for California Public School District 
Administrators and Teachers, 2013 

California Department of Education 
Publication 

California Preschool Learning Foundations, Vol. 2, 
2010 

California Department of Education 
Publication 

California Preschool Learning Foundations, Vol. 3, 
2012 

CSBA Publication What Boards of Education Can Do About Kindergarten 
Readiness, Governance Brief, May 2016 

Website CSBA District and County Office of Education Legal 
Services 

Website Transitional Kindergarten California 
Website California Kindergarten Association 
Website Commission on Teacher Credentialing 
Website CSBA 
Website California Department of Education 

Cross References 

Code Description 
0500 Accountability 
1220 Citizen Advisory Committees 
1220 Citizen Advisory Committees 
4112.2 Certification 
4112.2 Certification 
4131 Staff Development 
4131 Staff Development 
5111 Admission 
5111 Admission 
5111.1 District Residency 
5111.1 District Residency 
5123 Promotion/Acceleration/Retention 
5123 Promotion/Acceleration/Retention 
5123-E PDF(1) Promotion/Acceleration/Retention 
5141.22 Infectious Diseases 
5141.22 Infectious Diseases 
5141.3 Health Examinations 
5141.3 Health Examinations 
5141.31 Immunizations 
5141.31 Immunizations 
5145.6 Parent/Guardian Notifications 
5145.6-E PDF(1) Parent/Guardian Notifications 
6011 Academic Standards 
6111 School Calendar 

https://legalservices.csba.org/#
https://legalservices.csba.org/#
http://www.tkcalifornia.org/#
https://californiakindergartenassociation.org/#
http://www.ctc.ca.gov/#
http://www.csba.org/#
http://www.cde.ca.gov/#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=J9lJbplusm2slshUJYEFyZPcRH2A==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=NHWslshPCPvVKj1IIIYAByslsh2Q==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=0JU1AdkzoZxjZgRh6FlCDA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=55Su6fy1LCR733JTIw5sCQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=i43w754rYf8pIvttvfIJ4Q==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=XTrjwplusgq0vDZtvJxo6wdGg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=ussXplushUslshXByW8KNwCuU1tw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=sDCiuksEa6mDs9hEFshHslshw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=aY05bDeslshJJ45kcxT3fjJqQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=plusRQO85k5OUzbJHpIaSEQ3Q==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=P6CPKkTng7TZ5C1iADzplusbg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=ul0d60yrBlAj6JbRLTpyCA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=sSQimjUdKrmtBKinOzSotA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=lVR9Xuynp0yQSNj1dafqpw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=38EpWD636KoUQOaQevt0VQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=EbOjVOyjxqZipak3TUWaPQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=0DoCWlugTMoGplus9gbG43tEA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=l76pluscdj8h7sJmcHplusmdXGDg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=71bcNK3lYucTEtNWSDslshplustA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=NYplusJm42J9S2EQ1bslsh9WlWmw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=fD0VBYxIrBaWMddhnR3l8w==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=Qbslsh6Q62O6LMQTPBlW4V9Vg==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=rnslshF5injSuJrslsh1zLgO0ZTw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=oanisB0oYJY5oqulRyaBpQ==#


6112 School Day 
6141 Curriculum Development And Evaluation 
6151 Class Size 
6151 Class Size 
6161.1 Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials 
6161.1 Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials 
6162.5 Student Assessment 
6162.5 Student Assessment 
 

https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=r9VUwCSpKOuUP3kPP7tQ2Q==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=UHA2Y7tWJ4ClipX43Os9sQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=Him37fcaXGLL54L5hcSugQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=m7zKKsv9EUuMDbO3qYvMlw==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=ob8MHtuOwlfplusNplus3KLslsh21slshA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=sg2AMrvIkoZRuCJZyOgUkA==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=L46YjO3K4DsIfHr8plusigSwQ==#
https://simbli.eboardsolutions.com/Policy/ViewPolicy.aspx?S=36030403&revid=H1Zk84zVxpluscMiHIFGAp6yQ==#


 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Agenda Item 11.2 

 
Meeting Date:  March 2, 2023 
 
Subject:  Review and Approve Amendment No. 1 to Agreement for 
                     Consultant Services- SA23-00118  
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division: Labor Relations 
 
 
Recommendation: Approve Amendment No. 1 to agreement for consultant services 
with Margarita Maldonado. 
 
 
Background/Rationale:  Amendment No. 1 to increase the January 31, 2022 contract 
by $87,500 and extend the contract from October 24, 2022 to June 30, 2023, in order.to 
provide support in the area of labor relations, including drafting proposals and collecting, 
reviewing and analyzing data. 
 
 
Financial Considerations: This amendment includes a requested increase of $87,500 
for a total contract value of $170,000. 
 
 
LCAP Goal(s): N/A 
 
 
Documents Attached:   
N/A 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: 5 minutes 
Submitted by:  Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent  
Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 

 
Page 1 of 1 



 Page 1 of 1  

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item 13.1a 

 
Meeting Date:  March 2, 2023 
 
 
Subject: Approval/Ratification of Grants, Entitlements, and Other Income Agreements 

Approval/Ratification of Other Agreements 
Approval of Bid Awards 
Approval of Declared Surplus Materials and Equipment 
Change Notices 
Notices of Completion 

 
 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Business Services 
 
Recommendation:  Recommend approval of items submitted. 
 
Background/Rationale:   
 
Financial Considerations:  See attached. 
 
LCAP Goal(s): College, Career and Life Ready Graduates; Safe, Emotionally Healthy, 
Engaged Students; Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence    
 
Documents Attached:  
1. Expenditure and Other Agreements 
2. Recommended Bid Awards – Facilities Projects 
3. Change Notices – Facilities Projects 
 

Estimated Time of Presentation:  N/A 

Submitted by:  Rose Ramos, Chief Business Officer 

  Tina Alvarez Bevens, Contract Analyst 

Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent



 Page 1 of 4  

EXPENDITURE AND OTHER AGREEMENTS 

Restricted Funds 

Contractor Description Amount 

FACILITIES SUPPORT SERVICES 
 
HMC Architects 
SA23-00461 
 
New Contract: 
☒  Yes 
☐  No 
 

12/1/22 – 9/30/23: Architectural and engineering services 
for the Luther Burbank Core Academic Renovation Phase 
II project. Project consists of HVAC split unit system in 
Book Room A15 (admin building); new school marquee; 
additional outlets and power for Chromebook carts in one-
story permanent classroom buildings; ADA accessibility 
upgrades for classroom path of travel; classroom flooring 
upgrades; modernization of classrooms with new window 
coverings; campus wide signage package and campus 
wide exterior painting.  
 
HMC Architects was selected for this project from the 
District’s pool of architects qualified through a Request for 
Qualifications (RFQ) process on February 20, 2020. 
  

$357,000 
Measure Q 

Funds 

 

 

Contractor Description Amount 

STUDENT SUPPORT & HEALTH SERVICES 
   

 

   
Pro Youth & Family 
SA23-00359 
 
New Contract: 
☐  Yes 
☒  No 

Agreement for Year 1 of 2 was awarded at the August 19, 
2021 Board of Education meeting. Near Peer Mental 
Health & Wellness. Contractor will implement a youth 
mental wellness effort on the campuses of American 
Legion, Hiram Johnson and Luther Burbank starting in 
September of 2021. 50 youth will be served at each site for 
a total of 150 students. As part of Contractor’s campus-
wide advocacy work, an additional 25% of the student 
population at the 3 high school campuses will also be 
impacted. Though this project will have a positive effect on 
school culture and will benefit the entire school community, 
it will be particularly focused on outreach and support to 
youth of color and LGBTQ youth.   Increase requested to 
add Rosemont HS in Year 2 of agreement.  
 
PER AGREEMENT DATED AUGUST 19, 2021 (YEAR 2 
OF 2)  
 

Original Contract 
Amount: 

$991,080 
Expanded 

Learning 
Opportunities 

 
Requested 

Increase: 
$100,000 

Expanded 
Learning 

Opportunities 
 

New Contract 
Amount: 

$1,091,080 
Expanded 

Learning 
Opportunities  

   
  



 Page 2 of 4  

   
NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
 
Capitol Tech Solutions 
SA22-00181 
 
New Contract: 
☐  Yes 
☒  No 

10/7/21 – 7/31/23: Approve Amendment No. 1 to request 
an additional five (5) months due to challenges upgrading 
Data Entrée software to new version; additional time is 
needed identifying the changes and programming the 
changes into new system.   
 
Agreement was awarded at the October 7, 2021 Board of 
Education meeting to provide software development 
services to modernize the District’s custom cafeteria 
management software, Data Entrée. Data Entrée is used 
to manage activities related to planning, production and 
distribution of meals to schools throughout the District. The 
system has served the District’s needs for decades, 
however, it is in dire need of upgrades to meet the current 
demands of the District and the technology the application 
was built for is obsolete and has necessitated the use of 
computers with outdated and unsupported operating 
systems which in and of itself creates vulnerabilities and 
security risks. The updates and upgrades to the application 
will allow it to be accessed through a browser, including on 
mobile devices and will also incorporate many new 
features that will better serve the current and future needs 
of the District and the new Central Kitchen.  
 
Typically, services of this nature and cost would require 
competitive bidding under Public Contract Code. The 
Nutrition Services department received approval from 
California Department of Education (CDE) and U.S. 
Department of Agricultural (USDA) to award a contract 
without competitive bidding under the exception for public 
exigency or emergency due to the risk involved in 
continuing to use an unsupported application on an 
obsolete platform.  

Original Contract 
Amount: 

$474,000 
Child Nutrition: 

School Program 
Funds 

 
Requested 

Increase: 
$120,000  

Child Nutrition: 
School Program 

Funds 
 

Total New 
Contract 
Amount: 

$594,000  
Child Nutrition: 

School Program 
Funds 

   
   
SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 
 
Ray Morgan Co 
R23-02717 
 
New Contract: 
☐  Yes 
☒  No 

Increase requested is based on the onsite assessment by 
Ray Morgan.   
 
Awarded at the February 2, 2023 Board of Education 
meeting.  7/1/22 – 6/30/23: Special Education Department 
is using Ray Morgan specifically for updating Special 
Education filing processes and centralizing special 
education student files across the system.  Digitizing 
records is prudent to providing space and long term access 
to student files.  Develop and implement an electronic 
records system to improve the department’s preparedness 
and response to school closures. Through this electronic 
records system, the department can continue to access 
and provide student records in accordance with state and 
federal law.  ESSER III Action Item B21: Educational 
Technology for Students with Disabilities.   
 

Original Contract 
Amount: 

$115,000 
ESSER III Funds 

 
Requested 

increase: 
$81,881 

ESSER III Funds 
 

New Total 
Contract 
Amount: 

$196,881 
ESSER III Funds 

   
   
   



 Page 3 of 4  

 Restricted Funds 

Contractor Description Amount 

SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 
 
Maxim Healthcare 
S23-00036 
 
New Contract: 
☐  Yes 
☒  No 

Agreement was awarded at the September 15, 2022 
Board of Education meeting to Maxim Healthcare Staffing 
Services for the purpose of providing special education 
and/or related services to LEA students with exceptional 
needs under the authorization of California Education 
Code sections 56157, 56361 and 56365 et seq. and Title 
5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3000 et 
seq., AB 490 (Chapter 862, Statutes of 2003) and AB 
1858 (Chapter 914, Statutes of 2004). Maxim Healthcare 
Staffing provides Occupational Therapy, Physical 
Therapy, and Behavior Intervention Services.  The District 
is exempt from bidding theses services per the above 
referenced statues. 
 

Original Contract 
Amount: 

$500,000 
Special 

Education Funds 
 

Requested 
Increase: 
$260,000 

Special 
Education 

Individuals with 
Disabilities Act 

(Resource 3310) 
 

$540,000 
Special 

Education Funds 
(Resource 6500) 

 
Total Contract 

Amount: 
$1,300,000 

 
  

 
 

RECOMMENDED BID AWARDS – FACILITIES PROJECTS   

Project: Lease-Leaseback Agreement for preconstruction services for Oak Ridge 
Elementary School New Construction  

 
Recommendation: Approve lease-leaseback contract with John F. Otto dba Otto Construction for 

preconstruction services of $72,120 for the Oak Ridge Elementary School New 
Construction project.  

 
 This work includes the developer to participate in the design review for 

constructability, project estimating, and scheduling. 
 
 The cost of construction for the Oak Ridge Elementary School New 

Construction project is currently estimated at $55,000,000 
 
Amount/Funding: $72,120 – Measure H Funds 
 
 
  



 Page 4 of 4  

 
CHANGE NOTICES – FACILITIES PROJECTS 
The following change notice is submitted for approval. 

 
Project: Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization  
 
Recommendation: Lease-Leaseback Amendment No. 1 Facilities Lease contract for $350,411 

was awarded at the September 15, 2022 Board of Education Meeting for 
procurement of long-lead mechanical units (equipment).  

 
 Approve Amendment No. 2 to John F. Otto, Inc., dba Otto Construction Lease-

Leaseback Agreement authorizing construction to install mechanical units 
(equipment) in gym, locker rooms, and cafeteria to improve ventilation as part 
of the district COVID-19 long term mitigation work in the amount of 
$2,315,377.; ESSER Funds. 

 
 Original Contract to purchase the units    $350,411 
 Requested Increase for Amendment No. 2 (GMP) $2,315,377 
 New Contract Amount, ESSER Funds $2,665,788 
 
 
Project: Edward Kemble – Cesar Chavez New Construction  
 
Recommendation: Lease-Leaseback Facilities Lease agreement for $74,810.00 was awarded at 

the December 15, 2022, Board of Education meeting for preconstruction 
services for the Edward Kemble/Cesar Chavez new construction project 
currently in design. 

 
 Approve Amendment No. 1 to Balfour Beatty-Clark/Sullivan A Joint Venture 

Lease-Leaseback Agreement authorizing Early procurement of long lead items 
such as lunch shade shelter, fire alarm devices, and gates and frames in the 
amount of $76,836.00; Measure H. 

 
 Original Contract $74,810 
 Requested Increase for Amendment No. 1 (GMP) $76,836 
 New Contract Amount, Measure H Funds $151,646 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agreement for Architectural Services 

between 

Sacramento City Unified School District 

and 

HMC Group 

 
 

Luther Burbank Core Academic Renovation,  
Phase 2 Project 

 
 

Dated: March 2, 2023 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page i 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Article 1  Definitions ................................................................................................................................................. 1 

Article 2  Scope, Responsibilities and Services of Architect ...................................................................... 3 

Article 3  Architect Staff .......................................................................................................................................... 7 

Article 4  Schedule of Services ............................................................................................................................. 8 

Article 5  Construction Cost Budget ................................................................................................................... 9 

Article 6  Fee and Method of Payment .......................................................................................................... 10 

Article 7  Payment for Extra Services or Changes ...................................................................................... 11 

Article 8  Ownership of Data .............................................................................................................................. 11 

Article 9  Termination of Contract ................................................................................................................... 12 

Article 10 Indemnity / Architect Liability ........................................................................................................ 14 

Article 11 Fingerprinting and Conduct on Project Site ............................................................................. 15 

Article 12 Responsibilities of the District ........................................................................................................ 15 

Article 13 Liability of District ............................................................................................................................... 16 

Article 14 Nondiscrimination .............................................................................................................................. 17 

Article 15 Insurance ................................................................................................................................................ 17 

Article 16 Covenant against Contingent Fees .............................................................................................. 17 

Article 17 Entire Agreement/Modification ..................................................................................................... 17 

Article 18 Non-Assignment of Agreement .................................................................................................... 17 

Article 19 Law, Venue ............................................................................................................................................. 18 

Article 20 Alternative Dispute Resolution ...................................................................................................... 18 

Article 21 Tolling of Claims .................................................................................................................................. 19 

Article 22 Attorneys’ Fees ..................................................................................................................................... 19 

Article 23 Severability ............................................................................................................................................ 19 

Article 24 Employment Status ............................................................................................................................ 19 

Article 25 Certificate of Architect ...................................................................................................................... 20 

Article 26 Cost Disclosure - Documents and Written Reports ............................................................... 21 

Article 27 Notice & Communications .............................................................................................................. 21 

Article 28 [RESERVED] ............................................................................................................................................ 22 

Article 29 District’s Right to Audit ..................................................................................................................... 22 

Article 30 Other Provisions .................................................................................................................................. 22 

Article 31 Exhibits ”A” through "F" .................................................................................................................... 23 

  



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page ii 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

EXHIBIT “A” – RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF ARCHITECT A-1 
EXHIBIT “B” – CRITERIA AND BILLING FOR EXTRA SERVICES B-1 
EXHIBIT “C” – SCHEDULE OF SERVICES C-1 
EXHIBIT “D” – PAYMENT SCHEDULE D-1 
EXHIBIT “E” – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS E-1 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 1 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 

 This Agreement for Architectural Services is made as of March 2, 2023, between the 
Sacramento City Unified School District, a California public school district (“District”), and HMC 
Group (“Architect”) (collectively “Parties”), for the following project (“Project”):  

Luther Burbank HS Core Academic Renovation, Phase 2 located at 3500 Florin Road, 
Sacramento, CA 95823 

For and in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the Parties hereto 
agree as follows: 

Article 1. Definitions 

1.1. In addition to the definitions above, the following definitions of words or 
phrases shall apply when used in this Agreement, including all Exhibits: 

1.1.1. Agreement:  The Agreement consists exclusively of this 
document and all identified exhibits attached and incorporated 
by reference. 

1.1.2. Architect:  The Architect identified in the first paragraph of this 
Agreement, including all Consultants to the Architect.  The term 
Architect means the Design Professional in General Responsible 
Charge on this Project. 

1.1.3. As-Built Drawings (“As-Builts”):  Any document prepared and 
submitted by District’s Contractor(s) that details on a 
Conforming Set, the actual construction performed during the 
Project, including changes necessitated by Construction Change 
Documents and change orders, and detailed by the District’s 
construction contractor(s) on a Conforming Set.   

1.1.4. Bid Set:  The plans, drawings, and specifications at the end of 
the Construction Documents Phase that the Division of the State 
Architect (“DSA”) has approved and that the District can use to 
go out to bid for construction of the Project. 

1.1.5. Conforming Set:  The plans, drawings, and specifications at the 
end of the Bidding Phase that incorporate all addenda, if any, 
issued during the Bidding Phase.  The Architect shall ensure that 
DSA has approved all revisions to the Bid Set that are 
incorporated onto the Conforming Set and for which DSA 
approval is required. 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 2 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

1.1.6. Construction Budget:  The total amount of funds indicated by 
the District for the entire Project plus all other costs, including 
design, construction, administration, and financing. 

1.1.7. Construction Change Documents (“CCD”):  The 
documentation of changes to the DSA-approved construction 
documents. 

1.1.8. Construction Cost Budget: The total cost to District of all 
elements of the Project designed or specified by the Architect, 
as adjusted at the end of each design phase in accordance with 
this Agreement.  The Construction Cost Budget does not include 
the compensation of the Architect and the Architect’s 
Consultants, the cost of land, rights-of-way, financing or other 
costs which are the responsibility of the District, including 
construction management. 

1.1.9. Construction Manager:  The District’s representative on the 
Project if the District retains a construction manager, project 
manager, or owner’s representative. 

1.1.10. Contractor:  One or more licensed contractors under contract 
with the District for construction of all or a portion of the Project. 

1.1.11. Consultant(s):  Any and all consultant(s), sub-consultant(s), 
subcontractor(s), or agent(s) to the Architect. 

1.1.12. District:  The Sacramento City Unified School District.  

1.1.13. DSA:  The Division of the State Architect. 

1.1.14. Extra Services:  District-authorized services outside of the 
scope in Exhibit “A” or District-authorized reimbursables not 
included in Architect’s Fee. 

1.1.15. Laboratory of Record: The District-designated laboratory(ies) 
for testing of concrete, soils, materials, and other required 
testing. 

1.1.16. Project:  District’s Luther Burbank High School at 3500 Florin 
Road, Sacramento, CA  95823.  

1.1.17. Record Drawings:  A final set of drawings prepared by the 
Architect that incorporates all changes from all As-Builts, 
sketches, details, and clarifications. 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 3 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

1.1.18. Service(s):  All labor, materials, supervision, services, tasks, and 
work that the Architect is required to perform and that are 
required by, or reasonably inferred from, the Agreement, and 
that are necessary for the design and completion of the Project.  

1.1.19. Visually Verify: To verify to the fullest extent possible by 
physical inspection and reasonable investigation and without 
any destructive action. 

Article 2. Scope, Responsibilities, and Services of Architect 

2.1. Architect shall render the Services described in Exhibit “A,” commencing 
with receipt of a written Notice to Proceed signed by the District 
representative.  Architect’s Services will be completed in accordance with 
the schedule attached as Exhibit “C.” 

2.2. Architect shall provide Services that shall comply with professional 
architectural standards, including the standard of care applicable to 
architects designing public school facilities and applicable requirements of 
federal, state, and local law, including, but not limited to, the requirements 
of the California Business and Professions Code, the California Education 
Code, and the California Code of Regulations.  All persons providing 
professional services hereunder shall be properly licensed as required by 
California law. 

2.3. The District intends to award the Project to Contractor(s) pursuant to a 
competitive bid process.  District reserves its right to use alternative delivery 
methods and the Architect’s scope of work may be adjusted accordingly. 

2.4. Architect acknowledges that all California public school districts are 
obligated to develop and implement the following storm water 
requirements for the discharge of storm water to surface waters from its 
construction and land disturbance activities where the project disturbs one 
(1) or more acres of land and is not part of a larger common plan of 
development or sale, the project disturbs one acre or more of land, or the 
project disturbs less than one (1) acre of land but is part of a larger common 
plan of development or sale, or where the District engages in maintenance 
(e.g., fueling, cleaning, repairing) or transportation activities. 

2.4.1. Architect shall provide the design for the Project, without limitation: 

2.4.1.1. A municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (“MS4”).  An MS4 
is a system of conveyances used to collect and/or convey 
storm water, including, without limitation, catch basins, 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 4 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

curbs, gutters, ditches, man-made channels, and storm 
drains. 

2.4.1.2. A Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (“SWPPP”) that 
contains specific best management practices (“BMPs”) and 
establishes numeric effluent limitations. 

2.4.2. Architect shall conform its design work to the District’s storm water 
requirements indicated above, that are approved by the District and 
applicable to the Project, at no additional cost to the District.  In 
addition, as required Architect shall develop a grading and drainage 
plan and a site plan from architectural information showing a final 
development of the site.  This drawing will also include a horizontal 
and vertical control plan and a utility infrastructure plan.  The 
Services described in this subparagraph shall be provided by a 
professional civil engineer who contracts with or is an employee of 
the Architect.   

2.5. Architect shall contract for or employ at Architect’s expense, Consultant(s) 
to the extent deemed necessary for completion of the Project including, 
but not limited to: architects; mechanical, electrical, structural and civil 
engineers; landscapers; and interior designers, licensed as such by the State 
of California as part of the Basic Services under this Agreement.  The names 
of Consultant(s) shall be submitted to the District for approval prior to 
commencement of Services, as indicated below.  The District reserves the 
right to reject Architect’s use of any particular Consultant.  Nothing in the 
foregoing procedure shall create any contractual relationship between the 
District and any Consultant employed by the Architect under terms of the 
Agreement.  Architect shall require each of the Consultants retained by it 
to execute agreements with standard of care and indemnity provisions 
commensurate with this Agreement, but Architect shall remain solely 
responsible and liable to District for all matters covered by this Agreement. 

2.6. Architect shall coordinate with District personnel or its designated 
representatives as may be requested and desirable, including with other 
professionals employed by the District for the design, coordination or 
management of other work related to the Project.  This shall include, 
without limitation, coordination with State labor compliance, if any.  If the 
Architect employs Consultant(s), the Architect shall ensure that its 
contract(s) with its Consultant(s) include language notifying the 
Consultant(s) of State labor compliance, if any. 

2.7. Architect shall identify the regulatory agencies that have jurisdiction over 
essential building and design elements and coordinate with and implement 
the requirements of the regulatory agencies, including, without limitation, 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 5 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

the California Department of Education, the Office of Public School 
Construction, the Department of General Services, DSA, including DSA 
Fire/Life Safety, DSA Access Compliance Section, DSA Structural Safety 
Section, the State Fire Marshal and any regulatory office or agency that has 
authority for review and supervision of school district construction projects. 

2.7.1. If the Project is subject to DSA jurisdiction, then Architect, and its 
Consultants, if any, shall comply with all the DSA requirements, 
including without limitation, all the requirements included and/or 
referenced in the following forms, bulletins (“BU”), interpretations 
of regulations (“IR”), policies (“PL”), or procedures (“PR”): 

2.7.1.1. DSA IR A-6, Construction Change Document Submittal 
and Approval Process. 

2.7.1.2. DSA IR A-18, Use of Construction Documents Prepared by 
Other Professionals. 

2.7.1.3. DSA IR A-24, Construction Phase Duties of the School 
District, Contractor and Design Professional. 

2.7.1.4. DSA PR 07-01: Pre-Check Approval Process.  

2.7.1.5. DSA PR 07-02:  Over-The-Counter Review of Projects 
Using Pre-Check Approved Design.   

2.7.1.6. DSA PR 18-04.BB18: Electronic Plan Review for Design 
Professionals of Record Using Bluebeam 2018. 

2.7.1.7. DSA PR 18-09.BB18: Electronic Plan Review for Over-the-
Counter (“OTC”) Projects Using Bluebeam 2018. 

2.7.1.8. Form DSA PR 13-01, Construction Oversight Process. 

2.7.1.8.1. Each of Architect’s duties as provided in the 
DIR Construction Oversight Process shall be 
performed timely so as not to result in any 
delay to the Project. 

2.7.1.9. Form DSA PR 13-02, Project Certification Process. 

2.7.2. Notwithstanding the DSA forms, BUs, IRs, PLs, or PRs referenced 
anywhere in this Agreement, each of which is current as of the 
Effective Date, all Projects subject to DSA’s jurisdiction shall be 
submitted for review, back check, and approval, under the electronic 
plan review process (“EPR process”), rather than paper submission, 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 6 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

for all projects submitted to DSA.  Architect, and its Consultants, if 
any, shall comply with the EPR process and related DSA procedures, 
including, without limitation, DSA PR 18-04.BB18 and DSA PR 18-
09.BB18, and any subsequent or replacement procedures relating 
to the EPR process promulgated by DSA. Any reference herein to a 
particular DIR form, BU, IR, PL, or PR, shall mean and include the 
then-current DIR form, BU, IR, PL, or PR, respectively, and, to the 
extent that the EPR process has superceded such form or paper 
submission process, the EPR process then in effect shall control. 

2.8. Architect shall provide Services as required to obtain any local, state and/or 
federal agencies’ approval for on-site and off-site work related to the 
Project including review by regulatory agencies having jurisdiction over the 
Project. 

2.9. Architect shall direct and monitor the work of the District’s DSA project 
inspector(s) (“Project Inspector(s)”) and the Laboratory of Record.  Architect 
shall provide code required supervision of special inspectors not provided 
by the Laboratory of Record. 

2.10. Architect shall give efficient supervision to Services, using its best skill and 
attention.  Architect shall carefully study and compare all contract 
documents, drawings, specifications, and other instructions (“Contract 
Documents”) and shall at once report to District, Construction Manager, 
and Contractor, any error, inconsistency, or omission that Architect or its 
employees may discover, in writing, with a copy to District's Project 
Inspector(s).  Architect shall have responsibility for discovery of errors, 
inconsistencies, or omissions. 

2.11. Architect recognizes that the District may obtain the services of a 
Construction Manager and that Architect may have to assume certain 
coordination and management responsibilities, including tracking Requests 
for Information (“RFI”), providing RFI responses, and leading all 
coordination meetings between the District, Project Inspectors, and 
Contractors on the Project.  The District reserves the right to retain the 
services of a Construction Manager at any time.  The Construction Manager, 
if any, shall be authorized to give Architect Services authorizations and 
issue written approvals and notices to proceed on behalf of District.  The 
District reserves the right to designate a different Construction Manager at 
any time.  Any task, including, but not limited to, reviews or approvals that 
the District may perform pursuant to this Agreement may be performed by 
the Construction Manager, unless that task indicates it shall be performed 
by the Governing Board of the District.  In addition, the District may have a 
constructability review of Architect’s design documents.  Architect shall 
conform any design documents to the constructability review as part of the 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 7 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

Services under this Agreement and shall not be entitled to any 
compensation as Extra Services for this activity. 

2.12. Architect shall provide computer-generated pictures downloaded to 
computer files, updated as requested by the District, that the District may 
use on its website. 

2.13. As part of the basic Services pursuant to this Agreement, Architect is not 
responsible for: 

2.13.1.    Ground contamination or hazardous material analysis.  

2.13.2. Any asbestos and/or lead testing, design or abatement; however, 
it shall coordinate and integrate its work with any such 
information provided by District. 

2.13.3. Compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act 
(“CEQA”), except that Architect agrees to coordinate its work with 
that of any CEQA consultants retained by the District, to provide 
current elevations and schematic drawings for use in CEQA 
compliance documents, and to incorporate any mitigation 
measures adopted by the District into the Project design at no 
additional cost to the District.   

2.13.4. Historical significance report.  

2.13.5. Soils investigation. 

2.13.6. Geotechnical hazard report, except as indicated in Exhibit “A.” 

2.13.7. Topographic surveys of existing conditions 

2.13.8. State and Local agency fees. 

2.13.9. Testing and inspection 

Article 3. Architect Staff 

3.1. Architect has been selected to perform the Services herein because of the 
skills and expertise of key individuals. 

3.2. Architect agrees that the following key people in Architect’s firm shall be 
associated with the Project in the following capacities:  

Principal In Charge: Jeffrey Grau  

Project Director: Vipul Safi 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 8 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

Other: Brian Meyers, Educational Planner    

Major Consultants: 

Electrical: Edge Engineering  

Mechanical:  Capital Engineering   

Structural:  RW Engineering  

Cost Estimating:  Sierra West 

3.3. Architect shall not change any of the key personnel listed above without 
prior written approval by the District, unless said personnel cease to be 
employed by Architect.  In either case, the District shall be allowed to 
interview and approve replacement personnel.  

3.4. If any designated lead or key person fails to perform to the satisfaction of 
the District, then upon written notice Architect shall have five (5) calendar 
days to remove that person from the Project and replace that person with 
one acceptable to the District.  All lead or key personnel for any Consultant 
must also be designated by the Consultant and are subject to all conditions 
stated in this paragraph. 

3.5. Architect represents that Architect has no existing interest and will not 
acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which could conflict in any manner 
or degree with the performance of Services required under this Agreement 
and that no person having any such interest shall be employed by Architect. 

3.6. Architect shall comply with Education Code section 17302(a) and agrees 
that any plans and/or specifications included in the Services shall be 
prepared under the supervision of licensed personnel, and that licensed 
personnel shall be in “responsible charge” of persons who observe the 
construction. 

Article 4. Schedule of Services 

Architect shall commence Services under this Agreement upon receipt of a written 
Notice to Proceed and shall prosecute the Services diligently as described in 
Exhibit “A,” so as to proceed with and complete the Services in compliance with 
the schedule in Exhibit “C.”  Time is of the essence and failure of Architect to 
perform Services on time as specified in this Agreement is a material breach of this 
Agreement.  It shall not be a material breach if a delay is beyond the Architect’s or 
its Consultant(s)’ reasonable control. 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 9 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

Article 5. Construction Cost Budget 

5.1. Architect hereby accepts the District’s established Construction Cost 
Budget and Project scope.  In accordance with Exhibit “A,” the Architect 
shall have responsibility to further develop, review, and reconcile the 
Construction Cost Budget for the District at the beginning of the Project 
and at the completion of each design phase.  The District and Construction 
Manager shall also have responsibility to develop, review, and reconcile the 
Construction Cost Budget with the Architect. 

5.2. Architect shall complete all Services as described in Exhibit “A,” including 
all plans, designs, drawings, specifications and other Contract Documents, 
so that the cost to construct the work designed by the Architect will not 
exceed the Construction Cost Budget, as adjusted subsequently with the 
District’s written approval.  Architect shall maintain cost controls 
throughout the Project to deliver the Project within the Construction Cost 
Budget.   

5.3. The District may, in its sole discretion, do one, or a combination, of the 
following if any of the events in Article 5.4 occur: 

5.3.1. Give Architect written approval on an agreed adjustment to the 
Construction Cost Budget. 

5.3.2. Authorize Architect to re-negotiate, when appropriate, and/or re-
bid the Project within three (3) months’ time of receipt of bids 
(exclusive of District and other agencies’ review time) at no 
additional cost to the District. 

5.3.3. Terminate this Agreement if the Project is abandoned by the 
District, without further obligation by either party. 

5.3.4. Within three (3) months’ time of receipt of bids, instruct Architect 
to revise the drawings and specifications (in scope and quality as 
approved by the District) to bring the Project within the 
Construction Cost Budget for re-bidding at no additional cost to the 
District.   

5.4. If any of the following events occur, the District may exercise any one, or 
any combination, of the actions set forth in Article 5.3 above: 

5.4.1. The lowest responsive base bid received is in excess of five percent 
(5%) of the Construction Cost Budget; or  

5.4.2. If the combined total of base bid and all additive alternates come in 
ten percent (10%) or more under the Construction Cost Budget; or  



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 10 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

5.4.3. If the Construction Cost Budget increases in phases subsequent to 
the Schematic Design Phase due to reasonably foreseeable changes 
in the condition of the construction market in the county in which 
the District is located, in so far as these have not been caused by 
Acts of God, earthquakes, strikes, war, or energy shortages due to 
uncontrollable events in the world economy. 

Article 6. Fee and Method of Payment 

6.1. The District shall pay Architect for all Services contracted for under this 
Agreement an amount equal to the following (“Fee”): 

An amount not to exceed Three Hundred Forty Thousand Dollars 
($340,000) based on the rates set forth in Exhibit “D.”  

Reimbursable Expenses are in addition to compensation for Basic and 
Additional Services and will be billed at a multiple of 1.10% the expenses 
incurred. These charges include, but are not limited to, expenses incurred 
which are directly related to the Project, such as reproductions, plans and 
plots for owner, agency or contractor’s use, standard form documents, 
postage, handling and delivery of Instruments of Service, and mileage. 
Reimbursable expenses are not expected to exceed $17,000. All 
reimbursable expenses must be pre-approved by District. 

6.2. The District shall pay Architect the Fee pursuant to the provisions of Exhibit 
“D.” 

6.3. Architect shall bill for performance of Services under this Agreement in 
accordance with Exhibit “D.”  

6.4. No increase in Fee will be due from CCDs and/or change orders generated 
during the construction period to the extent caused by Architect’s error or 
omission.   

6.5. The Architect’s Fee set forth in this Agreement shall be full compensation 
for all of Architect’s Services incurred in the performance hereof as 
indicated in Exhibit “D.” 

6.6. Regardless of the structure of Architect’s Fee, the Architect’s Fee may be 
adjusted downward if the Scope of Services of this Agreement is reduced 
by the District in accordance with this Agreement. 

6.7. Neither the District’s review, approval of, nor payment for, any of the 
Services required under this Agreement shall be construed to operate as a 
waiver of any rights under this Agreement, and Architect shall remain liable 
to the District in accordance with this Agreement for direct damages to the 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 10 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

5.4.3. If the Construction Cost Budget increases in phases subsequent to 
the Schematic Design Phase due to reasonably foreseeable changes 
in the condition of the construction market in the county in which 
the District is located, in so far as these have not been caused by 
Acts of God, earthquakes, strikes, war, or energy shortages due to 
uncontrollable events in the world economy. 

Article 6. Fee and Method of Payment 

6.1. The District shall pay Architect for all Services contracted for under this 
Agreement an amount equal to the following (“Fee”): 

An amount not to exceed Three Hundred Forty Thousand Dollars 
($340,000) based on the rates set forth in Exhibit “D.”  

Reimbursable Expenses are in addition to compensation for Basic and 
Additional Services and will be billed at a multiple of 1.10% the expenses 
incurred. These charges include, but are not limited to, expenses incurred 
which are directly related to the Project, such as reproductions, plans and 
plots for owner, agency or contractor’s use, standard form documents, 
postage, handling and delivery of Instruments of Service, and mileage. 
Reimbursable expenses are not expected to exceed $1,000. All 
reimbursable expenses must be pre-approved by District. 

6.2. The District shall pay Architect the Fee pursuant to the provisions of Exhibit 
“D.” 

6.3. Architect shall bill for performance of Services under this Agreement in 
accordance with Exhibit “D.”  

6.4. No increase in Fee will be due from CCDs and/or change orders generated 
during the construction period to the extent caused by Architect’s error or 
omission.   

6.5. The Architect’s Fee set forth in this Agreement shall be full compensation 
for all of Architect’s Services incurred in the performance hereof as 
indicated in Exhibit “D.” 

6.6. Regardless of the structure of Architect’s Fee, the Architect’s Fee may be 
adjusted downward if the Scope of Services of this Agreement is reduced 
by the District in accordance with this Agreement. 

6.7. Neither the District’s review, approval of, nor payment for, any of the 
Services required under this Agreement shall be construed to operate as a 
waiver of any rights under this Agreement, and Architect shall remain liable 
to the District in accordance with this Agreement for direct damages to the 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 11 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

District caused by Architect’s failure to perform any of the Services 
furnished under this Agreement to the standard of care under California 
law for architects performing similar work for California school districts in 
or around the same geographic area as the District. 

Article 7. Payment for Extra Services or Changes 

Any charges for Extra Services shall be paid by the District as described in Exhibit 
“B” only upon certification that the claimed Extra Service was authorized as 
indicated herein and that the Extra Services have been satisfactorily completed.  If 
any service is done by Architect without prior written authorization by the 
Construction Manager or the District’s authorized representative, the District will 
not be obligated to pay for such service.  The foregoing provision notwithstanding, 
Architect will be paid by the District as described in Exhibit “B” for Extra Services 
that the Construction Manager or the District’s authorized representative verbally 
requests, provided that Architect confirms such request in writing pursuant to the 
notice requirements of this Agreement, and proceeds with such Extra Services not 
earlier than two (2) business days after the District receives confirmation of the 
request from the Architect. 

Article 8. Ownership of Data 

8.1. Pursuant to Education Code section 17316, this Agreement creates a non-
exclusive and perpetual license for the District to use, at its discretion, all 
plans including, but not limited to, record drawings, specifications, 
estimates and other documents that Architect or its Consultants prepare or 
cause to be prepared pursuant to this Agreement.  

8.2. Architect retains all rights to all copyrights over designs and other 
intellectual property embodied in the plans, record drawings, specifications, 
estimates, and other documents that Architect or its Consultants prepare 
or cause to be prepared pursuant to this Agreement.  

8.3. Architect shall perform the Services and prepare all documents under this 
Agreement with the assistance of Computer Aided Design Drafting 
Technology (“CADD”) (e.g., AutoCAD).  Architect shall deliver to District all 
drawings in DWG format.  As to any drawings that Architect provides in a 
CADD file format, the District acknowledges that anomalies and errors may 
be introduced into data when it is transferred or used in a computer 
environment, and that the District should rely on hard copies of all 
documents. 

8.4. In order to document exactly what CADD information was given to the 
District, Architect and District shall each date and sign a “hard” copy of 
reproducible documents that depict the information at the time Architect 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 12 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

produces the CADD information.  The District agrees to release Architect 
from all liability, damages, and/or claims that arise due to any changes 
made to this information by anyone other than Architect or its Consultant(s) 
subsequent to it being given to the District. 

8.5. Following the termination of this Agreement, for any reason whatsoever, 
Architect shall promptly deliver to the District upon written request and at 
no cost to the District the following items (hereinafter “Instruments of 
Service”), which the District shall have the right to utilize in any way 
permitted by statute: 

8.5.1. One (1) set of the Contract Documents, including the bidding 
requirements, specifications, and all existing cost estimates for the 
Project, in hard copy, reproducible format. 

8.5.2. One (1) set of fixed image CADD files in DXF format of the drawings 
that are part of the Contract Documents. 

8.5.3. One (1) set of non-fixed image CADD drawing files in DXF or DWG 
or both formats of the site plan, floor plans (architectural, plumbing, 
structural, mechanical and electrical), roof plan, sections and 
exterior elevations of the Project. 

8.5.4. All finished or unfinished documents, studies, reports, calculations, 
drawings, maps, models, photographs, technology data and reports 
prepared by the Architect under this Agreement. 

8.5.5. The obligation of Section 8.5 of this Agreement shall survive the 
termination of this Agreement for any reason whatsoever.  

8.6. In the event the District changes or uses any fully or partially completed 
documents without Architect’s knowledge or participation or both, the 
District agrees to release Architect of responsibility for such changes, and 
shall hold Architect harmless from and against any and all claims on 
account of any damages or losses to property or persons, or economic 
losses, arising out of that change or use, unless Architect is found to be 
liable in a forum of competent jurisdiction.  In the event that the District 
uses any fully or partially completed documents without the Architect’s full 
involvement, the District shall remove all title blocks and other information 
that might identify Architect and its Consultants.  

 

Article 9. Termination of Contract  



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 13 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

9.1. District’s Request for Assurances:  If District at any time reasonably believes 
that Architect is or may be in default under this Agreement, District may in 
its sole discretion notify Architect of this fact and request written assurances 
from Architect of performance of Services and a written plan from Architect 
to remedy any potential default under the terms this Agreement that the 
District may advise Architect of in writing.  Architect shall, within ten (10) 
days of District’s request, deliver a written cure plan that meets the 
requirements of the District’s request for assurances. Architect’s failure to 
provide such written assurances of performance and the required written 
plan, within ten (10) days of request, will constitute a material breach of this 
Agreement sufficient to justify termination for cause. 

9.2. District’s Termination of Architect for Cause:  If Architect fails to perform 
Architect’s duties to the satisfaction of the District, or if Architect fails to 
fulfill in a timely and professional manner Architect’s material obligations 
under this Agreement, or if Architect shall violate any of the material terms 
or provisions of this Agreement, the District shall have the right to 
terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, effective immediately upon 
the District giving written notice thereof to the Architect.  In the event of a 
termination pursuant to this subdivision, Architect may invoice the District 
for all Services performed until the notice of termination, but the District 
shall have the right to withhold payment and deduct any amounts equal to 
the District’s costs because of Architect’s actions, errors, or omissions. 

9.3. District’s Termination of Architect for Convenience:  District shall have the 
right in its sole discretion to terminate the Agreement for its own 
convenience.  In the event of a termination for convenience, Architect may 
invoice District and District shall pay all undisputed invoice(s) for Services 
performed until the District’s notice of termination for convenience. 

9.4. Architect’s Termination of Agreement for Cause:  Architect has the right to 
terminate this Agreement if the District does not fulfill its material 
obligations under this Agreement and fails to cure such material default 
within sixty (60) days of receipt of written notice of said defaults, or if the 
default cannot be cured within sixty (60) days, commence to cure such 
default, diligently pursue such cure, and complete the cure within a 
reasonable time following written notice and demand from Architect.  Such 
termination shall be effective thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice 
from Architect to the District.  Architect may invoice the District and the 
District shall pay all undisputed invoice(s) for Services performed until 
Architect’s notice of termination. 

9.5. Effect on Pre-Termination Services:  Except as indicated in this Article, 
termination shall have no effect upon any of the rights and obligations of 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 14 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

the Parties arising out of any transaction occurring prior to the effective 
date of such termination. 

9.6. Ceasing Services upon Termination:  If, at any time in the progress of the 
Design of the Project, the Governing Board of the District determines that 
the Project should be terminated, Architect, upon written notice from the 
District of such termination, shall immediately cease Services on the Project.  
The District shall pay Architect only the fee associated with the Services 
provided since the last invoice that has been paid and up to the notice of 
termination. 

9.7. Project Suspension:  If the District suspends the Project for more than one 
hundred twenty (120) consecutive days, Architect shall be compensated for 
Services performed prior to notice of that suspension. When the Project is 
resumed, the schedule shall be adjusted and Architect’s compensation shall 
be equitably adjusted to provide for expenses incurred in the resumption 
of the Architect’s Services.  Architect shall make every effort to maintain the 
same Project personnel after suspension.  If the District suspends the 
Project for more than two (2) years, Architect may terminate this Agreement 
by giving written notice.  

Article 10. Indemnity/Architect Liability  

10.1. To the fullest extent permitted by California law and in accordance with 
California Civil Code section 2782.8, Architect shall indemnify,  and hold 
free and harmless the District, its agents, representatives, officers, 
consultants, employees, trustees and members (“Indemnified Parties”) from 
any and all actions, assessments, counts, citations, claims, costs, damages, 
demands, judgments, liabilities (legal, administrative or otherwise), losses, 
notices, expenses, fines, penalties, proceedings, responsibilities, violations, 
attorney’s and consultants’ fees and causes of action to property or 
persons, including personal injury and/or death (“Claim(s)”), to the extent 
that the Claim(s) arises out of, pertains to, or relates to, the negligence 
(active or passive, ordinary or gross), recklessness (ordinary or gross), or 
willful misconduct of Architect, its directors, officials, officers, employees, 
contractors, subcontractors, consultants, subconsultants or agents arising 
out of, connected with, or resulting from the performance of the Services, 
the Project, or this Agreement. Architect also has the duty to defend the 
Indemnified Parties from all Claims at Architect’s own expense, including 
attorneys’ fees and costs; however, in no event shall the cost to defend 
charged to the Architect exceed the Architect’s proportionate percentage 
of fault. Notwithstanding the previous sentence, in the event one or more 
defendants is unable to pay its share of defense costs due to bankruptcy or 
dissolution of the business, the design professional shall meet and confer 
with other parties regarding unpaid defense costs. If a Claim arises out of, 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 15 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

or relates in any way to the Services provided under this Agreement, upon 
the District’s or the Architect’s request, the District and the Architect agree 
to undertake good faith measures to allow the Architect to assist the 
District in resolving the dispute or litigation.  The Architect’s assistance, 
described as “Mandatory Assistance” in Exhibit A, Section B.8, shall be 
provided at Architect’s own expense and excluded from any reimbursement 
calculation. At the commencement of the Mandatory Assistance Phase, 
District and Architect shall also in good faith as to the scope and extent of 
further assistance, including a joint defense agreement.  During the 
Mandatory Assistance Phase, each Party shall be responsible for their own 
attorneys’ fees and costs incurred; however, each Party reserves its rights 
pursuant to Civil Code section 2782.8.  

10.2. Architect shall pay and satisfy any judgment, award, or decree that may be 
rendered against the Indemnified Parties in any Claim as defined in Article 
10.1.  These amounts may be paid by Architect to District or the District 
may in reasonable good faith withhold those costs from amounts owing to 
Architect, pending resolution of the dispute. 

10.3. Architect’s duty to indemnify under this Agreement shall apply during the 
term of this Agreement and shall survive any expiration or termination of 
this Agreement until any such Claim(s) are barred by the applicable statute 
of limitations and is in addition to any other rights or remedies that the 
District may have under the law or under this Agreement. 

Article 11. Fingerprinting  

11.1. Pursuant to Education Code section 45125.2, the District has determined 
on the basis of scope of Services in this Agreement, that Architect, its 
Consultants and their employees will have only limited contact with pupils. 
Architect shall promptly notify the District in writing of any facts or 
circumstances which might reasonably lead the District to determine that 
contact will be more than limited as defined by Education Code section 
45125.1(d).  

11.2. For all workers on District property, the Architect shall comply with all 
applicable federal, state and local laws regarding COVID-19.  Further, 
except to the extent the Order provides otherwise, the Architect and 
Architect’s personnel shall continue to comply with all other applicable 
terms in the CDPH’s State Public Health Officer Orders.  

Article 12. Responsibilities of the District  



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 16 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

12.1. The District shall examine the documents submitted by the Architect and 
shall render decisions so as to avoid unreasonable delay in the process of 
the Architect’s Services. 

12.2. The District shall verbally or in writing advise Architect if the District 
becomes aware of any fault or defect in the Project, including any errors, 
omissions or inconsistencies in the Architect’s documents.  Failure to 
provide such notice shall not relieve Architect of its responsibility therefore, 
if any. 

12.3. Unless the District and Architect agree that a hazardous materials 
consultant shall be a Consultant of the Architect, the District shall furnish 
the services of a hazardous material consultant or other consultants when 
such services are requested in writing by Architect and deemed necessary 
by the District or are requested by the District. These services shall include: 
asbestos and lead paint survey; abatement documentation; and 
specifications related to said matters, which are to be incorporated into bid 
documents prepared by Architect. If the hazardous materials consultant is 
furnished by the District and is not a Consultant of the Architect, the 
specifications shall include a note to the effect that the hazardous materials 
consultant’s specifications are included in the Architect’s bid documents for 
the District’s convenience and have not been prepared or reviewed by the 
Architect. The note shall also direct questions about the hazardous 
materials consultant’s specifications related to asbestos and lead paint 
survey and/or abatement documentation to the preparer of the hazardous 
materials consultant’s specifications.    

Article 13. Liability of District  

13.1. Other than as provided in this Agreement, District’s financial obligations 
under this Agreement shall be limited to the payment of the compensation 
provided in this Agreement.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Agreement, in no event shall District be liable, regardless of whether any 
claim is based on contract or tort, for any special, consequential, indirect or 
incidental damages, including, but not limited to, lost profits or revenue, 
arising out of or in connection with this Agreement or the Services 
performed in connection with this Agreement. 

13.2. District shall not be responsible for any damage to persons or property as 
a result of the use, misuse or failure of any equipment used by Architect, or 
by its employees, even though such equipment be furnished or loaned to 
Architect by District.  



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 17 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

Article 14. Nondiscrimination  

Architect agrees to comply with the provisions of the California Fair Employment 
and Housing Act as set forth in part 2.8 of division 3 of the California Government 
Code, commencing at section 12900; the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964, as set 
forth in Public Law 88-352, and all amendments thereto; Executive Order 11246; 
and all administrative rules and regulations found to be applicable to Architect and 
all of its subcontractors. In addition, Consultant agrees to require like compliance 
by all of its subcontractor(s). 

Article 15. Insurance  

15.1. Architect shall comply with the insurance requirements for this Agreement, 
set forth in Exhibit “E.”  

15.2. Architect shall provide certificates of insurance and endorsements to 
District prior to commencement of the work of this Agreement as required 
in Exhibit “E.” 

Article 16. Covenant against Contingent Fees  

Architect warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or person, 
other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Architect, to solicit or 
secure this Agreement, and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any company or 
person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Architect, any fee, 
commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or any other consideration contingent 
on or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement.  For breach or 
violation of this warranty, the District shall have the right to annul this Agreement 
without liability, or in its discretion, to deduct from the contract price or 
consideration or to recover the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage 
fee, gift, or contingency. 

Article 17. Entire Agreement/Modification  

This Agreement, including the Exhibits attached hereto, supersedes all previous 
contracts and constitutes the entire understanding of the Parties hereto.  Architect 
shall be entitled to no other benefits than those specified herein.  No changes, 
amendments or alterations shall be effective unless in writing and signed by both 
Parties.  Architect specifically acknowledges that in entering this Agreement, 
Architect relies solely upon the provisions contained in this Agreement and no 
others. 

Article 18. Non-Assignment of Agreement 

In as much as this Agreement is intended to secure the specialized Services of the 
Architect, Architect may not assign, transfer, delegate or sublet any interest therein 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 18 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

without the prior written consent of District and any such assignment, transfer, 
delegation or sublease without the District’s prior written consent shall be 
considered null and void.  Likewise, District may not assign, transfer, delegate or 
sublet any interest therein without the prior written consent of Architect and any 
such assignment, transfer, delegation or sublease without Architect’s prior written 
consent shall be considered null and void. If an assignment is approved, this 
Agreement shall be binding on the successors and assign of the parties.  

Article 19. Law, Venue 

19.1. This Agreement has been executed and delivered in the State of California 
and the validity, enforceability and interpretation of any of the clauses of 
this Agreement shall be determined and governed by the laws of the State 
of California. 

19.2. To the fullest extent permitted by California law, the county in which the 
District administration office is located shall be the venue for any action or 
proceeding that may be brought or arise out of, in connection with or by 
reason of this Agreement. 

Article 20. Alternative Dispute Resolution 

20.1. All claims, disputes or controversies arising out of, or in relation to the 
interpretation, application or enforcement of this Agreement may be 
decided through mediation as the first method of resolution.  Notice of the 
demand for mediation of a dispute shall be filed in writing with the other 
party to the Agreement.  The demand for mediation shall be made within 
a reasonable time after written notice of the dispute has been provided to 
the other party, but in no case longer than ninety (90) days after initial 
written notice.  

20.2. If a claim, or any portion thereof, remains in dispute upon satisfaction of all 
applicable dispute resolution requirements, the Architect shall comply with 
all claims presentation requirements as provided in Chapter 1 (commencing 
with section 900) and Chapter 2 (commencing with section 910) of Part 3 
of Division 3.6 of Title 1 of Government Code as a condition precedent to 
the Architect’s right to bring a civil action against the District.  For purposes 
of those provisions, the running of the time within which a claim must be 
presented to the District shall be tolled from the time the Architect submits 
its written claim until the time the claim is denied, including any time 
utilized by any applicable meet and confer process. 

20.3. Pending resolution of the dispute, Architect agrees it will neither rescind 
the Agreement nor stop the performance of the Services.   



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 19 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

Article 21. Tolling of Claims 

Architect agrees to toll all statutes of limitations for District’s assertion of claims 
against Architect that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to Contractors’ or 
subcontractors’ claims against District involving Architect’s work, until the 
Contractors’ or subcontractors’ claims are finally resolved. 

Article 22. Attorneys’ Fees 

In the event either party shall bring any action or legal proceeding for damages for 
any alleged breach of any provision of or performance under this Agreement, to 
terminate this Agreement, or to enforce, protect or establish any term or covenant 
of this Agreement or right or remedy of either party, the prevailing party shall be 
entitled to recover, as a part of the action or proceeding, reasonable attorneys' fees 
and court costs, including consultants’ fees, attorneys' fees and costs for appeal, as 
may be fixed by the court.  The term “prevailing party” shall mean the party who 
received substantially the relief requested, whether by settlement, dismissal, 
summary judgment, judgment, or otherwise.   

Article 23. Severability 

If any term, covenant, condition or provision of this Agreement is held by a court 
of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remainder of the 
provisions hereof shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be 
affected, impaired or invalidated thereby. 

Article 24. Employment Status 

24.1. Architect shall, during the entire term of Agreement, be an independent 
contractor and nothing in this Agreement is intended nor shall it be 
construed to create an employer-employee relationship, a joint venture 
relationship, or to allow the District to exercise discretion or control over 
the professional manner in which Architect performs the Services that are 
the subject matter of this Agreement; provided always, however, that the 
Services to be provided by Architect shall be provided in a manner 
consistent with all applicable standards and regulations governing such 
Services. 

24.2. Architect understands and agrees that Architect’s personnel are not and 
will not be eligible for membership in or any benefits from any District 
group plan for hospital, surgical or medical insurance or for membership in 
any District retirement program or for paid vacation, paid sick leave or other 
leave, with or without pay or for other benefits which accrue to a District 
employee.  



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 20 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

24.3. Should the District, in its discretion, or a relevant taxing authority such as 
the Internal Revenue Service or the State Employment Development 
Department, or both, determine that Architect, or any employee or 
Consultant of Architect, is an employee of the District for purposes of 
collection of any employment taxes, the amounts payable under this 
Agreement shall be reduced by amounts equal to both the employee and 
employer portions of the tax due (and offsetting any credits for amounts 
already paid by Architect which can be applied against this liability).  The 
District shall then forward those amounts to the relevant taxing authority.  

24.4. Should a relevant taxing authority determine a liability for past services 
performed by Architect for the District, upon notification of such fact by the 
District, Architect shall promptly remit such amount due or arrange with the 
District to have the amount due withheld from future payments to Architect 
under this Agreement (again, offsetting any amounts already paid by 
Architect which can be applied as a credit against such liability). 

24.5. A determination of employment status pursuant to the preceding two (2) 
paragraphs shall be solely for the purposes of the particular tax in question, 
and for all other purposes of this Agreement, Architect shall not be 
considered an employee of the District.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
should any court, arbitrator, or administrative authority determine that 
Architect is an employee for any other purpose, then Architect agrees to a 
reduction in District’s liability resulting from this Agreement pursuant to 
principles similar to those stated in the foregoing paragraphs so that the 
total expenses of District under this Agreement shall not be greater than 
they would have been had the court, arbitrator, or administrative authority 
determined that Architect or its employees of Consultants was not an 
employee.  

24.6. Nothing in this Agreement shall operate to confer rights or benefits on 
persons or entities not a party to this Agreement. 

Article 25. Certificate of Architect 

25.1. Architect certifies that the Architect is properly certified or licensed under 
the laws and regulations of the State of California to provide the 
professional services that it has herein agreed to perform. 

25.2. Architect certifies that it is aware of the provisions of the California Labor 
Code that require every employer to be insured against liability for workers 
compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the 
provisions of that code, and it certifies that it will comply with those 
provisions before commencing the performance of the Services of this 
Agreement. 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 21 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

25.3. Architect certifies that it is aware of the provisions of California Labor Code 
and California Code of Regulations that require the payment of prevailing 
wage rates and the performance of other requirements on certain “public 
works” and “maintenance” projects (“Prevailing Wage Laws”).  Architect 
agrees to fully comply with and to require its Consultant(s) to fully comply 
with all requirements of the Prevailing Wage Laws, if applicable to Architect 
and its Consultants’ professional services to be provided under this 
Agreement. 

Article 26. Cost Disclosure - Documents and Written Reports 

Architect shall be responsible for compliance with California Government Code 
section 7550, if the total cost of the Contract is over five thousand dollars ($5,000). 

Article 27. Notice & Communications 

Notices and communications between the Parties to this Agreement may be sent 
to the following addresses: 

District: 
 
Sacramento City Unified School District  
5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA 95824 
ATTN:  Contracts Office 
EMAIL: tina-alvarez-bevens@scusd.edu  

With a Copy to: 
Dannis Woliver Kelley 
200 California Street #400  
San Francisco, CA 94111 
ATTN:  Deidree Sakai, Esq. 
 
Architect: 
 
HMC Group 
2101 Capitol Avenue #100 
Sacramento, CA 95816 
ATTN:  Brian Meyers 
EMAIL:  brian.meyers@hmcarchitects.com 
 

Any notice personally given shall be effective upon receipt.  Any notice sent by 
electronic mail shall be effective the day after transmission.  Any notice sent by 
overnight delivery service shall be effective the day after delivery.  Any notice given 
by mail shall be effective five (5) days after deposit in the United States mail. 

mailto:brian.meyers@hmcarchitects.com


 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 22 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

Article 28. [RESERVED] 

Article 29. District’s Right to Audit 

29.1. District retains the right to review and audit, and the reasonable right of 
access to Architect’s and any Consultant’s premises to review and audit the 
Architect’s compliance with the provisions of this Agreement (“District’s 
Right”). The District’s Right includes the right to inspect, photocopy, and to 
retain copies, outside of Architect’s premises, of any and all Project-related 
records and other information with appropriate safeguards, if such 
retention is deemed necessary by the District in its sole discretion. The 
District shall keep this information confidential, as allowed by applicable 
law. 

29.2. The District’s Right includes the right to examine any and all books, records, 
documents and any other evidence of procedures and practices that the 
District determines is necessary to discover and verify whether Architect is 
in compliance with all requirements of this Agreement. 

29.3. If there is a claim for additional compensation or for Extra Services, the 
District’s Right includes the right to examine books, records, documents, 
and any and all other evidence and accounting procedures and practices 
that the District determines is necessary to discover and verify all direct and 
indirect costs, of whatever nature, which are claimed to have been incurred, 
or anticipated to be incurred. 

29.4. Architect shall maintain complete and accurate records in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting practices in the industry. Architect shall 
make available to the District for review and audit all Project-related 
accounting records and documents and any other financial data. Upon 
District’s request, Architect shall submit exact duplicates of originals of all 
requested records to the District. 

29.5. Architect shall include audit provisions in any and all of its subcontracts, 
and shall ensure that these sections are binding upon all Consultants. 

29.6. Architect shall comply with these provisions within fifteen (15) days of the 
District’s written request to review and audit any or all of Architect’s Project-
related records and information. 

Article 30. Other Provisions 

30.1. Each party warrants that it has had the opportunity to consult counsel and 
understands the terms of this Agreement and the consequences of 
executing it. In addition, each party acknowledges that the drafting of this 



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 23 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

Agreement was the product of negotiation, that no party is the author of 
this Agreement, and that this Agreement shall not be construed against any 
party as the drafter of the Agreement. 

30.2. The individual executing this Agreement on behalf of Architect warrants 
and represents that she/he is authorized to execute this Agreement and 
bind the CM to all terms hereof. 

30.3. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of 
which shall be deemed an original. A facsimile or electronic signature shall 
be deemed to be the equivalent of the actual original signature. All 
counterparts so executed shall constitute one Agreement binding all the 
Parties hereto.  

30.4. Architect shall share, credit, or reimburse District fifty percent (50%) of the 
amount of any tax deduction and/or credit Architect receives for District 
Projects under the Commercial Buildings Energy-Efficiency Tax Deduction, 
26 U.S. Code § 179D (“Section 179D”).  Architect shall provide District with 
all necessary documentation to enable District to verify the amounts of the 
Section 179D tax deduction.  Architect shall notify District in writing of the 
Section 179D tax deduction within 30 days of when Architect receives IRS 
notice of the Section 179D tax deduction or receives the Section 179D tax 
refund, whichever occurs first. 

Article 31. Exhibits “A” through “F” attached hereto are hereby incorporated by this 
reference and made a part of this Agreement. 

 
[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

  



 

Agreement for Architectural Services       Page 24 
Sacramento City Unified School District 
DWK DMS 3771283v1 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date(s) 
indicated below. 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL 
DISTRICT 

 

By:       
Rose Ramos 
Chief Business Officer 

Date:     

HMC GROUP 

 
 

By:       
Brian Meyers 
Pre-K12 Practice Leader 

Date: 3/2/2023 

bmeyers
Pen
Britany

SGradillas
Line

SGradillas
Text Box
2/2/23



 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF ARCHITECT 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

A. SCOPE OF PROJECT ....................................................................................................................................... 1 
B. BASIC SERVICES .............................................................................................................................................. 1 
C. PRE-DESIGN AND START-UP SERVICES ............................................................................................. 4 
D. SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE ..................................................................................................................... 7 
E. DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE ........................................................................................................... 12 
F. CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE ............................................................................................ 16 
G. BIDDING PHASE .......................................................................................................................................... 20 
H. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION PHASE ....................................................... 21 
I. CLOSE OUT PHASE ..................................................................................................................................... 25 
J. MEETINGS / SITE VISITS / WORKSHOPS .............................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 1 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCOPE AND BASIC SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF ARCHITECT 
 
Architect shall provide all professional services necessary for completing the following: 
 
SCOPE OF PROJECT 

Project Name:  Luther Burbank Core Academic Renovation, Phase 2 

Construction Cost Budget:  $3,400,000 (Construction budget)   

BASIC SERVICES  

Architect agrees to provide the Services described below:   
 

1. Architect shall be responsible for the professional quality and technical accuracy of all 
studies, reports, projections, master plans, designs, drawings, specifications and other 
services furnished by Architect under the Agreement as well as coordination with all 
master plans, studies, reports and other information provided by District.  Architect shall, 
without additional compensation, correct or revise any errors or omissions in its studies, 
reports, projections, master plans, design, drawings, specifications and other Services.   

 
2. Architect will use all due care and diligence to confirm that its plans and specifications 

and all other information provided by or on behalf of the District to potential bidders 
discloses and publishes any potentially relevant information that could, in any way, have 
an impact on a Contractor's cost of performance.  Architect shall advise the District of 
the most effective methods of identifying and securing such information as part of each 
stage of design.  Architect shall track for District's benefit all such suggested and 
disclosed information. 

 
3. The District shall provide all information available to it to the extent the information 

relates to Architect’s scope of work.  This information shall include, if available,  
 

a. As-built;  
 

b. Physical characteristics;  
 

c. Legal limitations and utility locations for the Project site(s);  
 

d. Written legal description(s) of the Project site(s);  
 

e. Grades and lines of streets, alleys, pavements, and adjoining property and structures;  
 
  



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 2 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCOPE AND BASIC SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

f. Adjacent drainage;  
 

g. Rights-of-way, restrictions, easements, encroachments, zoning, deed restrictions, and 
boundaries and contours of the Project site(s);  

 
h. Locations, dimensions and necessary data with respect to existing buildings, other 

improvements and trees;  
 
i. Information concerning available utility services and lines, mechanical and other 

services, both public and private, above and below grade, including inverts and depths;   
 

j. Surveys, reports, as-built drawings, record drawings; and 
 

k. Subsoil data, chemical data, and other data logs of borings. 
 

Architect shall Visually Verify this information and all existing Project utilities, including 
capacity, and document the location of existing utility lines, telephone, water, sewage, 
storm drains and other lines on or around the Project to the extent determinable by the 
documents provided by the District.   
 
If Architect determines that the information or documentation the District provides is 
insufficient for purposes of design, or if Architect requires:  a topographical survey; a 
geotechnical report; structural, mechanical, and/or chemical tests; tests for air and/or 
water pollution; test borings; test pits; determinations of soil bearing values; percolation 
tests; ground corrosion tests; resistivity tests; tests for hazardous materials; tests for 
anticipating subsoil conditions; and/or other information that the District has not 
provided, then, at the soonest possible time after Architect has become aware that this 
additional information is needed, the Architect shall request that the District acquire that 
information.  If the Parties mutually agree in writing, this additional information and service 
shall be procured through the Architect, who may invoice the District for those services as 
Extra Services.  

 
4. Technology Backbone.  Architect shall be responsible for the coordination of the design 

and the layout of the technology backbone system with the District’s technology 
consultant, and lay out any included technology backbone system.  The coordination effort 
shall include location and routing of raceways, conduits and outlets and the required 
spaces to accommodate electrical, data and communication wiring.  Architect and 
Consultant(s) shall prepare and be responsible for documents prepared by the Architect 
based on the information provided by the District’s technology consultant as appropriate 
to the level of design completion. 

 
5. District Standards.  Architect shall incorporate into its work and the work of all 

Consultants the adopted District standards for facilities and construction. 
 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 3 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCOPE AND BASIC SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

High Performance Schools.  If the District adheres to the Collaborative for High 
Performance School (“CHPS”) Best Practice Standards, the Services provided by the 
Architect shall incorporate the CHPS Best Practice Standards and criteria to the extent 
feasible. CHPS and/or LEED certification is not of Architect’s scope of basic services. 

 
6. Mandatory Assistance.  If a third party dispute or litigation, or both, arises out of, or 

relates in any way to the Services provided under this Agreement, upon the District's 
request, the Architect, its agents, officers, and employees agree to assist in resolving the 
dispute or litigation. Architect's assistance includes, but is not limited to, providing 
professional consultations, attending mediations, arbitrations, depositions, trials or any 
event related to the dispute resolution and/or litigation (“Mandatory Assistance”). 

 
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 

 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 4 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
PRE-DESIGN AND START-UP SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

C. PRE-DESIGN AND START-UP SERVICES  
 

1. Project Initiation 
 

Upon final execution of the Agreement with the District, Architect shall: 
 
a. Within the first week following execution of the Agreement, review the proposed 

Schedule of Services set forth in Exhibit “C” to the Agreement and prepare a detailed 
scope of work list and work plan for documentation to the District’s satisfaction.  This 
scope of work list and work plan will identify specific tasks including, but not limited 
to: interviews, data collection, analysis, report preparation, planning, architectural 
programming, concepts and schematic design preparation and estimating that are 
part of the work of the Project.  Architect shall also identify milestone activities or dates, 
specific task responsibilities, required completion times necessary for review and 
approval by the District and by all regulatory agencies and additional definition of 
deliverables. 

 
b. Review the developed work plan with the District and its representatives to familiarize 

them with the proposed tasks and schedule and develop necessary modifications. 
 

2. Development of Architectural Program 
 

Architect shall prepare for the District’s review of an architectural program as follows:  
 

a. Perform pre-design investigations to establish appropriate guidelines around which 
and within which the Project is to be designed.  Identify design issues relating to 
functional needs, directives and constraints imposed by regulatory codes.  Review all 
data pertinent to the Project including survey, site maps, geotechnical reports and 
recommendations, soil testing results reports, and pertinent historical data, and other 
relevant information provided by District. 

 
b. Review DSA codes pertaining to the proposed Project design.   

 
c. Identify design issues relating to functional needs, directives and constraints imposed 

by applicable regulatory codes.   
 

d. Based on survey and topography data provided by the District, input into computer 
and develop existing conditions base for the Schematic Design Phase. 

 
e. Administer Project as required to coordinate work with the District and among 

Consultants. 
 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 5 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
PRE-DESIGN AND START-UP SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

f. Review District-provided standards for facilities and construction, including but not 
limited to designation of any material, product, thing or service by specific brand or 
trade name pursuant to Public Contract Code section 3400, subdivision (c). 

 
3. Construction Cost Budget 

 
a. Architect shall have responsibility to further develop, review, and reconcile the 

Construction Cost Budget within the parameters of the Construction Budget 
established by the District for the Project.  The estimates forming the basis of the 
Construction Cost Budget are to be based on the developed functional architectural 
program as approved by the District. The following conditions apply to the 
Construction Cost Budget prepared by the Architect: 

 
(i) All costs are to be based on current bid prices, with escalation rate and duration 

clearly identified as a separate line item; rate of cost escalation and projected 
bid and construction dates are to be approved by the District and its 
representatives. 
 

(ii) Format shall be estimated space use square foot costs (classroom sq. ft. costs, 
office space, etc. 
 

(iii) Contingencies for design, bidding, and construction are to be included as 
individual line items, with the percentage and base of calculation clearly 
identified. 
 

(iv) Architect shall include all information and estimates from the District and/or 
the Construction Manager that are intended to be part of the Construction Cost 
Budget. 
 

(v) One week prior to submittal of documents, Architect shall submit its proposed 
Construction Cost Budget to the District and the Construction Manager for 
review and approval.  At that time, Architect shall coordinate with the District 
and the Construction Manager to further develop, review, and reconcile the 
Construction Cost Budget. 
 

(vi) Mechanical, electrical, civil, landscape and estimating consultant(s) shall 
participate in the progress meeting as appropriate and shall provide input and 
feedback into the development of the Construction Cost Budget. 

 
b. The Construction Cost Budget will inform the District’s Construction Budget for the 

Project.  The accuracy of the Construction Cost Budget shall be the responsibility of 
the Architect. 

 
 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 6 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
PRE-DESIGN AND START-UP SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

4. Presentation 
 
If requested, Architect, along with any involved consultant(s), shall present and review with 
the District and, if directed, with the District’s Governing Board, the summary and detail of 
work involved in this Phase, including two-dimensional renderings of any proposed facility 
suitable for public presentation. 
 

5. Deliverables and Numbers of Copies  
 

Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District an 
electronic copy of the following items produced in this Phase: 

 
a. Architectural Program (include comparison between developed program and “model” 

program, include narrative explaining any substantial deviations); 
 

b. Site Plan; 
 

c. Revised Construction Cost Budget; 
 

d. Final Schedule of Services;  
 

e. Meeting Reports/Minutes from the Kick-off and other meetings; and 
 

f. Renderings, if requested by District.  
 

6. Meetings 
 

During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct 
meetings, site visits, and workshops minimally on a bi-weekly basis. 

 
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 7 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

D. SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE 
 

Upon District’s acceptance of Architect’s work in the previous Phase and assuming District has 
not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall prepare for the District’s review a 
Schematic Design Study, containing the following items as applicable to the Project scope, as 
follows: 

 
1. Prepare and review with District staff a scope of work list and work plan identifying specific 

tasks including, but not limited to: interviews, data collection, analysis, report preparation, 
planning, architectural programming, concepts and schematic design preparation and 
estimating that are part of the work of the Project.  Also identified will be milestone 
activities or dates, specific task responsibilities of the Architect, required completion times 
necessary for the review and approval by the District and by pertinent regulatory agencies 
and additional definition of deliverables. 

 
2. Review the developed work plan with the District and its representatives to familiarize 

them with the proposed tasks and schedule and develop necessary modifications. 
 

3. Architectural 
 

a. Scaled floor plans showing overall dimensions, identifying the various major areas and 
their relationship.  Include circulation and room-by-room tabulation of all net usable 
floor areas and a summary of gross floor area.  Also, provide typical layouts of major 
equipment or operational layout. 

 
b. Preliminary building exterior elevations and sections in sufficient detail to demonstrate 

design concept indicating location and size of fenestration. 
 

c. As applicable, identify proposed roof system, deck, insulation system, and drainage 
technique. 

 
d. Identify minimum finish requirements, including ceiling, floors, walls, doors, windows, 

and types of hardware. 
 

e. Identify code requirements, include occupancy classification(s) and type of 
construction. 

 
4. Structural 

 
a. Layout structural systems with dimensions and floor elevations.  Identify structural 

systems (including pre-cast, structural steel with composite deck, structural steel bar 
joists) with preliminary sizing identified.       

 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 8 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

b. Identify foundation systems (including fill requirements, piles, caissons, spread 
footings) with preliminary sizing identified. 

 
5. Mechanical 

 
a. Calculate block heating, ventilation, and cooling loads including skin versus internal 

loading. 
 

b. Select a minimum of two (2) HVAC systems that appear compatible with loading 
conditions for subsequent life cycle costing. 

 
c. Show selected system on drawings as follows: 

 
(i) Single line drawing(s) of all mechanical equipment spaces, ductwork and pipe 

chases. 
 
(ii) Location and preliminary sizing of all major equipment and duct work in allocated 

spaces. 
 
(iii) Schematic piping. 
 
(iv) Temperature control zoning. 

 
d. Provide design criteria to include the intent base of design for the Project. 

 
e. Evaluate and confirm the load requirements of all equipment and systems, the impact 

of those on existing facilities, and the requirements to increase these loads to 
accommodate the increase. 

 
6. Electrical 

 
a. Calculate overall approximate electrical loads. 

 
b. Identify proposed electrical system for service, power, lighting, low voltage and 

communication loads, including proposed or planned additional buildings or other 
facilities on the Project site. 

 
c. Show system(s) selected on drawings as follows: 

 
(i) Single line drawing(s) showing major distribution system. 
 
(ii) Location and preliminary sizing of all major electrical systems and components 

including: 
 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 9 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

(A) Load centers. 

(B) Main panels. 

(C) Switch gear. 
 

d. Provide design criteria to include the intent base of design for the Project.  
 

e. Evaluate and confirm the load requirements of all equipment and systems, the impact 
of those on existing facilities, and the requirements to increase these loads to 
accommodate the increase. 

 
7. Civil 

 
a. Develop on and off site utility systems such as sewer, water, storm drain, firewater lines 

and fire hydrants. 
 

b. Identify surface improvements including roadways, walkways, parking (with assumed 
wheel weights), preliminary finish grades and drainage. 

 
c. Coordinate finish floor elevations with architectural site plan. 

 
8. Specifications 

 
Prepare outline specifications of proposed architectural, structural, mechanical and 
electrical materials, systems and equipment and their criteria and quality standards.  
Architect is to use District’s standardized equipment/material list for new construction and 
modernization in development of the Project design and specifications.   Architect shall 
review and comment on District’s construction bid contracts and contract documents (the 
“Division 0” and “Division 1” documents) as part of its Services under the Agreement. 

 
9.  Construction Cost Budget 

 
Revise the Construction Cost Budget for the Project.  Along with the conditions identified 
in the preceding Phase, the following conditions apply to the revised Construction Cost 
Budget: 

 
a. Schematic Estimates: This estimate consists of unit cost applied to the major items and 

quantities of work.  The unit cost shall reflect the complete direct current cost of work.  
Complete cost includes labor, material, waste allowance, sales tax and subcontractor's 
mark-up.   

 
(i) General conditions shall be applied separately.  This estimate shall be prepared by 

specification section and summarized by the CSI categories.   



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 10 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
b. The estimate shall separate the Project's building cost from site and utilities cost.  

Architect shall submit to the District the cost estimating format for prior review and 
approval. 

 
c. Escalation: all estimates shall be priced out at current market conditions.  The estimates 

shall incorporate all adjustments as appropriate, relating to mid-point construction, 
contingency, and cost index (i.e. Lee Saylor Index). 

 
d. The Construction Cost Budget for the Project must at no point exceed the District’s 

Construction Budget.  The accuracy of the Construction Cost Budget shall be the 
responsibility of the Architect. 

 
e. Architect shall submit its proposed Construction Cost Budget to the District and the 

Construction Manager for review and approval.  At that time, Architect shall coordinate 
with the District and Construction Manager to further develop, review, and reconcile 
the Construction Cost Budget.   

 
f. At the end of this Phase, the Construction Cost Budget may include design 

contingencies of no more than ten percent (10%) in the cost estimates. 
 

10. Deliverables and Numbers of Copies 
 

Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard 
copy of the following items produced in this phase, together with one (1) copy of each 
item in electronic format: 

 
a. Breakdown of Construction Cost Budget as prepared for this Phase; 
 
b. Meeting reports/minutes; 
 
c. Schematic Design Package with alternatives; 
 
d. Statement indicating changes made to the Architectural Program and Schedule; 

and 
 
e. Copy of the DSA file, including all correspondence and meeting notes to date, or 

notification in writing that Architect has not met or corresponded with DSA. 
 

11. Presentation 
 

a. Architect shall present and review with the District the detailed Schematic Design. 
 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 11 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

b. The Schematic Design shall be revised within the accepted program parameters until 
a final concept within the accepted Construction Cost Budget has been accepted and 
approved by the District at no additional cost to the District. 

 
12. Meetings 

 
During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct 
meetings, site visits, and workshops minimally on a bi-weekly basis. 

 
 
 
[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 12 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
E. DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE  

 
Upon District’s acceptance of Architect’s work in the previous Phase and assuming District has 
not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall prepare from the accepted 
deliverables from the Schematic Design Phase, the Design Development Phase documents 
consisting of the following for each proposed system within Architect’s scope of services:  

 
1. Architectural 

 
a. Scaled, dimensioned floor plans with final room locations including all openings. 

 
b. 1/8” scale building sections showing dimensional relationships, materials and 

component relationships. 
 
c. Exterior elevations of all proposed new buildings, existing buildings to be renovated 

and all architectural elements of the Project. 
 

d. Identification of all fixed equipment to be installed in Project. 
 
e. Interior finishes identified and located within the rooms of all buildings. 

 
f. Site plan completely drawn with beginning notes and dimensions including grading 

and paving. 
 

g. Preliminary development of details and large scale blow-ups. 
 

h. Legend showing all symbols used on drawings. 
 

i. Floor plans identifying all fixed and major movable equipment and furniture. 
 

j. Further refinement of Outline Specifications for architectural, structural, mechanical, 
electrical, civil and landscape manuals, systems and equipment. 

 
k. Typical reflected ceiling development including ceiling grid and heights for each 

ceiling to be used, showing: 
 

(i) Light fixtures. 
 
(ii) Ceiling registers or diffusers. 
 
(iii) Access Panels. 

 
  



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 13 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

2. Structural 
 

a. Structural drawings with all major members located and sized. 
 

b. Establish final building and floor elevations. 
 

c. Preliminary specifications. 
 
d. Preliminary calculations for the structural systems including lateral force resistive 

systems, foundations, and all structural system components. 
 

e. Identify foundation requirement (including fill requirement, piles) with associated soil 
pressure, water table and seismic center. 

 
3. Mechanical 

 
a. Heating and cooling load calculations as required and major duct or pipe runs sized 

to interface with structural. 
 

b. Major mechanical equipment should be scheduled indicating size and capacity. 
 

c. Ductwork and piping should be substantially located and sized. 
 
d. Plumbing plans for the Project shall indicate numbers and locations of fixtures and be 

in conformance with the code-mandated fixture count requirements of the Project. 
 

e. Devices in ceiling should be located. 
 

f. Legend showing all symbols used on drawings. 
 

g. More developed Outline Specifications indicating quality level and manufacture. 
 

h. Control Systems identified. 
 

i. Further evaluation and confirmation of the load requirements of all equipment and 
systems, the impact of those on existing facilities, and the requirements to increase 
these loads to accommodate the increase. 

 
4. Electrical 

 
a. All lighting fixtures should be located and scheduled showing all types and quantities 

of fixtures to be used, including proposed lighting levels for each usable space. 
 

b. All major electrical equipment should be scheduled indicating size and capacity. 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 14 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

c. Complete electrical distribution including a one-line diagram indicating final location 
of switchboards, communications, controls (high and low voltage), motor control 
centers, panels, transformers and emergency generators, if required.  Low-voltage 
system includes fire alarm system, security system, clock and public address system, 
bell system, voice-data system, and telecom/technology system. 

 
d. Legend showing all symbols used on drawings. 

 
e. More developed and detailed Outline Specifications indicating quality level and 

manufacture. 
 

f. Further evaluation and confirmation of the load requirements of all equipment and 
systems, the impact of those on existing facilities, and the requirements to increase 
these loads to accommodate the increase. 

 
5. Civil 

 
a. Further refinement of Schematic Design Phase development of on and off site utility 

systems for sewer, electrical, water, storm drain and fire water.  Includes, without 
limitation, pipe sizes, materials, invert elevation location and installation details. 

 
b. Further refinement of Schematic Design Phase roadways, walkways, parking and storm 

drainage improvements.  Includes details and large scale drawings of curb and gutter, 
manhole, thrust blocks, paved parking and roadway sections. 

 
6. Bid Documents 

 
Architect shall review and comment on District’s construction bid contracts and contract 
documents (the “Division 0” documents and “Division 1” documents) as part of its Services 
under the Agreement. 

 
7. Construction Cost Budget 

 
a. Revise the Construction Cost Budget for the Project.  Along with the conditions 

identified in the Agreement and the preceding Phases, the following conditions apply 
to the revised Construction Cost Budget: 

 
(i) Design Development Estimate: This further revised estimate shall be prepared by 

specification section, summarized by CSI category and divided by trade and work 
item.  The estimate shall include individual item unit costs of materials, labor and 
equipment.  Sales tax, Contractor's mark-ups, and general conditions shall be listed 
separately.   

 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 15 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

(ii) The Construction Cost Budget for the Project must at no point exceed the District’s 
Construction Budget.  The accuracy of the Construction Cost Budget shall be the 
responsibility of the Architect. 

 
(iii) At this stage of the design, the Construction Cost Budget may include design 

contingencies of no more than ten percent (10%) in the cost estimates. 
 

b. Architect shall submit its proposed Construction Cost Budget to the District and the 
Construction Manager for review and approval.  At that time, the Architect shall 
coordinate with the District and the Construction Manager to further develop, review, 
and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget.   

 
8. Deliverables and Numbers of Copies 

 
Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this 
phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format: 

 
a. Design Development drawing set from all professional disciplines necessary to deliver 

the Project; 
 

b. Specifications; 
 

c. Revised Construction Cost Budget; and 
 

d. Copy of the DSA file, including all correspondence and meeting notes to date, or 
notification in writing that Architect has not met or corresponded with DSA.  

 
The Design Development deliverables shall be revised within the accepted program 
parameters until a final concept within the accepted Construction Cost Budget has been 
accepted and approved by the District at no additional cost to the District. 

 
9. Meetings 

 
During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct 
meetings, site visits, and workshops minimally on a bi-weekly basis. 
 
 
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 16 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

F. CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE 
 

Upon District’s acceptance of Architect’s work in the previous Phase and assuming District 
has not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall prepare from the accepted 
deliverables from the Design Development Phase the Construction Documents consisting 
of the following for each proposed system within Architect’s scope of work.  All Projects 
subject to DSA’s jurisdiction shall be submitted for review, back check, and approval, under 
the electronic plan review process (“EPR process”), rather than paper submission. 

 
 

1. Construction Documents – 100% / Completion Stage: 
 

a. Architectural 
 

(i) Completed site plan. 
 
(ii) Completed floor plans, elevations, and sections. 
 
(iii) Architectural details and large blow-ups completed. 
 
(iv) Finish, door, and hardware schedules completed, including all details. 
 
(v) Site utility plans completed. 
 
(vi) Fixed equipment details and identification completed. 
 
(vii) Reflected ceiling plans completed. 
 

b. Structural 
 

(i) Structural floor plans and sections with detailing completed. 
 
(ii) Structural calculations completed. 

 
c. Mechanical 

 
(i) Large scale mechanical details complete. 
 
(ii) Mechanical schedules for equipment completed. 
 
(iii) Completed electrical schematic for environmental cooling and exhaust equipment. 
 
(iv) Complete energy conservation calculations and report. 

 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 17 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

d. Electrical 
 

(i) Lighting and power plan showing all switching and controls.  Fixture schedule and 
lighting details completed. 

 
(ii) Distribution information on all power consuming equipment, including lighting, 

power, signal and communication device(s) branch wiring completed. 
 
(iii) All electrical equipment schedules completed. 
 
(iv) Special system components plans completed. 
 
(v) Electrical load calculations completed.  

 
e. Civil 

 
All site plans, site utilities, parking and roadway systems completed. 

 
f. Construction Cost Budget 

 
(i) Revise the Construction Cost Budget for the Project.  Along with the conditions 

identified in the preceding phases, Architect shall update and refine the fifty 
percent (50%) Construction Documents Phase revisions to the Construction Cost 
Budget.   

 
(ii) The Construction Cost Budget for the Project must at no point exceed the District’s 

Construction Budget.  The accuracy of the Construction Cost Budget shall be the 
responsibility of the Architect. 

 
(iii) Architect shall submit its proposed Construction Cost Budget to the District and 

the Construction Manager for review and approval.  At that time, Architect shall 
coordinate with the District and the Construction Manager to further develop, 
review, and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget.   

 
(iv) At this stage of the design, the Construction Cost Budget shall not include any 

design contingencies in excess of the cost estimates. 
 

g. Specifications 
 

(i) Complete development and preparation of technical specifications describing 
materials, systems and equipment, workmanship, quality and performance criteria 
required for the construction of the Project.   

 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 18 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

(ii) No part of the specifications shall call for a designated material, product, thing, or 
service by specific brand or trade name unless: 

 
(A) The specification is followed by the words “or equal” so that bidders may 

furnish any equal material, product, thing, or service, as required by Public 
Contract Code section 3400, or 

 
(B) The designation is allowable by specific allowable exemptions or exceptions 

pursuant to Public Contract Code section 3400. 
 

(iii) Specifications shall not contain restrictions that will limit competitive bids other 
than those required for maintenance convenience by the District and only with 
District’s prior approval. 

 
(iv) At one hundred percent (100%) review, District shall review the Specifications and 

shall direct Architect to make corrections at no cost to the District. 
 
(v) Coordination of the Specifications with specifications developed by other 

disciplines. 
 
(vi) Specifications shall be in CSI format. 

 
h. Constructability Review 

 
The District and/or its designee, at its sole discretion, shall have the right to conduct a 
constructability review of the Construction Documents.  A report shall be given to the 
Architect who shall make necessary changes along with providing written comments 
for each item listed in the report.  Conducting a constructability review does not excuse 
the Architect’s obligation to provide Services that shall comply with professional 
architectural standards, including the standard of care applicable to architects 
designing public school facilities and applicable requirements of federal, state, and 
local law. 

 
i. Deliverables and Numbers of Copies 

 
Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a 
hard copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of 
each item in electronic format: 

 
(i) Working drawings; 
 
(ii) Specifications; 
 
 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 19 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

(iii) Engineering calculations; 
 
(iv) Construction Cost Budgets; 
 
(v) Statement of requirements for testing and inspection of service for compliance 

with Construction Documents and applicable codes; 
 
(vi) Copy of DSA file including all correspondence, meeting, minutes or reports, back-

check comments, checklists to date; and 
 
(vii) Statement indicating any authorized changes made to the design from the last 

Phase and the cost impact of each change on the previously approved 
Construction Cost Budget.  If no design changes occur but shifts of costs occur 
between disciplines, identify for District review.   

 
2. Construction Documents Final Back-Check Stage: 

 
a. The Construction Documents final back-check stage shall be for the purpose of the 

Architect incorporating all regulatory agencies' comments into the drawings, 
specifications, and estimate.  All changes made by the Architect during this stage shall 
be at no additional cost to the District. 

 
b. The final contract documents delivered to the District upon completion of the 

Architect’s work shall be the Bid Set and shall consist of the following: 
 
 

(i) Specifications: Original word-processed technical specifications on reproducible 
masters in CSI format.  

 
c. Architect shall update and refine the Consultants’ completed Contract Documents.  

d. Conclusion of Construction Document Phase requires final stamp-out by DSA. 
 

3. Meetings 
 

During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct 
meetings, site visits, and workshops minimally on a monthly basis. 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 20 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
BIDDING PHASE  
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

G. BIDDING PHASE 
 

Upon District’s acceptance of Architect’s work in the previous Phase and assuming District has 
not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall perform Bidding Phase services for 
District as follows:  

 
1. Contact potential bidders and encourage their participation in the Project. 

 
2. Coordinate the development of the bidding procedures and the construction Contract 

Documents with the District. 
 

3. The development of the bidding procedures and the construction Contract Documents 
shall be the joint responsibility of the District and Architect.  Nevertheless, Architect will 
use all due care and diligence to confirm that its plans and specifications and all other 
information provided by or on behalf of the District to potential bidders discloses and 
publishes any potentially relevant information that could, in any way, have an impact on a 
Contractor's cost of performance. 

 
4. While the Project is being advertised for bids, all questions concerning intent shall be 

referred to the District for screening and subsequent processing through Architect. 
 

5. In the event that items requiring interpretation of the drawings or specifications are 
discovered during the bidding period, those items shall be analyzed by the Architect for 
decision by the District as to the proper procedure required.  Corrective action will be in 
the form of an addendum prepared by the Architect and issued by the District.   

 
6. Attend bid opening. 

 
7. Coordinate with Architect Consultants. 

 
8. Respond to District and potential bidder questions and clarifications. 

 
9. Deliverables and Number of Copies 

 
Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard 
copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each 
item in electronic format: 

 
a. Meeting report/minutes from the kick-off meeting;  

 
b. Meeting report/minutes from the pre-bid site walk; and 

 
c. Upon completion of the Bidding Phase, Architect shall produce a Conforming Set of 

plans and specifications incorporating all addenda issued thus far.  Architect shall 
supply District with two (2) complete, reproducible sets of plans and specifications 
marked as a Conforming Set.  



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 21 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

H. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION PHASE 
 

Upon District’s acceptance of Architect’s work in the previous Phase and assuming District has 
not delayed or terminated the Agreement, Architect shall perform Construction Contract 
Administration Phase services for the District as follows:  

 
1. Architect’s responsibility to provide basic services for the Construction Phase under the 

Agreement commences with the award of the contract for construction and terminates 
upon satisfactory performance and completion of all tasks in this phase and 
commencement of the Closeout Phase or upon the District’s terminating the Agreement, 
whichever is earlier. 

 
2. Construction Oversight and Project Certification Process  

a. Architect shall ensure that the Project Inspector is approved by the DSA for the Project 
by submitting the applicable Inspector’s Qualification Record (form DSA 5 or more 
current version) to and by obtaining approval from the DSA prior to commencement 
of construction and prior to requesting issuance of project inspections cards (form DSA 
152 or more current version). 

b. Architect shall request issuance of the proper number of project inspection cards 
(forms DSA 152 or more current version) by electronically submitting form DSA 102-
IC (or more current version) to the DSA after the construction contract has been 
awarded.  Architect shall provide project inspection cards to the Project Inspector prior 
to commencement of construction. 

c. Prior to commencement of construction, Architect shall provide (1) a copy of the DSA 
approved construction documents and (2) the DSA approved Statement of Structural 
Tests and Special Inspections (form DSA 103 or more current version) prepared by 
Architect to the Project Inspector and Laboratory of Record. 

d. Architect shall prepare and submit a Contract Information form (form DSA 102 or more 
current version) for all construction contracts. 

e. Architect shall maintain such personal contact with the Project as is necessary to assure 
themselves of compliance, in every material respect, with the DSA-approved 
construction documents.  Personal contact shall include visits to the Project site by the 
Architect or engineer or their qualified representative to observe construction.   

f. Architect shall notify DSA as to the disposition of materials noted on laboratory testing, 
and/or special inspection, reports as not conforming to the DSA-approved 
construction documents. 

g. Architect shall respond to DSA field trip notes as necessary. 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 22 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

h. Architect shall submit an interim Verified Report (form DSA 6-AE or more current 
version) to the DSA electronically and a copy to the Project Inspector for each of the 
applicable nine (9) sections of form DSA 152 prior to the Project Inspector signing off 
that section of the project inspection card. 

i. Architect shall submit a Statement of Final Actual Project Cost (form DSA 168 or more 
current version) to the DSA. 

j. Architect shall submit Verified Reports (form DSA 6-AE or more current form) to the 
DSA and to the Project Inspector if any of the following events occur:  (1) when 
construction is sufficiently complete in accordance with the DSA-approved 
construction documents so that the District can occupy or utilize the Project; (2) work 
on the Project is suspended for a period of more than one month; (3) the services of 
the Architect are terminated for any reason prior to completion of the Project; or (4) 
DSA requests a Verified Report.    

 
3. Change Orders 

 
a. Architect shall review all of Contractor’s change order requests to determine if those 

requests are valid and appropriate.  Architect shall provide a recommendation to 
District as to whether the change should be approved, partially approved, returned to 
the Contractor for clarification, or rejected.  

 
b. Architect shall furnish all necessary Construction Change Documents and additional 

drawings for supplementing, clarifying, and/or correcting purposes and for change 
orders.  The District shall request these Construction Change Documents and drawings 
from the Architect, which shall be provided at no additional cost unless designated as 
Extra Services by the District.  The original tracing(s) and/or drawings and contract 
wording for change orders shall be submitted to the District for duplication and 
distribution. 

 
4. Submittals 

 
a. Architect shall review and approve or take other appropriate action upon Contractor's 

submittals such as: shop drawings, Project data, samples and Construction Change 
Documents, but only for the purpose of checking for conformance with information 
given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents.   

 
b. Architect shall review Contractor’s schedule of submittals and advise the District on 

whether that schedule is complete.  Architect shall provide the District with proposed 
revisions to this schedule and advise the District on whether the District should 
approve this schedule. 

 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 23 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

c. Architect’s action upon Contractor’s submittals shall be taken as expeditiously as 
possible so as to cause no unreasonable delay in the construction of the Project or in 
the work of Contractor(s), while allowing sufficient time in the Architect’s professional 
judgment to permit adequate review.  In no case shall the review period associated 
with a single, particular submittal exceed twenty-one (21) calendar days from its receipt 
by the Architect.  Architect’s response to each submittal shall be a substantive and 
acceptable response.  This twenty-one (21)-day time period shall not include time 
when a submittal is within the District’s control or if the submittal is being reviewed by 
DSA.  In no way does this provision reduce Architect’s liability if it fails to prepare 
acceptable documents. 

 
5. RFIs.  During the course of construction as part of the basic services, Architect must 

respond to all Requests for Information (“RFI”) as expeditiously as possible so as not to 
impact and delay the construction progress.  In no case shall the review period associated 
with an RFI exceed seven (7) calendar days from receipt by the Architect.  Architect’s 
response to each RFI shall be a substantive and acceptable response.  This seven-day time 
period shall not include time when a submittal is within the District’s control or if the 
submittal is being reviewed by DSA.  In no way does this provision reduce the Architect’s 
liability if it fails to prepare acceptable documents.  Architect must verify that RFIs are 
passed through the Project Inspector, if any. 

 
6. Notices of Deficient Work.  On the basis of on-site observations, Architect shall keep the 

District informed of the progress and the quality of the work, and shall endeavor to guard 
the District against defects and deficiencies in the work.  Architect shall timely notify the 
District in writing of any defects or deficiencies in the work by any of the District’s 
Contractors that Architect may observe.  However, Architect shall not be a guarantor of 
the Contractor's performance.  

 
7. As-Built Drawings.  Architect shall review and evaluate for District the Contractor(s)’ 

documentation of the actual construction performed during the Project that the 
Contractor(s) should prepare and submit as As-Builts.  As-Builts are documents that show 
the actual construction performed during the Project, including changes necessitated by 
Construction Change Documents and change orders, and detailed by the District’s 
construction Contractor(s) on a Conforming Set. 

 
8. Record Drawings.  Architect shall incorporate all information on all As-Builts, sketches, 

details, and clarifications, and prepare one (1) set of final Record Drawings for the District.  
The Record Drawings shall incorporate onto one (1) set of drawings, all changes from all 
As-Builts, sketches, details, and clarifications, including, without limitation, all requests for 
information, Construction Change Documents and change orders based upon the 
construction Contractor’s representations of actual construction.  Architect shall deliver 
the Record Drawings to the District at completion of the construction in a format 
acceptable to the District, and it shall be a condition precedent to the District’s approval 



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 24 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

of Architect’s final payment.  Architect may insert the following notice on the Record 
Drawings: 

 
These drawings [or corrected specifications] have been prepared based 
on information submitted, in part, by others.  Architect has provided a 
review consistent with its legal standard of care. 
 

9. O&M Manuals and Warranties.  Architect shall review equipment, operation and 
maintenance manuals, and a complete set of warranty documents for all equipment and 
installed systems, to ensure that they meet the requirements of the plans and 
specifications.  

 
10. Start-up.  Architect shall also provide, at the District’s request, architectural/engineering 

advice to the District on start-up, break-in, and debugging of facility systems and 
equipment, and on apparent deficiencies or defects in construction following the 
acceptance of the Contractor's work. 

 
11. Payment Statements.  Recommendations of Payment by Architect constitute Architect’s 

representation to the District that work has progressed to the point indicated to the best 
of Architect’s knowledge, information, and belief, and that the quality of the work is in 
general conformance with the Contract Documents.  

 
12. Deliverables and Number of Copies 

 
Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard 
copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each 
item in electronic format: 

 
a. Meeting report/minutes from the kick-off meeting;  

 
b. Observation reports; and 

 
c. Weekly meeting reports.  

 
13. Meetings 

 
During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct 
meetings, site visits, and workshops minimally on a bi-weekly basis. 

 
[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]



 

EXHIBIT A Page A - 25 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
CLOSE-OUT PHASE 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

I. CLOSE OUT PHASE 
 

1. As the Construction Administration Phase progresses, Architect shall perform the following 
Close Out Phase services for the District as required in a timely manner: 

 
a. Architect shall review the Project and observe the construction as required to 

determine when the Contractor has completed the construction of the Project and 
shall prepare punch lists of items that remain in need of correction or completion. 

 
b. Architect shall collect from the Contractor, review, and forward to the District all written 

warranties, operation manuals, and spare parts with Architect’s recommendation as to 
the adequacy of these items. 

 
c. Architect shall prepare or collect, as applicable, and provide to DSA, all reports required 

by DSA related to the design and construction of the Project. 
 

d. Architect shall respond to the DSA “90-day” letter. 
 

e. Architect shall obtain all required DSA approval of all Construction Change Documents 
and addenda to the Contractor’s contract. 

 
f. Architect shall prepare a set of As-Built Drawings for the Project, as required by the 

District. 
 

g. Architect shall review and prepare a package of all warranty and O&M documentation. 
 

h. Architect shall organize electronic files, plans and prepare a Project binder. 
 

i. Architect shall have primary responsibility to coordinate all Services required to close-
out the design and construction of the Project with the District and among Consultants. 

 
2. When the design and construction of the Project is complete, the District shall prepare and 

record with the County Recorder a Notice of Completion for the Project. 
 

3. Deliverables and Number of Copies 
 

a. Punch list; and 
 

b. Upon completion of the Project, all related Project documents, including As-Builts and 
Record Drawings.  These are the sole property of the District. 

 
4. Meetings 

 
During this phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct 
meetings, site visits, and workshops as needed. 



 

EXHIBIT B Page B - 1 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

EXHIBIT “B” 

CRITERIA AND BILLING FOR EXTRA SERVICES 

The following Extra Services to the Agreement shall be performed by Architect if needed and if 
authorized or requested by the District: 

A. Providing services as directed by the District that are not part of the Basic Services of this 
Agreement, or otherwise included within Exhibit “A.”    

B. Providing deliverables or other items in excess of the number indicated in Exhibit “A.”  
Before preparing, providing, sending, or invoicing for extra deliverables, Architect shall 
inform the District that expected deliverables may be in excess of the number indicated 
in Exhibit “A,” so that the District can procure the additional deliverables itself or direct 
Architect to procure the deliverables at the District’s expense or on the District’s account 
at a specific vendor. 

C. Making revisions in drawings, specifications, or other documents when such revisions are 
required by the enactment or revisions of codes, laws, or regulations subsequent to the 
preparation of the Conforming Set.  

D. Providing consultation concerning replacement of work damaged by fire or other cause 
during construction and furnishing services required in connection with replacement of 
that work. 

E. Providing services made necessary by the default of Contractor(s). 

F. In the absence of a final Certificate of Payment or Notice of Completion, providing 
services more than ninety (90) days after the date of completion of work by Contractor(s) 
and after Architect has completed all of its obligations and tasks under the Agreement. 

G. Providing services as an expert and/or witness for the District in any mediation, 
arbitration, and/or trial in which the Architect is (1) not a party, and (2) did not in any way 
cause the dispute that is being adjudicated. 

H. The following rates, which include overhead, administrative cost, and profit, shall be 
utilized in arriving at the fee for Extra Services and shall not be changed for the term of 
the Agreement. 

Job Title Hourly Rate 
Principal In Charge: $305 
Senior Project Manager: $235 
Project Manager: $220 
Designer: $125 
Project Leader: $185 
Project Coordinator: $150 
Contract Administrator: $175 
Project Architect $220 
Other  See Attached Rate Schedule 



 

EXHIBIT B Page B - 2 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

I. The mark-up on any approved reimbursable item of Extra Services shall not exceed five 
percent (5%).  

1. The following items are approved for mark-up: 

a. Sub-consultant Invoices. 

2. Any approved item of Extra Services not identified in the above list may not be 
marked-up. 

J. Format and Content of Invoices (Extra Services Only) 

Architect acknowledges that the District requires Architect’s invoices to include detailed 
explanations of the Services performed.  For example, a six hour charge for “RFIs and CORs” 
is unacceptable and will not be payable.  A more detailed explanation, with specificity, is 
required.  This includes a separate entry for each RFI, PCO, CCD and change order.  For 
example, the following descriptions, in addition to complying with all other terms of this 
Agreement, would be payable.  The times indicated below are just placeholders: 

Review RFI 23; review plans and specifications for response to 
same; prepare responses to same and forward to contractor, 
district, construction manager, and project inspector.   

0.8 hours 

Review COR 8; review scope of same and plans and specifications 
for appropriateness of same; prepare draft change order and 
language for same. 

0.7 hours 

Review COR 11; review scope of same and plans and 
specifications for appropriateness of same; prepare rejection of 
COR 11 for review by district, CM, IOR. 

1.2 hours 

 

END OF EXHIBIT 



 

EXHIBIT C Page C - 1 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

EXHIBIT “C” 

SCHEDULE OF SERVICES 

A. Promptly after the execution of this Agreement, Architect shall prepare and submit for 
approval to the District a Schedule of Services showing the order in which Architect 
proposes to carry out Architect's Services (“Schedule of Services”).  The Schedule of Services 
shall apply to the completion of all Services listed hereunder within the times established by 
this Agreement.  The Schedule of Services shall be in the form of a progress chart clearly 
delineating all important increments and review dates.  Architect shall update the Schedule 
of Services on a monthly basis and deliver two (2) hard copies and one (1) electronic copy to 
the District along with the monthly billing. 

B. Architect shall complete Services required under Construction Documents Phase within 
_107__ calendar days (3 months) after written authorization from District to proceed, and 
as more specifically indicated below.  Excluded from this duration is the time associated with 
DSA review the Construction Documents back-check stage. 

1. 50% Submittal Package-COMPLETE DECEMBER 2022 ___ calendar days 
2. 100% Submittal Package-JANUARY 2023 ___ calendar days 
3. DSA Submittal-FEBRUARY 2023 ___ calendar days 
4. Final Contract Documents after Final Back-Check Stage- 

MARCH 2023 ___ calendar days 
5. 100% Construction Phase ____ calendar days 

(June 15, 2023 – September 30, 2023) 

C. The durations stated above include the review periods of 10 calendar days required by the 
District.  

D. All times to complete tasks set forth in this Exhibit are of the essence, as indicated in the 
Agreement.  If delays in the Schedule of Services are incurred as a result of the District’s 
inability to comply with requested meeting schedules, Architect shall maintain the right to 
request an adjustment in the Schedule of Services if deemed necessary to meet the 
deadlines set forth in this Exhibit.  If approved, those extensions shall be authorized in 
writing by the District. 

 

END OF EXHIBIT 



 

EXHIBIT D Page D - 1 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES   
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

EXHIBIT “D” 

PAYMENT SCHEDULE 

A. Compensation 

1. The payment of consideration to Architect as provided herein shall be full 
compensation for all of Architect’s Services incurred in the performance hereof, 
including, printing and shipping of deliverables in the quantities set forth in Exhibit 
“A,”  Except as expressly set forth in the Agreement and Exhibit “B,” there shall be 
no payment for extra costs or expenses. 

2. The total compensation to Architect shall be as stated in Article 6 of the Agreement. 

3. District shall pay Architect as follows for all Services contracted for under this 
Agreement: 

PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL FEE PER PHASE 
      Phase Phase Amount 
Design Development Phase 15% 
Construction Documents Phase-Submittal to DSA 45% 
Agency 5% 

Bidding Phase 5% 
Construction Contract Administration Phase 25% 
Close Out Phase 5% 
 Generate Punch List 1%  
 Sign Off On Punch List 1%  
 Receive and Review All M & O Documents 1%  
 Filing All DSA Required Close Out Documents 1%  
 Receiving DSA Close Out, including DSA  
         approval of the final set of Record Drawings 1% 

 

TOTAL BASE COMPENSATION 100% 

Reimbursable Expenses are in addition to compensation for Basic and Additional 
Services and will be billed at a multiple of 1.10% the expenses incurred. These 
charges include, but are not limited to, expenses incurred which are directly 
related to the Project, such as reproductions, plans and plots for owner, agency 
or contractor’s use, standard form documents, postage, handling and delivery of 
Instruments of Service, and mileage. Reimbursable expenses are not expected to 
exceed $10,000. 

 

 

 

 



 

EXHIBIT D Page D - 2 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES   
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

B. Method of Payment 

 

1. Invoices shall be on a form approved by the District and are to be submitted to the 
District via the District’s authorized representative. 

2. Architect shall submit to District on a monthly basis documentation showing proof 
that payments were made to its Consultant(s). 

3. Architect shall submit to the District for approval a copy of the Architect’s monthly 
pay request format. 

4. Upon receipt and approval of Architect’s invoices, the District agrees to make 
payments of undisputed amounts within thirty (30) days of receipt of the invoice as 
follows: 

a. Pre- Design/Architectural Program Development Phase: 

Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-
five percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) 
payment upon acceptance and approval of the Pre-Design/Architectural 
Program.

b. For Schematic Design Phase: 

Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-
five percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) 
payment upon acceptance and approval of the Schematic Design Phase by 
the District. 

c. For Design Development Phase:  

Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-
five percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) 
payment upon acceptance and approval of the Design Development Phase 
by the District. 

d. For Construction Documents Phase: 

Monthly payments for percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-five 
percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) 
payment upon acceptance and approval of the Construction Documents 
Phase by the District.  
 
 
 
 
 



 

EXHIBIT D Page D - 3 

AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

e. For Bidding Phase: 

Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-
five percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) 
payment upon the District’s award of the bid. 

f. For Construction Contract Administration Phase: 

Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-
five percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) 
payment upon the District’s notice of completion. 

g. For Close Out: 

Lump sum payment no sooner than thirty-five (35) days and no later than 
forty-five (45) days after completion of all items in this Phase. 

 
END OF EXHIBIT 



 

 

EXHIBIT E Page E - 1 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

EXHIBIT “E” 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 

B. Architect shall procure, prior to commencement of the Services of this Agreement and 
maintain for the duration of the Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons 
or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the 
Services hereunder by the Architect, his agents, representatives, employees and 
Consultant(s).  Architect’s liabilities, including but not limited to Architect’s indemnity or 
defense obligations, under this Agreement shall not be deemed limited in any way to the 
insurance coverage required herein. Maintenance of specified insurance coverage is a 
material element of this Agreement and Architect’s failure to maintain or renew coverage or 
to provide evidence of renewal during the term of this Agreement, as required or when 
requested, may be treated by the District as a material breach of contract. 

C. Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance:  Coverage shall be at least as broad as the 
following scopes and limits. Umbrella or Excess Liability policies are acceptable where the 
need for higher liability limits is noted and shall provide liability coverages that at least 
follow form over the underlying insurance requirements where necessary for Commercial 
General Liability, Commercial Automobile Liability, Employers’ Liability, and other liability 
coverage (except Professional Liability) designated under this Section B – Insurance 
Requirements.” Minimum Scope of Insurance: 

1. Commercial General Liability.  Two million dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence for 
bodily injury, personal injury and property damage.  If Commercial General Liability 
or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate 
limit shall apply separately to each project/location or the general aggregate limit 
shall be twice the required occurrence limit.  

2. Commercial Automobile Liability. One million dollars ($1,000,000) per accident for 
bodily injury and property damage. 

 
3. Workers' Compensation Liability.  For all of the Architect’s employees who are 

subject to this Agreement and to the extent required by the applicable state or 
federal law, Architect shall keep in full force and effect, a Workers' Compensation 
policy.   

 
4. Employers’ Liability.  For all of the Architect’s employees who are subject to this 

Agreement, Architect shall keep in full force and effect, an Employment Practices 
Liability policy with minimum liability coverage of two million dollars ($2,000,000) per 
occurrence.   

 
5. Professional Liability.  This insurance shall cover the prime design professional and 

his/her consultant(s) on a Claims Made basis for two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) 
aggregate limit subject to no more than two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000) 
per claim deductible, coverage to continue through completion of construction plus 
two (2) years thereafter. 



 

 

EXHIBIT E Page E - 2 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

D. District reserves the right to modify the limits and coverages described herein, with 
appropriate credits or changes to be negotiated for such changes.  

E. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retention:  Architect shall inform the District in writing if any 
deductibles or self-insured retention exceeds two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000).  At 
the option of the District, either:  

1. The District can accept the higher deductible; 

2. Architect’s insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retention 
as respects the District, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers; or  

F. Other Insurance Provisions:  The general liability and automobile liability policies are to 
contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:  

1. The District, its representatives, consultants, trustees, officers, officials, employees, 
agents, and volunteers (“Additional Insureds”) are to be covered as additional 
insureds as respects liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of the 
Architect; Instruments of Service and completed operations of the Architect; premises 
owned, occupied or used by the Architect; or automobiles owned, leased, hired or 
borrowed by the Architect.  The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the 
scope of protection afforded to the Additional Insureds.  

 
2. For any claims related to the projects, Architect’s insurance coverage shall be primary 

insurance as respects the Additional Insureds.  Any insurance or self-insurance 
maintained by the Additional Insureds shall be in excess of Architect’s insurance and 
shall not contribute with it.  

 
3. Architect shall provide an endorsement that the insurer waives the right of 

subrogation against District and its respective elected officials, officers, employees, 
agents, representatives, consultants, trustees, and volunteers. 

 
4. Architect’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is 

made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.  

5. Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies including 
breaches of warranties shall not affect coverage provided to the Additional Insureds.  

 
6. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage 

shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or in limits except 
after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, 
has been given to the District.  

 
7. Architect shall pay all insurance premiums, including any charges for required waivers 

of subrogation or the endorsement of additional insureds. If Architect fails to 



 

 

EXHIBIT E Page E - 3 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 

maintain insurance, District may take out comparable insurance, and deduct and 
retain amount of premium from any sums due Architect under the Agreement. 

8. Architect shall require all sub consultants to maintain the level of insurance Architect 
deems appropriate with respect to the consultant’s scope of the Work unless 
otherwise indicated in the Agreement. Architect shall cause the sub consultants to 
furnish proof thereof to District within ten (10) days of District’s request. Should 
Architect not require sub consultants to provide the same level of insurance as is 
required of Architect, as provided in this Agreement, Architect is not relieved of its 
indemnity obligations to District or fulfilling its insurance requirements as provided in 
this Agreement. 

G. Acceptability of Insurers:  Insurance is to be placed with insurers admitted in California 
with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A: VII.  Architect shall inform the District in 
writing if any of its insurer(s) have an A.M. Best’s rating less than A: VII.  At the option of the 
District, the District may either:  

1. Accept the lower rating; or 

2. Require Architect to procure insurance from another insurer. 

H. Verification of Coverage:  Prior to commencing with its provision of Services under this 
Agreement, Architect shall furnish District with:  

1. Certificates of insurance showing maintenance of the required insurance coverages; 
and 

 
2. Original endorsements affecting general liability and automobile liability coverage.  

The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind 
coverages on its behalf.  All endorsements are to be received and approved by the 
District before Services commence.  

I. Copy of Insurance Policy(ies): Upon the District’s request, Architect will furnish District with 
a copy of all insurance policies related to its provision of Services under this Agreement. 

 
 

END OF EXHIBIT 
 
 



 

 

EXHIBIT F Page F - 4 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 



 

 

  
EXHIBIT G Page G - 1 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

EXHIBIT “G” 
 

IRAN CONTRACTING ACT CERTIFICATION  
(Public Contract Code Sections 2202-2208) 

PROJECT/CONTRACT NO.:   0530-434 Luther Burbank Core Academic Renovation, Phase 2 
between the Sacramento City Unified School District (“District”) and HMC Group (“Consultant”) 
(“Contract” or “Project”). 

Prior to bidding on or submitting a proposal for a contract for goods or services of $1,000,000 or 
more, the bidder/proposer must submit this certification pursuant to Public Contract Code section 
2204.   

The proposer must complete ONLY ONE of the following two options.  To complete OPTION 1, 
check the corresponding box and complete the certification below. To complete OPTION 2, check 
the corresponding box, complete the certification below, and attach documentation demonstrating 
the exemption approval.   

 OPTION 1. Proposer is not on the current list of persons engaged in investment activities 
in Iran created by the California Department of General Services (“DGS”) pursuant to Public 
Contract Code section 2203(b), and we are not a financial institution extending twenty million 
dollars ($20,000,000) or more in credit to another person, for 45 days or more, if that other 
person will use the credit to provide goods or services in the energy sector in Iran and is 
identified on the current list of persons engaged in investment activities in Iran created by 
DGS.  

 OPTION 2. Proposer has received a written exemption from the certification requirement 
pursuant to Public Contract Code sections 2203(c) and (d). A copy of the written 
documentation demonstrating the exemption approval is included with our proposal.   

CERTIFICATION: 

I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY, that I am duly authorized to 
legally bind the bidder/proposer to the OPTION selected above. This certification is made under the 
laws of the State of California. 

Vendor Name/Financial Institution (Printed) Federal ID Number (or n/a) 

By (Authorized Signature) 

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing Date Executed 

END OF DOCUMENT 

bmeyers
Pen
Britany

SGradillas
Line

SGradillas
Text Box
HMC Group 

SGradillas
Text Box
95-2109939

SGradillas
Text Box
Brian Meyers, Pre-K12 Practice Leader 

SGradillas
Text Box
February 2, 2023



 

 

EXHIBIT H Page H - 1 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

EXHIBIT “H” 

VACCINATION STATUS CERTIFICATION  
(Consultant) 

 
Consultant/Company Name: _HMC Architects__________ 
 

Pursuant to the provision of the State Public Health Office Order issued on 
August 11, 2021 (Order of the State Public Health Officer Vaccine Verification 
for Workers in Schools) individuals that are working on school district property 
are required to be fully vaccinated and provide proof of vaccination or must be 
tested once weekly with either PCR testing or antigen testing.  
 
A person is considered fully vaccinated for COVID-19: two weeks (14 days) or 
more after they have received the second dose in a 2-dose series (Pfizer-
BioNTech or Moderna), or two weeks or more after they have received a single-
dose vaccine (Johnson and Johnson). Unvaccinated or incompletely vaccinated 
workers must be tested at least once weekly with either PCR testing or antigen 
testing that either has Emergency Use Authorization by the U.S. Food and Drug 
Administration or be operating per the Laboratory Developed Test requirements 
by the U.S. Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services. 

 
Consultant currently has a contract with District under which Consultant provides services and 
accesses District property in the course and scope of performing its contract. 
 
By signing below, Consultant hereby certifies that its employees/staff, whether paid or unpaid, 
and subconsultants, who will access any District location are either fully vaccinated and have 
provided Consultant with proof of vaccination from a permitted source or such employees/staff 
and subconsultants will comply with weekly testing requirements as outlined in the State Public 
Health Officer Order prior to entering District property on and after October 15, 2021.   
 
Records of vaccination verification and testing results will be made available upon District’s 
request or that of the County Health Officer for purposes of case investigation.  
 
In addition, Consultant shall, while accessing District sites, remain in compliance with all current 
District policies and procedures associated with COVID-19 safety. The Consultant agrees to strictly, 
and without exception, follow all local, state, and federal guidelines regarding human protection 
from COVID-19 (the “Guidelines”) while accessing District sites. The Guidelines to strictly follow 
are located at various sites, including, but not limited to: 
 

a)  https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/index.html 
b)  https://covid19.ca.gov/ 
c)  https://www.smchealth.org/  

 

https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Order-of-the-State-Public-Health-Officer-Vaccine-Verification-for-Workers-in-Schools.aspx
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Programs/CID/DCDC/Pages/COVID-19/Order-of-the-State-Public-Health-Officer-Vaccine-Verification-for-Workers-in-Schools.aspx
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/index.html
https://covid19.ca.gov/


 

 

EXHIBIT H Page H - 2 
AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

I acknowledge that this certification, upon receipt and acceptance by the District, hereby 
supplements and amends and is hereby incorporated by reference into Consultant’s existing 
contract with the District, that continued compliance with the matters described herein is a 
condition for continuation of that contract and that failure to adhere to these requirements 
constitutes a breach of contract resulting in consequences including, without limitation, contract 
termination.  I acknowledge and certify under penalty of perjury that I am duly authorized to 
legally bind the Consultant to all provisions and items included in this certification, that the 
contents of this certification are true, and that this certification is made under the laws of the State 
of California.   
 
Executed this ________ day of _____________, 202__ at ____________, California. 
 
By: __________________________     Signature: _________________________ 
 
Title: ________________________________________ 
 

Please submit this completed/signed certification by email to ____________________, at 
____________________, with the executed Agreement. 

 
Services may be suspended if this certification is not returned prior to performing services 

within the scope of this Agreement on District property. 
 
 
 

END OF EXHIBIT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

bmeyers
Pen
Britany

SGradillas
Text Box
2

SGradillas
Text Box
February 

SGradillas
Text Box
3

SGradillas
Text Box
Sacramento 

SGradillas
Text Box
Brian Meyers 

SGradillas
Text Box
Pre K12 Practice Leader



robert-aldama
Highlight

robert-aldama
Highlight





 

2021-2023  Page 1 of 9 

AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 
 

Between 
 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

And 

PRO YOUTH & FAMILIES 

 

The Sacramento City Unified School District (“District” or “SCUSD”) and PRO Youth & Families 

(“Contractor”) collectively hereinafter referred to as “the Parties” hereby enter into this Agreement 

for program services (“Agreement”) effective on August 19, 2021 (“Effective Date”) with respect to 

the following recitals:   

 

 RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, educators know that the COVID-19 pandemic has had a disproportionately adverse 

impact on educational opportunities, mental wellness, and job opportunities for students striving for a 

better life, particularly students of color, and those living in families impacted by wealth inequality in 

SCUSD; and 

 

WHEREAS, mental health and wellness supports for youth have long been an urgent need, with one 

in six youth ages 6 – 17 facing a mental health disorder over the past 12 months (JAMA, 2019) and 

in Sacramento specifically, 38% of the County’s 11th graders reported experiencing chronic 

sadness/hopelessness in the last 12 months – a rate that is higher than state averages and has been 

trending upward since 2015; and 

 

WHEREAS, because mental health and wellness play a significant role in students’ ability to focus 

and self-regulate in the classroom, a comprehensive plan to address the impact of the pandemic on 

SCUSD must include additional strategies that address mental health intervention and supportive 

services; and 

 

WHEREAS, students are often the first to identify peers with mental health needs and are essential to 

the continuum of support for youth experiencing mental wellness challenges; and 

 

WHEREAS, youth who are trained in the core competencies of social and emotional learning, 

contribute to a positive school climate by increasing personal and peer self-awareness, self-regulation 

skills, social awareness, relationship skills, and responsible decision-making, leading to better 

academic and long-term life outcomes; and 

 

WHEREAS, the District desires to engage a contractor in implementing a youth mental health & 

wellness initiative; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Contractor is specially trained, experienced and competent to provide the services; 

 

NOW THEREFORE, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:   

   

A. Scope of Work. Contractor will coordinate and implement two youth mental health & 

wellness programs including technical assistance, training coordination, data collection tools, 

and other resources to assist District and CBO partners with the development of a workplan 

and timeline to ensure the successful implantation of the programs: 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: C8B389EC-C13F-4504-8857-6AEBFED44F5DDocuSign Envelope ID: 44A7716F-EB65-4038-98E3-78EAAF1DC37E



 

2021-2023  Page 2 of 9 

Near Pear Mental Health & Wellness 

 

Program Description: 

 

Contractor will implement a youth mental wellness effort on the campuses of American Legion, 

Hiram Johnson and Luther Burbank starting in September of 2021. 50 youth will be served at each 

site for a total of 150 students. As part of Contractor’s campus-wide advocacy work, an additional 

25% of  the student population at the 3 high school campuses will also be impacted. Though this 

project will have a positive effect on school culture and will benefit the entire school community, it 

will be particularly focused on outreach and support to youth of color and LGBTQ youth.   

 

The project will be led by a multi-racial team of 6 young adults who will work on these campuses to: 

 

 Conduct an assessment of what currently exists on the campus by way of services and 

activities (including student clubs) that support youth mental wellness and which students 

receive support from these activities. This assessment will include interviews with 

students and staff. 

 Work with student leaders and staff to develop new activities that students have identified 

as being supportive of their wellbeing 

 Develop relationships with and provide mentoring to individual youth of color and 

LGBTQ 

 Provide educational sessions on wellness to student classes and activities during the 

school day and afterschool 

 Work with student leaders and school staff to identify ways in which the school 

environment could be adapted to be more supportive of youth wellness. 

 Support peer-to-peer activities, including MindOneSix.  

 

From conversations with adolescent youth of color, it is understood that youth, in many cases, they 

will be more likely to respond to a young adult who shares their lived experience and background. 

For this team of 6 outreach workers to be successful in helping younger youth, they will also be 

supported by a program manager.  

 

Cost: 

 

$399,306 per year. 

 

MindOneSix Youth Workforce Development 

 

Program Description: 

 

MindOneSix is a collaborative work-based learning initiative focused on mental wellness, and 

designed to empower youth to connect, learn, and earn. Youth are actively engaged as community 

assets, change agents, and influencers who have the power to improve school-wide mental wellness. 

MindOneSix uses a positive youth development framework, and builds students’ core mental 

wellness competencies through a training called Mental Wellness Champions (MWC). MWC is a 20-

hour intensive training that helps youth build self-awareness, understand the mental health system 

through a social justice lens, gain skills to support their peers, reduce mental health stigma, and 

contribute to a healthier, more supportive school climate. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C8B389EC-C13F-4504-8857-6AEBFED44F5DDocuSign Envelope ID: 44A7716F-EB65-4038-98E3-78EAAF1DC37E



 

2021-2023  Page 3 of 9 

MindOneSix will engage 250 SCUSD middle and high school students per school year to become 

ambassadors for mental wellness on their campuses and the larger community. Through the support 

of mentors from community-based organizations, students will gain foundational SEL skills, build 

their leadership skills, increase their awareness of mental health systems, reduce stigma associated 

with mental health, and become familiar with resources for help that they can use personally, with 

peers, and family members.  

 

MindOneSix addresses Tier 1 and Tier 2 needs on the Multi-Tiered System of Support (MTSS) 

continuum and is an effective peer-to-peer mental wellness program that promotes mental health 

literacy, builds protective factors, improves school climate, and supports prevention and early 

intervention (PEI) strategies identified by the Mental Health Services Act (MHSA). Strengthening 

Tier 1 supports enhances the foundation of a comprehensive district and/or school-wide mental 

health system. Healing-centered, trauma-sensitive schools help students feel safe by fostering 

positive peer-to-peer relationships. MHSA PEI funding can be leveraged to support prevention and 

early intervention programs like MindOneSix.  

 

In addition, students are supported by leaders from neighborhood-based organizations who will 

provide mentorship, service-learning opportunities, workforce skills training, opportunities for 

reflection, and economic relief through stipend payments to youth who successfully complete service 

projects and applied work-based opportunities to address community mental health needs.  

 

Target Youth Population: 

 

MindOneSix targets youth ages 12 – 19 years old and seeks to include youth with a diversity of lived 

experiences, including one or more of the following circumstances: 

 Income inequality 

 Barriers that impact academic performance 

 Family members involved in the justice system 

 Mental health challenges 

 Exposure to violence 

 Physical disability 

 Involvement in the foster care system 

 Experiencing homelessness 

 A teen parent 

 Refugee or undocumented status 
 

Connect, Learn, Earn Framework 

 

 Connect: Youth will form positive connections with trusted adult mentors and peers, connect 

to meaningful service opportunities through their participation in MindOneSix. 
 

 Learn: Youth will complete 40+ hours of service and training, including 20 hours of core 

Mental Wellness Champions training, and learn about work, through work, and for work 

while engaged in meaningful and impactful work-based learning experiences and exposure to 

career pathways and post-secondary school goals.  

 

 Earn: Youth will receive a stipend from their host organization for completing 40+ hours of 

service and applied work-based learning that supports peer and community mental wellness.  

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C8B389EC-C13F-4504-8857-6AEBFED44F5DDocuSign Envelope ID: 44A7716F-EB65-4038-98E3-78EAAF1DC37E



 

2021-2023  Page 4 of 9 

 

Cost: 

 

$591,774 per year. 

 

B. Payment.  

 

Fee Rate:  $99,108 per month of services during the 10-month program year, not to exceed 

Nine Hundred Ninety-One Thousand Eighty Dollars ($991,080) per year.  

 

Payment shall be made within 30 days upon submission of periodic invoice(s) for services 

rendered. Invoices should be sent to Jacqueline Rodriguez, Coordinator, Student Support & 

Health Services at Jacqueline-rodriguez@scusd.edu with a copy to susan-ann-

lee@scusd.edu.  

 

C. Independent Contractor.  While engaged in providing the services in this Agreement, and 

otherwise performing as set forth in this Agreement, Contractor and each of Contractor 

employees, is an independent contractor, and not an officer, employee, agent, partner, or joint 

venturer of the District. 

 

D. Insurance Requirements. Prior to commencement of services and during the life of this 

Agreement, Contractor shall provide the District with a copy of its certificates of insurance 

evidencing its comprehensive general liability insurance, employment practices liability 

insurance, and directors and officers coverages in sums of not less than $1,000,000 per 

occurrence.  Contractor will also provide a written endorsement to such policies-naming 

 Program Elements Work-Based & Mental 

Wellness Learning 

Elements 

Youth Development  

Elements 

Connect Cohort of 250 SCUSD 

youth ages 12 -19 (25 youth 

per school at 10 middle and 

high schools across) 

 Peer and Community 

Mental Wellness 

 Behavioral Health Career 

paths 

• Connect to trusted adult 

mentors and 

positive peer relationships 

• Connect to education and 

community (essential 

protective factors for 

youth) 
 

Learn 40+ hours of work-based 

and mental wellness 

training and service projects 

 

 20 hours Mental 

Wellness Champions 

training 

 15+ hours of service 

project work 

 5+ hours of work-based 

skills training 

 Exploration of personal 

strengths and interests 

 Development of soft-

skills/life skills 

 Increase self confidence 

 Build leadership skills 

 Build peer engagement skills 

 

Earn Up to a $500 stipend for 

program completion 

awarded by host 

organization 

 

Minimum of 15 hours of 

community and applied 

service  

Value students’ time for 

learning, work, and 

engagement. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C8B389EC-C13F-4504-8857-6AEBFED44F5DDocuSign Envelope ID: 44A7716F-EB65-4038-98E3-78EAAF1DC37E

mailto:Jacqueline-rodriguez@scusd.edu
mailto:susan-ann-lee@scusd.edu
mailto:susan-ann-lee@scusd.edu


 

2021-2023  Page 5 of 9 

District as an additional insured and such endorsement shall also state, "Such insurance as is 

afforded by this policy shall be primary, and any insurance carried by District shall be excess 

and noncontributory." If insurance is not kept in force during the entire term of the 

Agreement, District may procure the necessary insurance and pay the premium therefore, and 

the premium shall be paid by the Contractor to the District. 

 

E. Fingerprinting Requirements. As required by SCUSD, all individuals that come into contact 

with SCUSD students must undergo a criminal background investigation by SCUSD. 

Contractor agrees that any employee it provides to District shall be subject to the 

fingerprinting and TB requirements set forth in the California Education Code. The 

Contractor will be notified upon clearance. Upon receipt of a subsequent arrest notification 

from DOJ, SCUSD shall within 48 hours notify the Contractor of such a subsequent arrest 

notification. If an employee is disqualified from working for District pursuant to the 

requirements of the California Education Code, Contractor agrees to provide a replacement 

employee within 15 days of receiving notification that the previous employee has been 

disqualified. Failure to adhere to the terms of this provision is grounds for termination of the 

Agreement.  

 

Contractor further agrees and certifies that any employee providing services directly to any 

pupil(s) of the District whether qualifying as a Mandated Reporter as defined by California 

Penal Code §11165.7(a), or not, shall be provided  annual training on child abuse and 

mandated reporting of child abuse or neglect utilizing an evidence-based training method 

which includes training on how to recognize conduct of adults which may trigger reasonable 

suspicion of abuse of children, i.e., “red-flag” or “grooming” behaviors. 

 

Failure to adhere to the terms of this provision is grounds for termination of the Agreement 

(or MOU). 

   

F. Vaccination Requirements.  As required by SCUSD and State Public Health Order of August 

11, 2021, all individuals serving in school settings must verify vaccine status.  Individuals 

who are not fully vaccinated, or for whom vaccine status is unknown or documentation is not 

provided, are required to undergo diagnostic screening testing at least once weekly.  

Contractor agrees that any employee it provides to SCUSD shall be subject to the vaccination 

requirements set forth by the California Department of Public Health.  Upon Contractor’s 

receipt of vaccination documents, SCUSD will be notified.  For individuals who are not fully 

vaccinated, or for whom vaccine status is unknown or documentation is not provided, 

Contractor agrees such individuals must undergo diagnostic screening testing at least once 

weekly and Contractor shall provide evidence of same to SCUSD on a weekly basis or as 

otherwise agreed upon by SCUSD and the Contractor. SCUSD shall provide Contractor’s 

employees opportunities to undergo diagnostic screening testing at least once weekly through 

its facilities.  If an employee is disqualified from working for SCUSD pursuant to the 

requirements by the California Department of Public Health, Contractor agrees to provide a 

replacement employee within 15 days of receiving notification that the previous employee 

has been disqualified.  Failure to adhere to the terms of this provision is grounds for 

termination of the Agreement. 

 

G. Confidential Records and Data. Each Party shall not disclose confidential records received 

from the other Party, including student records pursuant to FERPA, 20 U.S.C. § 1232g, et 

seq., and California Education Code Section 49060, et seq.  Contractor shall maintain the 

confidentiality of student or pupil records and shall not disclose such records to any third 

parties without the express written approval of the District.  In the event a Party receives a 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C8B389EC-C13F-4504-8857-6AEBFED44F5DDocuSign Envelope ID: 44A7716F-EB65-4038-98E3-78EAAF1DC37E



 

2021-2023  Page 6 of 9 

request for disclosure of such confidential records, whether under the California Public 

Records Act, a duly-issued subpoena, or otherwise, said Party shall tender the request to the 

other Party who shall be responsible for addressing said request, including the defense of its 

claim of confidentiality. The Party asserting its claim of confidentiality shall hold harmless 

and defend the Party receiving such request from any liability, claim, loss, cost, attorney’s 

fees and damages, as adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction, arising out of a refusal to 

disclose such confidential records. 

 

H. Period of Agreement.  The term of this Agreement shall be from September 1, 2021 through 

June 30, 2023. This Agreement may be terminated by the District without cause by providing 

at least thirty (30) days written notice. 

 

The District may terminate this Contract with cause upon written notice of intention to 

terminate for cause. A Termination for Cause shall include: (a) material violation of this 

Agreement by Contractor; (b) any act by Contractor exposing the District to liability to others 

for personal injury or property damage; or (c) Contractor is adjudged as bankrupt; Contractor 

makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, or a receiver is appointed on account 

of the Contractor's insolvency.   

 

Ten (10) calendar days after service of such notice, the condition or violation shall cease, or 

satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, or this Agreement shall cease 

and terminate.  In the event of such termination, the District may secure the required services 

from another contractor.  If the cost to the District exceeds the cost of providing the service 

pursuant to this Agreement, the excess cost shall be charged to and collected from the 

Contractor.  The foregoing provisions are in addition to and not a limitation of any other 

rights or remedies available to the District.  Written notice by the District shall be deemed 

given when received by the other party or no later than three days after the day of mailing, 

whichever is sooner. 

 

I. Indemnity.  The Parties understand and agree that certain rights and obligations are governed 

by California Education Code section 38134(i), which states: 

 

Any school district authorizing the use of school facilities or grounds under subdivision (a) 

shall be liable for any injuries resulting from the negligence of the district in the ownership 

and maintenance of those facilities or grounds.  Any group using school facilities or grounds 

under subdivision (a) shall be liable for any injuries resulting from the negligence of that 

group during the use of those facilities or grounds.  The district and the group shall each bear 

the costs of defending itself against claims arising from those risks.  Notwithstanding any 

provision of law, this subdivision shall not be waived.  Nothing in this subdivision shall be 

construed to limit or affect the immunity or liability of a school district under Division 3.6 

(commencing with Section 810) of title 1 of the government Code, for injuries caused by a 

dangerous condition of public property. 

 

Accordingly, Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the District and its 

successors, assigns, trustees, officers, employees, staff, agents and students from and against 

all actions, causes of action, claims and demands whatsoever, and from all costs, damages, 

expenses, charges, debts and liabilities whatsoever (including attorney’s fees) arising out of 

any actual or alleged act, omission, willful misconduct, negligence, injury or other causes of 

action or liability proximately caused by Contractor and/or its successors, assigns, directors, 

employees, officers, and agents related this Agreement.  Contractor has no obligation under 

this Agreement to indemnify and hold harmless the District and is not liable for any actions, 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C8B389EC-C13F-4504-8857-6AEBFED44F5DDocuSign Envelope ID: 44A7716F-EB65-4038-98E3-78EAAF1DC37E



 

2021-2023  Page 7 of 9 

causes of action, claims and demands whatsoever, and for any costs, damages, expenses, 

charges, debts or other liabilities whatsoever (including attorney’s fees) arising out of any 

actual or alleged act, omission, negligence, injury or other causes of action or liability 

proximately caused by the District and/or its successors, assigns, trustees, officers, 

employees, staff, agents or students.  The Parties expressly agree that the indemnity 

obligation set forth in this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect during the term of 

this Agreement.  The Parties further agree that said indemnity obligations shall survive the 

termination of this Agreement for any actual or alleged act, omission, negligence, injury or 

other causes of action or liability that occurred during the term of this Agreement. 

 

J. Use of Facilities.  Neither Contractor, nor its employees, agents, guests nor invitees are 

authorized to use any other real property or physical improvements to real property, other 

than the facilities covered by this Agreement.  Contractor’s use of the District’s facilities 

shall not interfere with the District’s ability to carry on educational activities, interfere with 

the District’s ability to carry on recreational activities, or interfere with other potential users’ 

authorized right to use District property.  At all times, Contractor shall comply with the 

District’s rules, regulations, and policies, copies of which are deemed to have been provided 

to Contractor prior to the execution of this Agreement.  Contractor is responsible for ensuring 

that its Directors, Officers, agents, employees, contractors, guests, invitees, and participants, 

as well as any other individual who may attend or view the contemplated activities at the 

sites, comply with these requirements.  Contractor shall ensure that the District’s property is 

not altered, modified, or changed in any manner absent the District’s express prior and 

written consent.  Failure to comply with these obligations shall, at the discretion of the 

District, be a basis to immediately terminate this Agreement.  Contractor waives any claim 

against the District for damages relating to its use of the facilities, including, but not limited 

to, theft or destruction of the User’s property. 

 

K. Nondiscrimination.  It is the policy of the District that in connection with all services 

performed under contract, there will be no discrimination against any prospective or active 

employee engaged in the work because of race, color, ancestry, national origin, handicap, 

religious creed, sex, gender identity, sexual orientation, age or marital status. Contractor 

agrees to comply with applicable federal and California laws including, but not limited to, the 

California Fair Employment and Housing Act. 

 

L. Severability. If any provisions of this Agreement are held to be contrary to law by final 

legislative act or a court of competent jurisdiction inclusive of appeals, if any, such 

provisions will not be deemed valid and subsisting except to the extent permitted by law, but 

all other provisions will continue in full force and effect. 

 

M. Applicable Law/Venue.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance 

with the laws of the State of California.  If any action is instituted to enforce or interpret this 

Agreement, venue shall only be in the appropriate state or federal court having venue over 

matters arising in Sacramento County, California, provided that nothing in this Agreement 

shall constitute a waiver of immunity to suit by the District. 

 

N. Assignment.  This Agreement is made by and between Contractor and the District and any 

attempted assignment by them, their successors or assigns shall be void unless approved in 

writing by the Parties. 

 

O. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between Contractor and 

the District with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all previous negotiations, 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C8B389EC-C13F-4504-8857-6AEBFED44F5DDocuSign Envelope ID: 44A7716F-EB65-4038-98E3-78EAAF1DC37E



 

2021-2023  Page 8 of 9 

proposals, commitments, writings, advertisements, publications and understandings of any 

nature whatsoever, with respect to the same subject matter unless expressly included in this 

Agreement.  The Parties hereby waive the presumption that any ambiguities in a contract are 

read against the drafter of same. The Parties further agree and represent that each of them are 

the drafters of every part of this Agreement. 

 

P. Amendments.  The terms of this Agreement shall not be amended in any manner except by 

written agreement signed by the Parties. 

 

Q. Execution In Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts such that the 

signatures of the Parties may appear on separate signature pages.  Facsimile or photocopy 

signatures shall be deemed original signatures for all purposes. 

 

R. Authority.  Each party represents that they have the authority to enter into this Agreement 

and that the undersigned are authorized to execute this Agreement. 

 

S. Approval/Ratification by Board of Education. To the extent the Agreement exceeds an 

expenditure above the amount specified in Education Code section 17605, this Agreement, as 

to any such exceeded amount, is not enforceable and is invalid unless and until the exceeded 

amount is approved and/or ratified by the governing board of the Sacramento City Unified 

School District, as evidenced by a motion of said board duly passed and adopted.  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed. 

 

DISTRICT:  
 

 

By: _________________________________________  ___________________ 

Rose Ramos       Date 

Chief Business Officer    

 

PRO YOUTH & FAMILIES: 
 

 

By: _________________________________________  ___________________ 

Staci Anderson       Date 

CEO 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: C8B389EC-C13F-4504-8857-6AEBFED44F5D

08/23/2021

DocuSign Envelope ID: 44A7716F-EB65-4038-98E3-78EAAF1DC37E

08/25/2021



 

2021-2023  Page 9 of 9 

COVID-19 Addendum 

 

  

In further consideration for this Agreement, Contractor enters this COVID-19 Addendum 

as Contractor will be providing services at the sites: 

1. Contractor agrees to strictly follow all currently applicable federal, state, county, city and/or 

district rules regarding protection from the COVID-19. Such guidelines may be found at: 

a. https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/index.html  

b. https://covid19.ca.gov/  

c. https://www.saccounty.net/COVID-19/Pages/default.aspx 

d. https://www.cityofsacramento.org/Emergency-Management/COVID19 

e. https://www.scusd.edu/sites/main/files/file-attachments/mitigation_guidelines.pdf 

f. https://returntogether.scusd.edu/return-health  

 

2. Contractor agrees to strictly follow all currently applicable federal, state, county, city and/or 

district rules regarding reopening guidelines for child care providers.  Such guidelines may be 

found at: 

a. https://www.saccounty.net/COVID-19/Documents/SCPH%20COVID-

19%20Reopening%20guidelines%20for%20Child%20Care%20final.pdf 

3. School Administration and plant manager need to be aware of the staff and all the activities. 

4. Contractor will provide training to their staff on COVID-19 mitigation measures and how to 

remain safe at all times.  

5. Agency staff will only be at the sites during the hours agreed upon with the site administration. 

6. Agency staff are required to follow all District protocols while on-site at this time, including, 

but not limited to maintaining proper physical distancing, wearing a mask while inside 

district’s facilities, partaking in the health screening, washing their hands properly etc.  

7. The District reserves the right to stop the use of its facilities if it observes violation of the 

COVID-19 rules.  

 

Signature:         

       Staci Anderson 

       CEO 

 

Address:             

 

Work Phone:       Other Phone:      

 

Email Address: stacia@proyouthandfamilies.org  

DocuSign Envelope ID: C8B389EC-C13F-4504-8857-6AEBFED44F5D

9165763300 5304009787

3780 Rosin court

DocuSign Envelope ID: 44A7716F-EB65-4038-98E3-78EAAF1DC37E

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/index.html
https://covid19.ca.gov/
https://www.saccounty.net/COVID-19/Pages/default.aspx
https://www.cityofsacramento.org/Emergency-Management/COVID19
https://www.scusd.edu/sites/main/files/file-attachments/mitigation_guidelines.pdf
https://returntogether.scusd.edu/return-health
https://www.saccounty.net/COVID-19/Documents/SCPH%20COVID-19%20Reopening%20guidelines%20for%20Child%20Care%20final.pdf
https://www.saccounty.net/COVID-19/Documents/SCPH%20COVID-19%20Reopening%20guidelines%20for%20Child%20Care%20final.pdf
mailto:stacia@proyouthandfamilies.org


































































 

AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 1 OF 2 
SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION PROJECT  
 
DWK DMS 3379078v1 

AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO FACILITIES LEASE  

BY AND BETWEEN 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT AND  

JOHN F. OTTO, INC., dba OTTO CONSTRUCTION 

_________________________________________________________ 

 

This Amendment No. 2 to the Facilities Lease (“[Second] Amendment”) is 

made and entered into this 2nd day of March 2023 (“Effective Date”) by and between 

the Sacramento City Unified School District (“District”) and John F. Otto, Inc., dba 

Otto Construction (“Developer”) (collectively, the “Parties”) as follows: 

RECITALS 

 WHEREAS, the Parties entered into a Facilities Lease, dated September 15, 

2022, pertaining to the Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization (“Project”) at 

Sutter Middle School, located at 3150 I Street Sacramento, CA  95816, (“Project 

Site”); and 

  NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 

Section I. Second Amendment of Facilities Lease. 

1. Exhibit C (Guaranteed Maximum Price and Other Project Cost, 

Funding, and Payment Provisions) to the Facilities Lease is amended and 

supplemented such that the existing Exhibit C is struck and replaced with the 

amended Exhibit C, which is attached hereto as Attachment “1” and incorporated 

herein by this reference.  All references to Exhibit C in the Facilities Lease shall mean 

and refer to Attachment “1” hereto. 

 The Parties expressly acknowledge and agree that this amendment is 

intended to and does change payment provisions for the Project under the Facilities 

Lease, including, but not limited to, the amount of Tenant Improvement Payments 

and amount of Lease Payments. 

2. The Construction Schedule, which is attached hereto as Attachment 

“2” and incorporated herein by this reference, is hereby approved by the District and 

is hereby added as Exhibit F (Construction Schedule) to the Facilities Lease. 

3. The Schedule of Values, which is attached hereto as Attachment “3” 

and incorporated herein by this reference, is hereby approved by the District and is 

hereby added as Exhibit G (Schedule of Values) to the Facilities Lease.  

 

[CONTINUES ON NEXT PAGE] 



 

AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 2 OF 2 
SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL GYM HVAC MODERNIZATION PROJECT  
 
DWK DMS 3379078v1 

Section II. All Other Provisions Reaffirmed. 

 All other provisions of the Facilities Lease shall remain in full force and effect 

and are hereby reaffirmed.  If there is any conflict between this First Amendment 

and any provision of the Facilities Lease or any prior amendment thereto, the 

provisions of this First Amendment shall control.   

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Amendment No. _ to 

the Facilities Lease to be executed by their respective officers who are duly 

authorized, as of the Effective Date. 

ACCEPTED AND AGREED on the date indicated below:   

Dated: __________, 20__ 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL 

DISTRICT 

By:  ________________________________ 

Name: __Rose Ramos               __________     

Title: ___CBO_________________________          

Dated: _________, 20__ 

JOHN F. OTTO, INC., DBA, OTTO 

CONSTRUCTION 

 

By:  _________________________________ 

Name:  ______________________________ 

Title:  _______________________________ 

 



ATTACHMENT 1 
 

Exhibit C to Facilities Lease  Page 1 of 9 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization Project   
DWK DMS 3804500v1 

 

 

EXHIBIT C 

GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE AND 

OTHER PROJECT COST, FUNDING, AND PAYMENT PROVISIONS 

1. Site Lease Payments   

As indicated in the Site Lease, Developer shall pay One Dollar ($1.00) to the District as 

consideration for the Site Lease. 

2. Guaranteed Maximum Price 

Pursuant to the Facilities Lease, Developer will cause the Project to be constructed for an 

amount to be determined after preconstruction services are completed (“Guaranteed 

Maximum Price”).  The Guaranteed Maximum Price shall include the preconstruction fees and 

costs. 

2.1 Cost of the Work   

The term Cost of the Work shall mean the costs necessarily incurred in the proper 

performance of the Work contemplated by the Contract Documents. Such costs shall 

be at rates no higher than the standard paid at the place of the Project except with 

the prior consent of the District. The Cost of the Work shall include only the items set 

forth in this Section 2 and approved by the District.  

2.1.1 General Conditions  

The General Conditions as set forth in Attachment 1 hereto shall be included 

in a progress billing as incurred.  Said rates shall include all costs for labor, 

equipment and materials for the items identified therein which are necessary 

for the proper management of the Project, and shall include all costs paid or 

incurred by Developer for insurance, permits, taxes, and all contributions, 

assessments and benefits, holidays, vacations, retirement benefits, incentives 

to the extent contemplated in Attachment 1, whether required by law or 

collective bargaining agreements or otherwise paid or provided by Developer 

to its employees.  The District reserves the right to request changes to the 

personnel, equipment, or facilities provided as General Conditions as may be 

necessary or appropriate for the proper management of the Project, in which 

case, the District shall be entitled to a reduction in the cost of General 

Conditions based on the rates set forth in Attachment 1.   

2.1.2 Subcontract Costs 

Payments made by the Developer to Subcontractors (inclusive of the 

Subcontractor’s bonding, if required, and insurance costs, which shall be 

included in the subcontract amount), which payments shall be made in 

accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.   



ATTACHMENT 1 
 

Exhibit C to Facilities Lease  Page 2 of 9 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization Project   
DWK DMS 3804500v1 

 

 

2.1.3 Developer-Performed Work   

Costs incurred by Developer for self-performed work at the direction of District 

or with the District’s prior approval, as follows: 

2.1.3.1 Actual costs to Developer of wages of construction workers, 

excluding all salaried and/or administrative personnel, directly 

employed by Developer to perform the construction of the Work at the 

site.   

2.1.3.2 Wages or salaries and customary benefits, such as sick leave, 

medical and health benefits, holidays, vacations, incentive programs, 

and pension plans of Developer’s field supervisory, safety and 

administrative personnel when stationed at the site or stationed at 

Developer’s principal office, only for that portion of their time required 

for the Work. 

2.1.3.3 Wages and salaries and customary benefits, such as sick 

leave, medical and health benefits, holidays, vacations, incentive 

programs and pension plans of Developer’s supervisory or 

administrative personnel engaged at factories, workshops or on the 

road, in expediting the production or transportation of materials or 

equipment required for the Work, but only for that portion of their time 

required for the Work. 

2.1.3.4 Costs paid or incurred by Developer for taxes, insurance, 

contributions, assessments required by law or collective bargaining 

agreements and for personnel not covered by such agreements, and for 

customary benefits such as sick leave, medical and health benefits, 

holidays, vacations and pensions, provided such costs are based on 

wages and salaries included in the Cost of the Work under 

Subparagraphs 2.1.3.1 through 2.1.3.3. 

2.1.3.5 Costs, including transportation and storage, of materials and 

equipment incorporated in the completed construction, including costs 

of materials in excess of those actually installed to allow for reasonable 

waste and spoilage. Unused excess materials, if any, shall become the 

District’s property at the completion of the Work or, at the District’s 

option, shall be sold by Developer. Any amounts realized from such sales 

shall be credited to the District as a deduction from the Cost of the Work.   

2.1.3.6 Costs, including transportation and storage, installation, 

maintenance, dismantling and removal of materials, supplies, 

machinery and equipment not customarily owned by construction 

workers, that are provided by Developer at the site and fully consumed 

in the performance of the Work; and cost (less salvage value) of such 

items if not fully consumed, whether sold to others or retained by 

Developer. Cost for items previously used by Developer shall mean fair 

market value.   



ATTACHMENT 1 
 

Exhibit C to Facilities Lease  Page 3 of 9 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization Project   
DWK DMS 3804500v1 

 

 

2.1.3.7 Rental charges for temporary facilities, machinery, 

equipment, vehicles and vehicle expenses, and hand tools not 

customarily owned by construction workers that are provided by 

Developer at the site, whether rented from Developer or others, and the 

costs of transportation, installation, minor repairs and replacements, 

dismantling and removal thereof and costs of Developer’s Project field 

office, overhead and general expenses including office supplies, parking, 

office equipment, and software. Rates and quantities of equipment 

rented shall be subject to the District’s prior approval.   

2.1.3.8 Costs of removal of debris from the site, daily clean-up costs 

and dumpster charges not otherwise included in the cost of the 

subcontracts which exceeds the clean-up provided under the General 

Conditions.  

2.1.3.9 This section intentionally blank.   

2.1.3.10 Costs of materials and equipment suitably stored off the site 

at a mutually acceptable location, if approved in advance by the District. 

2.1.4 Allowances    

Because it is impossible at the time of execution of the Facilities Lease to 

determine the exact cost of performing certain tasks, the Cost of the Work shall 

include the following Allowances for the Tasks/Work as noted here: 

Task/Work Allowance Amount 

None $0.00 

  

  

Total Allowance Amount $0.00 

 

The Allowance Value for an Allowance Item includes the direct cost of labor, 

materials, equipment, transportation, taxes and insurance associated with the 

applicable Allowance Item.  All other costs, including design fees, Developer’s 

overall project management and general conditions costs, overhead and fee, 

are deemed to be included in the original Guaranteed Maximum Price, and are 

not subject to adjustment regardless of the actual amount of the Allowance 

Item. 

The District shall have sole discretion to authorize all expenditures from the 

Allowances. The District shall process expenditures from the Allowances in the 

form of an Allowance Expenditure Directive (“AED”). The Allowances are 

included in the Guaranteed Maximum Price.  Any unused Allowance or unused 

portion thereof shall be deducted from the Cost of the Work pursuant to 

Exhibit D to this Facilities Lease to the benefit of the District. 



ATTACHMENT 1 
 

Exhibit C to Facilities Lease  Page 4 of 9 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization Project   
DWK DMS 3804500v1 

 

 

2.1.5 Miscellaneous Costs 

2.1.5.1 Where not included in the General Conditions, and with the 

prior approval of District, costs of document reproductions 

(photocopying and blueprinting expenses), long distance telephone call 

charges, postage, overnight and parcel delivery charges, telephone 

costs including cellular telephone charges, facsimile or other 

communication service at the Project site, job photos and progress 

schedules, and reasonable petty cash expenses of the site office. 

Developer shall consult with District to determine whether District has 

any vendor relationships that could reduce the cost of these items and 

use such vendors whenever possible. 

2.1.5.2 Sales, use, gross receipts, local business and similar taxes 

imposed by a governmental authority that are related to the Work. 

2.1.5.3 Fees and assessments for permits, plan checks, licenses and 

inspections for which Developer is required by the Contract Documents 

to pay including, but not limited to, permanent utility connection 

charges, street use permit, street use rental, OSHA permit and sidewalk 

use permit and fees. 

2.1.5.4 Fees of laboratories for tests required by the Contract 

Documents. 

2.1.5.5 Deposits lost for causes other than Developer’s or its 

subcontractors’ negligence or failure to fulfill a specific responsibility to 

the District as set forth in the Contract Documents. 

2.1.5.6 Expenses incurred in accordance with Developer’s standard 

personnel policy for relocation and temporary living allowances of 

personnel required for the Work if approved in advance by District. 

2.1.5.7 Where requested by District, costs or expenses incurred by 

Developer in performing design services for the design-build systems. 

2.1.5.8 Other costs incurred in the performance of the Work if, and 

to the extent, approved in advance by District. 

2.1.5.9 Costs due to emergencies incurred in taking action to prevent 

threatened damage, injury or loss in case of an emergency affecting the 

safety of persons and/or property. 

2.1.5.10 Provided all other eligible costs have been deducted from the 

contingency and as part of the calculation of amounts due Developer for 

Final Payment, costs of repairing and correcting damaged or non-

conforming Work executed by Developer, Subcontractors or suppliers, 

providing that such damage or non-conforming Work was not caused by 

negligence or failure to fulfill a specific responsibility of Developer and 

only to the extent that the cost of repair or correction is not recovered 

by Developer from insurance, sureties, Subcontractors or suppliers. 



ATTACHMENT 1 
 

Exhibit C to Facilities Lease  Page 5 of 9 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization Project   
DWK DMS 3804500v1 

 

 

2.1.6 Excluded Costs   

The following items are considered general overhead items and shall not be 

billed to the District: 

2.1.6.1 Salaries and other compensation of Developer’s personnel 

stationed at Developer’s principal office or offices other than the Project 

Field Office, except as specifically provided in Subparagraphs 2.1.3.2. 

and 2.1.3.4. 

2.1.6.2 Expenses of Developer’s principal office and offices other than 

the Project Field Office. 

2.1.6.3 Overhead and general expenses, except as may be expressly 

included in this Section 2. 

2.1.6.4 Developer’s capital expenses, including interest on 

Developer’s capital employed for the Work. 

2.1.6.5 Costs that would cause the Guaranteed Maximum Price (as 

adjusted by Change Order) to be exceeded.  

2.1.7 Developer’s Fee 

4 percent (4%) of the Cost of the Work as described in Sections 2.1.1, 2.1.2, 

2.1.3, 2.1.4 and 2.1.5.  

2.1.8 Bonds and Insurance   

For insurance and bonds required under this Facilities Lease (exclusive of those 

required by Subcontractors, which costs are included in the subcontract 

amounts), that portion of insurance and bond premiums which are directly 

attributable to this Contract, which shall be calculated at a rate of 1.47 percent 

(1.47%) of the Cost of the Work for insurance and 1.47 percent (1.47%) 

of the Cost of the Work for payment and performance bonds.  

2.1.9 Owner Contingency and Developer Contingency  

2.1.9.1 The Guaranteed Maximum Price includes Owner and 

Developer Contingencies of 2.55 percent (2.55%) for the Owner 

Contingency and 1.70 percent (1.70%) of the Developer Contingency 

of the Cost of the Work as described in Section 2.1.1, 2.1.2, and 2.1.3. 

Intended Uses of Owner Contingency and Developer Contingency:    

Owner Contingency is to be used for unforeseen conditions, Owner-

requested scope adds, and Owner-directed schedule acceleration.  The 

Owner is responsible for costs that exceed the Owner Contingency.  

Developer Contingency is to be used for scope gaps.  The Developer is 

responsible for costs that exceed the Developer Contingency.  The 

Owner is responsible for costs that exceed the total Allowance amount.   



ATTACHMENT 1 
 

Exhibit C to Facilities Lease  Page 6 of 9 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization Project   
DWK DMS 3804500v1 

 

 

2.1.9.2 Developer Contingency is not intended for such things as 

scope changes.   

2.1.9.3 The Contingencies shall not be used without the agreement 

of the District.   

2.1.9.4 The unused portion of the Contingency shall be considered as 

cost savings and retained by the District at the end of the Project. 

2.2 The Guaranteed Maximum Price will consist of the amounts to be identified in 

Attachment 2 to this Exhibit C.  Except as indicated herein for modifications to the 

Project approved by the District, Developer will not seek additional compensation from 

District in excess of Guaranteed Maximum Price.  District shall pay the Guaranteed 

Maximum Price to Developer in the form of Tenant Improvement Payments and Lease 

Payments as indicated herein. 

2.3 Total Payment   

In no event shall the cumulative total of the Tenant Improvement Payments and the 

Loan Amount for the Lease Payments ever exceed the Guaranteed Maximum Price to 

be defined, as may be modified pursuant to Exhibit D to the Facilities Lease. 

2.4 Changes to Guaranteed Maximum Price   

2.4.1 The Parties acknowledge that the Guaranteed Maximum Price is based 

on the Construction Documents, including the plans and specifications, as 

identified in Exhibit D to the Facilities Lease. 

2.4.2 As indicated in the Facilities Lease, the Parties may add to or remove 

from the project specific scopes of work.  Based on these change(s), the Parties 

may agree to a reduction or increase in the Guaranteed Maximum Price.  If a 

cost impact of a change is agreed to by the Parties, it shall be paid upon the 

payment request from Developer for the work that is the subject of the change 

in accordance with the provisions of Exhibit D.  The amount of any change to 

the Guaranteed Maximum Price shall be calculated in accordance with the 

provisions of Exhibit D to this Facilities Lease. 

2.4.3 The Parties agree to reduce the Guaranteed Maximum Price for the 

unused portion of Allowances and/or Contingency, if any. 

2.4.4 Cost Savings  

Developer shall work cooperatively with Architect, Construction Manager, 

subcontractors and District, in good faith, to identify appropriate opportunities 

to reduce the Project costs and promote cost savings.  Any identified cost 

savings from the Guaranteed Maximum Price shall be identified by Developer, 

and approved in writing by the District.  In the event Developer realizes a 

savings on any aspect of the Project, such savings shall be added to the Owner’s 

Contingency and expended consistent with the Owner’s Contingency.  In 

addition, any portion of Allowance remaining after completion of the Project 

shall be added to the Owner’s Contingency.  If any cost savings require 



ATTACHMENT 1 
 

Exhibit C to Facilities Lease  Page 7 of 9 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization Project   
DWK DMS 3804500v1 

 

 

revisions to the Construction Documents, Developer shall work with the District 

and Architect with respect to revising the Construction Documents and, if 

necessary, obtaining the approval of DSA with respect to those revisions.  

Developer shall be entitled to an adjustment of Contract Time for delay in 

completion caused by any cost savings adopted by District pursuant to Exhibit 

D, if requested in writing before the approval of the cost savings. 

2.4.5  If the District exercises its Purchase Option pursuant to this Exhibit C, 

any reduction in the Guaranteed Maximum Price resulting from that exercise of 

the Purchase Option, if any, shall be retained in full by the District and shall not 

be shared with Developer. 

3. Tenant Improvement Payments   

Prior to the District’s taking delivery or occupancy of the Project, the District shall pay to 

Developer an amount equal to the Guaranteed Maximum Price as modified pursuant to the 

terms of the Facilities Lease, including Exhibit C and Exhibit D, less the Loan Amount for 

the Lease Payments (“Tenant Improvement Payments”).  The District shall withhold a amount 

equal to the Loan Amount as indicated in Attachment 3 to Exhibit C from the Developer for 

its Work on the Project.  In other words, no further Tenant Improvement Payment will be 

made to Developer once the amount equal to Guaranteed Maximum Price minus the Loan 

Amount has been paid. Otherwise, the Tenant Improvement Payments will be processed 

based on the amount of Work performed according to Developer’s Schedule of Values (Exhibit 

G to the Facilities Lease) and pursuant to the provisions in Exhibit D to the Facilities Lease, 

including withholding for or escrow of retention of five percent (5%) of the Guaranteed 

Maximum Price.  The withholding for the Loan Amount shall be separate from and in addition 

to withholding for or escrow of retention. 

4. Lease Payments  

Upon execution of the Memorandum of Commencement Date, the form of which is attached 

to the Facilities Lease as Exhibit E, the District shall commence making lease payments to 

Developer in accordance with the Schedule attached hereto as Attachment 3.  

4.1 The Lease Payments shall be consideration for the District’s rental, use, and 

occupancy of the Project and the Project Site and shall be made in monthly 

installments as indicated in the Schedule of Lease Payments attached hereto as 

Attachment 3 for the duration of the lease term of one (1) year, with the first Lease 

Payment due ninety (90) days after execution of the Memorandum of Commencement 

Date.   

4.2 The District represents that the annual Lease Payment obligation does not 

surpass the District’s annual budget and will not require the District to increase or 

impose additional taxes or obligations on the public that did not exist prior to the 

execution of the Facilities Lease. 

4.3 Fair Rental Value  

District and Developer have agreed and determined that the total Lease 

Payments constitute adequate consideration for the Facilities Lease and are 

reasonably equivalent to the fair rental value of the Project.  In making such 



ATTACHMENT 1 
 

Exhibit C to Facilities Lease  Page 8 of 9 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization Project   
DWK DMS 3804500v1 

 

 

determination, consideration has been given to the obligations of the Parties 

under the Facilities Lease and Site Lease, the uses and purposes which may be 

served by the Project and the benefits therefrom which will accrue to the District 

and the general public. 

4.4 Each Lease Payment Constitutes a Current Expense of the District   

4.4.1 The District and Developer understand and intend that the obligation of 

the District to pay Lease Payments and other payments hereunder constitutes 

a current expense of the District and shall not in any way be construed to be a 

debt of the District in contravention of any applicable constitutional or statutory 

limitation or requirement concerning the creation of indebtedness by the 

District, nor shall anything contained herein constitute a pledge of the general 

tax revenues, funds or moneys of the District.   

4.4.2 Lease Payments due hereunder shall be payable only from current funds 

which are budgeted and appropriated or otherwise made legally available for 

this purpose.  This Facilities Lease shall not create an immediate indebtedness 

for any aggregate payments that may become due hereunder.   

4.4.3 The District covenants to take all necessary actions to include the Lease 

Payments in each of its final approved annual budgets.   

4.4.4 The District further covenants to make all necessary appropriations 

(including any supplemental appropriations) from any source of legally 

available funds of the District for the actual amount of Lease Payments that 

come due and payable during the period covered by each such budget.  

Developer acknowledges that the District has not pledged the full faith and 

credit of the District, State of California or any state agency or state department 

to the payment of Lease Payments or any other payments due hereunder.  The 

covenants on the part of District contained in this Facilities Lease constitute 

duties imposed by law and it shall be the duty of each and every public official 

of the District to take such action and do such things as are required by law in 

the performance of the official duty of such officials to enable the District to 

carry out and perform the covenants and agreements in this Facilities Lease 

agreed to be carried out and performed by the District. 

4.4.5 Developer cannot, under any circumstances, accelerate the District’s 

payments under the Facilities Lease. 

5. District’s Purchase Option 

5.1 If the District is not then in uncured Default hereunder, the District shall have 

the option to purchase not less than all of the Project in its “as-is, where-is” condition 

and terminate this Facilities Lease and Site Lease by paying the balance of the “Loan 

Amount” identified in Attachment 3, which is exclusive of interest that would have 

otherwise been owed, as of the date the option is exercised (“Option Price”).  Said 



ATTACHMENT 1 
 

Exhibit C to Facilities Lease  Page 9 of 9 

Sutter Middle School Gym HVAC Modernization Project   
DWK DMS 3804500v1 

 

 

payment shall be made on or before the date on which the District’s lease payment 

would otherwise be due for that month (“Option Date”).   

5.2 District shall provide to Developer a written notice no less than ten (10) days 

prior to the Option Date.  The notice will include that District is exercising its option to 

purchase the Project as set forth above on the Option Date.  If the District exercises 

this option, the District shall pay directly to Developer the Option Price on or prior to 

the Option Date and Developer shall at that time deliver to District an executed 

Termination Agreement and Quitclaim Deed in recordable form to terminate this 

Facilities Lease and the Site Lease.  District may record all such documents at District’s 

cost and expense.  

5.3 Under no circumstances can the first Option Date be on or before ninety (90) 

days after Developer completes the Project and the District accepts the Project. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK; ATTACHMENTS TO FOLLOW]  



jward
Text Box
                  EXHIBIT C              ATTACHMENT 2GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

7172

7374

7576

7778

7980

8182

8384

85

86

87
88

89

90

91

A B C L M N O

GMP ESTIMATE - PART 2 (R2)

JOB: SCUSD Sutter MS HVAC

DATE: 2/8/2023

DRAWINGS: DSA Approved Set 

SPEC. TRADE

 GMP - PART 1 

(ALREADY UNDER 

CONTRACT) 

 GMP - PART 2 

(PROPOSED 

CONTRACT 

AMOUNT) 

 TOTAL SUBCONTRACTOR

App C-3 LLB General Conditions 15,000                   210,000                 225,000                 

App C-3 Direct Cost of Work (General Requirements) 55,895                   55,895                   

02 41 00 Demolition 172,000                 172,000                 WC Maloney

Rebar scanning 12,500                   12,500                   

Demo flatwork for site electrical see demo see demo WC Maloney

Sawcutting at walls see demo see demo WC Maloney

Sawcutting at roof see demo see demo WC Maloney

Remove acoustical finish at ceiling see demo see demo WC Maloney

Remove grill at stage front see demo see demo WC Maloney

Mechanical demo see demo see demo WC Maloney

Electrical demo see demo see demo WC Maloney

Abatement (per report) see demo see demo WC Maloney

Abatement (allowance for unknown) 15,000                   15,000                   

Roofing Demo (allowance for unknown) 20,000                   20,000                   

03 11 00 Concrete Forming see concrete see concrete

03 20 00 Concrete Reinforcing 7,232                     7,232                     Associated Rebar 

03 30 00 Cast-in-Place Concrete 24,200                   24,200                   Otto 

Footings see concrete see concrete

Slab on Grade see concrete see concrete

Housekeeping Pad see concrete see concrete

Flatwork at Site Electrical 12,000                   12,000                   

04 22 00 Concrete Unit Masonry 42,620                   42,620                   Townsend & Schmidt

05 12 00 Structural Steel Framing 26,870                   26,870                   Davison Iron

05 50 00 Metal Fabrications see steel see steel Davison Iron

None Rough Carpentry

Nailers at curbs & plywood at stage front 17,975                   17,975                   Otto 

Wall infill see gyp see gyp Otto 

Roof infill see gyp see gyp Otto 

Plywood floor protection 68,934                   68,934                   Otto 

None Plastic Laminate 6,600                     6,600                     Universal Plastics

P-lam at stage front see p-lam see p-lam Universal Plastics

P-lam with alum trim at baseboard grill see p-lam see p-lam Universal Plastics

07 19 19 Silicone Water Repellents see paint see paint Mason Painting 

None Insulation see gyp see gyp PCI

None Roofing 50,000                   50,000                   

None Sheet Metal 20,000                   20,000                   

07 92 00 Joint Sealants 3,000                     3,000                     

None Glazing 9,000                     9,000                     

None Gyp Board 58,300                   58,300                   PCI

09 91 00 Painting 78,510                   78,510                   Mason Painting 

22 00 50 Basic Plumbing Materials and Methods 180,400                 180,400                 Intech Mechanical

22 10 00 Plumbing Piping Systems see plumbing see plumbing Intech Mechanical

23 00 50 Basic HVAC Materials and Methods 291,500                 639,300                 930,800                 Intech Mechanical

23 05 93 Testing, Adjusting, and Balancing for HVAC see hvac see hvac Intech Mechanical

23 09 23 Energy Management Control System see hvac see hvac Intech Mechanical

23 80 00 Heating, Ventilating and Air Conditioning see hvac see hvac Intech Mechanical

26 00 10 Basic Electrical Requirements 10,700                   324,953                 335,653                 Sac Valley Electric

26 00 90 Electrical Demolition see electrical see electrical Sac Valley Electric

26 05 19 Building Wire and Cable see electrical see electrical Sac Valley Electric

26 05 26 Grounding and Bonding see electrical see electrical Sac Valley Electric

26 05 29 Electrical Hangers and Supports see electrical see electrical Sac Valley Electric

26 05 31 Conduit see electrical see electrical Sac Valley Electric

26 05 33 Boxes see electrical see electrical Sac Valley Electric

26 05 43 Underground Ducts and Structures see electrical see electrical Sac Valley Electric

26 05 53 Electrical Identification see electrical see electrical Sac Valley Electric

26 24 16 Panelboards see electrical see electrical Sac Valley Electric

26 27 26 Wiring Devices see electrical see electrical Sac Valley Electric

26 28 16 Overcurrent Protective Devices see electrical see electrical Sac Valley Electric

26 28 19 Disconnect Switches see electrical see electrical Sac Valley Electric

26 29 00 Motor Controls see electrical see electrical Sac Valley Electric

26 61 13 Fire Alarm System see electrical see electrical Sac Valley Electric

Landscape & Irrigation Repair 5,000                     5,000                     

Utility Potholing 10,000                   10,000                   

Seal Coat & Striping 40,000                   40,000                   

DIRECT COST OF WORK 317,200                 2,110,289              2,427,489              

FEE AT 4.00% 12,688                   84,412                   97,100                   

BONDS AND INSURANCE 1.47% 4,663                     31,021                   35,684                   

OWNER CONTINGENCY 9,516                     53,793                   63,309                   

CONTRACTOR CONTINGENCY 6,344                     35,862                   42,206                   

SUBTOTAL 350,411                 2,315,377              2,665,788              

ESCALATION ALLOWANCE -                         -                         -                         

TOTAL 350,411                 2,315,377              2,665,788              

Alternates: Direct Cost Mark-ups

1.  Full demolition and removal of hydronic piping 55,000        5,759                     60,759                   Not Accepted

2.  Remove existing boiler system 9,780          1,024                     10,804                   Not Accepted

3.  Remove (2) Split Systems and associated controls moved to base bid Accepted

February 2023 GMP

2/8/2023, 7:42 AM 1

jward
Text Box
   ATTACHMENT 2 - EXHIBIT CGURANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE 



ATTACHMENT 1 EXHIBIT C - ATTACHMENT 3

Schedule of Lease Payments

Total Contract $2,665,788

Annual Interest 

Rate 5.00%

Years 1

Payments Per 

Year 12

Amount $133,289

Payment #
Total 

Payment

Principal 

Payment

Interest 

Payment
Balance

1 $11,411 $10,855 $555 $122,434

2 $11,411 $10,900 $510 $111,534

3 $11,411 $10,946 $465 $100,588

4 $11,411 $10,991 $419 $89,596

5 $11,411 $11,037 $373 $78,559

6 $11,411 $11,083 $327 $67,476

7 $11,411 $11,129 $281 $56,347

8 $11,411 $11,176 $235 $45,171

9 $11,411 $11,222 $188 $33,948

10 $11,411 $11,269 $141 $22,679

11 $11,411 $11,316 $94 $11,363

12 $11,411 $11,363 $47 $0



Data Date:5/29/2023 Sutter MS HVAC

Line Task ID Name Duration Start Finish
2023

June July AugustMay September
22 29 5 12 19 26 3 10 17 24 31 7 14 21 28 4 11 18

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

010

1030

1040

1060

1050

1070

1071

1090

1080

1100

1110

1101

1120

1130

1140

020

030

Construction

Mobilize Site

Utility Yard

UG Electrical

Selective Demo

MEP Rough

Roofing

HVAC Units Delivered & Set

MEP Finish

Interior Finishes

Startup & Commissioning

Inspections

Punchlist

District Acceptance

Project Complete

Post Construction

Post Conctruction Period

73d

5d

30d

5d

20d

22d

12d

5d

20d

10d

10d

2d

5d

1d

5/22/2023 A

5/22/2023 

5/29/2023

6/12/2023

6/12/2023

6/26/2023

7/10/2023

7/26/2023

7/26/2023

7/26/2023

8/9/2023

8/23/2023

8/23/2023

8/30/2023

8/31/2023

8/31/2023

8/31/2023

8/31/2023

5/26/2023 

7/7/2023

6/16/2023

7/7/2023

7/25/2023

7/25/2023

8/1/2023

8/22/2023

8/8/2023

8/22/2023

8/24/2023

8/29/2023

8/30/2023

8/31/2023

8/31/2023

8/31/2023

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

jward
Text Box
                    ATTACHMENT 2



PROJECT PROJECT NO.

CONTRACTOR CONTRACT NO.

DATE

A B C D E F G H

ITEM NO. DESCRIPTION OF WORK

ORIGINAL 

AWARD

APPROVED 

CHANGES

REVISED 

CONTRACT:  

SCHEDULE OF 

VALUES 

FROM 

PREVIOUS 

APPLICATION 

(D+E) THIS PERIOD

TOTAL 

COMPLETED      

TO DATE      

(D+E)

% COMPLETE            

(F/C)

BALANCE            

TO FINISH              

(C-F)

RETENTION 

(5%*F)

1 Preconstruction Separate Billing -                       -                       -                       0% -                       -                       

2 Supervision (PM/PE/Super) 171,960.00          171,960.00          -                       -                       0% 171,960.00          -                       

3 General Requirements 71,535.00            71,535.00            -                       -                       0% 71,535.00            -                       

3 Surveyor 4,500.00              4,500.00              -                       -                       0% 4,500.00              -                       

3 Periodic Cleanup 5,600.00              5,600.00              -                       -                       0% 5,600.00              -                       

3 Final Clean 5,000.00              5,000.00              -                       -                       0% 5,000.00              -                       

3 Dumpster 4,800.00              4,800.00              -                       -                       0% 4,800.00              -                       

3 Dust Control 2,500.00              2,500.00              -                       -                       0% 2,500.00              -                       

4 Demolition 172,000.00          172,000.00          -                       -                       0% 172,000.00          -                       

4 Rebar Scanning 12,500.00            12,500.00            -                       -                       0% 12,500.00            -                       

4 Abatement 15,000.00            15,000.00            -                       -                       0% 15,000.00            -                       

4 Roofing Demolition 20,000.00            20,000.00            -                       -                       0% 20,000.00            -                       

5 Concrete Reinforcing 7,232.00              7,232.00              -                       -                       0% 7,232.00              -                       

6 CIP Concrete 36,200.00            36,200.00            -                       -                       0% 36,200.00            -                       

7 CMU 42,620.00            42,620.00            -                       -                       0% 42,620.00            -                       

8 Structural Steel 26,870.00            26,870.00            -                       -                       0% 26,870.00            -                       

9 Rough Carpentry 86,909.00            86,909.00            -                       -                       0% 86,909.00            -                       

10 Plastic Laminate 6,600.00              6,600.00              -                       -                       0% 6,600.00              -                       

11 Roofing 50,000.00            50,000.00            -                       -                       0% 50,000.00            -                       

12 Sheet Metal 20,000.00            20,000.00            -                       -                       0% 20,000.00            -                       

13 Joint Sealants 3,000.00              3,000.00              -                       -                       0% 3,000.00              -                       

14 Glazing 9,000.00              9,000.00              -                       -                       0% 9,000.00              -                       

15 Drywall 58,300.00            58,300.00            -                       -                       0% 58,300.00            -                       

16 Painting 78,510.00            78,510.00            -                       -                       0% 78,510.00            -                       

17 Plumbing 180,400.00          180,400.00          -                       -                       0% 180,400.00          -                       

18 HVAC 639,300.00          639,300.00          -                       -                       0% 639,300.00          -                       

19 Electrical 324,953.00          324,953.00          -                       -                       0% 324,953.00          -                       

20 Landscape and Irrigation Repair 5,000.00              5,000.00              -                       -                       0% 5,000.00              -                       

21 Utility Potholing 10,000.00            10,000.00            -                       -                       0% 10,000.00            -                       

22 Seal Coat and Striping 40,000.00            40,000.00            -                       -                       0% 40,000.00            -                       

23 Overhead and Fee 84,412.00            84,412.00            -                       -                       0% 84,412.00            -                       

24 Bonds and Insurance 31,021.00            31,021.00            -                       -                       0% 31,021.00            -                       

25 Owner Contingency 53,793.00            53,793.00            -                       -                       0% 53,793.00            -                       

26 Contractor Contingency 35,862.00            35,862.00            -                       -                       0% 35,862.00            -                       

SUBTOTAL 2,315,377.00       -                       2,315,377.00       -                       -                       -                       0 2,315,377.00       -                       

TOTAL THIS APPLICATION 2,315,377.00       -                       2,315,377.00       -                       -                       -                       0.00% 2,315,377.00       -                       

DRAFT

Baseline

SCHEDULE OF VALUES

-----WORK COMPLETED-----

Sutter MS GMP Part 2 22-1216-00

JOHN F. OTTO, INC. dba OTTO CONSTRUCTION

EXHIBIT C - ATTACHMENT 3
  ATTACHMENT 3
Schedule of Values



 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 1 OF 2 
#460 - CESAR CHAVEZ/EDWARD KEMBLE NEW CONSTRUCTION AND MODERNIZATION PROJECT    
DWK DMS 3379078v1 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO FACILITIES LEASE  

BY AND BETWEEN 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT AND  

BALFOUR BEATTY / CLARK & SULLIVAN JOINT VENTURE 

_________________________________________________________ 

 

This Amendment No. 1 to the Facilities Lease (“[First] Amendment”) is made and 

entered into this 16th day of March 2023 (“Effective Date”) by and between the Sacramento 

City Unified School District (“District”) and Balfour Beatty / Clark & Sullivan Joint Venture 

(“Developer”) (collectively, the “Parties”) as follows: 

RECITALS 

 WHEREAS, the Parties entered into a Facilities Lease, dated December 15, 2022, 

pertaining to the Cesar Chavez / Edward Kemble New Construction and Modernization 

Project (“Project”) at Cesar E. Chavez Elementary School and Edward Kemble Elementary 

School, located at 7495 29th Street Sacramento, CA 95822 and 7500 32nd Street 

Sacramento, CA 95822, respectively (“Project Site”); and 

  NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 

Section I. First Amendment of Facilities Lease. 

1. Exhibit C (Guaranteed Maximum Price and Other Project Cost, Funding, and 

Payment Provisions) to the Facilities Lease is amended and supplemented such that the 

existing Exhibit C is struck and replaced with the amended Exhibit C, which is attached 

hereto as Attachment “1” and incorporated herein by this reference.  All references to 

Exhibit C in the Facilities Lease shall mean and refer to Attachment “1” hereto. 

 The Parties expressly acknowledge and agree that this amendment is intended to 

and does change payment provisions for the Project under the Facilities Lease, including, 

but not limited to, the amount of Tenant Improvement Payments and amount of Lease 

Payments. 

 

[CONTINUES ON NEXT PAGE] 



 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO FACILITIES LEASE  PAGE 2 OF 2 
#460 - CESAR CHAVEZ/EDWARD KEMBLE NEW CONSTRUCTION AND MODERNIZATION PROJECT    
DWK DMS 3379078v1 

Section II. All Other Provisions Reaffirmed. 

 All other provisions of the Facilities Lease shall remain in full force and effect and are 

hereby reaffirmed.  If there is any conflict between this First Amendment and any provision 

of the Facilities Lease or any prior amendment thereto, the provisions of this First 

Amendment shall control.   

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Amendment No. 1 to the 

Facilities Lease to be executed by their respective officers who are duly authorized, as of the 

Effective Date. 

ACCEPTED AND AGREED on the date indicated below:   

Dated: _________, 2023 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL 

DISTRICT 

By:  ________________________________ 

Name: __Rose Ramos               __________     

Title: ___CBO_________________________          

Dated: _________, 2023 

BALFOUR BEATTY – CLARK/SULLIVAN A 

JOINT VENTURE 

 

By:  _________________________________ 

Name:  ____Brian H. Cahill     ____________ 

Title:  President, California Division (JV Managing Party) 

 



ATTACHMENT 1 

Exhibit C to Facilities Lease  Page 1 of 13 

#460 - Cesar Chavez/Edward Kemble New Construction and Modernization Project    
DWK DMS 3804500v1 

 

 

EXHIBIT C 

GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE AND 

OTHER PROJECT COST, FUNDING, AND PAYMENT PROVISIONS 

1. Site Lease Payments   

As indicated in the Site Lease, Developer shall pay One Dollar ($1.00) to the District as 

consideration for the Site Lease. 

2. Guaranteed Maximum Price 

Pursuant to the Facilities Lease, Developer will cause the Project to be constructed for an 

amount to be determined after preconstruction services are completed (“Guaranteed 

Maximum Price”).  The Guaranteed Maximum Price shall include the preconstruction fees and 

costs. 

2.1 Cost of the Work   

The term Cost of the Work shall mean the costs necessarily incurred in the proper 

performance of the Work contemplated by the Contract Documents. Such costs shall 

be at rates no higher than the standard paid at the place of the Project except with 

the prior consent of the District. The Cost of the Work shall include only the items set 

forth in this Section 2 and approved by the District.  

2.1.1 General Conditions  

The General Conditions as set forth in Attachment 1 hereto shall be included 

in a progress billing as incurred.  Said rates shall include all costs for labor, 

equipment and materials for the items identified therein which are necessary 

for the proper management of the Project, and shall include all costs paid or 

incurred by Developer for insurance, permits, taxes, and all contributions, 

assessments and benefits, holidays, vacations, retirement benefits, incentives 

to the extent contemplated in Attachment 1, whether required by law or 

collective bargaining agreements or otherwise paid or provided by Developer 

to its employees.  The District reserves the right to request changes to the 

personnel, equipment, or facilities provided as General Conditions as may be 

necessary or appropriate for the proper management of the Project, in which 

case, the District shall be entitled to a reduction in the cost of General 

Conditions based on the rates set forth in Attachment 1.   

2.1.2 Subcontract Costs 

Payments made by the Developer to Subcontractors (inclusive of the 

Subcontractor’s bonding, if required, and insurance costs, which shall be 

included in the subcontract amount), which payments shall be made in 

accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.   



ATTACHMENT 1 

Exhibit C to Facilities Lease  Page 2 of 13 

#460 - Cesar Chavez/Edward Kemble New Construction and Modernization Project    
DWK DMS 3804500v1 

 

 

2.1.3 Developer-Performed Work   

Costs incurred by Developer for self-performed work at the direction of District 

or with the District’s prior approval, as follows: 

2.1.3.1 Actual costs to Developer of wages of construction workers, 

excluding all salaried and/or administrative personnel, directly 

employed by Developer to perform the construction of the Work at the 

site.   

2.1.3.2 Wages or salaries and customary benefits, such as sick leave, 

medical and health benefits, holidays, vacations, incentive programs, 

and pension plans of Developer’s field supervisory, safety and 

administrative personnel when stationed at the site or stationed at 

Developer’s principal office, only for that portion of their time required 

for the Work. 

2.1.3.3 Wages and salaries and customary benefits, such as sick 

leave, medical and health benefits, holidays, vacations, incentive 

programs and pension plans of Developer’s supervisory or 

administrative personnel engaged at factories, workshops or on the 

road, in expediting the production or transportation of materials or 

equipment required for the Work, but only for that portion of their time 

required for the Work. 

2.1.3.4 Costs paid or incurred by Developer for taxes, insurance, 

contributions, assessments required by law or collective bargaining 

agreements and for personnel not covered by such agreements, and for 

customary benefits such as sick leave, medical and health benefits, 

holidays, vacations and pensions, provided such costs are based on 

wages and salaries included in the Cost of the Work under 

Subparagraphs 2.1.3.1 through 2.1.3.3. 

2.1.3.5 Costs, including transportation and storage, of materials and 

equipment incorporated in the completed construction, including costs 

of materials in excess of those actually installed to allow for reasonable 

waste and spoilage. Unused excess materials, if any, shall become the 

District’s property at the completion of the Work or, at the District’s 

option, shall be sold by Developer. Any amounts realized from such sales 

shall be credited to the District as a deduction from the Cost of the Work.   

2.1.3.6 Costs, including transportation and storage, installation, 

maintenance, dismantling and removal of materials, supplies, 

machinery and equipment not customarily owned by construction 

workers, that are provided by Developer at the site and fully consumed 

in the performance of the Work; and cost (less salvage value) of such 

items if not fully consumed, whether sold to others or retained by 

Developer. Cost for items previously used by Developer shall mean fair 

market value.   



ATTACHMENT 1 

Exhibit C to Facilities Lease  Page 3 of 13 

#460 - Cesar Chavez/Edward Kemble New Construction and Modernization Project    
DWK DMS 3804500v1 

 

 

2.1.3.7 Rental charges for temporary facilities, machinery, 

equipment, vehicles and vehicle expenses, and hand tools not 

customarily owned by construction workers that are provided by 

Developer at the site, whether rented from Developer or others, and the 

costs of transportation, installation, minor repairs and replacements, 

dismantling and removal thereof and costs of Developer’s Project field 

office, overhead and general expenses including office supplies, parking, 

office equipment, and software. Rates and quantities of equipment 

rented shall be subject to the District’s prior approval.   

2.1.3.8 Costs of removal of debris from the site, daily clean-up costs 

and dumpster charges not otherwise included in the cost of the 

subcontracts which exceeds the clean-up provided under the General 

Conditions.  

2.1.3.9 This section intentionally blank.   

2.1.3.10 Costs of materials and equipment suitably stored off the site 

at a mutually acceptable location, if approved in advance by the District. 

2.1.4 Allowances    

Because it is impossible at the time of execution of the Facilities Lease to 

determine the exact cost of performing certain tasks, the Cost of the Work shall 

include the following Allowances for the Tasks/Work as noted here: 

Task/Work Allowance Amount 

TBD TBD 

  

  

Total Allowance Amount TBD 

 

The Allowance Value for an Allowance Item includes the direct cost of labor, 

materials, equipment, transportation, taxes and insurance associated with the 

applicable Allowance Item.  All other costs, including design fees, Developer’s 

overall project management and general conditions costs, overhead and fee, 

are deemed to be included in the original Guaranteed Maximum Price, and are 

not subject to adjustment regardless of the actual amount of the Allowance 

Item. 

The District shall have sole discretion to authorize all expenditures from the 

Allowances. The District shall process expenditures from the Allowances in the 

form of an Allowance Expenditure Directive (“AED”). The Allowances are 

included in the Guaranteed Maximum Price.  Any unused Allowance or unused 

portion thereof shall be deducted from the Cost of the Work pursuant to 

Exhibit D to this Facilities Lease to the benefit of the District. 



ATTACHMENT 1 

Exhibit C to Facilities Lease  Page 4 of 13 

#460 - Cesar Chavez/Edward Kemble New Construction and Modernization Project    
DWK DMS 3804500v1 

 

 

2.1.5 Miscellaneous Costs 

2.1.5.1 Where not included in the General Conditions, and with the 

prior approval of District, costs of document reproductions 

(photocopying and blueprinting expenses), long distance telephone call 

charges, postage, overnight and parcel delivery charges, telephone 

costs including cellular telephone charges, facsimile or other 

communication service at the Project site, job photos and progress 

schedules, and reasonable petty cash expenses of the site office. 

Developer shall consult with District to determine whether District has 

any vendor relationships that could reduce the cost of these items and 

use such vendors whenever possible. 

2.1.5.2 Sales, use, gross receipts, local business and similar taxes 

imposed by a governmental authority that are related to the Work. 

2.1.5.3 Fees and assessments for permits, plan checks, licenses and 

inspections for which Developer is required by the Contract Documents 

to pay including, but not limited to, permanent utility connection 

charges, street use permit, street use rental, OSHA permit and sidewalk 

use permit and fees. 

2.1.5.4 Fees of laboratories for tests required by the Contract 

Documents. 

2.1.5.5 Deposits lost for causes other than Developer’s or its 

subcontractors’ negligence or failure to fulfill a specific responsibility to 

the District as set forth in the Contract Documents. 

2.1.5.6 Expenses incurred in accordance with Developer’s standard 

personnel policy for relocation and temporary living allowances of 

personnel required for the Work if approved in advance by District. 

2.1.5.7 Where requested by District, costs or expenses incurred by 

Developer in performing design services for the design-build systems. 

2.1.5.8 Other costs incurred in the performance of the Work if, and 

to the extent, approved in advance by District. 

2.1.5.9 Costs due to emergencies incurred in taking action to prevent 

threatened damage, injury or loss in case of an emergency affecting the 

safety of persons and/or property. 

2.1.5.10 Provided all other eligible costs have been deducted from the 

contingency and as part of the calculation of amounts due Developer for 

Final Payment, costs of repairing and correcting damaged or non-

conforming Work executed by Developer, Subcontractors or suppliers, 

providing that such damage or non-conforming Work was not caused by 

negligence or failure to fulfill a specific responsibility of Developer and 

only to the extent that the cost of repair or correction is not recovered 

by Developer from insurance, sureties, Subcontractors or suppliers. 



ATTACHMENT 1 

Exhibit C to Facilities Lease  Page 5 of 13 

#460 - Cesar Chavez/Edward Kemble New Construction and Modernization Project    
DWK DMS 3804500v1 

 

 

2.1.6 Excluded Costs   

The following items are considered general overhead items and shall not be 

billed to the District: 

2.1.6.1 Salaries and other compensation of Developer’s personnel 

stationed at Developer’s principal office or offices other than the Project 

Field Office, except as specifically provided in Subparagraphs 2.1.3.2. 

and 2.1.3.4. 

2.1.6.2 Expenses of Developer’s principal office and offices other than 

the Project Field Office. 

2.1.6.3 Overhead and general expenses, except as may be expressly 

included in this Section 2. 

2.1.6.4 Developer’s capital expenses, including interest on 

Developer’s capital employed for the Work. 

2.1.6.5 Costs that would cause the Guaranteed Maximum Price (as 

adjusted by Change Order) to be exceeded.  

2.1.7 Developer’s Fee 

Two and eighty-nine hundredths percent (2.89%) of the Cost of the Work as 

described in Sections 2.1.1, 2.1.2, 2.1.3, 2.1.4 and 2.1.5.  

2.1.8 Bonds and Insurance   

For insurance and bonds required under this Facilities Lease (exclusive of those 

required by Subcontractors, which costs are included in the subcontract 

amounts), that portion of insurance and bond premiums which are directly 

attributable to this Contract, which shall be calculated at a rate of One and 

eight tenths percent (1.80%) of the Cost of the Work for insurance and 80/100 

percent (0.80%) of the Cost of the Work for payment and performance bonds.  

2.1.9 Owner Contingency and Developer Contingency  

2.1.9.1 The Guaranteed Maximum Price includes Owner and 

Developer Contingencies of __________ percent (_____%) for the 

Owner Contingency and __________ percent (_____%) of the 

Developer Contingency of the Cost of the Work as described in Section 

2.1.1, 2.1.2, and 2.1.3. Intended Uses of Owner Contingency and 

Developer Contingency:    

Owner Contingency is to be used for unforeseen conditions, Owner-

requested scope adds, and Owner-directed schedule acceleration.  The 

Owner is responsible for costs that exceed the Owner Contingency.  

Developer Contingency is to be used for scope gaps.  The Developer is 

responsible for costs that exceed the Developer Contingency.  The 

Owner is responsible for costs that exceed the total Allowance amount.   



ATTACHMENT 1 

Exhibit C to Facilities Lease  Page 6 of 13 

#460 - Cesar Chavez/Edward Kemble New Construction and Modernization Project    
DWK DMS 3804500v1 

 

 

2.1.9.2 Developer Contingency is not intended for such things as 

scope changes.   

2.1.9.3 The Contingencies shall not be used without the agreement 

of the District.   

2.1.9.4 The unused portion of the Contingency shall be considered as 

cost savings and retained by the District at the end of the Project. 

2.2 The Guaranteed Maximum Price will consist of the amounts to be identified in 

Attachment 2 to this Exhibit C.  Except as indicated herein for modifications to the 

Project approved by the District, Developer will not seek additional compensation from 

District in excess of Guaranteed Maximum Price.  District shall pay the Guaranteed 

Maximum Price to Developer in the form of Tenant Improvement Payments and Lease 

Payments as indicated herein. 

2.3 Total Payment   

In no event shall the cumulative total of the Tenant Improvement Payments and the 

Loan Amount for the Lease Payments ever exceed the Guaranteed Maximum Price to 

be defined, as may be modified pursuant to Exhibit D to the Facilities Lease. 

2.4 Changes to Guaranteed Maximum Price   

2.4.1 The Parties acknowledge that the Guaranteed Maximum Price is based 

on the Construction Documents, including the plans and specifications, as 

identified in Exhibit D to the Facilities Lease. 

2.4.2 As indicated in the Facilities Lease, the Parties may add to or remove 

from the project specific scopes of work.  Based on these change(s), the Parties 

may agree to a reduction or increase in the Guaranteed Maximum Price.  If a 

cost impact of a change is agreed to by the Parties, it shall be paid upon the 

payment request from Developer for the work that is the subject of the change 

in accordance with the provisions of Exhibit D.  The amount of any change to 

the Guaranteed Maximum Price shall be calculated in accordance with the 

provisions of Exhibit D to this Facilities Lease. 

2.4.3 The Parties agree to reduce the Guaranteed Maximum Price for the 

unused portion of Allowances and/or Contingency, if any. 

2.4.4 Cost Savings  

Developer shall work cooperatively with Architect, Construction Manager, 

subcontractors and District, in good faith, to identify appropriate opportunities 

to reduce the Project costs and promote cost savings.  Any identified cost 

savings from the Guaranteed Maximum Price shall be identified by Developer, 

and approved in writing by the District.  In the event Developer realizes a 

savings on any aspect of the Project, such savings shall be added to the Owner’s 

Contingency and expended consistent with the Owner’s Contingency.  In 

addition, any portion of Allowance remaining after completion of the Project 

shall be added to the Owner’s Contingency.  If any cost savings require 



ATTACHMENT 1 

Exhibit C to Facilities Lease  Page 7 of 13 

#460 - Cesar Chavez/Edward Kemble New Construction and Modernization Project    
DWK DMS 3804500v1 

 

 

revisions to the Construction Documents, Developer shall work with the District 

and Architect with respect to revising the Construction Documents and, if 

necessary, obtaining the approval of DSA with respect to those revisions.  

Developer shall be entitled to an adjustment of Contract Time for delay in 

completion caused by any cost savings adopted by District pursuant to Exhibit 

D, if requested in writing before the approval of the cost savings. 

2.4.5  If the District exercises its Purchase Option pursuant to this Exhibit C, 

any reduction in the Guaranteed Maximum Price resulting from that exercise of 

the Purchase Option, if any, shall be retained in full by the District and shall not 

be shared with Developer. 

3. Tenant Improvement Payments   

Prior to the District’s taking delivery or occupancy of the Project, the District shall pay to 

Developer an amount equal to the Guaranteed Maximum Price as modified pursuant to the 

terms of the Facilities Lease, including Exhibit C and Exhibit D, less the Loan Amount for 

the Lease Payments (“Tenant Improvement Payments”).  The District shall withhold a amount 

equal to the Loan Amount as indicated in Attachment 3 to Exhibit C from the Developer for 

its Work on the Project.  In other words, no further Tenant Improvement Payment will be 

made to Developer once the amount equal to Guaranteed Maximum Price minus the Loan 

Amount has been paid. Otherwise, the Tenant Improvement Payments will be processed 

based on the amount of Work performed according to Developer’s Schedule of Values (Exhibit 

G to the Facilities Lease) and pursuant to the provisions in Exhibit D to the Facilities Lease, 

including withholding for or escrow of retention of five percent (5%) of the Guaranteed 

Maximum Price.  The withholding for the Loan Amount shall be separate from and in addition 

to withholding for or escrow of retention. 

4. Lease Payments  

Upon execution of the Memorandum of Commencement Date, the form of which is attached 

to the Facilities Lease as Exhibit E, the District shall commence making lease payments to 

Developer in accordance with the Schedule attached hereto as Attachment 3.  

4.1 The Lease Payments shall be consideration for the District’s rental, use, and 

occupancy of the Project and the Project Site and shall be made in monthly 

installments as indicated in the Schedule of Lease Payments attached hereto as 

Attachment 3 for the duration of the lease term of one (1) year, with the first Lease 

Payment due ninety (90) days after execution of the Memorandum of Commencement 

Date.   

4.2 The District represents that the annual Lease Payment obligation does not 

surpass the District’s annual budget and will not require the District to increase or 

impose additional taxes or obligations on the public that did not exist prior to the 

execution of the Facilities Lease. 

4.3 Fair Rental Value  

District and Developer have agreed and determined that the total Lease 

Payments constitute adequate consideration for the Facilities Lease and are 

reasonably equivalent to the fair rental value of the Project.  In making such 



ATTACHMENT 1 

Exhibit C to Facilities Lease  Page 8 of 13 

#460 - Cesar Chavez/Edward Kemble New Construction and Modernization Project    
DWK DMS 3804500v1 

 

 

determination, consideration has been given to the obligations of the Parties 

under the Facilities Lease and Site Lease, the uses and purposes which may be 

served by the Project and the benefits therefrom which will accrue to the District 

and the general public. 

4.4 Each Lease Payment Constitutes a Current Expense of the District   

4.4.1 The District and Developer understand and intend that the obligation of 

the District to pay Lease Payments and other payments hereunder constitutes 

a current expense of the District and shall not in any way be construed to be a 

debt of the District in contravention of any applicable constitutional or statutory 

limitation or requirement concerning the creation of indebtedness by the 

District, nor shall anything contained herein constitute a pledge of the general 

tax revenues, funds or moneys of the District.   

4.4.2 Lease Payments due hereunder shall be payable only from current funds 

which are budgeted and appropriated or otherwise made legally available for 

this purpose.  This Facilities Lease shall not create an immediate indebtedness 

for any aggregate payments that may become due hereunder.   

4.4.3 The District covenants to take all necessary actions to include the Lease 

Payments in each of its final approved annual budgets.   

4.4.4 The District further covenants to make all necessary appropriations 

(including any supplemental appropriations) from any source of legally 

available funds of the District for the actual amount of Lease Payments that 

come due and payable during the period covered by each such budget.  

Developer acknowledges that the District has not pledged the full faith and 

credit of the District, State of California or any state agency or state department 

to the payment of Lease Payments or any other payments due hereunder.  The 

covenants on the part of District contained in this Facilities Lease constitute 

duties imposed by law and it shall be the duty of each and every public official 

of the District to take such action and do such things as are required by law in 

the performance of the official duty of such officials to enable the District to 

carry out and perform the covenants and agreements in this Facilities Lease 

agreed to be carried out and performed by the District. 

4.4.5 Developer cannot, under any circumstances, accelerate the District’s 

payments under the Facilities Lease. 

5. District’s Purchase Option 

5.1 If the District is not then in uncured Default hereunder, the District shall have 

the option to purchase not less than all of the Project in its “as-is, where-is” condition 

and terminate this Facilities Lease and Site Lease by paying the balance of the “Loan 

Amount” identified in Attachment 3, which is exclusive of interest that would have 

otherwise been owed, as of the date the option is exercised (“Option Price”).  Said 



ATTACHMENT 1 

Exhibit C to Facilities Lease  Page 9 of 13 

#460 - Cesar Chavez/Edward Kemble New Construction and Modernization Project    
DWK DMS 3804500v1 

 

 

payment shall be made on or before the date on which the District’s lease payment 

would otherwise be due for that month (“Option Date”).   

5.2 District shall provide to Developer a written notice no less than ten (10) days 

prior to the Option Date.  The notice will include that District is exercising its option to 

purchase the Project as set forth above on the Option Date.  If the District exercises 

this option, the District shall pay directly to Developer the Option Price on or prior to 

the Option Date and Developer shall at that time deliver to District an executed 

Termination Agreement and Quitclaim Deed in recordable form to terminate this 

Facilities Lease and the Site Lease.  District may record all such documents at District’s 

cost and expense.  

5.3 Under no circumstances can the first Option Date be on or before ninety (90) 

days after Developer completes the Project and the District accepts the Project. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK; ATTACHMENTS TO FOLLOW] 



ATTACHMENT 1 

Exhibit C to Facilities Lease  Page 10 of 13 

#460 - Cesar Chavez/Edward Kemble New Construction and Modernization Project    
DWK DMS 3804500v1 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 1 

GENERAL CONDITIONS COSTS 

$104,681 (Monthly) 

Allowable general conditions cost as shown per below table 

 

 

 

 

  



ATTACHMENT 1 

Exhibit C to Facilities Lease  Page 11 of 13 

#460 - Cesar Chavez/Edward Kemble New Construction and Modernization Project    
DWK DMS 3804500v1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ATTACHMENT 1 

Exhibit C to Facilities Lease  Page 12 of 13 

#460 - Cesar Chavez/Edward Kemble New Construction and Modernization Project    
DWK DMS 3804500v1 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 2 

GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE 

Pre-Construction Fees:        $  74,810  

Amendment 1 Increment 01 Early Procurement of Long Lead Items: $  76,836 

Total Adjusted GMP:        $151,646 

 

See the following page for supporting documents. 

 

 



SCUSD Chavez-Kemble ES
Balfour Beatty – Clark/Sullivan a Joint Venture

Precon Amendment - INC 01 Early Procurement

Project Location: 7495 29th Street Sacramento, CA 95822

Based on DSA Submittal Set

Date: 02/13/2023

CSI DIV Name Vendor Bid Amounts
13 Shade Structures Custom Canopies, Inc. $20,351
13 Lunch Shelter Park Planet / VSS $49,951
28 Fire Alarm Equipment Fire Lite $1,813
33 Cast Iron Grates & Frames D&L Supply $1,103

Total $73,218

Number Description Amount
$1,460

General Liability Insurance @ 1.1% $845
Payment and Performance Bonds @ .8% $615

$2,158
Fee @ 2.89% $2,158

$76,836

$76,836

Total

INC 01 Precon Amendment - Grand Total

Insurance & Bonds

Fees



Bid Normalization Form

SCUSD Chavez-Kemble ES

Scope Summary
Custom 

Canopies, Inc.

Miracle Play 

Systems
N/A

Contact Arthur Torres Karl Maniglia

Phone Number 1-626-224-5701 1-800-879-7730

Quantity U/M 20,351 120,380

Specified Pre-Checked Vendor for INC 01 YES NO

DSA Hip Canopy 20' x 20' 2.0 EA INCLUDED VENDOR EQUIV.

1 Alnet Mesh Fabric Top 2.0 EA INCLUDED VENDOR EQUIV.

8 Post - 12' High 8.0 EA INCLUDED VENDOR EQUIV.

Engineering (PC Approved) 1.0 EA INCLUDED VENDOR EQUIV.

Cages 8.0 EA INCLUDED VENDOR EQUIV.

Excludes Installation EXCLUDED (55,000)

Freight: 95822 (Unload by Others) INCLUDED INCLUDED

Taxes INCLUDED INCLUDED

20,351.00$ 65,380.00$ 

RECOMMENDED SUPPLIER: AMOUNT

Custom Canopies, Inc. 20,351.00$ 

Shade Structure - Material Procurement

Base Bid

TOTALS



Customer:

Job Name:

Quote

Qty Item Per Unit Total
Material -                    

2 DSA Hip Canopy 20'x20' 7810 15,620              
1 Alnet Mesh Fabric Top -                    
4 Post - 12' High -                    
Required for Permits -                    

1 Engineering (PC Approved) INCLUDED -                    
8 Cages 180 1,440                

Optional -                    
1 Freight: 95822 (Unload by Others) 1,500              1,500                
0 Install: Prevailing (BY OTHERS) EXCLUDED -                    
1 Taxes - 10.5% 1,791              1,791                

Grand Total: 20,351           
**PLA INSTALL NOT AVAILABLE -                    
**Quote good for 60 Days
**9' High 20'x20' DSA $7570 Each
**10' High 20'x20' DSA $7590 Each
**To unload forklift recommended.

Construction Expectations 

1) The designated area for our structures will be accessible by drive-up for unloading of our trucks and
equipment, including personnel man-lifts, forklifts, etc. Should a crane be required and direct access
not available, additional costs for such will be submitted by a Change Order.

2) Our pricing is based on the ability to perform all our work with clear, sequential, and continuous
access without interruption during normal daytime working hours. We have assumed one mobilization

2/7/2023

Balfour Beatty

Kemble Chavez Sac City Rev 
01

Custom Canopies International Inc.
11815 Burke Street
Santa Fe Springs CA 90670
562-464-4766

Customer Quote for:

N:\Quotes 2016\Balfour Beatty\Kemble Chavez Sac City\Rev 01\Kemble Chavez Sac City Quote Rev 01

JHucik
Cloud



for the installation of foundations, steel, and fabric; ; if additional mobilizations are required, there will
be an additional charge. We will require exclusive access to the area for our work during the
construction process.

3) Our pricing does not include daily site delays accessing the work areas. CUSTOM CANOPIES will submit
a Change Order for any delays caused by other trades which interfere or cause us to stop working.

4) Pricing assumes secure storage and adequate lay down area for our tools, equipment, and materials,
within close proximity to the installation site will be provided, free of charge.

5) Our price assumes others to provide 200-amp, 110-volt electrical service and necessary potable
water available within 100 feet of our work.

6) CUSTOM CANOPIES will leave its work and materials in a clean condition at the conclusion of our work.

7) Barricades and public security requirements are not included.

8) Unless specifically included in this proposal, this agreement does not include, and CUSTOM CANOPIES
will not provide, services, labor, or materials for any of the following work: (a) removal and disposal of
any materials containing asbestos or any hazardous materials as defined by the EPA; (b) moving Owner's
property around the installation site; (c) repair or replacement of any Purchaser or Owner-supplied
materials; or (d) repair of damage to existing surfaces that may occur when construction equipment and
vehicles are being used in the normal course of construction.

9) Pricing for foundation design is based on drilled pier footings. In the event the geotechnical report
requires an alternate configuration, any additional costs incurred will be submitted to the client by a
Change Order.

10) Digging of our foundations will not be constrained by any existing concrete or utilities. CUSTOM
CANOPIES will not be responsible for moving or repairing any underground utility lines such as electrical,
telephone, gas, water, or sprinkler lines that 

11) Any additional costs incurred as a result of hard rock conditions requiring extra equipment, utility
removal or repair, resulting in delay, will result in additional charges unless they are detailed on
as-built site drawings provided to CUSTOM CANOPIES in writing prior to installation.

General Terms, Conditions and Warranty

1) Proposal: The above proposal is valid for 30 days from the date first set forth above. After 30 days, we
reserve the right to increase prices due to the rise in cost of raw materials, fuel, or other cost increases.
When applicable, CUSTOM CANOPIES reserves the right to implement a surcharge for significant
increases in raw materials, including, but not limited to; fuel, steel, and concrete. Due to the duration
of time between proposals, contracts, and final installation, CUSTOM CANOPIES reserves the right to
implement this surcharge, when applicable.

2) Purchase: By executing this proposal, or submitting a purchase order pursuant to this proposal
(which shall incorporate the terms of this agreement specifically by reference) which is accepted by

N:\Quotes 2016\Balfour Beatty\Kemble Chavez Sac City\Rev 01\Kemble Chavez Sac City Quote Rev 01



CUSTOM CANOPIES (the "Company"), the purchaser identified above ("you" or the "Purchaser") agrees to
purchase Shade Structures brand shade structures ("Structures") and the services to be provided by the 
Company, as detailed in the "Structure Pricing" and "General Scope of Work" sections of this agreement,
above, or in the relevant purchase order accepted by the Company, for use by Purchaser or for
installation by Company or Purchaser on behalf of a third-party who will be the ultimate owner of the
Structures (the ultimate owner of a Structure, whether Purchaser or a third-party, being the "Owner").

3) Short Ship Claims: Purchaser has 15 days from receipt of the structures to file a short ship report in
writing to CUSTOM CANOPIES. Company will not honor claims made after this time.

4) Standard Exclusions: Unless specifically included under the "General Scope of Work" section above,
this agreement does not include, and Company will not provide, services, labor, or materials for any of 
the following work: (a) removal and disposal of any materials containing asbestos or any hazardous
materials as defined by the EPA; (b) moving Owner's property around the installation site; (c) repair or 
replacement of any Purchaser or Owner-supplied materials; (d) repair of concealed underground
utilities not located on prints supplied to Company by Owner during the bidding process, or physically
staked out by Owner, and which are damaged during construction; or (e) repair of damage to existing
surfaces that may occur when construction equipment and vehicles are being used in the normal
course of construction.

5) Payment: If the Purchaser or Owner fails or delays in making any scheduled milestone payments, the
Company may suspend the fulfillment of its obligations hereunder until such payments are made, or 
Company may be relieved of its obligations hereunder if payment is more than 60 days past due.
Company may use all remedies available to it under current laws including, but not limited to, filing of 
liens against the property and using a collection agency or the courts to secure the collection of the
outstanding debt.

6) Manufacturing and Delivery: Manufacturing lead-time from Company's receipt of the "Notice to
Proceed" is approximately 6 to 8 weeks for standard structures, and 8 to 10 weeks for custom 
structures. Delivery is approximately 1 week thereafter. Delivery of structures may be prior to or at
start of assembly. Please note that these timelines do not include approval or permitting timeframes.

7) Returned Product, Deposits, and/or Cancelled Order: Within the first 45 days after shipment from our
facility, all returned product(s) and cancelled orders are subject to a 50% restocking fee. No returns are
available following this 45-day period. All deposits are non-refundable. All expenses incurred
(engineering, site surveys, shipping, handling, etc.) are the responsibility of the Purchaser, up to notice
of cancellation.

8) Concealed Conditions: "Concealed conditions" include, without limitation, water, gas, sprinkler,
electrical and sewage lines, post tension cables, and steel rebar. This agreement is based solely on 
observations the Company was able to make either by visual inspection or by drawings and/or plans
submitted by Owner at the time this agreement was bid. If additional Concealed Conditions are 
discovered once work has commenced, which were not visible at the time this proposal was bid,
Company will stop work and indicate these unforeseen Concealed Conditions to Purchaser or Owner so 
that Purchaser and Company can execute a Change Order for any additional work. In any event, any
damage caused by or to unforeseen Concealed Conditions is the sole responsibility of the Purchaser
and Company shall not be held liable for any such damage. Soil conditions are assumed to be soil that
does not contain any water, hard rock (such as limestone, caliche, etc.), rocks larger than 4 inches in 
diameter, or any other condition that will require additional labor, equipment and/or materials not

N:\Quotes 2016\Balfour Beatty\Kemble Chavez Sac City\Rev 01\Kemble Chavez Sac City Quote Rev 01



specified by the Purchaser or Owner in the bidding process. Any condition requiring additional labor, 
equipment, and/or materials to complete the drilling or concrete operations will require a Change
Order before Company completes the process. Price quotes are based on a drilled pier footing. Any
variation will incur additional charges (i.e. spread footings, concrete mat, sand, water, landfill, etc.).
Costs for footing and installation do not include any allowance for extending below frost lines (the
additional costs for which vary by geographical region).

9) Limited Warranty Information:

- The structural integrity of all supplied steel is warranted for ten years.

- If assembly is provided by the Company, workmanship of the structure is covered for one year,
including labor for the removal of any failed part, disassembly (if necessary), cost of shipping, and
reassembly.

- All steel surface finishes are warranted for one year.

- Fabrics all carry a ten-year limited manufacturer’s warranty against failure from significant fading,
deterioration, breakdown, outdoor heat, cold, or discoloration. Should the fabric need to be
replaced under the warranty, the Company will manufacture and ship a new replacement fabric at
no charge for the first six years, thereafter pro-rated at 20% per year over the remaining four years.

- Sewing thread is warranted for ten years.

- In its sole discretion, the Company will repair and or/replace defective structures, products, or
workmanship, or refund that portion of the price related to the defective product, labor, or service
rendered.

- Should the Purchaser or Owner sell the structures to another party, the warranty cannot be
transferred to the new owner without a complete and thorough on-site inspection performed by a 
Company representative. Please contact the Company at contact@customshadecanopies.com for
more details.

- All warranty claims covering Company supplied structures, products, and services must be submitted
by Purchaser or Owner in writing to the Company within thirty days from the date of discovery of the 
alleged defect and must include a detailed description and applicable photographs of the alleged
defect or problem. Warranty claims should be submitted by email to
contact@customshadecanopies.com.

- These limited warranties do not cover defects and/or damages caused by:

 *Normal wear and tear.
*Misuse, willful or intentional damage, vandalism, contact with chemicals, cuts, and Acts of
God (i.e., tornado, hurricane, micro/macros burst, earthquake, wildfires, etc.)
*Ice, snow or wind loads in excess of designed load parameters engineered for the supplied
structures.

N:\Quotes 2016\Balfour Beatty\Kemble Chavez Sac City\Rev 01\Kemble Chavez Sac City Quote Rev 01



*Use, maintenance, neglect, repair, and/or service inconsistent with the Company’s written
care and maintenance instructions, provided with the order.

- Limited warranties are void if:

*The supplied structures, products, services and/or labor are not paid for in full.
*The structures are not assembled in strict compliance with CUSTOM CANOPIES
specifications.
*Any changes, modifications, additions, or attachments are made to the structures in any
way, without prior written approval from the Company. Specifically, no signs, objects, fans,
light fixtures, etc. may be hung from the structures, unless specifically
engineered by the company.

- Limited warranties explicitly exclude:

*Workmanship related to assembly not provided by the Company or its agents.

*Fabric curtains, valances, and flat vertical panels.

*Fabric tops on structures that were no engineered and originally supplied by the Company.

PURCHASER: SELLER:
Custom Canopies Int.

Signature: Signature:

By: (Print) By: (Print)

Title: Title:

Date: Date:

N:\Quotes 2016\Balfour Beatty\Kemble Chavez Sac City\Rev 01\Kemble Chavez Sac City Quote Rev 01



N:\Quotes 2016\Balfour Beatty\Kemble Chavez Sac City\Rev 01\Kemble Chavez Sac City Quote Rev 01



WHITE GREY ALMOND

GREEN TEAL POWDER BLUE

YELLOW RED ORANGE

BLACK BROWN BLUE



P
R

E
C

H
E

C
K

 
F

A
B

R
I
C

 
S

H
A

D
E

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E

22-029

7-12-22

RWE

CUSTOM CANOPIES INC.

11815 BURKE STREET

SANTA FE SPRINGS, CA 90670

A r c h i t e c t u r e

7400 Pedrick Court

Bakersfield, CA 93313

(661) 394-0053

ron@rearchitect.net

I

A

A

L

I

-
3

1

-

F

O

R

N

2

3

S

T

O

F

N

E

A

T

R

E

C

1

T

E

A
R

C

E

D

W

R

D

.

A

H

I

S

T

C

S

E

D

N

A

L

D

W

I

C

E

N

E

O

L

R

C 25192

2

IDENTIFICATION STAMP DIVISION OF THE

STATE ARCHITECT

PRE-CHECK PC DOCUMENT

CODE: 2022 CBC

A separate application for

construction is required

T001

TITLE SHEET

APPLICABLE CODES

PARTIAL LIST OF APPLICABLE CODES AS OF January 1, 2021*

2022 California Administrative Code (CAC), Part 1, Title 24 CCR*

2019 California Building Code (CBC), Part 2, Title 24 CCR

(2019 International Building Code, Vol. 1 & 2, and 2019 California

amendments)

2019 California Fire Code (CFC), Part 9, Title 24 CCR

(2018 International Fire Code and 2019 California Amendments)

PRECHECK FABRIC SHADE

STRUCTURE

FOR

CUSTOM CANOPES INC.

ARCHITECTURAL:

T001 TITLE SHEET

STRUCTURAL

S2 CUSTOM CANOPIES 2019 CBC DRAWINGS

S3

S4

A002 TITLE 24 GUIDELINE & CAL-FIRE MATERIAL CERT.

S1.1 GENERAL NOTES & TYPICAL DETAILS

S1.2 GENERAL NOTES & TYPICAL DETAILS

S1.3 GENERAL NOTES & TYPICAL DETAILS

CUSTOM CANOPIES 2019 CBC DRAWINGS

CUSTOM CANOPIES 2019 CBC DRAWINGS

2 SHEETS

6 SHEETS

8 SHEETSTOTAL

OWNER ARCHITECT

RON EDWARDS ARCHITECT

7400 PEDRICK CT

BAKERSFIELD, CA 93313

T: (661) 394-0053

CONTACT: RON EDWARDS

STRUCTURAL

ORION STRUCTURAL ENGINEERING

11305 RANCHO BERNARDO ROAD, STE 121

SAN DIEGO, CA 92127

T: (858) 679-1974

CONTACT: RYAN OMER

GENERAL NOTES

1. FIRE SAFETY DURING DEMOLITION AND CONSTRUCTION

SHALL COMPLY WITH CFC CHAPTER 33 AND CBC CHAPTER

33.

CUSTOM CANOPIES INC.

11815 BURKE STREET

SANTA FE SPRINGS, CA 90670

T: (562) 464-4766

F: (562) 464-4770

CONTACT: STEVE GRAAF

1. MALLEABLE WIRE ROPE CLIPS

1.A. CABLE CLIPS SHALL BE FORGED STEEL PER FEDERAL INSPECTION FF-C-40 TYPE 1, CLASS 2 INSTALLED WITH THE U-BOLT

ON THE CABLE DEAD END (SEE SPECIFICATION SHEET ON THIS SHEET.)

1.B. BOLT TORQUE FOR 

1

4

"Ø CABLE CLIPS = 15 lb-ft, FOR 

5

26

"Ø CABLE CLIPS = 30 lb-ft.

2. BOLT HOLES

2.A. BOLT HOLE DIAMETERS SHALL BE 

1

16

" LARGER THAN THE BOLT DIAMETER.

2.B. ALL BOLTS SHALL BE INSTALLED WITH LOCK WASHERS.

3. CORROSION PROTECTION

3.A. STEEL TUBE ROOF MEMBER SHALL BE TRIPLE COATED USING IN-LINE ZINC ELECTROPLATING PER ASTM E-6 AND THEN

POWDER COATED WITH A TGIC POLYESTER TOP COAT.

3.B. STEEL PIPE COLUMNS SHALL BE POWDER COATED WITH A TGIC POLYESTER PRIMER AND TOP COAT.

3.C. ZINC SPELTER CONFORMS TO ASTM B-6 HIGH GRADE ZINC.

4. FABRIC MATERIAL

4.A. FABRIC MATERIAL SHALL BE EXTRA BLOCK, OR COMMERICAL NINETYFIVE 340R FABRIC.

4.B. THE FABRIC SHALL BE MANUFACTURED FROM HIGH DENSITY POLYETHYLENE POLYMER.

4.C. MIN. WEIGHT - 8.3 oz/sq.yd

4.D. MIN. BREAKING STRENGTH PER ASTM D 5034: WARP = 165 lbs., WEFT = 260 lbs.

4.E. MAX. ELONGATION: WARP = 115%, WEFT = 76%.

4.F. MIN. TEAR STRENGTH PER ASTM D 2261: WARP = 26 lbs., WEFT = 26 lbs.

4.G. FIRE RETARDANT RATING PER CSTM - TITLE 19, (REGISTRATION #: ALNET EXTRA BLOCK SHADECLOTH - F94501)

4.H. THE FABRIC SHALL BE CAPABLE OF MAINTAINING 80% OF IT'S TENSILE AND TEARING STRENGTH AFTER EXPOSURE TO A

313NM LIGHT SOURCE APPLIED FOR 500 HOURS AND WHILE MOISTENED FOR 1 HOUR EVERY 12 HOURS PER ASTM G53. THE

FABRIC SHALL REQUIRE ANNUAL INSPECTION AND MAINTENANCE SAMPLES OF THE SAME MATERIAL SHALL BE MAINTAINED

AT THE PROJECT SITE AND TESTED TO SHOW COMPLIANCE WITH ASTM D 5034 AND D 2261.

4.I. THE FABRIC SHALL MAINTAIN AT LEAST 50% OF IT'S ORIGINAL BREAKING STRENGTH AFTER 5 YEARS OF EXPOSURE TO

SUNLIGHT.

5. STANDARD NOTES

5.A. ALL WORK SHALL CONFORM TO 2019 EDITION TITLE 24, CALIFORNIA CODE OF REGULATION (CCR)

5.B. CHANGES TO THE APPROVED DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS SHALL BE MADE BY ADDENDA OR CONSTRUCTION CHANGE

DOCUMENT (CCD) APPROVED BY DSA, AS REQUIRED BY SECTION 4-338, PART 1, TITLE 24 (CCR)

5.C. A "DSA CERTIFIED" PROJECT INSPECTOR EMPLOYED BY THE DISTRCT (OWNER) AND APPROVED BY DSA SHALL PROVIDE

CONTINUOUS INSPECTION OF THE WORK. THE DUTIES OF THE INSPECTOR ARE DEFINED IN SECTION 4-342, PART 1, TITLE 24

(CCR).

5.D. A DSA ACCEPTED TESTING LABORATORY DIRECTLY EMPLOYED BY THE DISTRICT (OWNER) SHALL CONDUCT ALL THE

REQUIRED TESTS AND INSPECTIONS FOR THE PROJECT.

5.E. THE INTENT OF THESE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS IS THAT THE WORK OF THE ALTERATION, REHABILITATION OR

RECONSTRUCTION IS TO BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH TITLE 24, CCR. SHOULD ANY EXISTING CONDITIONS SUCH AS

DETERIORATION OR NON-COMPLYING CONSTRUCTION BE DISCOVERED WHICH IS NOT COVERED BY THE CONTRACT

DOCUMENTS WHEREIN THE FINISHED WORK WILL NOT COMPLY WITH THE TITLE 24, CCR, A CONSTRUCTION CHANGE

DOCUMENT (CCD) OR A SEPARATE SET OF PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS, DETAILING AND SPECIFYING THE REQUIRED WORK

SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO AND APPROVED BY DSA.

5.F. GRADING PLANS, DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS, ROAD AND ACCESS REQUIREMENTS AND ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH

CONSIDERATIONS SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL LOCAL ORDINANCES.

MATERIAL SPECIFICATIONS - SEE ALSO SHEETS S1.1 & S1.2 DESIGN PARAMETER CHECKLIST FOR OTC REVIEW

THE FOLLOWING CHECKLIST IS INTENDED TO ASSIST THE PLAN REVIEWER TO DETERMINE IF THIS PRE-CHECKED SUBMITTAL IS

APPLICABLE TO THE SITE SPECIFIC CONDITIONS IN WHICH IT IS INTENDED TO BE USED. IT IS THE SITE APPROVAL ARCHITECT'S

RESPONSIBILITY TO FILL IN THE APPROPRIATE BOXES AND CONFIRM SITE CONDITIONS. IF THIS CHECKLIST CANNOT BE COMPLETED,

ADDITIONAL ENGINEERING PROVING SITE-SPECIFIC COMPLIANCE IS REQUIRED.

THIS PRE-CHECKED SUBMITTAL IS APPLICABLE UNDER THE FOLLOWING CIRCUMSTANCES:

NONE OF THE STRUCTURAL DESIGN CRITERIA ARE EXCEEDED

THE RISK CATEGORY IS 'II' OR LESS

THE WIND EXPOSURE CATEGORY IS 'C'

THE PROJECT SITE BASIC ULTIMATE WIND SPEED IS <100mph

THE PROJECT SITE CLASS CATEGORY IS 'D'

THE PROJECT SEISMIC DESIGN CATEGORY IS 'E'

THE PROJECT SEISMIC SDS IS MAXIMUM 2.40

THE PROJECT SITE IS NOT IN A FLOOD ZONE OTHER THAN ZONE 'X'. IF SO, THEN A GEOTECHNICAL LETTER IS REQUIRED PER 

PC-4 1.7.2.

THE PROJECT SITE IS NOT IN AN AREA WITH SNOW LOADING EXCEEDING 5 PSF.

THE PROJECT IS DESIGNED FOR VERY HIGH FIRE HAZARD SEVERITY ZONE ( AREAS PER CBC CHAPTER 7A.

THE ALLOWABLE SOIL BEARING PRESSURE IS 1500psf OR GREATER

IF THE CANOPY SIZE IS <1600s.f. IN AREA, NO GEOTECHNICAL/GEOHAZARDS REPORT IS REQUIRED.

IF THE CANOPY SIZE IS >1600s.f. AND <4000s.f. AND THERE IS A GEOTECHNICAL REPORT PROVING THAT NO POTENTIAL FOR 

LIQUIFICATION EXISTS, NO GEOHAZARDS REPORT IS REQUIRED.

IF THE CANOPY SIZE IS >4000s.f., A SITE SPECIFIC GEOTECHNICAL/GEOHAZARD REPORT IS REQUIRED

GEOTECHNICAL/GEOHAZARD REPORT REQUIRED IN MAPPED GEOLOGIC HAZARD ZONES AND AS REQUIRED BY IR A-4.

THE CANOPY SIZE PROVIDES THE MINIMUM REQUIRED AREA FOR SELECTED ASSEMBLY USE AND DESIRED OCCUPANCY LOAD

(SEE ASSEMBLY USE CHECKLIST)

THE PROJECT IS NOT INTENDED TO PROVIDE SOLAR PANELS

THE PROJECT DOES NOT INCLUDE FIRE SPRINKLERS.

ASSEMBLY USE SELECTION CHECKLIST

THE FOLLOWING CHECKLIST IS TO BE USED BY THE PARTY SUBMITTING THIS PRE-CHECK TO INDICATE THE INTENDED ASSEMBLY USE

FOR THIS STRUCTURE.

DINING CANOPY - ASSEMBLY USE - 'A2'

SHADE STRUCTURE - ASSEMBLY USE - 'A'

SHADE STRUCTURE - OUTDOOR INSTRUCTIONAL USE - ASSEMBLY USE - 'E'

SHADE STRUCTURE OVER PLAY EQUIPMENT  - ASSEMBLY USE - 'E'

SHADE STRUCTURE OVER PARKING - ASSEMBLY USE  - 'S2' OR 'U'

NOTE: THE LOCATION OF THESE CANOPIES ADJACENT TO OTHER BUILDINGS IS SUBJECT TO SITE SPECIFIC APPROVAL

THE INTENDED OCCUPANT LOAD IS ______________ PERSONS

SITE-SPECIFIC CODE ANALYSIS

THE SECTION IS TO BE FILLED OUT BY THE ARCHITECT OF RECORD FOR THE SITE-SPECIFIC APPROVAL

OCCUPANCY GROUP:________(SEE ASSEMBLY USE CHECKLIST)

TYPE OF CONSTRUCTION: ______________

PROPOSED AREA: ____________

ALLOWABLE AREA: ___________

OCCUPANCY LOAD:________

CANOPY SIZE SELECTION CHECKLIST

THE FOLLOWING CHECKLIST IS TO BE USED BY THE PARTY SUBMITTING THIS PRE-CHECK TO INDICATE THE INTENDED SIZES USED FOR

THIS PRE-CHECK STRUCTURE.

20'X10'

9' COLUMN HEIGHT 10' COLUMN HEIGHT

COLUMN HEIGHTS:

20'X20'

20'X15'

25'X25'

30'X20'

36'X18'

30'X25'

40'X20'

30'X30'

__'X__' (FOR INTERMEDIATE SIZE)

40'X30'

__'X__' (FOR INTERMEDIATE SIZE)

11' COLUMN HEIGHT 12' COLUMN HEIGHT

NOTES:

1. PLAN DIMENSIONS ARE REPEATABLE IN ANY ONE DIRECTION TO A TOTAL AREA OF 6000 SQ.FT. STRUCTURALLY. MAXIMUM SIZES

MAY BE LESS DUE TO RISK CATEGORY THRESHOLDS. SEE TABLE 1604.5, 2019 CBC.

2. INTERMEDIATE SIZES MAY USE THE MEMBER SIZES OF THE NEXT LARGEST CANOPY WITH AN IDENTICAL WIDTH TO LENGTH

RATIO.

OCCUPANCY LOAD FACTOR:________

I

A

A

L

I

-
3

1

-

F

O

R

N

2

3

S

T

O

F

N

E

A

T

R

E

C

1

T

E

A
R

C

E

D

W

R

D

.

A

H

I

S

T

C

S

E

D

N

A

L

D

W

I

C

E

N

E

O

L

R

C 25192

2

PRE-CHECK PC DOCUMENT

CODE: 2019 CBC

A separate application for

construction is required

__________TYPE II-B

PLAN DIMENSIONS ARE REPEATABLE IN ANY ONE DIRECTION TO A TOTAL AREA OF 4000 SQ.FT. STRUCTURALLY. MAXIMUM SIZES

MAY BE LESS DUE TO RISK CATEGORY THRESHOLDS. SEE TABLE 1604.5, 2019 CBC.

THE CANOPY SIZE PROVIDES THE MAXIMUM REQUIRED AREA FOR SELECTED ASSEMBLY USE AND DESIRED OCCUPANCY LOAD

(SEE ASSEMBLY USE CHECKLIST)

IR PC-4 1.7.2.

THE FOLLOWING CHECKLIST IS TO BE USED BY THE PARTY SUBMITTING THIS PRE-CHECK TO INDICATE THE INTENDED SIZES USED

FOR THIS PRE-CHECK STRUCTURE. SITE SPECIFIC AOR TO SPECIFY IF CONJOINED OR NON-CONJOINED COLUMNS PER SHEET S2.0.

A "DSA CERTIFIED" PROJECT INSPECTOR EMPLOYED BY THE DISTRCT (OWNER) AND APPROVED BY DSA SHALL PROVIDE

CONTINUOUS INSPECTION OF THE WORK. THE DUTIES OF THE INSPECTOR ARE DEFINED IN SECTION 4-342, PART 1, TITLE 24

(CCR). MINIMUM CLASS 2 PROJECT INSPECTOR IS REQUIRED.

DSA
D E P A R T M E N T  O F  G E N E R A L  S E R V I C E S

DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT
DSA
DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT
DSA
DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT
DSA
DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT

APPROVED
 DIV. OF THE STATE ARCHITECT

APP:
REVIEWED FOR

SS FLS ACS

DATE:

CG✔ ✔ ✔

04-121376

11/01/2022

PC



P
R

E
C

H
E

C
K

 
F

A
B

R
I
C

 
S

H
A

D
E

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E

22-029

7-12-22

RWE

CUSTOM CANOPIES INC.

11815 BURKE STREET

SANTA FE SPRINGS, CA 90670

A r c h i t e c t u r e

7400 Pedrick Court

Bakersfield, CA 93313

(661) 394-0053

ron@rearchitect.net

I

A

A

L

I

-
3

1

-

F

O

R

N

2

3

S

T

O

F

N

E

A

T

R

E

C

1

T

E

A
R

C

E

D

W

R

D

.

A

H

I

S

T

C

S

E

D

N

A

L

D

W

I

C

E

N

E

O

L

R

C 25192

2

IDENTIFICATION STAMP DIVISION OF THE

STATE ARCHITECT

PRE-CHECK PC DOCUMENT

CODE: 2022 CBC

A separate application for

construction is required

A002

T&I GUIDELINE

NOTES

1. THE EXAMPLE FORM DSA-103(s) SHOWN ON THIS

SHEET ARE FOR ILLUSTRATION PURPOSES ONLY. A

FORM DSA-103 IS TO BE FOR EACH APPLICATION THAT

THIS PC IS BEING INCORPORATED INTO AND ALL

EXAMPLE DSA-103(s) ARE TO BE CROSSED OUT ON

THIS DRAWING.

I

A

A

L

I

-
3

1

-

F

O

R

N

2

3

S

T

O

F

N

E

A

T

R

E

C

1

T

E

A
R

C

E

D

W

R

D

.

A

H

I

S

T

C

S

E

D

N

A

L

D

W

I

C

E

N

E

O

L

R

C 25192

2

PRE-CHECK PC DOCUMENT

CODE: 2019 CBC

A separate application for

construction is required

DSA
D E P A R T M E N T  O F  G E N E R A L  S E R V I C E S

DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT
DSA
DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT
DSA
DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT
DSA
DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT

APPROVED
 DIV. OF THE STATE ARCHITECT

APP:
REVIEWED FOR

SS FLS ACS

DATE:

CG✔ ✔ ✔

04-121376

11/01/2022

PC



General Notes

and Typical

details

S1.1

P
R

E
C

H
E

C
K

 
F

A
B

R
I
C

 
S

H
A

D
E

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E

22-029

7-12-22

RWE

CUSTOM CANOPIES INC.

11815 BURKE STREET

SANTA FE SPRINGS, CA 90670

A r c h i t e c t u r e

7400 Pedrick Court

Bakersfield, CA 93313

(661) 394-0053

ron@rearchitect.net

I

A

A

L

I

-
3

1

-

F

O

R

N

2

1

S

T

O

F

N

E

A

T

R

E

C

1

T

E

A

R

C

E

D

W

R

D

.

A

H

I

S

T

C

S

E

D

N

A

L

D

W

I

C

E

N

E

O

L

R

C 25192

2

IDENTIFICATION STAMP DIVISION OF THE

STATE ARCHITECT

PRE-CHECK PC DOCUMENT

CODE: 2019 CBC

A separate application for

construction is required

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER OF RECORD

11305 RANCHO BERNARDO RD
 SUITE 121

SAN DIEGO CA. 92127
PHONE (858) 679-1974

Structural Engineering, Inc.
ORION

R
EE

NI
GN

E

S NIOEFOR S

No. S 4437

P LA

EXP. 12/31/22

ER
SI

R
TE

D

A

OF
U

LARRT UC T
LICFO A

ST
ETA
S

R

IN

GE

I

A

A

L

I

-
3

1

-

F

O

R

N

2

3

S

T

O

F

N

E

A

T

R

E

C

1

T

E

A
R

C

E

D

W

R

D

.

A

H

I

S

T

C

S

E

D

N

A

L

D

W

I

C

E

N

E

O

L

R

C 25192

2

DSA
D E P A R T M E N T  O F  G E N E R A L  S E R V I C E S

DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT
DSA
DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT
DSA
DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT
DSA
DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT

APPROVED
 DIV. OF THE STATE ARCHITECT

APP:
REVIEWED FOR

SS FLS ACS

DATE:

CG✔ ✔ ✔

04-121376

11/01/2022

PC



General Notes

and Typical

details

S1.2

P
R

E
C

H
E

C
K

 
F

A
B

R
I
C

 
S

H
A

D
E

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E

22-029

7-12-22

RWE

CUSTOM CANOPIES INC.

11815 BURKE STREET

SANTA FE SPRINGS, CA 90670

A r c h i t e c t u r e

7400 Pedrick Court

Bakersfield, CA 93313

(661) 394-0053

ron@rearchitect.net

I

A

A

L

I

-
3

1

-

F

O

R

N

2

1

S

T

O

F

N

E

A

T

R

E

C

1

T

E

A

R

C

E

D

W

R

D

.

A

H

I

S

T

C

S

E

D

N

A

L

D

W

I

C

E

N

E

O

L

R

C 25192

2

IDENTIFICATION STAMP DIVISION OF THE

STATE ARCHITECT

PRE-CHECK PC DOCUMENT

CODE: 2019 CBC

A separate application for

construction is required

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER OF RECORD

11305 RANCHO BERNARDO RD
 SUITE 121

SAN DIEGO CA. 92127
PHONE (858) 679-1974

Structural Engineering, Inc.
ORION

R
EE

NI
GN

E

S NIOEFOR S

No. S 4437

P LA

EXP. 12/31/22

ER
SI

R
TE

D

A

OF
U

LARRT UC T
LICFO A

ST
ETA
S

R

IN

GE

I

A

A

L

I

-
3

1

-

F

O

R

N

2

3

S

T

O

F

N

E

A

T

R

E

C

1

T

E

A
R

C

E

D

W

R

D

.

A

H

I

S

T

C

S

E

D

N

A

L

D

W

I

C

E

N

E

O

L

R

C 25192

2

(HIPS, RIDGES AND BRACES MEMBERS)

(COLUMNS)

7 X 19

DSA
D E P A R T M E N T  O F  G E N E R A L  S E R V I C E S

DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT
DSA
DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT
DSA
DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT
DSA
DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT

APPROVED
 DIV. OF THE STATE ARCHITECT

APP:
REVIEWED FOR

SS FLS ACS

DATE:

CG✔ ✔ ✔

04-121376

11/01/2022

PC



General Notes

and Typical

details

S1.3

P
R

E
C

H
E

C
K

 
F

A
B

R
I
C

 
S

H
A

D
E

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E

22-029

7-12-22

RWE

CUSTOM CANOPIES INC.

11815 BURKE STREET

SANTA FE SPRINGS, CA 90670

A r c h i t e c t u r e

7400 Pedrick Court

Bakersfield, CA 93313

(661) 394-0053

ron@rearchitect.net

I

A

A

L

I

-
3

1

-

F

O

R

N

2

1

S

T

O

F

N

E

A

T

R

E

C

1

T

E

A

R

C

E

D

W

R

D

.

A

H

I

S

T

C

S

E

D

N

A

L

D

W

I

C

E

N

E

O

L

R

C 25192

2

IDENTIFICATION STAMP DIVISION OF THE

STATE ARCHITECT

PRE-CHECK PC DOCUMENT

CODE: 2019 CBC

A separate application for

construction is required

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER OF RECORD

11305 RANCHO BERNARDO RD
 SUITE 121

SAN DIEGO CA. 92127
PHONE (858) 679-1974

Structural Engineering, Inc.
ORION

R
EE

NI
GN

E

S NIOEFOR S

No. S 4437

P LA

EXP. 12/31/22

ER
SI

R
TE

D

A

OF
U

LARRT UC T
LICFO A

ST
ETA
S

R

IN

GE

I

A

A

L

I

-
3

1

-

F

O

R

N

2

3

S

T

O

F

N

E

A

T

R

E

C

1

T

E

A
R

C

E

D

W

R

D

.

A

H

I

S

T

C

S

E

D

N

A

L

D

W

I

C

E

N

E

O

L

R

C 25192

2

DSA
D E P A R T M E N T  O F  G E N E R A L  S E R V I C E S

DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT
DSA
DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT
DSA
DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT
DSA
DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT

APPROVED
 DIV. OF THE STATE ARCHITECT

APP:
REVIEWED FOR

SS FLS ACS

DATE:

CG✔ ✔ ✔

04-121376

11/01/2022

PC



I

A

A

L

I

-
3

1

-

F

O

R

N

2

3

S

T

O

F

N

E

A

T

R

E

C

1

T

E

A
R

C

E

D

W

R

D

.

A

H

I

S

T

C

S

E

D

N

A

L

D

W

I

C

E

N

E

O

L

R

C 25192

2

(NON-CONJOINED INTERIOR
COLUMN DETAIL)

CONJOINED INTERIOR COLUMN
DETAIL

CONJOINED INTERIOR PLAN
DETAIL

4B

3B

DSA
D E P A R T M E N T  O F  G E N E R A L  S E R V I C E S

DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT
DSA
DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT
DSA
DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT
DSA
DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT

APPROVED
 DIV. OF THE STATE ARCHITECT

APP:
REVIEWED FOR

SS FLS ACS

DATE:

CG✔ ✔ ✔

04-121376

11/01/2022

PC



2019 CBC DWGS

S3

P
R

E
C

H
E

C
K

 
F

A
B

R
I
C

 
S

H
A

D
E

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E

22-029

7-12-22

RWE

CUSTOM CANOPIES INC.

11815 BURKE STREET

SANTA FE SPRINGS, CA 90670

A r c h i t e c t u r e

7400 Pedrick Court

Bakersfield, CA 93313

(661) 394-0053

ron@rearchitect.net

I

A

A

L

I

-
3

1

-

F

O

R

N

2

1

S

T

O

F

N

E

A

T

R

E

C

1

T

E

A

R

C

E

D

W

R

D

.

A

H

I

S

T

C

S

E

D

N

A

L

D

W

I

C

E

N

E

O

L

R

C 25192

2

IDENTIFICATION STAMP DIVISION OF THE

STATE ARCHITECT

PRE-CHECK PC DOCUMENT

CODE: 2019 CBC

A separate application for

construction is required

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER OF RECORD

11305 RANCHO BERNARDO RD
 SUITE 121

SAN DIEGO CA. 92127
PHONE (858) 679-1974

Structural Engineering, Inc.
ORION

R
EE

NI
GN

E

S NIOEFOR S

No. S 4437

P LA

EXP. 12/31/22

ER
SI

R
TE

D

A

OF
U

LARRT UC T
LICFO A

ST
ETA
S

R

IN

GE

I

A

A

L

I

-
3

1

-

F

O

R

N

2

3

S

T

O

F

N

E

A

T

R

E

C

1

T

E

A
R

C

E

D

W

R

D

.

A

H

I

S

T

C

S

E

D

N

A

L

D

W

I

C

E

N

E

O

L

R

C 25192

2

DSA
D E P A R T M E N T  O F  G E N E R A L  S E R V I C E S

DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT
DSA
DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT
DSA
DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT
DSA
DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT

APPROVED
 DIV. OF THE STATE ARCHITECT

APP:
REVIEWED FOR

SS FLS ACS

DATE:

CG✔ ✔ ✔

04-121376

11/01/2022

PC



I

A

A

L

I

-
3

1

-

F

O

R

N

2

3

S

T

O

F

N

E

A

T

R

E

C

1

T

E

A
R

C

E

D

W

R

D

.

A

H

I

S

T

C

S

E

D

N

A

L

D

W

I

C

E

N

E

O

L

R

C 25192

2

DSA
D E P A R T M E N T  O F  G E N E R A L  S E R V I C E S

DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT
DSA
DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT
DSA
DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT
DSA
DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT

APPROVED
 DIV. OF THE STATE ARCHITECT

APP:
REVIEWED FOR

SS FLS ACS

DATE:

CG✔ ✔ ✔

04-121376

11/01/2022

PC







1/31/2023 

  
 Arcade Fundamental Middle School 

MIRACLE PLAYSYSTEMS, INC.  –   PO BOX 263, ALAMO, CA 94507  –  (800) 879-7730  –  (510) 893-2163 (FAX) 
CSL: 981433 (Exp Date 03/23)  –  DIR: 1000015853 

Page 1 of 4 

 
Job Number: 22-1748 
Job: Arcade Fundamental Middle School 
Quote Name:  Quote-22-1748-Arcade Fundamental Middle School_001 
Quote Number:  Q-04647 
  
Prepared by: 
KarlManiglia 
karl@miracleplaygroup.com 
  

 

Terms: 50% Deposit 
Remit to: Miracle Playsystems, Inc. 
1276 S Main St., Salinas, CA 93901 

Sub Total:  $287,874.00 
Freight:  $8,836.00 

Estimated Tax:  $22,247.94 
Total:  $318,957.94 

  

 
 

PW Athletic  

Product Code Description Qty Rate Total Estimated Tax ( if 
applicable) 

EQUIP12 Basketball Post - Model: 1527G (LA-

12C56) - Gooseneck Post 5-9/16" O.D., 
6' Offset, 
Galvanized, 

6 $1,836.00 $11,016.00 $853.74 

EQUIP12 Basketball Post - Model: 1528G (LA-
12C056) - Back-To-Back Gooseneck 

Posts 5- 
9/16" O.D., 6' offset Galvanized 

3 $4,121.00 $12,363.00 $958.14 

EQUIP12 Basketball BackBoards - Model: 22 (LA-

11X) - 36" H x 54" WFan Backboard; 
Heavy-Duty 
Cast Aluminum; White w/Target and 

Perimeter 

12 $762.00 $9,144.00 $708.66 

EQUIP12 Basketball Rims - Model: 45 (LA-45) - 

Heavy-Duty Double Rim with Universal 
Mount Plate 

12 $199.00 $2,388.00 $185.07 

EQUIP12 Basketball Nets - Model: 34 - Super 

Nylon Net (Fits Rims 39, 41, 45), 
12 $19.00 $228.00 $17.67 



1/31/2023 

  
 Arcade Fundamental Middle School 

MIRACLE PLAYSYSTEMS, INC.  –   PO BOX 263, ALAMO, CA 94507  –  (800) 879-7730  –  (510) 893-2163 (FAX) 
CSL: 981433 (Exp Date 03/23)  –  DIR: 1000015853 

Page 2 of 4 

EQUIP12 Volleyball Posts- Pro Series - Model: 
2219-20A - Volleyball Pro Series 
Competition Posts 4" 
Square Aluminum, Color=265 Hunter 

Green 

6 $2,467.00 $14,802.00 $1,147.16 

EQUIP12 Ground Sleeves for Posts - Model: 
8304-SQ24 (LA-8304-SQ24) - Single 
Ground Sleeve for 4" 
Square x 24" without Cap 

12 $273.00 $3,276.00 $253.89 

EQUIP12 Volleyball Nets - Model: 8361-20 - 

Competition Volleyball Nets with Top 
Cable/Bottom 
Rope Ties 32' x 3' 

6 $200.00 $1,200.00 $93.00 

EQUIP12 Pickleball Standard Posts - Model: 
2202-11P - Pickleball Posts 3-1/2" O.D. 

with 2 Fixed Eyes, 
Net Thightener, and Top Pulley, 
Powder Coated, Color=510 Black 

4 $1,258.00 $5,032.00 $389.98 

EQUIP12 Pickleball Nets - Model: 8354 - 
Pickleball Net 36" x 21'9", Net 

Height=36", Net Width=21'9" 

4 $294.00 $1,176.00 $91.14 

EQUIP12 Ground Sleeves for Posts - Model: 
8302-24-1H (LA-8302-24-1H) - Single 
Ground Sleeve for 2- 
7/8" up to 3" O.D. x 24" with Hinged 
Cap, 

8 $375.00 $3,000.00 $232.50 

 
 

 
 

USA Shade  

Product Code Description Qty Rate Total Estimated Tax ( if 
applicable) 

EQUIP7 Qty 4 - Single Post Pyramid Shade - 
20'x20'x12' entry height (Pricing 
includes installation) 

1 $223,445.00 $223,445.00 $17,316.99 

DESIGN2 Engineering charge 1 $804.00 $804.00 $0.00 

 
 

 
  Sub Total: $287,874.00 

Total Freight:  $8,836.00 
Total Estimated Tax:  $22,247.94 

Grand Total:  $318,957.94 

JHucik
Cloud



1/31/2023 

  
 Arcade Fundamental Middle School 

MIRACLE PLAYSYSTEMS, INC.  –   PO BOX 263, ALAMO, CA 94507  –  (800) 879-7730  –  (510) 893-2163 (FAX) 
CSL: 981433 (Exp Date 03/23)  –  DIR: 1000015853 

Page 3 of 4 

  

Company: ________________________________________ 
  
Signature: ________________________________________ 
  
Name: ___________________________________________ 
  
Date: ____________________________________________ 

 
Please confirm or edit order information below. 

End User Company:  
San Juan Unified School District 
End User Contact:  
End User Email: 
  
Delivery Contact:  
Delivery Email:  
Delivery Phone:  
Delivery Address:   
Sacramento 
CA 95821 
  
Site Address:  
3500 Edison Ave 
Sacramento 
  

Bill To Email:  
  
Bill To:  
, 
, 
, , 
  
Customer Reference #: 

  

INDEMNITY 
Client/Owner shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless Miracle Playsystems, Inc., its officers, directors, board of trustees,  agents, or employees and each of them, from any and all claims, 
demands, causes of action in law or in equity, damages, penalties, costs, expenses, reasonable attorneys’ fees, reasonable experts’ fees, reasonable consultants’ fees, judgments, losses or 
liabilities, of every kind and nature whatsoever arising out of or in any way connected with or incidental to, the performance of the services under this Agreement or any of the obligations 
contained in this Agreement (“Claims”). Without limitation, “damages” include personal injury, including, but not limited to bodily injury, emotional injury, sickness or disease, or death to 
persons, including, but not limited to, any employees or agents of Miracle Playsystems, Inc., or any other person; or other damages of any kind to anyone including, without limitation, 
economic loss, property damage and loss of use thereof. It is expressly acknowledged and agreed that each of the foregoing indemnities is independent, that each shall be given effect, and 
that each shall apply despite any acts or omissions, misconduct or negligent conduct, whether active or passive, on the part of, or other contractor(s); provided, however, Miracle Playsystems, 
Inc. duty to indemnify shall be limited to the percentage or the degree Miracle Playsystems, Inc. comparative negligence caused any damages. 
  
STANDARD NOTES 

• Price quotation is good for 30 days. Accurate color selections must be made in writing prior to equipment going into production. Colors to be confirmed with your local 
sales representative.  

• PLEASE MAKE PURCHASE ORDER TO MIRACLE PLAYSYSTEMS, INC at PO Box 263 Alamo, CA 94507 



1/31/2023 

  
 Arcade Fundamental Middle School 

MIRACLE PLAYSYSTEMS, INC.  –   PO BOX 263, ALAMO, CA 94507  –  (800) 879-7730  –  (510) 893-2163 (FAX) 
CSL: 981433 (Exp Date 03/23)  –  DIR: 1000015853 

Page 4 of 4 

• PLEASE REMIT CHECKS TO: MIRACLE PLAYSYSTEMS INC., 1276 S MAIN ST, SALINAS, CA 93901 
• Please email/fax quotation with your signature to accept this quote and place order. Fax 510-893-2163 or email Info@MiraclePlayGroup.com 
• Unless otherwise specified, Miracle Playsystems, Inc DOES NOT include the following in this proposal:  

• Engineered drawings 
• Installation of equipment or other site amenities  
• Specialty trades, equipment, power supply required to install equipment 

• Any insurance requiring in excess of $1M/$2M per occurrence, special insurance coverage or wording, Prevailing/Certified wage rates, local permitting, bid/performance 
bonds, temp fencing, geo tech surveys, playground safety inspection, equipment offload, and testing services. 

• Inspect equipment upon delivery. Color discrepancy must be reported at time of delivery. Installation constitutes acceptance of colors.  
• Warranty does not cover labor for reinstallation. 

  
TERMS & CONDITIONS 

• Purchase contract terms & conditions of sale: The client/customer’s acceptance and understanding of these terms & conditions and all other supporting documentation 
provided as part of this package is evidenced by signing of this estimate/quote.  

• Payment terms: Standard terms (on approved credit), unless otherwise noted are 50% with order and balance to ship equipment (no retention). Should any changes be 
required to the products after order is placed, modifications or changes will be at client/customers expense. Miracle Playsystems, Inc maintains a no return policy and asks 
all clients to determine feature, layout and color selection prior to ordering. Should any order be cancelled after production has started a 30% restocking fee will be 

charged to client. Credit card convenience fee is 3.5% which will be added to all credit card charges  
• Lead times: Estimated lead times for the time the order is released into production until it is delivered will vary.  
• Lead times may currently be extended due to reasons such as supply chain issues, shipping delays, raw material shortages, and other COVID-19 related impacts. 
• Custom play feature lead times are determined on a case by case basis. 

  
CONSTRUCTION SERVICES (if applicable) 
Unless otherwise noted, we exclude responsibility for material delivery & offloading equipment, removal & disposal of packaging accumulated by equipment packaging, project security, 
landscape & hardscape repair based on access route to site, delays or returns due to layout conflicts or delay of other trades, removal of spoils from job site, locating underground: utilities, 
pipes, obstructions in work area, conditions unforeseen and/or not disclosed at time of estimate, permits, engineering, mater ial testing, soil samples, CPSI. Conditions: Grades; stable, 
compacted & workable with 95% compaction and less than 1% grade, adequate access to site for labor, materials, tools and equipment. Estimate good for 90 days from quote or Dec. 31 of 
current calendar year, whichever comes first. Terms: Upon completion. 
  
  
GENERAL TERMS 

• THIS QUOTE IS LIMITED TO AND GOVERNED BY THE TERMS CONTAINED HEREIN: Miracle Playsystems, Inc. objects to any other terms proposed by client, in writing or 
otherwise, as material alterations, and all such proposed terms shall be void. Client authorizes Miracle Playsystems, Inc. to ship equipment and agrees to pay the total 
specified. Shipping terms are FOB the place of shipment via common carrier. 

• Client and owner/operator agree to indemnify and hold Miracle Playsystems, Inc. harmless from and against all liabilities, losses, penalties, damages and expenses, 
including costs and attorney fees, resulting from any and all claims, liens, damages, actions, suits, judgments or settlements, injuries arising or alleged to arise out of their 
failure, or failure of architect, contractors, subcontractors, installers, employees, agents and assigns to assemble, install, inspect and/or maintain the play equipment and 
impact absorbing surfacing in full compliance with each manufacturers installation instructions and safety requirements and their misuse and/or alteration of the play 
equipment. 

  
Company: ______________________________________ 
  
Signature: ______________________________________ 
  
Name: ______________________________________ 
  
Date: ______________________________________ 

 

 



Bid Normalization Form

SCUSD Chavez-Kemble ES

Scope Summary
Park Planet / 

VSS

USA SHADE & 

Fabric 

Structures

N/A

Contact Kyle Knox Howard Hadlock

Phone Number 530-244-6116 916-338-7707

Quantity U/M 49,951 247,661

Specified Pre-Checked Vendor for INC 01 YES NO

30' x 40' DSA Single Slope Lunch Shelter 1.0 EA INCLUDED VENDOR EQUIV.

26 ga Mega Rib Metal Roof INCLUDED VENDOR EQUIV.

26 ga 1-5/8" Cee Trim INCLUDED VENDOR EQUIV.

12' 6" Roof Height and Top of Post INCLUDED VENDOR EQUIV.

11' Beams @ Posts INCLUDED VENDOR EQUIV.

1/4:12 - Roof Pitch INCLUDED VENDOR EQUIV.

20lb Framing INCLUDED VENDOR EQUIV.

6 - Posts 6.0 EA INCLUDED VENDOR EQUIV.

Fasteners & Brackets INCLUDED VENDOR EQUIV.

Factory Painted Roof & Trim INCLUDED VENDOR EQUIV.

All Powdercoated Posts INCLUDED VENDOR EQUIV.

Unpainted C Channel galvanized beams INCLUDED VENDOR EQUIV.

Rain Gutter - One Side w/ Downspouts INCLUDED VENDOR EQUIV.

Excludes Installation EXCLUDED EXCLUDED

Freight INCLUDED INCLUDED

Sales Tax INCLUDED INCLUDED

49,951.00$ 247,661.17$ 

RECOMMENDED SUPPLIER: AMOUNT

Park Planet / VSS 49,951.00$ 

Lunch Shelter - Material Procurement

Base Bid

TOTALS





JHucik
Cloud







A Division of Park Associates 

Park & Play Spaces Since 2000

www.parkplanet.com

Park Planet Representative: Kyle Knox

415 Elm Street, Red Bluff, CA 96080 0: 530-244-6116 F: 530-246-0518 

A Submittal For: Kemble Chavez - SHADE SHELTER







www.usa-shade.com |   800-966-5005

Roseville, CA  95678

AZ: 289388    CA: 989458    LA: 61718    NV:78724 

NM: 383826    TN: 68712    DIR: 1000003533

WB60 - PROJECT NO: 19050.00
10/7/2021

Proposal Prepared For:

Clark / Sullivan Construction
1340 Blue Oaks Blvd



Date:  10/7/2021

Purchaser: Contact: Sales Rep:

Project Name: Phone: Phone:

Quote No: Email: Email:

PO No: Fax: Fax:

Contact: Contact: Contact:

Phone Phone Phone

Email: Email: Email:

Fax: Fax: Fax:

CORPORATE ADDRESS: REMITTANCE ADDRESS:

2580 Esters Blvd., Suite 100 P.O. Box 734158

DFW Airport, TX 75261 Dallas, TX 75373-4158

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA: NORTHERN CALIFORNIA: ARIZONA: LAS VEGAS:

1085 N. Main Street, Suite C 927 Enterprise Way, Suite A 2452 W. Birchwood Ave, Suite 112 6225 S. Valley View Blvd., Suite I

Orange, CA  92867 Napa, CA  94558  Mesa, AZ  85202 Las Vegas, NV  89118

NOTE: This message is intended only for the use of the individual to whom it is addressed, and contains information that is privileged, confidential, and 

exempt from disclosure under applicable law.  If you are not the intended recipient, or the employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to the 

intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any unauthorized disclosure, distribution, or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited.  If you have 

received this communication in error, please notify us immediately by phone and return the original message to the applicable address above.

(916) 338-7701

MAILING ADDRESS:

P.O. Box 3467

Coppel, TX 75019

 (916) 338-7707 714-920-5309

Howard@clarksullivan.com Marcos.Samayoa@USA-Shade.com

 95678 94558 95747

Howard Hadlock Marcos Samayoa TBD

Roseville Napa Roseville

CA CA CA

Clark / Sullivan Construction NORTHERN CALIFORNIA New School (WB60)

1340 Blue Oaks Blvd 927 Enterprise Way, Suite A 4501 Solaire Dr

(916) 338-7701

Billing Information: Shipping Information: Jobsite Information:

WB60 - PROJECT NO: 19050.00  (916) 338-7707 510-203-2245

MAC211004-13 Howard@clarksullivan.com michael.crossley@usa-shade.com

Proposal for USA SHADE & Fabric Structures

Project Information: Sales Information:

Clark / Sullivan Construction Howard Hadlock Michael Crossley

www.usa-shade.com               800-966-5005

AZ: 289388   CA: 989458    LA: 61718   NV: 78724    NV:78724    NM: 383826    TN: 68712   DIR: 1000003533

mailto:Howard@clarksullivan.com
mailto:michael.crossley@usa-shade.com
mailto:Howard@clarksullivan.com
mailto:Marcos.Samayoa@USA-Shade.com
mailto:Howard@clarksullivan.com
mailto:Marcos.Samayoa@USA-Shade.com
mailto:Howard@clarksullivan.com
mailto:michael.crossley@usa-shade.com


Structure Pricing

UNIT IMAGE

Unit Quantity: 9 Foundations By Client Responsible

Unit Type: Mariner Peak Grout Installation Client Responsible

Structure Size: 20'x30' Footing Type: Drilled Pier

USA Shade Model Number 407.2 Base Attachment: Recessed Base Plate

Entry Height: 15' Max Anchor Bolts: Included

No of Columns: 4 Concrete Cutting: N/A

No of Fabric Tops: 4 Dirt Removal: N/A

Fabric Type: Colourshade_FR Surface Type: Dirt

Fabric Color: TBD NOTES

Steel Finish:
Coastal Primer w/ 

Powder Coating

Steel Color: TBD

PRICE Electrical Provisions: N/A

Cable/HDW Finish: Galvanized

Concept No: DSA-4073030-16

Mariner Peak
UNIT DETAILS

See below

www.usa-shade.com               800-966-5005

AZ: 289388   CA: 989458    LA: 61718   NV: 78724    NV:78724    NM: 383826    TN: 68712   DIR: 1000003533



QTY COST

TBD

DSA

115 mph

5 psf

Electronic

On File

INCLUDED EXCLUDED INCLUDED EXCLUDED

www.usa-shade.com            800-966-5005

AZ: 289388   CA: 989458    LA: 61718   NV: 78724    NV:78724    NM: 383826    TN: 68712   DIR: 1000003533

Design and Engineering of Foundation Demolition (Existing Structures)

Reactions and Loads for attachment to Walls, Rooftops, or Other Payment and Performance Bonds

Foundation Location and Elevation Survey Special Inspection Fees

Permit Fee Fencing

DSA Submittal & Fees water and Electrical

Design and Engineering of Structure Landscape Repair

INCLUSIONS / EXCLUSIONS

ENGINEERING   REQUIREMENTS INSTALLATION  -  MISCELLANEOUS

Sealed Drawings & Calculations Prevailing Wage / Certified Payroll

Permit Submittal Union Wages

 USA SHADE reserves the right to implement a surcharge for significant increases in raw materials, including the following, but 

not limited to: fuel, steel , fabric, and concrete. Proposal pricing is only valid for 1 year due to the fluctuation in pricing. Due to 

recent significant increases experienced in raw steel and fabric materials, it may be necessary to order, invoice, and receive 

payments for steel and fabric as soon as final sizing can be determined.

ENGINEERING   REQUIREMENTS NOTES

Building Code

Wind Load

Snow Load

Drawing Size

No. of Sealed Drawings

Calculations  Required

Engineering included

Payment Terms based on credit review. Installation excluded

TOTAL PRICE $247,661.17 

SUBTOTAL (4)  Other (specify):

Sales Tax (9.25%) included NOTES:

Accessories/Miscellaneous (2)  Upon delivery of Unit(s)

Shipping/Handling included (3)   Upon completion of assembly/installation

TOTAL FOR ACCESS/MISC ITEMS:

PRICINGTOTALS: PAYMENT  TERMS:

Unit Total included (1) Upon execution of the Agreement (Deposit)

ACCESS/MISC.

ITEM DETAILS

(intentionally left blank)

Michael Flores
Highlight
$247,661.17 



Bid Normalization Form

SCUSD Chavez-Kemble ES

*Fire Lite is a proprietary system specified for integration with existing campus Fire Alarm System*

Scope Summary Fire Lite N/A N/A

Contact Amy Atkinson

Phone Number 775-335-5066

Quantity U/M 1,813

Specified Vendor for INC 01 YES

ADDRESSABLE DUAL MNTR MODULE MDF-300 4.0 EA INCLUDED

PHTO ELEC SMK DETECT W/THERMAL 2151T 8.0 EA INCLUDED

194 FXD/ROR 1 CIRCUIT HEAT DET 5602 12.0 EA INCLUDED

HORN STROBE 2W RED WALL P2RL 4.0 EA INCLUDED

REPL HORN RED OUTDOOR HRK-R 2.0 EA INCLUDED

Sales Tax INCLUDED

1,813.00$ 

RECOMMENDED SUPPLIER: AMOUNT

Fire Lite 1,813.00$ 

Fire Alarm Equipment - Material Procurement

Base Bid

TOTALS



CUSTOMER P.O. NBR/REFERENCE NBR SHIPPED DATE SHIPPED FROM DATE DOCUMENT NUMBER

QUANTITY

ORDERED CATALOG NUMBER DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE AMOUNTLOT

TOTAL MATERIAL

CUSTOMER NUMBER

S

O

L

D

T

O

PAGE NO.

PLEASE CALL YOUR LOCAL ADI BRANCH TO CONFIRM YOUR PRICING AND AVAILABILITY.     

Individual cost(s) are dependent on entire bid ordered. 

QUOTE TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The information provided herein constitutes an estimated proposal of pricing for materials only and a system design based solely on the specifications and product requirements you provided. Any suggestions for products that may meet your specific needs are 

made by ADI based upon your indicated requirements. ADI does not represent or warrant that (i) the products and equipment set forth herein constitute a complete system of any type, (ii) all such products and equipment will work together or appropriately in 

customer’s specific application or (iii) that any or all of the products, equipment or systems will comply with any codes or laws. Additional products and equipment at an additional cost may be required to complete a system based on your specific 

application. You are strongly advised to ensure that the quoted products or system is in compliance with your local law and codes. Nothing contained herein shall cause ADI to incur any liability for system design, functionality, installation or integration, except 

as specifically set forth on ADI's terms and conditions of sale. Wire gauge, quantity of cable and connectors, standby battery sizes and necessary quantities, if included, are estimates only and your actual requirements may vary based upon your installation 

procedure. Aggregate pricing for non special order product set forth in this quote shall only be valid for 30 days from the date hereof and pricing for special order products may vary based upon vendor pricing at the time of your 

order. Fulfillment is subject to product availability at the time of order and pricing does not include taxes or shipping charges. This quote may be based on or include equipment that may not have the same appearance or functions as items in your 

specification, but which provide substantially similar functionality. Surge protection or UPS systems may be required to ensure warranty coverage. Standard manufacturer’s warranties and disclaimers may apply to each product and ADI makes no product 

warranties herein; you are directed to contact each manufacturer for further information or technical support. Please confirm availability and pricing for the products set forth in this proposal with your local branch.

Convert Your Quote to an Order on the ADI website.                                              adiglobal.com/us

525 VISTA BLVD
SPARKS, NV 89434                 (916) 929-8700
(775) 355-5066

       CLARK&SULLIVAN CONSTRUCTI
       905 INDUSTRIAL WAY
       SPARKS, NV
        89431

                    FB748-000       QUOTED BY A ATKINSON                      1

SAC CITY                       QUOTE                        020823     JD6NXD00

    4  FL-MDF300     ADDRESSABLE DUAL MNTR MODULE           136.05      544.20
                     MDF-300
    8  BK-2151T    * PHTO ELEC SMK DETECT W/THERMAL          76.99      615.92
                     2151T
   12  BK-5602       194 FXD/ROR 1 CIRCUIT HEAT DET          17.59      211.08
                     5602
    4  BK-P2RL       HORN STROBE 2W RED WALL                 57.86      231.44
                     P2RL
    2  BK-HRKR     * REPL HORN RED OUTDOOR                   31.99       63.98
                     HRK-R
    1  MISC NONSALE  SALES TAX 8.75%                        145.83      145.83

                                                                        1812.45
                                           QUOTE             EXPIRES 03/10/23
* SPECIAL ORDER ITEM. NON-RETURNABLE OR SUBJECT TO RESTOCKING FEES



Bid Normalization Form

SCUSD Chavez-Kemble ES

Scope Summary D&L Supply
Southbay 

Foundry
N/A

Contact Skyler M Samantha Roberts

Phone Number 707-557-4525 209-367-1940

Quantity U/M 1,103 976

Specified Vendor for INC 01 YES NO

4.5" Tall 24" Clear 2.00 EA INCLUDED INCLUDED

1900 Grate ADA 2.00 EA INCLUDED INCLUDED

Will Call - Pick Up INCLUDED INCLUDED

Taxes INCLUDED INCLUDED

1,102.54$ 976.42$ 

RECOMMENDED SUPPLIER: AMOUNT

D&L Supply 1,102.54$ 

Cast Iron Grates & Frames - Material Procurement

Base Bid

TOTALS



Quote
Order No.: 0000141641
Order Date: 2/8/2023
Delivery Date:
Expire Date: 3/10/2023

California
4841 Paoli Loop Rd.
American Canyon, CA, 94503
Phone: (707) 557-4525

Customer ID: CA-CASHTX
Currency: USD

BILL TO: SHIP TO:
California Sales - Taxed
4841 Paoli Loop Rd.
American Canyon CA 84589
United States of America

California Sales - Taxed
4841 Paoli Loop Rd.
American Canyon CA 84589
United States of America

CUSTOMER P.O. NO. TERMS CONTACT
Net 30 Skyler McConville

FOB POINT SHIPPING TERMS SHIP VIA
D & L Supply Trans - Taxable

NO. ITEM QTY. UOM PRICE DISC. EXTENDED PRICE
1 C-2669-07: GRATE 1/2" SLOTS 25.25OD 

1.125T (A-1024) 2BLT
2.0000 EACH 293.4200 0% 586.84

2 A-1024-R3: 4.5H 23.875CO 25.375CVR 
32.25OD BOLT LUGS

2.0000 EACH 218.2000 0% 436.40

Terms and Conditions of Sale Sales Total: 1,023.24
Freight & Misc.: 0.00

*Pricing is based on quantities and markings listed.  Any 
changes will require a quote.  *Taxes and shipping costs may 
apply.  *Price quoted is valid for 30 days from Quote Date.  
*Any items installed in the field are Non-refundable.  *Items 
quoted as "Non-Stock" are Non-refundable.  *Any items 
quoted as "Stock items" are subject to a restock fee plus any 
transportation charges.  Material subject to inspection.  No 
returns accepted on material purchased in the previous 
calendar year.  Pricing for any fabricated items are good for 5 
days

Less Discount: 0.00
Tax Total: 79.30
Total (USD): 1,102.54

Page: 1 of 1



25

1

4

"

1

1

8

"

C - 2 6 6 9

D&L  FDRY  USA

M
M

/D
D

/Y
Y

A-1024 / C-2669

PRODUCT NUMBER:

COVER:

C-2669-07

RING:

A-1024-R3

GRAY IRON: ASTM A-48 CL 35B

= INDICATES MACHINED SURFACE

D&L Supply Co.(DLS) claims proprietary

rights to the information disclosed in this

document. The document is issued for

information only and may not, in part or in

whole, be reproduced or disclosed to anyone

without the direct written consent of DLS.

Dimensions are for reference ONLY. DLS

reserves the right to change dimensions and

or weights at its own discretion.

Washington Sales:

California Sales:

Utah Sales:

CONFIDENTIALITY STATEMENT

GRAY IRON: ASTM A-48 CL 35B

E:\__DLS DRAWINGS\A\A-1024\A-1024-R3_C-2669-07_3-8''BLTS.DWG

DRAWN BY: CDILLEY 3/8/2018

MEETS:

DATE:

H20 WHEEL LOADING

(801) 785-5015  Fax: (801) 785-0835

(707) 557-4525  Fax: (707) 557-4655

(509) 766-3131  Fax: (509) 765-8124

MATERIAL TYPE:

APPROXIMATE

1.02 ftOPEN AREA:

2

MADE IN USA

D
&

L  FDR Y  US A
A -1

024

(2) 

3

8

" BOLTS SLOTS w/

(2) 

3

8

" HEX HEAD BOLTS

SECTION A-A

VIEW IS ROTATED

25

3

8

"

23

7

8

"

32

1

8

"

4

1

2

"

1

1

8

"

A A

1

2

"
 
T

Y
P

TYPICAL

OPENING WIDTH DETAIL

NOTE:

GRATE IS ADA COMPLIANT

24"



Quote Number: 0202774
Lodi
Central Valley Distribution Yard
42 North Cluff Avenue
Lodi, CA, 95240
Phone:  (209) 367-1940
Web: www.southbayfoundry.com

Quote Date: 2/7/2023
Salesperson:

Quote
Sold To: Ship To:
MISC- TAXABLE CUSTOMER
42 N0 CLUFF AVE.
LODI CA 95240
United States of America

MISC- TAXABLE CUSTOMER
42 N0 CLUFF AVE.
LODI CA 95240
United States of America

Customer Number Ship Via F.O.B. Terms
02-MISC02 Lodi COD

Qty Item No/Description Price Disc Amount
2.00 C1900-03B: 1900 GRATE ADA 2BLT 214.5000 0% 429.00
2.00 C1900-R1B: 1900 FRAME BOLT LUGS 236.5000 0% 473.00

NOTE: Terms and Conditions of Sale Sales Total:

*Pricing is based on quantities and markings listed. Any 
changes will require a quote.
*Taxes and shipping costs may apply.
*Price quoted is valid for 15 days from Quote Date.
*Any items installed in the field are Non-refundable.
*Items quoted as "Non-Stock" are Non-refundable.
*Any items quoted as "Stock items" are subject to a restock 
fee plus any transportation charges. Material subject to 
inspection. No returns accepted on material purchased in the 
previous calendar year. Pricing for any fabricated items are 
good for 5 days

Net Order: 902.00
Less Discount: 0.00
Freight & Misc.: 0.0000
Tax Total: 74.42
Total (USD): 976.42

Page: 1 of 1



WWW.SOUTHBAYFOUNDRY.COM

PHONE: (619) 956-2780 FAX: (619) 956-2788

APPROVED
BY:

TITLE:

DATE:

GENERAL INFORMATION

AGENCY:

SBF 1900-H

24" ADA FRAME AND GRATE

NUMBER OF SLOTS 4/1/2021

DATEREVISIONS

 1
2 " SLOTS 

 1 1
2 " TYP. 

 1
1 2

" T
YP

. 

A

A

25 5
16 "

26 1
4 "

1
1 8

"

9 16
"24"

31 1
2 "

4
1 2

"

2
3 8

"

 25 3
8 " 

SECTION A-A

*MATERIAL: GREY CAST IRON ASTM A48 CLASS 35B
*BEARING SURFACES MACHINED FOR CLOSE, QUIET FIT
*FINISH: DIPPED IN BLACK BITUMINOUS PAINT
*MEETS H-20 WHEEL LOADING

GRATE ID#: C1900-02
FRAME ID#: A1900-R1

NO.

1



ATTACHMENT 1 

Exhibit C to Facilities Lease  Page 13 of 13 

#460 - Cesar Chavez/Edward Kemble New Construction and Modernization Project    
DWK DMS 3804500v1 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 3 

SCHEDULE OF LEASE PAYMENTS 

 

Amortization Schedule    

     

Loan Amount: $     

Interest: 4.25% Annual    

Term in Months 12.00     

Payment Frequency Monthly    

     

Payment 

Monthly 

Payment 

Principal 

Payment 

Interest 

Payment Balance 

     

1     

2     

3     

4     

5     

6     

7     

8     

9     

10     

11     

12     

Totals     

 

 



 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Agenda Item 13.1b  
 

 
Meeting Date:  March 2, 2023 
 
Subject:  Approve Personnel Transactions 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Human Resources Services 
 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Personnel Transactions 
 
 
Background/Rationale:  N/A 
 
 
Financial Considerations:  N/A 
 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Safe, Clean and Healthy Schools 
 
 
Documents Attached:   
1. Certificated Personnel Transactions Dated March 2, 2023 
2. Classified Personnel Transactions Dated March 2, 2023 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation:  N/A 

Submitted by:   Cancy McArn, Ed.D, Chief Human Resources Officer 
Approved by:  Jorge A Aguilar, Superintendent  

 
 Page 1 of 1 



Page 1 of 2

O=Zero Yr Probationary; A=Permanent; B=First Yr Probationary; C=Second Yr Probationary; E=Temp Contract; I=Long Term Temp; J=Short Term Temp; Q=Limited Term Assignment-Evaluated; R=Limited Term Assignment-Not Evaluated

Attachment 1:  CERTIFICATED 3/2/2023

NameLast NameFirst JobPerm JobClass PrimeSite BegDate EndDate Comment
-------------------------- -------------------- ---------- ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ---------- ---------- -----------------------------------
EMPLOY/ REEMPLOY
ALDAMA ASHLYN 0 Teacher, Resource, Special Ed. ACCELERATED ACADEMY 1/27/2023 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 1/27/23                                                                                                 
DEEM ARIELLE B Teacher, Traveling Music ROSA PARKS MIDDLE SCHOOL 2/1/2023 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 2/1/23                                                                                                    
NAVARRO TAMELA B Teacher, Spec Ed MATSUYAMA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 2/2/2023 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 2/2/23                                                                                                     
POLICE RENA B Counselor, Elementary School COUNSELING SERVICES 2/6/2023 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 2/6/23                                                                                                     
RUIZ LEANNE 0 Teacher, High School C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH SCHOOL 1/30/2023 6/30/2023 REEMPLOY PROB 1/30/23                                                                                              

LEAVES
BOOK STEPHANIE A Teacher, Elementary PARKWAY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 2/11/2023 6/30/2023 LOA RTN  2/11/23                                                                                                        
CARRINGTON OLIVIA A Teacher, Elementary JOHN BIDWELL ELEMENTARY 2/18/2023 5/19/2023 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 2/18-5/19/23                                                                                      
HUNG MING HUI A Teacher, Spec Ed JAMES W MARSHALL ELEMENTARY 5/25/2023 6/30/2023 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 5/25-6/30/23                                                                                        
JENKS DANA A Teacher, High School GEO WASHINGTON CARVER 2/2/2023 3/13/2023 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 2/2-3/13/23                                                                                       
JENKS DANA A Teacher, High School GEO WASHINGTON CARVER 3/14/2023 5/4/2023 LOA (UNPD) FMLA/CFRA 3/14/-5/4/23                                                                                    
LEATHERBY LAURA A Teacher, Resource, Special Ed. SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 2/9/2023 6/30/2023 LOA RTN 2/9/23                                                                                                          
LEONARD SHARON A Teacher, Elementary SUTTERVILLE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 2/4/2023 3/3/2023 EXT LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 2/4-3/3/23                                                                                    
LEONARD SHARON A Teacher, Elementary SUTTERVILLE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 3/4/2023 4/28/2023 EXT LOA (PD) 3/4-4/28/23                                                                                             
LINCOLN AMY A Teacher, K-8 ALICE BIRNEY WALDORF - K-8 3/14/2023 6/30/2023 LOA RTN (PD) 3/14/23                                                                                                  
LINDEMAN KEN A Teacher, Elementary ABRAHAM LINCOLN ELEMENTARY 2/3/2023 6/30/2023 ADMIN LOA (PD) 2/3/23                                                                                               
LLORENTE ANDREW A Teacher, High School WEST CAMPUS 3/6/2023 3/31/2023 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 3/6-3/31/23                                                                                       
LLORENTE ANDREW A Teacher, High School WEST CAMPUS 4/1/2023 6/30/2023 LOA RTN (PD) FMLA/CFRA 4/1/23                                                                                        
LOPEZ MABETH A Teacher, Elementary NICHOLAS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 2/2/2023 6/30/2023 LOA RTN (PD) FMLA/CFRA 2/2/23                                                                                          
MACGUIDWIN ANTONINA A Teacher, Elementary OAK RIDGE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 2/11/2023 2/14/2023 EXT LOA (PD) 2/11-14/23                                                                                            
MACGUIDWIN ANTONINA A Teacher, Elementary OAK RIDGE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 2/15/2023 2/28/2023 EXT LOA (PD) 2/15-28/23                                                                                            
MOUA XUE A Teacher, K-8 LEONARDO da VINCI ELEMENTARY 1/18/2023 2/14/2023 AMEND EXT LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 1/18-2/14/23                                                                             
MOUA XUE A Teacher, K-8 LEONARDO da VINCI ELEMENTARY 2/15/2023 2/20/2023 LOA (UNPD) FMLA/CFRA 2/15-2/20/23                                                                                    
MOUA XUE A Teacher, K-8 LEONARDO da VINCI ELEMENTARY 2/21/2023 6/30/2023 LOA RTN (UNPD) FMLA/CFRA 2/21/23                                                                                     
NARANJO MALLORY A Teacher, Elementary EARL WARREN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 4/10/2023 6/10/2023 LOA (PD) 4/10-6/10/23                                                                                              
POLADI FARRAH A Teacher, High School HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH SCHOOL 4/27/2023 6/30/2023 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 4/27-6/30/23                                                                                      
QUADRO KAYLA A Teacher, K-8 JOHN H. STILL - K-8 12/5/2022 2/21/2023 AMEND LOA (PD) 12/5-2/21/23                                                                                       
QUADRO KAYLA A Teacher, K-8 JOHN H. STILL - K-8 2/22/2023 5/24/2023 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 2/22-5/24/23                                                                                      
RIBET GEORGE A Teacher, Elementary PONY EXPRESS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 11/28/2022 3/3/2023 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 11/28/22-3/3/23                                                                                   
SANCHEZ LEANA A Teacher, Middle School SAM BRANNAN MIDDLE SCHOOL 2/23/2023 3/27/2023 LOA (PD) 2/23-3/27/23                                                                                                
SANCHEZ YESENIA A Teacher, Elementary FATHER K.B. KENNY - K-8 2/27/2023 4/16/2023 LOA (PD) 2/27-4/16/23                                                                                            
STEVENSEN WENDY A Teacher, Spec Ed ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 2/18/2023 5/21/2023 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 2/18-5/21/23                                                                                      
STEVENSEN WENDY A Teacher, Spec Ed ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 5/22/2023 6/15/2023 LOA (UNPD) 5/22-6/15/23                                                                                              
VAN LANINGHAM RAYMOND A Teacher, Spec Ed SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 1/1/2023 1/31/2023 EXT LOA (PD) 1/1-1/31/23                                                                                          
VAN LANINGHAM RAYMOND A Teacher, Spec Ed SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 2/1/2023 6/30/2023 LOA RTN (PD) 2/1/23                                                                                                    
WILSON MARIA-NGA A Teacher, Elementary ETHEL I. BAKER ELEMENTARY 2/1/2023 3/1/2023 LOA (PD )FMLA/CFRA 2/1-3/1/23                                                                                          
WRIGHT CORBIN A Teacher, Spec Ed MARK TWAIN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 2/1/2023 3/3/2023 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 2/1-3/3/23                                                                                        
YANG GER A Teacher, Elementary ELDER CREEK ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 12/7/2022 3/19/2023 ADMEND LOA (PD) 12/7/22-3/19/23                                                                          

RE-ASSIGN/STATUS CHANGE
DIBASILIO CARLA A Counselor, Middle School WILL C. WOOD MIDDLE SCHOOL 1/24/2023 6/30/2023 REA 1/24/23                                                                                                      
MCHUGH TRACEY B School Nurse HEALTH SERVICES 3/1/2023 6/30/2023 REA/STCHG 3/1/23                                                                                              
NITTA EMILY A Teacher, Resource, Special Ed. SEQUOIA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 2/6/2023 6/30/2023 REA 2/6/23                                                                                                           
PECHO AARON B Principal, Middle School ENGINEERING AND SCIENCES HS 2/20/2023 6/30/2023 REA/STCHG 2/20/23                                                                                                    
ZARATE YGNACIO B Principal, Middle School SAM BRANNAN MIDDLE SCHOOL 1/30/2023 6/30/2023 REA/STCHG 1/30/23                                                                                           

SEPARATE / RESIGN / RETIRE
AUGUSTO ANNE MARGARETTE B Teacher, Spec Ed JOHN H. STILL - K-8 8/25/2022 6/16/2023 SEP/RESIGN 6/16/23                                                                                                      
BANIECKI MARY-JO A Teacher, High School JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH SCHOOL 7/1/2022 6/16/2023 SEP/RETIRE 6/16/23                                                                                                      
BRANDT TERRI A Teacher, Middle School SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL 7/1/2022 6/16/2023 SEP / RETIRE 6/16/23                                                                                                    
BROWN MICA A Teacher, High School WEST CAMPUS 7/1/2022 6/16/2023 SEP / RETIRE 6/16/23                                                                                                    
CARNIE RUTH A Teacher, Spec Ed SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL 7/1/2022 6/19/2023 SEP / RETIRE 6/19/23                                                                                                
CURRY LISA A Teacher, High School CAPITAL CITY SCHOOL 7/1/2022 6/16/2023 SEP / RETIRE 6/16/23                                                                                               
GILDERSLEEVE KAJUANA 0 Teacher, Elementary PARKWAY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 10/20/2022 6/15/2023 SEP/RESIGN 6/15/23                                                                                                      

Sacramento City Unified School District Personnel Transactions
March 2, 2023



Page 2 of 2

O=Zero Yr Probationary; A=Permanent; B=First Yr Probationary; C=Second Yr Probationary; E=Temp Contract; I=Long Term Temp; J=Short Term Temp; Q=Limited Term Assignment-Evaluated; R=Limited Term Assignment-Not Evaluated

NameLast NameFirst JobPerm JobClass PrimeSite BegDate EndDate Comment
-------------------------- -------------------- ---------- ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ---------- ---------- -----------------------------------
GRAY DE SHANNUS A Counselor, Middle School SAM BRANNAN MIDDLE SCHOOL 7/1/2022 2/17/2023 SEP/RESIGN 2/17/23                                                                                                    
KULBIDYUK TAISIYA A School Psychologist SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 7/1/2022 2/15/2023 SEP/39MO 2/15/23                                                                                                     
LERICHE CYNTHIA A Teacher, Middle School ALBERT EINSTEIN MIDDLE SCHOOL 7/1/2022 2/24/2023 SEP/RETIRE 2/24/23                                                                                                      
LIVNY SHARON A Teacher, High School CAPITAL CITY SCHOOL 7/1/2022 6/16/2023 SEP/RETIRE 6/16/23                                                                                                    
LOVE JANET A School Social Worker SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 7/1/2022 6/22/2023 SEP/RETIRE 6/22/23                                                                                                     
MCCLAIN COLLEEN A Teacher, Elementary ETHEL I. BAKER ELEMENTARY 7/1/2022 6/16/2023 SEP/RESIGN 6/16/23                                                                                                      
MCCRAY DANITA A Teacher, Child Development EARLY LEARNING & CARE PROGRAMS 7/1/2022 4/3/2023 SEP/RETIRE 4/3/23                                                                                                       
MEGO MARIA A Teacher, High School C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH SCHOOL 7/1/2022 6/16/2023 SEP/RETIRE 6/16/23                                                                                                    
MILLER PATRICIA A Teacher, Elementary NICHOLAS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 7/1/2022 6/16/2023 SEP/RETIRE 6/16/23                                                                                                      
MYERS MARGARET A Teacher, Elementary CAMELLIA BASIC ELEMENTARY 7/1/2022 6/16/2023 SEP/RETIRE 6/16/23                                                                                                      
NEUBURGER VINCENT A Teacher, Middle School SUTTER MIDDLE SCHOOL 7/1/2022 6/16/2023 SEP/RETIRE 6/16/23                                                                                                    
OLIVARES HOLGA A Teacher, K-8 ALICE BIRNEY WALDORF - K-8 10/21/2022 6/16/2023 SEP/RETIRE 6/16/23                                                                                                    
PANTAGES MARYANGELA A Teacher, Elementary NICHOLAS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 7/1/2022 6/16/2023 SEP/RETIRE 6/16/23                                                                                                      
RUIZ ROSARIO A Teacher, Elementary NICHOLAS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 7/1/2022 6/16/2023 SEP/RETIRE 6/16/23                                                                                                      
SHUGARS ROBIN A Teacher, Spec Ed HIRAM W. JOHNSON HIGH SCHOOL 8/24/2022 6/30/2023 SEP/RETIRE 6/30/23                                                                                                      
SOMMER EMILY A Teacher, High School JOHN F. KENNEDY HIGH SCHOOL 7/1/2022 6/16/2023 SEP/RETIRE 6/16/23                                                                                                      
ZUNGRI DOMINGO A Teacher, High School ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 7/1/2022 6/16/2023 SEP/RETIRE 6/16/23                                                                                                    

TRANSFER
VALDEZ CHRISTINE A Teacher, Spec Ed LUTHER BURBANK HIGH SCHOOL 1/30/2023 6/30/2023 TR 1/30/23                                                                                               



Page 1 of 2

O=Zero Yr Probationary; A=Permanent; B=First Yr Probationary; C=Second Yr Probationary; E=Temp Contract; I=Long Term Temp; J=Short Term Temp; Q=Limited Term Assignment-Evaluated; R=Limited Term Assignment-Not Evaluated

Attachment 2:  CLASSIFIED 3/2/2023

NameLast NameFirst JobPerm JobClass PrimeSite BegDate EndDate Comment
-------------------------- -------------------- ---------- ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ---------- ---------- -----------------------------------
EMPLOY/ REEMPLOY
ARROYO-CARRILLO RAYNA B Morning Duty ETHEL PHILLIPS ELEMENTARY 2/2/2023 6/30/2023 REEMPLOY PROB 2/2/23                                                                                                     
ARROYO-CARRILLO RAYNA B Noon Duty ETHEL PHILLIPS ELEMENTARY 2/2/2023 6/30/2023 REEMPLOY PROB 2/2/23                                                                                                     
CEJA RODRIGUEZ JOSE B Custodian JAMES W MARSHALL ELEMENTARY 1/26/2023 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 1/26/23                                                                                                     
CRANERT SARAH B Inst Aid, Spec Ed C. K. McCLATCHY HIGH SCHOOL 2/14/2023 6/30/2023 REEMPLOY PROB 2/14/23                                                                                                  
CRONJAGER CONNOR B Warehouse Worker DISTRIBUTION SERVICES 9/1/2022 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 9/1/22                                                                                                   
DE GOMEZ MARTHA A Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 2/6/2023 2/14/2023 REEMPLOY 39MO 2/6/23                                                                                                 
DIAZ GABRIEL B Career Information Technician ROSEMONT HIGH SCHOOL 2/15/2023 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 2/15/23                                                                                                    
ELIZALDE MARIELA B Inst Aid, Spec Ed CESAR CHAVEZ INTERMEDIATE 1/31/2023 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 1/31/23                                                                                                     
FERREYRA BARRAGAN VERONICA B Noon Duty WOODBINE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 2/1/2023 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 2/1/23                                                                                                      
GRAY KADEESHA B Inst Aid, Spec Ed PARKWAY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 1/26/2023 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 1/26/23                                                                                                     
GUZMAN BARAHONA JUAN B Tech Support Spec II TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 2/14/2023 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 2/14/23                                                                                                    
HERNANDEZ ROSA B Noon Duty FATHER K.B. KENNY - K-8 1/26/2023 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 1/26/23                                                                                                     
HESS DOREENE B School Community Liaison GOLDEN EMPIRE ELEMENTARY 1/23/2023 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 1/23/23                                                                                                     
JOHNSON PAMELA B Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 2/14/2023 6/30/2023 REEMPLOY PROB 2/14/23                                                                                                  
TAGACA EDWARD B Office Tchncn III SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 2/21/2023 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 2/21/23                                                                                                  
WEBB DOMINIQUE B Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 2/6/2023 6/30/2023 EMPLOY PROB 2/6/23                                                                                                   

LEAVES
ALVARADO ANTHONY B Facilities Maint Laborer I FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 2/14/2023 2/24/2023 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 2/14/23-2/24/23                                                                                        
ASKEW STEVEN B Facilities Maint Laborer I FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 1/14/2023 2/13/2023 LOA RTN (PD) FMLA/CFRA 1/14/23                                                                                          
ASKEW STEVEN B Facilities Maint Laborer I FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 2/14/2023 2/24/2023 LOA (PD) FMLA/CFRA 2/14/23-2/24/23                                                                                        
DEARY NANCY A Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 2/1/2023 2/14/2023 EXT LOA (PD) 2/1/23-2/14/23                                                                        
HUG JOHN A Carpenter FACILITIES MAINTENANCE 2/10/2023 6/30/2023 LOA RTN (PD) 2/10/23                                                                                                   
KORGE DEBRA A Inst Aid, Spec Ed ROSA PARKS MIDDLE SCHOOL 3/1/2023 6/30/2023 EXT LOA RTN (PD) 3/1/23                                                                                              
LIGGINS ESTHER A Inst Aid, Spec Ed LEATAATA FLOYD ELEMENTARY 2/14/2023 3/26/2023 LOA (PD) 2/14-3/26/23                                                                                                  
LOPEZ-LARIOS MONICA B Child Welfare & Att Spec ENROLLMENT CENTER 2/9/2023 6/30/2023 LOA RTN 2/9/23                                                                                                          
MARROQUIN MAURILEA A School Plant Ops Mngr I WOODBINE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 1/8/2023 4/4/2023 EXT LOA (PD) 1/8-4/4/23                                                                                                
NEDERVELD KELSEY A Asst Dir Nutrition Services NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 2/5/2023 2/11/2023 EXT LOA (PD) 2/5-2/11/23                                                                                 
NEDERVELD KELSEY A Asst Dir Nutrition Services NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 2/12/2023 6/30/2023 LOA RTN (PD) 2/12/23                                                                                              
RODRIGUEZ SONIA B Inst Aid, Spec Ed SEQUOIA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 2/8/2023 3/30/2023 LOA (PD) 2/8-3/30/23                                                                                               
ROSE ROBBIE B Noon Duty PETER BURNETT ELEMENTARY 2/1/2023 4/30/2023 ADMIN LOA (PD) 2/1/23                                                                                               
VANG KIA B Inst Aid, Spec Ed MATSUYAMA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 2/9/2023 4/11/2023 LOA (PD) 2/9-4/11/23                                                                                                   
WALL REBECCA B Health Services Technician HEALTH SERVICES 7/1/2022 6/30/2023 AMEND LOA (PD) INTERM FMLA/CFRA 2/20-3/28/23                                                                    
WRIGHT MICHAEL A Inst Aid, Spec Ed LUTHER BURBANK HIGH SCHOOL 2/8/2023 3/8/2023 LOA (PD) 2/8-3/8/23                                                                                                  

RE-ASSIGN/STATUS CHANGE
AFABLE EDUARDO A Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 2/21/2023 6/30/2023 REA/STCHG 2/21/23                                                                                                  
ALDAMA ERNEST A Mgr II, Purchasing Svcs PURCHASING SERVICES 2/10/2023 6/30/2023 REA/STCHG 2/10/23                                                                                                 
CHU MELODY A Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 2/21/2023 2/28/2023 REA/STCHG 2/21/23                                                                                                       
DE GOMEZ MARTHA A Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 2/15/2023 6/30/2023 REA/STCHG 2/15/23                                                                                             
FREEMAN ERMA A Health Aide, Spec Ed HEALTH SERVICES 9/1/2022 6/30/2023 REA 9/1/22                                                                                                              
ISAIS PRISILA B Sup I, Sch, Family, Comm Prt PARENT ENGAGEMENT 2/10/2023 6/30/2023 REA/STCHG 2/10/23                                                                                                 
KISER-STODDEN SANDY A Employee Compensation Analyst EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION 2/6/2023 6/30/2023 REA/STCHG 2/6/23                                                                                               
PENG CHI CHENG B School Plant Ops Mngr I HUBERT H BANCROFT ELEMENTARY 1/17/2023 1/31/2023 REA/STCHG 1/17/23                                                                                                   
SCHMIDT CAYITANA A Clerk II CALIFORNIA MIDDLE SCHOOL 10/7/2022 6/30/2023 STCHG 10/7/22                                                                                                   
ZAMORA HERNANDEZ ABRIL A Bus Driver TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 2/16/2023 6/30/2023 STCHG 2/16/23                                                                                                    

SEPARATE / RESIGN / RETIRE
BLACK SAMUEL B School Plant Ops Mngr I CAROLINE WENZEL ELEMENTARY 10/10/2022 1/26/2023 SEP/RESIGN 1/26/23                                                                                                      
CUEVAS LORENA A Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 7/1/2022 2/14/2023 SEP/39MO 2/14/23                                                                                                     
DEARY NANCY A Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 2/1/2023 2/14/2023 SEP/39MO 2/14/23                                                                                                     
GILBERT MICHELLE A Speech-Lang Pathology Asst SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 1/1/2023 2/14/2023 SEP/39MO 2/14/23                                                                                                     
GREGG JOAKIMA A School Office Manager I PETER BURNETT ELEMENTARY 7/1/2022 2/3/2023 SEP/RESIGN 2/3/23                                                                                                       
HILLIARD DANIELLE A Food Service Assistant NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 1/14/2023 2/14/2023 SEP/39MO 2/14/23                                                                                                     
HUFF BETH A Food Service Lead, School Site NUTRITION SERVICES DEPARTMENT 3/1/2023 6/15/2023 SEP/RETIRE 6/15/23                                                                                                     

Sacramento City Unified School District Personnel Transactions
March 2, 2023



Page 2 of 2

O=Zero Yr Probationary; A=Permanent; B=First Yr Probationary; C=Second Yr Probationary; E=Temp Contract; I=Long Term Temp; J=Short Term Temp; Q=Limited Term Assignment-Evaluated; R=Limited Term Assignment-Not Evaluated

NameLast NameFirst JobPerm JobClass PrimeSite BegDate EndDate Comment
-------------------------- -------------------- ---------- ------------------------------ ------------------------------ ---------- ---------- -----------------------------------
JOHNSON LONNIE B Lead Campus Supervisor SAFE SCHOOLS OFFICE 10/24/2022 2/6/2023 SEP/TERM 2/6/23                                                                                                         
LIEMTHONGSAMOUT LA B Accts Payable Lead Technician ACCOUNTING SERVICES DEPARTMENT 1/21/2023 3/3/2023 SEP/RESIGN 3/3/23                                                                                                       
MOBLSAZ MEHRAN A IEP Desig Inst Para-Sp Ed GOLDEN EMPIRE ELEMENTARY 7/1/2022 6/15/2023 SEP/RETIRE 6/15/23                                                                                                      
REBUYON ROLAND A Education Entrepreneur CHARLES A. JONES CAREER & ED 7/1/2022 6/30/2023 SEP/RETIRE 6/30/23                                                                                                      
SIMS D'ASIA B Inst Aid, Spec Ed ENGINEERING AND SCIENCES HS 9/1/2022 1/23/2023 SEP/RESIGN 1/23/23                                                                                                      
TRAYLOR TISHANNA B Inst Aid, Spec Ed ALBERT EINSTEIN MIDDLE SCHOOL 10/3/2022 1/20/2023 SEP/RESIGN 1/20/23                                                                                                    
VASQUEZ RENDEROS ROXANA B Child Care Attendant, Chld Dev EARLY LEARNING & CARE PROGRAMS 12/12/2022 2/15/2023 SEP/RESIGN 2/15/23                                                                                                      

TRANSFER
HARRIS ALONA A Clerk II MATSUYAMA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 2/6/2023 6/30/2023 TR 2/6/23                                                                                              



Page 1 of 1 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 13.1c 

 
Meeting Date:  March 2, 2023 
  
Subject:  Approve Minutes for the February 16, 2023 Regular Board of Education 

Meeting 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Superintendent’s Office 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Minutes for the February 16, 2023, Regular Board of 
Education Meeting. 
 
Background/Rationale:  None 
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Empowerment 
 
Documents Attached: 
1. Minutes of the February 16, 2023, Regular Board of Education Meeting 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: N/A 
Submitted by:  Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 
Approved by:  Jorge A. Agular, Superintendent 



Board Agenda, February 16, 2023 
 

1 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
MEETING AND WORKSHOP  

 

 
Board of Education Members    
Chinua Rhodes, President (Trustee Area 5) 
Lavinia Grace Phillips, Vice President (Trustee Area 7) 
Jasjit Singh, Second Vice President (Trustee Area 2) 
Tara Jeane (Trustee Area 1) 
Christina Pritchett (Trustee Area 3) 
Jamee Villa (Trustee Area 4) 
Taylor Kayatta (Trustee Area 6) 
Liam McGurk, Student Member 
 

Thursday, February 16, 2023 
4:30 p.m. Closed Session  

6:30 p.m. Open Session 
 

Serna Center 
Community Conference Rooms 

5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA  95824 

 

MINUTES 
 

2022/23-20 
 

       Allotted Time 
 1.0 OPEN SESSION / CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL 

 
The meeting was called to order at 4:31 p.m. by President Rhodes. 
 
Members Present: 
Member Rhodes 
Member Kayatta 
Member Villa 
Member Jeane 

 
Members Absent: 
Member Phillips 
Member Singh 
Member Pritchett 

 
 

 2.0 ANNOUNCEMENT AND PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING ITEMS TO BE 
DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION 

 
No public comment 

 
 3.0  CLOSED SESSION 

 
 While the Brown Act creates broad public access rights to the meetings of the Board of Education, it also  

recognizes the legitimate need to conduct some of its meetings outside of the public eye.  Closed session 
meetings are specifically defined and limited in scope.  They primarily involve personnel issues, pending 
litigation, labor negotiations, and real property matters.  

 



Board Agenda, February 16, 2023 
 

2 

 3.1 Government Code 54956.9 - Conference with Legal Counsel: 
a) Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(2) of Government 

Code section 54956.9 (One Potential Case) 
b) Existing litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(1) of Government Code section 

54956.9 (Sacramento County Superior Court case No. 2:19-cv-01768-DAD-
KJN) 

 
3.2 Government Code 54957.6 (a) and (b) Negotiations/Collective Bargaining SCTA 

SEIU, TCS, Teamsters, UPE, Non-Represented/Confidential Management  
(District Representative Pam Manwiller) 

 
3.3 Government Code 54957 – Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release 

 
           3.4       Government Code 54957 – Public Employee Appointment 
                        a) Principal, Crocker/Riverside 
 

3.4 Government Code 54956.8-Conference with Real Property Negotiators 
Property: 3200, 3301 37th Avenue, Sacramento, CA 95824 

 Agency Negotiator:  Superintendent or designee 
Negotiating Parties:  SCUSD and La Familia 
Under Negotiation:  Price and Terms 

 
 4.0 CALL BACK TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
The meeting was called back to order at 6:33 p.m. by President Rhodes. 
 
4.1 The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Superintendent Aguilar 
 
4.2 Broadcast Statement was presented by Student Board Member McGurk 
 
4.3 Stellar Student was introduced by Board Member Lavinia Grace Phillips 

 
 5.0 ANNOUNCEMENT OF ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 

 
There was 1 announcement that came out of closed session: 
- By a vote of 6 to 0 with Board Member Pritchett absent the Board approved the 

appointment of Marty Tateishi as Principal of Crocker/Riverside. 
 

 6.0 AGENDA ADOPTION 
 

President Rhodes made a motion to adopt the agenda with all in favor. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7.0 PUBLIC COMMENT                                                                                             
 
Members of the public may address the Board on non-agenda items that are within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the Board.  Public comment may be (1) emailed to publiccomment@scusd.edu; (2) 
submitted in writing through the District’s website at https://www.scusd.edu/submit-public-comment; 
or (3) provided in-person at the meeting.  The submission deadline for written public comments shall 
be no later than noon on the day of the meeting.  If you intend to address the Board in-person, please 
fill out a yellow card available at the entrance.  Speakers may be called in the order that requests are 
received, or grouped by subject area.  We ask that comments are limited to two (2) minutes with no 
more than 15 minutes per single topic so that as many people as possible may be heard.  By law, the 



Board Agenda, February 16, 2023 
 

3 

Board is allowed to take action only on items on the agenda.  The Board may, at its discretion, refer a 
matter to district staff or calendar the issue for future discussion. 
 
David Fisher and Nikki Milevsky shared their SCTA report during this time. Mr. Fisher 
shared how the April 2022 strike settlement created a recruitment and retention 
committee. Mr. Fisher shared the importance of having high quality educators, and how 
the staffing crisis within SCUSD should be a priority. Mr. Fisher recommended that at 
least every month, the District provide a comprehensive report to the school Board that 
details its progress dealing with vacancies (including the school site, vacancies, FTE 
status, and how long the position has been vacant). To be a destination District, SCUSD 
has to lead the way in competitive wages, benefits, and working conditions. Additional 
steps for professional development were shared as well as ethical recruitment. Other 
components that were mentioned include: outreach to Sac State and other institutions of 
education training, revisit the high school to teaching position pathway, classified 
school employee teacher credential program, robust new teacher orientation and 
support, recruitment of student teachers already working in SCUSD, streamlining the 
hiring process, and improving credentialing issues. 
 
April Ybarra with yielded time from John Borsos commented on community schools and 
how the evaluation and assessment process is taking place 
 

 
 8.0 SPECIAL PRESENTATION  

 
 
 
 
 
 

8.1 National Eating Disorder Awareness  
           Resolution No. 3307 (Victoria Flores) 

 
           Victoria Flores shared some highlights on National 
            Eating Disorder Awareness Week, and how we can be 

better aware of early detection, intervention, and overall 
            awareness to make a positive difference. 28.8 million 
            Americans will be impacted at some time in their life 
            with an eating disorder. Resolution No. 3307 recognizes 
            the importance of supporting the health and wellbeing of  
            students, and has undertaken efforts leveraging COVID 
            funds to expand social, emotional, physical, and mental 
           health staffing to address the needs of our students. 
 
            Public Comment: 
            None 
 
            Board Comment:   
           None 
 
           President Rhodes made a motion to approve the 
           resolution and the Board voted unanimously 6-0 with  
          Member Pritchett absent. 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
                 
                 



Board Agenda, February 16, 2023 
 

4 

 
           8.2      Building Academic Office Coherence to Support Student 
                     Achievement (Yvonne Wright) 
 
                     Yvonne Wright shared the implications of student  
                     outcomes, SCUSD’s strategic priority areas and academic  
                     coherence, and next steps which include formally 
                     integrating the work of Academic Office departments and  
                     formally integrating the work of departments that have  
                    operated outside of the Academic Office. 
 
                    Public Comment; 
                    April Ybarra asked how the intention is going to be made  
                    on high quality professional development, and how do we  
                    know it will be effective. She also asked when teacher and  
                    admins at the school sites are included to figure out what  
                    their needs are in regard to professional development. 
 
                    Board Comment: 
                    Member Singh thanked Yvonne for her presentation.  
                    Member Singh would like to see more collaboration  
                    between staff, teacher, and labor partners for collective  
                    ideas.  
                    Member Phillips wants Ms. Wright to know that the  
                    current system needs to be torn apart and rebuilt. Member  
                    Phillips said that she’s knows that there are deficits and  
                    that District is failing our students, but she wants Ms.  
                    Wright to know that she her support as well as the rest of  
                    the Board to support in the changes that need to be made. 
                    Member Kayatta wanted to reiterate what Member  
                    Phillips’ said and that Ms. Wright has his support as well. 
                    Member Villa shared that she appreciated Yvonne’s  
                    insight and appreciates her for taking the time to meet and  
                    collaborate with staff. In the future, Member Villa would  
                    like to see a similar presentation, but with staff. She would  
                    love to see examples given on challenges, solutions, goals, 
                    and what they are seeing, so the Board can better support. 
                    Member Jeane wanted to know why curriculum  
                    instruction and professional learning were combined and  
                    asked what the role is for Instructional Superintendents.  
                    Member Jeane wants to make sure that teachers are part  
                    of this overall process. 
                    Member Rhodes knows that there are challenges, but he is  
                    happy to hear about the abilities that were shared. 
              
 
           8.3      Facilities Master Plan Equity Index Update  
                    (Rose Ramos) 
                  
                     Nathaniel Browning and Chris Ralston presented on the  



Board Agenda, February 16, 2023 
 

5 

                     background of the Facilities Master Plan, how SCUSD’s  
                     Facilities Master Plan is different, why SCUSD’s  
                     Facilities Master Plan is different, project priority  
                     methodology, and initial projects identified. The Facilities  
                     Master Plan is a collection of data that outlines the new  
                     construction, modernization, and/or deferred maintenance 
                     of schools. It provides rationale for the use of capital  
                     project funds. Traditional master plans rely on facilities  
                     condition, enrollment or capacity trends and academic  
                     programs for prioritizing projects. 
 
                   Public Comment:  
                   Terrence Gladney wanted to put on the record that District  
                   staff was awarded for the Equity Index, but without Dr.  
                   Hernandez and himself making a continuous push to infuse  
                   equity in the process, and calling for the District to meet  
                   the challenge, it would not exist. This District is forever  
                   indebted to Dr. Hernandez not only for his work around  
                   this, but also the previous school closures, and his honest,  
                   thoughtful, and thorough assessment of what  
                   neighborhoods look like and how they were impacted with  
                   the absence of those neighborhood schools. Mr. Gladney 
                   shared that we can all do better, and this is a start, but if  
                   we don’t apply the same line of thinking across everything  
                  and every component of our District, then this just sits in a  
                  silo, like so many other things in this District. 
                  April Ybarra wanted to thank parents like, Terrence  

Gladney that help push this work forward. She also wanted 
to thank Nathaniel for his great work on this. When we talk 
about community schools and community engagement, 
Oakridge is exemplary when it comes to that. The work 
Daniel Roletti has invested into that school is a testament in 
the outcome in the community that came out to participate. 
Ms. Ybarra has a high standard for community engagement, 
because she has seen it and knows it can be done. 

                    
                 Board Comment: 
                 Member Jeane wanted to share that the needs of facilities is   

not funded annually, and we have to go other places for our 
resources to be able to do this kind of work. She is excited 
that we have a master plan, but wanted to know how we are 
funding this. Nathaniel shared that we passed a 750 million 
dollar bond in March 2020, there are other capitol project 
funding mechanisms such as developers’ fees, and working 
on any type of state reimbursements. 

                 Member Villa shared that she loves that every presentation 
shows the inequities but also the solutions that we are 
continuing to build on. Member Villa would love to see 
where the dollars are being to use and the impact that the 
money is making for our students.  



Board Agenda, February 16, 2023 
 

6 

                  Member Phillips thanked Nathaniel for showing the 
imbalance and inequity. Member Phillips wants to make 
sure that we are continuing to address the racial disparity. 
At some point, she would like to address how we support 
enrollment of neighborhood kids into our neighborhood 
schools, because those schools are there for them and it 
helps with so many of the problems that families encounter 
when they are marginalized. Member Phillips also wanted 
to put out if there’s a way to not be a part of the open 
enrollment program anymore.  

                 Member Singh wanted to share that an important thing to 
understand that as a Board, Board members have their 
trustee areas, but they really serve all 40,000 students, and 
we need to have a great district, not a couple of great 
schools. He really appreciates the work that is being done, 
and this is the type of equity work that we need to see across 
the district. Member Singh also shared that we would like to 
support and advocate where needed to support the district’s 
students. 

                 Member Phillips highlighted the equitable by design map 
that was shared during the presentation. 

 
 
 

 9.0 BOARD WORKSHOPS/STRATEGIC PLAN AND OTHER INITIATIVES 
 

 
 
 
 

9.1     SEIU Sunshine Proposal (Pam Manwiller) 
 
          Superintendent Aguilar shared that this item is in the 
          agenda packet, and simply sharing that SEIU has informed  
          us of the article that they will be negotiating with the  
          District. 

 
 

10.0 BOARD WORKSHOPS/STRATEGIC PLAN AND OTHER 
INITIATIVES 

 
 
            10.1    District SCTA Sunshine Proposal (Pam Manwiller) 
 

Dulcinea Grantham who serves as outside Legal Council 
for the District and a part of the District’s negotiation’s 
team with SCTA for those negotiations. Dulcinea is filling 
in for the District’s Lead Negotiator, Pam Manwiller, to a 
reopener negotiation with SCTA. Within negotiations, the 
District and SCTA have agreed to resume negotiations for 
the 2022-23 school with specific articles to be discussed. 
Article 12 which addresses employee compensation would 
be automatically opened. The agreement also indicated 
that the District and SCTA could each select one additional 
article to negotiate in the 2022-23 school year. SCTA 



Board Agenda, February 16, 2023 
 

7 

sunshined in December and the District is sunshining 
tonight. Before the Board tonight, is the Districts initial 
proposal for these reopener negotiations for the 2022-23 
school year. This proposal recognizes that Article 12 is 
opened for employee compensation. and it identifies the 
District’s selected Article 8 which relates to employee 
transfers. The District respectfully requests that these 
reopeners for the governing Board, adopt the initial 
proposal for these reopener negotiations after the public 
hearing and Board discussion. 
 
Public Comment: 
None 
 
Board Comment:  
None 
 
The motion passed with a vote of 6-0 with Member 
Pritchett absent. 

 
 

 11.0 CONSENT AGENDA                                                                                                     
Generally routine items are approved by one motion without discussion.  The Superintendent or a Board 
member may request an item be pulled from the consent agenda and voted upon separately. 

 
11.1   Items Subject or Not Subject to Closed Session: 

 
11.1a Approve Grants, Entitlements and Other Income Agreements, Ratification of 

Other Agreements, Approval of Bid Awards, Approval of Declared Surplus 
Materials and Equipment, Change Notices and Notices of Completion  

  (Rose Ramos) 
 
11.1b Approve Business and Financial Report, Warrants, Checks and Electronic 

Transfers issued for the Period of January 1-31 (Rose Ramos) 
 

11.1c Approve Donations to the District for the Period of January 1-31, 2023 
 (Rose Ramos) 

 
11.1d Approve Update of Board Policy Titles and Numbers (Lisa Allen) 

 
11.1e  Approve Board Policy 6142.6- Visual Performing Arts Education (Charles 

Deangelus) 
 
11.1f  Approve Minutes for the February 2, 2023, Regular Board of Education Meeting 

(Jorge A. Aguilar) 
 
11.1g  Approve C.K. McClatchy Portugal and Spain Field Trip April 1-8, 2023 (Lisa 

Allen and Vanessa Buitrago) 
 
11.1h  Approve C.K. McClatchy New York City Field Trip April 2-7, 2023 ( Lisa Allen 

and Vanessa Buitrago) 



Board Agenda, February 16, 2023 
 

8 

 
11.1i  Approve John F. Kennedy field trip to Washington, D.C. May 1-5, 2023 (Lisa Allen 

and Tuan Doung) 
 
11.1j  Approve Minutes for the August 11, 2022, Regular Board of Education Meeting 

(Jorge A. Aguilar) 
 
11.1k  Approve Minutes for the September 8, 2022, Regular Board of Education Meeting 

(Jorge A. Aguilar) 
 
11.1l  Approve Minutes for the September 15, 2022, Regular Board of Education Meeting 

(Jorge A. Aguilar) 
 
11.1m  Approve Minutes for the October 6, 2022, Regular Board of Education Meeting 

(Jorge A. Aguilar) 
 

11.1n  Approve Personnel Transactions (Cancy McArn) 
 
 
Member Singh asked to pull 11.1a for discussion. Member Singh clarified that he would 
like to pull the specific contracted listed as Kami Kalay. Member Jeane would like to pull 
the contract for Margarita Maldanado from 11.1a as well.  
 
Member Singh made a motion with a second from Member Villa and all members 
approving to vote on all remaining consent agenda items except the two that were pulled. 
The Board approved all other items with a vote of 6-0 with Member Pritchett absent. 
 
Member Singh wanted to figure out if there is a possibility to hire someone on who 
wanted to do limited role work as a part-time employee, instead of an independent 
contractor. Member Singh feels that it will be more beneficial to us to hire people as 
staff. Superintendent wanted Ms. Ramos to share the circumstances that led to the 
decision to hire an independent contractor. Ms. Ramos shared that this work is to 
oversee the ESSER funds which is being paid out of ESSER, not to replace her previous 
position which has been filled by someone else. All these one-time funds that we did get, 
we have a ton of workload trying to process all of the payments and bringing in all of the 
services. She stated that we do need help in that area due to the amount of workload. 
Also, with the compliance of the reporting that goes with those funds. It is a temporary 
fix and that a position that is intended to last beyond Ms. Kalay’s work ending once all 
the ESSER funds are spent.  
Member Jeane wanted to clarify salary amounts and increases. Member Jeane was 
surprised that the contracts that were previously pulled from the agenda were put back 
on the agenda without having a discussion or having them on the agenda. Member Jeane 
asked that these contracts be brought back to a future meeting and be put on the agenda 
for discussion to get information and public comment. 
 
Public Comment: 
Nikki Milevsky strongly urged the Board to have further discussion on these contracts. 
The amount for the contracts is outrageous and needs to be clarified and brought the 
Board for further discussion. 
 



Board Agenda, February 16, 2023 
 

9 

Member Jeane moved for these contracts be pushed to a further meeting to be put on the 
agenda for discussion. 
Member Kayatta wanted to reiterate that it was inappropriate that these two contracts 
ended up back on the agenda without being further discussed. Member Kayatta feels that 
they should have both been put on the agenda separately. He feels like this is something 
that should not be pulled offline for discussion, but should be available to the public. If 
there is sensitive information, sure, they can be discussed in private. Member Kayatta 
shared that for the Kami Kalay contract, the District has a specific need that is unable to 
be filled by Ms. Ramos’ current staff. There are multiple openings in Ms. Ramos’ 
department, and she is impacted in the way that she needs the additional support. With 
that information he received, he doesn’t necessarily agree with encouraging outside 
contracting, but in this case, he feels comfortable in voting “yes” for this contract for 
provide staff that additional support needed. For Ms. Maldanado’s contract, his 
understanding is that she was hired to serve an integral role in SEUI 10-1. He was not 
involved with approving that original contract, and does not feel like there is a need to 
hire an independent contractor for that work. Member Kayatta that key negotiations 
should be brought in-house with people that are invested in the District. Member Kayatta 
doesn’t think that we need to bring this back to a future meeting, because we all have the 
information needed to make a decision tonight. Member Kayatta’s alternative motion is 
to approve the contract with Kami Kalay and vote “no” for the contract for Margarita 
Maldanado. 
Member Villa wanted to share that ESSER work is huge, and our job as a Board is to 
help our staff when they need, because the community counts on us and it impacts our 
students and services. 
Member Singh shared for Margarita Maldanado, we are 4-months into a contract that 
was never approved, and wants information on who approved Ms. Maldanado to 
continue working since October 24, 2022. Superintendent Aguilar shared that he will 
continue to take comments by the Board to make improvements, and will look at the 
contracts more closely and carefully to see where our needs are.  
Member Kayatta clarified that the motion he presented to make two separate votes on the 
contracts that were pulled. The first being to vote”yes” on the Kalay contract and “no” 
on the Maldanado contract. 
Member Singh shared that Member Jeane brought up an important about the contract 
amount, and asked Ms. Ramos to come up and clarify. Ms. Ramos shared that there was 
a typo on the amount. The correct amount is $198,000 not the $270,000. This contract is 
being paid with ESSER 3 funds not the unrestricted general funds. 
 
The Board took a vote of 3-3 with Member Pritchett absent on Member Kayatta’s motion 
to vote on both contracts tonight. There was not a majority vote, so the motion did not 
pass. 
 
The Board took a vote 0f 4-2 with Member Pritchett absent on Member Jeane’s motion to 
bring both contracts back at a future meeting and to have them on the agenda for 
discussion as an action item. 
  

 
 12.0 BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION/REPORTS Receive Information 

      12.1 Business and Financial Information: 
Enrollment Report-Month 4, Ending Friday, December 16,2022 and P.O. Board Report 
Period of December 15,2022 through January 14, 2023 (Rose Ramos) 



Board Agenda, February 16, 2023 
 

10 

 
       12.2 Head Start/Early Head Start Required Reports 

 
             Member Rhodes shared that the Enrollment Report was not included in the packet, and 

will be included in the agenda packet for March 2nd.  
 

. 13.0 FUTURE BOARD MEETING DATES / LOCATIONS 
 

 March 2, 2023, 4:30 p.m. Closed Session, 6:30 p.m. Open Session, Serna Center,  
5735 47th Avenue, Community Room, Regular Board Meeting 
 

 March 16, 2023, 4:30 p.m. Closed Session, 6:30 p.m. Open Session, Serna Center,  
5735 47th Avenue, Community Room, Regular Board Meeting 
 
 

              Member Jeane was not sure why information sharing was not on the agenda since it 
appeared on the agenda last meeting, and wanted share out. Member Jeane thanked 
SCTA for their presentation and asked for a copy of The Code of Ethical International 
Recruitment and Employment of Teachers. Member Jeane wanted to let everyone in the 
public know that we have been having a lot of discussion around community schools and 
a 2-By has been scheduled to learn more information. A 2-By has also been scheduled for 
staffing and what that staffing looks like moving forward, and the budget realities around 
that. Member Jeane shared that she is not sure what happened regarding the 
communications and updates section on the agenda, but wants to make sure that we don’t 
do that again, because those communications are an important part of collaboration and 
working together. 

             Member Villa shared the West Campus gala coming up and the Wide Open Walls event 
taking place at Hiram Johnson High School. 

             Member Singh wanted to remind that all of our labor partners are invited to join the 
Wide Open Walls event. Member Singh shared that the TK enrollment is set to launch 
online on February 21st. Member Singh shared that the Know Your Rights Program will 
be moving forward for students at SCUSD, and solidifying a date to hold at Hiram 
Johnson.  

 
 

 14.0 ADJOURNMENT  
 
         The meeting was adjourned at 9:17pm by President Rhodes. 
 

 
          ____________________________________________ 
          Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent and Board Secretary 
 

NOTE:  The Sacramento City Unified School District encourages those with disabilities to participate fully 
in the public meeting process.  If you need a disability-related modification or accommodation, including 
auxiliary aids or services, to participate in the public meeting, please contact the Board of Education Office 
at (916) 643-9314 at least 48 hours before the scheduled Board of Education meeting so that we may make 
every reasonable effort to accommodate you.  [Government Code § 54953.2; Americans with Disabilities Act 
of 1990, § 202 (42 U.S.C. §12132)]   Any public records distributed to the Board of Education less than 72 
hours in advance of the meeting and relating to an open session item will be available on the District’s website 
at www.scusd.edu 

http://www.scusd.edu/


Page 1 of 1 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# 13.1d 

 
Meeting Date:  March 2, 2023 
  
Subject:  Approve Minutes for the October 13, 2022 Regular Board of Education 

Meeting 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Superintendent’s Office 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Minutes for the October 13, 2022, Regular Board of 
Education Meeting. 
 
Background/Rationale:  None 
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Empowerment 
 
Documents Attached: 
1. Minutes of the October 13, 2022, Regular Board of Education Meeting 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: N/A 
Submitted by:  Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 
Approved by:  Jorge A. Agular, Superintendent 



Board Agenda, October 13, 2022, Amended 
 

1 

 

            BOARD OF EDUCATION 
        MEETING AND WORKSHOP  

 

    AMENDED 
Board of Education Members    
Christina Pritchett, President (Trustee Area 3) 
Leticia Garcia, Vice President (Trustee Area 2) 
Chinua Rhodes, Second Vice President (Trustee Area 5) 
Lisa Murawski (Trustee Area 1) 
Jamee Villa (Trustee Area 4) 
Darrel Woo (Trustee Area 6) 
Lavinia Grace Phillips (Trustee Area 7) 
Liam McGurk, Student Member 
 

Thursday, October 13, 2022 
4:30 p.m. Closed Session  

6:30 p.m. Open Session 
 

Serna Center 
Community Conference Rooms 

5735 47th Avenue 
Sacramento, CA  95824 

 

MINUTES 
 

2022/23-7 
 

        
 1.0 OPEN SESSION / CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL 

 
This meeting was called to order at 4:37 p.m. by President Pritchett. 
 
Members Present: 
Member Villa 
Member Pritchett 
Member Garcia 
Member Woo 
 
Members Absent: 
Member Murawski  
Member Rhodes 
Members Phillips 

 
 2.0 ANNOUNCEMENT AND PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING ITEMS TO BE 

DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION 
 

George Raya commented on the property on 2718 G Street, and shared that his 
committee has been working with the Board on this for 6 years, and he wants to 
figure out how the property will be utilized. Mr. Araya doesn’t want to have to 
reeducate incoming Board Members on the history of the Old Marshall building, 
because it’s time consuming. He asked that the Board please finalize and sign a 
contract/sales agreement. 

 
 3.0  CLOSED SESSION 

 
 While the Brown Act creates broad public access rights to the meetings of the Board of Education, it also  



Board Agenda, October 13, 2022, Amended 
 

2 

recognizes the legitimate need to conduct some of its meetings outside of the public eye.  Closed session 
meetings are specifically defined and limited in scope.  They primarily involve personnel issues, pending 
litigation, labor negotiations, and real property matters.  

 
 3.1 Government Code 54956.9 - Conference with Legal Counsel: 

a) Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(2) of Government 
Code section 54956.9 (Two Potential Cases) 

b) Initiation of litigation pursuant to subdivision (d)(4) of Government Code 
section 54956.9 (One Potential Case) 

 
3.2 Government Code 54957.6 (a) and (b) Negotiations/Collective Bargaining SCTA 

SEIU, TCS, Teamsters, UPE, Non-Represented/Confidential Management  
(District Representative Pam Manwiller) 

 
3.3 Government Code 54957 – Public Employee Discipline/Dismissal/Release 
 
3.4 Government Code 54957 – Public Employee Appointment 

a) Chief Academic Officer 
 
 

3.5 Government Code 54956.8—Conference with Real Property Negotiators: 
   Property:  2718 G Street, Sacramento, CA 
   Agency Negotiator:  Superintendent or designee 
   Negotiating Parties:  SCUSD and Mogavero/Bardis Homes 
   Under Negotiation:  Price and Terms 

 
 4.0 CALL BACK TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
The meeting was called back to order at 6:42 p.m. by President Pritchett. 
 
4.1 The Pledge of allegiance was led by Superintendent Aguilar 
 
4.2 Broadcast Statement read by Student Member Liam McGurk 
 
4.3 Stellar Student Cody Jaydon Malicsi a 4th Grade Student from Golden Empire 
  Elementary will be introduced by President Pritchett 
            President Pritchett introduced Stellar Student Cody Jaydon Malicsi from Golden 
            Empire Elementary.  His best subject at school is Math and hobbies are  
            swimming and soccer and would like to be an Olympic swimmer and is a great 
            friend with a caring heart and also dedicated his swim meet to his Principal,  
            Dr. Easter calling this “Eagles for Easter”, and also raised $3000 in  
           Dr. Easter’s name and donating it to Golden Empire Elementary.  

 
 5.0 ANNOUNCEMENT OF ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 

 
There were no announcements that came out of closed session this evening. 
 

 
 

6.0 AGENDA ADOPTION 
 
President Pritchett requested a motion, Board all approved. 
 



Board Agenda, October 13, 2022, Amended 
 

3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7.0 PUBLIC COMMENT 
Members of the public may address the Board on non-agenda items that are within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the Board.  Please fill out a yellow card available at the entrance.  Speakers may be called in 
the order that requests are received, or grouped by subject area.  We ask that comments are limited to two 
(2) minutes with no more than 15 minutes per single topic so that as many people as possible may be heard.  
By law, the Board is allowed to take action only on items on the agenda.  The Board may, at its discretion, 
refer a matter to district staff or calendar the issue for future discussion.   

                                                                                            
             President Pritchett wanted to recognize Dr. Easter’s Husband, Richard, and thanked   
             him for coming out to support Cody. 

 
             Mohammad Mikbel  who is a student at McGeorge School of Law speaking on  
             recognizing two Muslim holidays to be on the academic school calendar as many  
             Muslim students are forced to choose between celebrating these holidays or to  
             go to school. By recognizing these two days on the academic calendar, students 
             will be able to celebrate these holidays without missing classes.  By recognizing  
             these holidays, it will enable Muslim students to be proud of their identity.  
              
             Suzanne Marczak, Managing Director for Northern California/Central Valley for 
             California Charter Schools Association shared The Charter School Act was passed 30  
             years ago which was to provide innovative schools to offer options to students who were 
            not having their needs met in a traditional school setting.  Ms. Marzak wanted to hear 
            the reading of the AB1505 compliant policy and has worked with Jesse Ramos to  
            make sure that their compliant according to law. Especially, to renewals under the 
            new tiered system. 
 
            Kaycee Tessitore, a law student at McGeorge School of Law requested to speak  
            on a program for Special Education PE. California has already started to incorporate 
            inclusive practices amongst the schools, but Ms. Tacitori would like to emphasize 
            Special Education PE. 
 
            Shelley Hoffman, a student at McGeorge School of Law requested to discuss  
            a mandatory personal finance course as it would create an environment for students 
           to learn, grow, and reach the real world either at junior college, universities or state  
           schools or choose to go into work after college. 
 
          Jean Shanley wishes to follow-up regarding the website from the last meeting. In looking 
          on the website she saw under “Health and Safety” how SCUSD is not currently  
          requiring vaccinations or testing mandates for students and staff stating that testing is  
          available to those in need.  
 
          David Fisher, President of Sacramento City Teachers Association (SCTA) stated  
          that for some reason, SCTA was left off the agenda along with several other labor and 
          advisory committees even though notification was made known to the Superintendent  
          and President Pritchett in accordance to the contract and along with April Ybarra 
          who wished to talk about Community Schools. 
          April Ybarra, a parent of two students who attend Hiram Johnson High School  
          asked the Board if they have reviewed the Community School Trailer Bill which Ms.  
         Ybarra provided a copy to the Board.  Ms. Ybarra highlighted some portions of the bill 
         with regards to its funding which is to be governed locally by the school site and its 



Board Agenda, October 13, 2022, Amended 
 

4 

        community, but noted that it is not meant to be overseen by an advisory committee. 
 
        Eduardo de Leon, Principal of Language Academy noted that Mr. De Leon’s school has 
        engaged with the community in collaboration with UC Davis Health and have a vaccine 
        clinic on site, they were privileged to invite U.S. Secretary of Human and Health Services 
        Javier Becerra to see good work in progress at one of Sacramento City Schools.  
 

  
 

 8.0 SPECIAL PRESENTATION  
 

 8.1 Approve Resolution No. 3293: Recognition of National 
School Bus Safety Week (October 17-21, 2022) 

  (Rose F. Ramos and Ron Hill) 
            
            Mr. Ron Hill, Director of Transportation Services 

presented Resolution No. 3293 National School Bus 
Safety which also provides pupil management and 
defensive driving as well as mandated evacuation 
training for all.  

            Students are learning the proper way to evacuate school  
            buses, learning how to remove a seat and open 

emergency doors and release roof hatches.  Eventually, 
they are able to identify which windows can be kicked 
out or opened to be used as emergency exits. 

 
             Public Comment: 
            None 
 
            Board Comment: 
            Member Villa shared that she remembers that training 

which is important in making sure that all our students 
are safe. 

            Member Woo said thank you to staff for taking care of 
our kids. 

 
            President Pritchett made a motion with a second by 

Member Woo. 
 
            Superintendent Aguilar took roll-call, and with a vote of 

6-0 with Member Murawski absent the resolution was 
approved.  

  
 

 

  8.2 Approve Resolution No. 3292: Recognition of 
Sacramento Poetry Day, October 26, 2022  

  (Chinua Rhodes and Charles “CJ” Deangelus)  
                

 



Board Agenda, October 13, 2022, Amended 
 

5 

            Member Rhodes presented the resolution and a poem 
was shared with the Board.  

 
            Board Member Rhodes makes a motion to approve 

Resolution No. 3292. President Pritchett requests 
second, made by Student Member McGurk. 

 
          Public Comments:None 
          Board Comment:None 
 
          Superintendent Aguilar took roll-call, and with vote of 
          5-1 with Member Phillips opposed, and Member 
         Murawski absent, the resolution was approved. 
 
 

 8.3 English Learner (EL) Master Plan Update  
  (Dr. Olga Simms) 
 
            Dr. Simms provides Master plan or EBS referring to 

Emerging Bilingual Students. Dr. Simms shared that we 
have failed to define and implement a coherent 
professional learning model focused on high-quality 
tier-one instruction within a multi-tiered system of 
supports for all students, resulting in unacceptably low 
achievement rates, and even lower among our most 
vulnerable students with significant racial 
disproportionality. Dr. Simms shared that if we develop 
and implement a district-wide, strategic, 3-year 
professional learning plan that defines high-quality, 
tier-one instruction for black and brown students within 
a multi-tiered system of supports and empower site 
leaders to engage staff in creating site-based. District-
aligned instructional frameworks tied to the School for 
Student Achievement, then, site leaders will have the 
support and capacity to implement and monitor effective 
tier-one instruction practices within our MTSS 
structure.  

           
            Public Comment: 
            April Ybarra commented on the EL presentation and 

thanked Dr. Simms as this plan gives hope and 
recognizes that there are others in the department that 
have helped in the pathway of long-term EL’s. 

 
            Board Comment: 
            Member Garcia wished to thank all who have helped in 

getting this program in order. Member Garcia wanted 
to clarify if the students that are being mentioned in the 
presentation are classified or not. She also wanted to 

 



Board Agenda, October 13, 2022, Amended 
 

6 

clarify how the progress between being identified as an 
emergent bilingual and how we progress to 
reclassification. Member Garcia feels that we are 
neglecting student opportunities. Dr. Simms said that by 
law we have to reclassify students. Dr. Simms shared 
that sites are selected by CDE to review. She shared that 
by law we have to have parents representing their EL 
students, so if she served in a school with EL students 
who are mostly from Hispanic decent, then, the parents 
who serve on the ELAC Board need to be representing 
the percent of students they are serving at that school. 

           Member Rhodes thanked Dr. Simms and appreciates her 
work. Member Rhodes asked if  the Board can get a list 
of schools by Trustee Area to help support. Member 
Rhodes asked if Dr. Simms can provide data regarding 
the EL program.  

           President Pritchett asked to clarify if parents have any 
right in what to do with the demand for service. Dr. 
Simms said it’s important for parents to attend these 
meetings, and shared that they will be meeting to have a 
needs assessment to see what the needs are of parents. 
Dr. Simms said that they will be bringing the law to 
these meetings, so parents know their rights. 

           Superintendent Aguilar thanked Dr. Simms and shared 
that she has been recruiting a lot of in-house experts 
and people that are passionate about this work. 

 
 

 9.0 BOARD WORKSHOP/STRATEGIC PLAN AND OTHER INITIATIVES 
 

 9.1 Comprehensive Coordinated Early Intervening Services 
Plan (CCEIS) to Address Significant Disproportionality 
(Dr. Sadie Hedegard and Geovanni Linares) 

 
            Dr. Sadie Hedegard shared the Continuous Improvement 

Cycle utilizing the plan, do, study, act method. With the 
Continuous Improvement Cycle in mind, Dr. Hedegard, 
shared the LEAD Department Goals which include launch 
proactive system data-based decision making, empower 
through adult professional learning and coaching, 
accelerate instruction & learning, and deepen 
understanding in order to implement MTSS. While this 
presentation is meant to be an introduction to the 
strategic planning that is taking place, it is understand 
that we have a need for greater transparency. There were 
website revisions which include a Special Education 
Improvement Dashboard where visitors will be able to 
access metrics monitored four key areas (family & 
community engagement, SCUSD student, student 
outcomes, and compliance monitoring). Geovanni Linares 

 



Board Agenda, October 13, 2022, Amended 
 

7 

shared areas of significant disproportionality and 
addressing the root causes of disparities in school 
discipline as well as the programmatic improvement 
process. SCUSD CCEIS team will meet quarterly to 
review specifically identified discipline data to evaluate 
and sustain successful implementation of Improvement 
Plan. 

 
            Public Comment: 
           Taylor Kayatta thanked staff for their presentation, and 

wanted the Superintendent and Board to know how 
powerful of a plan this is. Taylor Kayatta shared that the 
two staff that presented were amazing and have really 
taken into account what the community wants and needs 
are. 

                       Terrence Gladney shared that he feels that there was an  
                       opportunity missed to intersect, but when we are planning 

our meetings, we no longer have ADHOC committee at 
the Board level. We are not effectively planning these 
meetings, so these people can be in the same space to 
bounce ideas and thoughts off of each other. We should be 
asking the questions that were presented just as diligently 
regardless of the subgroup or the students that are being 
reflected and presented in these presentations. If we do 
that, he feels that we can accelerate our path to success.  

                        
                       Board Comment: 
                       Member Villa wanted to share that Phase II is doing the 

work and asking site leaders which people have asked 
about their input to be heard, and staff are taking the time 
to do that work, and Member Villa wants to make sure 
that we are uplifting that in this work. Member Villa 
thanked staff for continuing the good work and 
collaborating with site leaders and the community. 

                       Member Rhodes thanked staff for their work. 
                       Member Phillips wanted to clarify if we are looking at the 

interplay between our significant disproportionately and 
racism in our District. Member Phillips wants to makes 
sure the community knows when we are sharing out, why 
we are really trying to make this change. 

                       Member Garcia says there seems to be alignment with the 
field and the central office, and that is a really important 
thing to lift up, because it is important in moving the work 
forward. 

 
 10.0 CONSENT AGENDA                                                                                                     

Generally routine items are approved by one motion without discussion.  The Superintendent or a Board 
member may request an item be pulled from the consent agenda and voted upon separately. 

 
10.1   Items Subject or Not Subject to Closed Session: 



Board Agenda, October 13, 2022, Amended 
 

8 

 
10.1a Approve Grants, Entitlements and Other Income Agreements, Ratification of 

Other Agreements, Approval of Bid Awards, Approval of Declared Surplus 
Materials and Equipment, Change Notices and Notices of Completion  

  (Rose F. Ramos) 
 
10.1b Approve Personnel Transactions (Cancy McArn) 
 
10.1c Approve Business and Financial Report: Warrants, Checks and Electronic 

Transfers Issued for the Period of September 1-30, 2022 (Rose F. Ramos)  
 
10.1d Approve Donations to the District for the Period of September 1-30, 2022  
 (Rose F. Ramos) 
 
10.1e Approve Memorandum of Understanding Allowing the California Montessori 

Project School Access to Rehabilitate Certain Facilities Under the Charter 
School Facilities Program (Lisa Allen and Jesse Ramos) 

 
 
Public Comment: 
Taylor Kayatta brought up how our financial situation is great right now. We are in a 
place where we can make good financial moves to invest in our students and schools. 
Right now, in the next couple of years we know that we have a good couple of years 
ahead of us. He shared that this is the time to really challenge our auditors to dig deep 
and to welcome them to ask questions that may make Rose’s job a little harder, but it will 
set us up for when these 3 years pass, we have set ourselves up to be improved. I think we 
should consider rotating auditors, increasing risk levels, and things of that nature. Right 
now, we have a once in a lifetime opportunity to try now to turn things around. 
 
Board Comment: 
None 
 
President Pritchett made a motion to approve the consent agenda with a second from 
Member Villa. Superintendent took roll call with a vote of 6-0 with Member Murawski 
absent.  

 
 11.0 BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION/REPORTS  

 11.1 Business and Financial Information: 
• Purchase Order Board Report Period of August 15 through  

September 14, 2022 (Rose F. Ramos) 
 

 
 12.0 FUTURE BOARD MEETING DATES / LOCATIONS 

 
 November 3, 2022 4:30 p.m. Closed Session, 6:30 p.m. Open Session, Serna Center,  

5735 47th Avenue, Community Room, Regular Workshop Meeting 
 

 November 17, 2022 4:30 p.m. Closed Session, 6:30 p.m. Open Session, Serna Center,  
5735 47th Avenue, Community Room, Regular Workshop Meeting 



Board Agenda, October 13, 2022, Amended 
 

9 

 
  

13.0 ADJOURNMENT  
 
President Pritchett adjourned the meeting at 8:48 p.m. 
 
 
 ____________________________________________ 
Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent and Board Secretary 
 

 
NOTE:  The Sacramento City Unified School District encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the 
public meeting process.  If you need a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or 
services, to participate in the public meeting, please contact the Board of Education Office at (916) 643-9314 at least 
48 hours before the scheduled Board of Education meeting so that we may make every reasonable effort to 
accommodate you.  [Government Code § 54953.2; Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, § 202 (42 U.S.C. §12132)]   
Any public records distributed to the Board of Education less than 72 hours in advance of the meeting and relating to 
an open session item will be available on the District’s website at www.scusd.edu  

 

http://www.scusd.edu/


Page 1 of 1 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item 13.1e 

 
Meeting Date:  March 2, 2023 
 
Subject:  Approve Resolution No. 3308:  Resolution Regarding Board Stipends 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Board of Education 
 
Recommendation:  Approve Resolution No. 3308: Resolution Regarding Board 
Stipends.  
 
Background/Rationale:  Education Code section 35120 fails to define hardship which 
has led to uncertainty regarding payment of stipends for Board members who may be 
deserving of payment due to absence resulting from hardship or other duties such as 
jury duty or performing duties or services for the District at the time of a Board meeting.  
All stipend payments will be based on an attendance sign-in sheet as well as any Board 
resolution(s) excusing absences in compliance with law.  A Board member who is 
absent from a meeting may be eligible for payment by reporting the excused absence to 
the Board Office.  A Board resolution will be periodically placed, as needed, on the 
Board agenda to state that the reason for the absence complies with Education Code 
section 35120 and shall be reflected in the minutes. 
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Empowerment 
 
Documents Attached: 
1. Resolution No. 3308: Resolution Regarding Board Stipends 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: N/A 
Submitted by:  Chinua Rhodes, Board President 
Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent  



 1 

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 3308 

 
RESOLUTION REGARDING BOARD STIPENDS 

 
WHEREAS, Education Code section 35120 and Board Bylaw 9250 of the Sacramento City 

Unified School District (“District”) authorize Board members to be paid stipends for meetings they 
were unable to attend due to illness, hardship or other duties such as jury duty or performing duties or 
services for the District at the time of a Board meeting; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board finds that the Board members may be paid, or retain, stipends for 
meetings they were unable to attend as stated in Attachment A. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Sacramento City Unified School District 
Board of Education which finds and determines as follows:   

 
1.   Adopts the foregoing recitals as true and correct; 
 
2.   Authorizes stipends for meetings the Board members were unable to attend pursuant to  

Attachment A; and 
 
3.   Incorporates herein by reference Attachment A. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Sacramento City Unified School District Board of Education on 
this 2nd day of March, 2023, by the following vote: 

 
AYES:  ____ 
NOES:  ____ 
ABSTAIN: ____ 
ABSENT: ____ 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED TO: 
  
______________________________________  
Jorge A. Aguilar        Chinua Rhodes 
Secretary of the Board of Education                                       President of the Board of Education 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 2 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 3308 
 

1. Absence Due to Other Duties: Stipends are authorized to the following Board 
member(s) due to Other Duties: 

a. Board member Christina Pritchett for the Regular Board meeting on February 
16, 2023. 

 



 
SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Agenda Item 13.1f__ 

 
 
Meeting Date:  March 2, 2023 
 
Subject:  Approve Staff Recommendations for Expulsion # 11 2022-2023  
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading  (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Student Hearing and Placement Department 
 
 
Recommendation:  Approve staff recommendation for Expulsion #  11 (2022-2023) 
 
 
Background/Rationale:  None 
 
 
Financial Considerations:  None 
 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  College and Career Ready Students 
 
 
Documents Attached:   
N/A 
 
 
 
 
Estimated Time of Presentation: N/A 
Submitted by:  Lisa Allen, Deputy Superintendent  
                          Stephan Brown, Director III 
Approved by:   Jorge Aguilar, Superintendent 

 
Page 1 of 1 



Page 1 of 1 
  

SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 
Agenda Item# _14.1__ 

 
 
Meeting Date:  March 3, 2023 
 
 
Subject:  Business and Financial Information 
 

 Information Item Only 
 Approval on Consent Agenda 
 Conference (for discussion only) 
 Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: ______________)  
 Conference/Action 
 Action 
 Public Hearing 

 
Division:  Business Services 
 
 
Recommendation:  Receive business and financial information. 
 
 
Background/Rationale:  Enrollment and Attendance Report for Month 4, Ending Friday, 
December 16, 2022. 
 
Financial Considerations:  Reflects standard business information. 
 
 
LCAP Goal(s):  Family and Community Empowerment; Operational Excellence 
 
 
Documents Attached:   

• Enrollment and Attendance Report for Month 4, Ending Friday, December 16, 2022. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  Estimated Time:  N/A 
  Submitted by:  Rose Ramos, Chief Business and Operations Officer 
  Approved by:   Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

MONTH 4, ENDING FRIDAY, DECEMBER 16, 2022
TRADITIONAL SCHOOLS

Page 1

PERCENTAGE 
FOR THE 
MONTH

Cum Attd                 
Days /70

2022-2023
A M Winn Elementary K-8 Waldorf 54 124 116 15 309 88.89% 280.19 91.46%
Abraham Lincoln El 78 216 232 2 528 88.30% 482.93 90.74%
Alice Birney Waldorf-Inspired K8 72 143 158 2 375 88.01% 345.73 92.03%
Bret Harte Elementary 24 72 76 38 210 88.55% 174.29 89.41%
Caleb Greenwood 52 222 215 3 492 91.09% 455.87 94.28%
Camellia Basic Elementary 76 139 169 12 396 92.73% 373.73 94.72%
Capital City School 20 95 97 0 212 92.08% 196.16 90.69%
Caroline Wenzel Elementary 22 84 83 21 210 85.43% 197.47 89.00%
Cesar Chavez ES 0 0 355 22 377 89.34% 344.33 91.77%
Crocker/Riverside Elementary 93 281 244 2 620 92.42% 582.87 94.10%
David Lubin Elementary 47 196 185 27 455 88.62% 413.07 92.11%
Earl Warren Elementary 69 169 185 10 433 89.03% 397.26 92.06%
Edward Kemble Elementary 116 383 0 18 517 86.45% 452.60 89.63%
Elder Creek Elementary 76 294 327 7 704 90.05% 649.83 92.85%
Ethel I Baker Elementary 79 270 244 4 597 85.36% 533.53 89.78%
Ethel Phillips Elementary 79 183 177 7 446 86.15% 396.97 89.54%
Father Keith B Kenny K-8 School 20 77 124 27 248 85.39% 223.17 89.20%
Genevieve Didion Elementary 67 204 199 4 474 90.86% 450.46 94.47%
Golden Empire Elementary 56 185 216 16 473 87.66% 426.57 91.45%
H W Harkness Elementary 48 88 120 2 258 86.51% 229.99 90.47%
Hollywood Park Elementary 24 88 103 38 253 82.38% 216.31 88.75%
Home/Hospital 4 13 18 5 40 100.00% 16.05 100.00%
Hubert H.  Bancroft Elementary 63 173 152 16 404 87.36% 365.26 90.81%
Isador Cohen Elementary 59 106 114 38 317 86.94% 282.00 89.90%
James W Marshall Elementary 37 135 132 29 333 89.12% 304.10 91.19%
John Bidwell Elementary 49 120 77 13 259 83.90% 226.14 89.11%
John Cabrillo Elementary 37 111 129 43 320 85.51% 276.47 89.77%
John D Sloat Elementary 30 82 79 12 203 84.92% 181.10 88.48%
John H. Still K-8 48 181 239 13 481 86.23% 429.30 88.97%
John Morse Therapeutic Center 0 0 0 11 11 76.77% 8.56 84.96%
Leataata Floyd Elementary 25 124 115 4 268 83.62% 222.86 86.40%
Leonardo da Vinci K - 8 School 112 271 281 19 683 91.31% 645.61 94.45%
Mark Twain Elementary 37 90 97 21 245 87.23% 224.11 90.05%
Martin Luther King Jr Elementary 63 124 98 22 307 85.38% 279.76 89.67%
Matsuyama Elementary 53 188 211 9 461 89.92% 427.46 93.20%
Nicholas Elementary 65 212 239 16 532 84.45% 475.20 89.19%
O W Erlewine Elementary 29 100 111 23 263 88.07% 232.96 89.82%
Oak Ridge Elementary 57 202 198 3 460 85.18% 407.77 89.50%
Pacific Elementary 94 287 306 1 688 87.25% 620.89 90.75%
Parkway Elementary School 75 179 180 23 457 83.75% 394.90 86.50%
Peter Burnett Elementary 48 164 176 18 406 90.50% 367.01 92.40%
Phoebe A Hearst Elementary 93 283 278 1 655 91.57% 617.89 94.35%
Pony Express Elementary 36 135 170 18 359 87.59% 333.10 92.43%
Rosa Parks K-8 School 40 124 139 16 319 85.44% 282.19 89.88%
Sequoia Elementary 55 166 174 22 417 84.21% 367.57 89.12%
Success Academy K-8 0 0 6 0 6 48.81% 2.14 66.08%
Susan B Anthony Elementary 59 130 120 2 311 87.53% 290.64 92.64%
Sutterville Elementary 39 162 184 4 389 88.53% 365.46 93.68%
Tahoe Elementary 75 108 96 33 312 88.27% 277.97 90.03%
Theodore Judah Elementary 88 145 183 20 436 90.07% 397.64 92.33%
Washington Elementary 45 143 120 25 333 88.01% 296.07 89.85%
William Land Elementary 47 141 161 1 350 91.57% 329.70 93.85%
Woodbine Elementary 40 131 96 27 294 84.00% 250.04 88.51%
TOTAL ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS 2,774       8,043            8,304         785             19,906             87.94% 18,021.23             91.21%

72 (7)                     Change from prior month

ELEMENTARY TRADITIONAL GENERAL EDUCATION

PERCENTAGE 
2022-2023

Special 
Education 
Grades K-6

TOTAL MONTH-
END 

ENROLLMENT

AVERAGE CUMULATIVE ACTUAL 
ATTENDANCE

Kdgn Grades 1-3 Grades 4-6 2022-2023 
Actual 

Attendance



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

 MONTH 4, ENDING FRIDAY, DECEMBER 16, 2022
TRADITIONAL SCHOOLS

Page 2

PERCENTAGE 
FOR THE 
MONTH

Cum Attd 
Days/70

2022-2023
A M Winn Elementary K-8 Waldorf 35 28 63 1 64 90.57% 59.39 92.13%
Albert Einstein MS 327 317 644 31 675 87.53% 608.99 91.06%
Alice Birney Waldorf-Inspired K8 57 52 109 1 110 88.36% 102.39 92.92%
California MS 368 396 764 14 778 87.62% 712.79 91.32%
Capital City School 52 54 106 0 106 60.18% 66.24 68.25%
Fern Bacon MS 317 317 634 40 674 87.69% 604.63 89.97%
Genevieve Didion Elementary 57 53 110 0 110 90.18% 104.36 94.77%
Home/Hospital 0 23 23 2 25 100.00% 10.92 100.00%
John H. Still K-8 151 125 276 14 290 90.33% 262.21 93.70%
John Morse Therapeutic Center 0 0 0 16 16 79.24% 12.94 81.18%
Kit Carson IB Academy 162 165 327 17 344 85.04% 299.87 87.15%
Leonardo da Vinci K - 8 School 43 55 98 11 109 86.95% 103.10 92.15%
Martin Luther King Jr Elementary 13 11 24 0 24 90.00% 27.19 90.79%
Rosa Parks K-8 School 216 189 405 20 425 84.92% 375.59 89.12%
Sam Brannan MS 144 156 300 39 339 86.35% 303.79 90.04%
School of Engineering and Science 124 109 233 2 235 90.38% 223.39 94.06%
Success Academy K-8 2 8 10 0 10 81.40% 4.13 82.10%
Sutter MS 523 524 1,047 24 1,071 91.44% 1007.80 93.89%
Will C Wood MS 315 325 640 41 681 87.25% 618.69 90.52%
TOTAL MIDDLE SCHOOLS 2,906       2,907       5,813           273             6,086               87.64% 5,508.38     91.89%

Change from prior month 7 (15)                   

MIDDLE SCHOOLS GENERAL EDUCATION

PERCENTAGE 
2022-2023

Special 
Education 
Grades 7-8

TOTAL MONTH-
END 

ENROLLMENT

AVERAGE CUMULATIVE 
ACTUAL ATTENDANCE 

Grade 7 Grade 8 Total Grades 
7-8

2022-2023 
Actual 

Attendance



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

MONTH 4, ENDING FRIDAY, DECEMBER 16, 2022
TRADITIONAL SCHOOLS

Page 3

PERCENTAGE 
FOR THE 
MONTH

Cum Attd 
Days/70

2022-2023
American Legion HS 182 0 0 0 0 182 0 182 64.62% 124.51 71.85%
Arthur A. Benjamin Health Prof 0 34 38 41 45 158 25 183 85.05% 163.34 87.52%
C K McClatchy HS 0 627 628 523 518 2,296 37 2,333 86.78% 2107.33 89.99%
Capital City School 0 43 58 87 98 286 0 286 81.20% 235.24 81.31%
Hiram W Johnson HS 0 409 389 366 294 1,458 135 1,593 83.67% 1412.01 87.62%
Home/Hospital 0 0 0 0 46 46 7 53 100.00% 17.46 100.00%
John F Kennedy HS 0 433 392 484 405 1,714 119 1,833 86.82% 1677.71 90.36%
Kit Carson 7-12 0 52 61 46 20 179 2 181 91.80% 170.89 91.69%
Luther Burbank HS 0 344 395 372 319 1,430 98 1,528 86.75% 1385.01 89.76%
Rosemont HS 0 343 353 344 317 1,357 100 1,457 86.99% 1309.83 89.77%
School of Engineering and Science 0 108 87 63 68 326 1 327 90.79% 307.40 92.84%
West Campus HS 0 220 225 197 188 830 1 831 94.81% 804.44 96.63%
Sacramento Accelerated Academy* 0 5 35 132 307 479 0 479 NA** NA** NA**
TOTAL HIGH SCHOOLS 182                  2,618    2,661      2,655       2,625      10,741       525               11,266             86.62% 9,715.18         90.54%

Change from prior month 13 4

* Change in internal process required separate row for Sacramento Accelerated Academy instead of dual enrollment at home high school sites. 
** Sacramento Accelerated Academy attendance data only available during state reporting periods. 

HIGH SCHOOLS GENERAL EDUCATION AVERAGE CUMULATIVE 
ACTUAL ATTENDANCE

Continuation Grade 9 Grade 10 Grade 11 Grade 12 2022-2023 
Actual 

Attendance

PERCENTAGE 
2022-2023

TOTAL MONTH-
END 

ENROLLMENT

Special 
Education 

Grades 9-12

Total Grade 
9-12



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

 MONTH 4, ENDING FRIDAY, DECEMBER 16, 2022
TRADITIONAL SCHOOLS

Page 4

PERCENTAGE FOR 
THE MONTH

Cum Attd 
Days/70

2022-2023
ELEMENTARY 19,906 87.94% 18,021 91.21%

MIDDLE 6,086 87.64% 5,508 91.89%
HIGH SCHOOL 11,266 86.62% 9,715 90.54%

TOTAL ALL DISTRICT SEGMENTS 37,258 87.50% 33,245 90.72%

Total Non-Public Schools as of 01/17/2023 252

Non-Public change from prior month 1

DISTRICT TOTALS
TOTAL MONTH-

END 
ENROLLMENT

AVERAGE CUMULATIVE ACTUAL 
ATTENDANCE

2022-2023 Actual 
Attendance

PERCENTAGE 
2022-2023



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

 MONTH 4, ENDING FRIDAY, DECEMBER 16, 2022
CHARTER SCHOOLS

Page 5

PERCENTAGE 
FOR THE 
MONTH

Kdgn Grades 1-3 Grades 4-6 Grades 7-8 Grades 9-12 2022-2023 
Actual 

Attendance

2022-2023 PERCENTAGE 
2022-2023

Bowling Green McCoy 48 176 174 0 0 9 407 87.25% 371.77 91.38%
Bowling Green-Chacon 39 128 138 0 0 12 317 90.15% 296.51 93.11%
George W. Carver SAS 0 0 0 0 193 11 204 92.81% 195.36 93.10%
New Joseph Bonnheim Charter 34 97 103 0 0 2 236 88.90% 202.50 91.31%
New Tech High 0 0 0 0 151 2 153 90.20% 142.87 93.59%
The Met High School 0 0 0 0 206 2 208 94.34% 198.84 95.37%
Total Dependent Charter Schools 121 401 415 0 550 38 1,525 90.13% 1,407.85 92.74%

Change from prior month 2 -8

2022-2023 INDEPENDENT CHARTER 
SCHOOLS

PERCENTAGE 
FOR THE 
MONTH

AVERAGE CUMULATIVE 
ACTUAL ATTENDANCE

Kdgn Grades 1-3 Grades 4-6 Grades 7-8 Grades 9-12 2022-2023 
Actual 

Attendance

2022-2023 PERCENTAGE 
2022-2023

Aspire Capitol Heights Academy 24 67 63 24 0 0 178 89.27% 162.38 90.21%
CA Montessori Project Capitol Campus 71 125 119 40 0 1 356 91.15% 326.66 93.06%
Capitol Collegiate Academy 26 146 147 79 0 0 398 89.86% 362.75 92.50%
Growth Public Schools 59 114 96 0 0 0 269 91.09% 252.54 92.15%
Language Academy 88 198 199 130 0 0 615 92.99% 580.55 94.33%
PS 7 Elementary 76 172 173 166 0 0 587 84.93% 497.39 88.58%
Sacramento Charter HS 0 0 0 0 365 0 365 89.31% 332.13 91.27%
SAVA 0 0 0 70 653 0 723 93.75% 602.13 95.60%
Sol Aureus College Preparatory 40 112 130 68 0 0 350 89.43% 329.23 92.12%
Yav Pem Suab Academy 63 182 175 0 0 0 420 89.70% 386.89 89.71%
TOTAL INDEPENDENT CHARTER SCHOOLS 447   1,116          1,102           577              1,018             1                    4,261                90.15% 3,832.66    91.95%

Change from prior month 0 10                      

TOTAL CHARTER SCHOOLS 568   1,517          1,517           577              1,568             39                  5,786                90.14% 5,240.51    92.34%

Special 
Education 

Grades K-12

TOTAL MONTH-
END 

ENROLLMENT

AVERAGE CUMULATIVE 
ACTUAL ATTENDANCE

2022-2023 DEPENDENT CHARTER SCHOOLS

GENERAL EDUCATION

Special 
Education 

Grades K-12

TOTAL MONTH-
END 

ENROLLMENT

GENERAL EDUCATION



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

 MONTH 4, ENDING FRIDAY, DECEMBER 16, 2022
ADULT EDUCATION SCHOOLS

Page 6

CONCURRENT OTHER TOTAL CONCURRENT OTHER TOTAL

A. Warren McClaskey Adult Center 219 0 5,650.75       5,650.75       0 54.68 54.68
Charles A. Jones Career & Education Center 326 0 12,719.99    12,719.99     0 128.60 128.6
TOTAL ADULT EDUCATION 545                   0 18,370.74    18,370.74     0 183.28 183.28

2022-2023 CUMULATIVE ADAADULT EDUCATION ENROLLMENT HOURS EARNED



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

MONTH 4, ENDING FRIDAY, DECEMBER 16, 2022
GRADE BY GRADE ENROLLMENT

Page 7

Kdgn Grade 1 Grade 2 Grade 3 Grade 4 Grade 5 Grade 6
A M Winn Elementary K-8 Waldorf 54 39 40 45 34 44 38 294
Abraham Lincoln El 78 78 64 74 74 86 72 526
Alice Birney Waldorf-Inspired K8 72 48 47 48 59 51 48 373
Bret Harte Elementary 24 36 26 10 28 24 24 172
Caleb Greenwood 52 83 67 72 80 69 66 489
Camellia Basic Elementary 76 48 47 44 57 59 53 384
Capital City School 20 24 36 35 28 38 31 212
Caroline Wenzel Elementary 22 25 29 30 26 18 39 189
Cesar Chavez ES 0 0 0 0 110 115 130 355
Crocker/Riverside Elementary 93 94 91 96 79 86 79 618
David Lubin Elementary 47 68 70 58 59 61 65 428
Earl Warren Elementary 69 48 61 60 65 56 64 423
Edward Kemble Elementary 116 132 120 131 0 0 0 499
Elder Creek Elementary 76 91 100 103 115 105 107 697
Ethel I Baker Elementary 79 94 85 91 84 79 81 593
Ethel Phillips Elementary 79 54 64 65 62 51 64 439
Father Keith B Kenny K-8 School 20 23 24 30 45 32 47 221
Genevieve Didion Elementary 67 64 70 70 66 66 67 470
Golden Empire Elementary 56 58 66 61 73 68 75 457
H W Harkness Elementary 48 24 28 36 43 45 32 256
Hollywood Park Elementary 24 38 23 27 35 40 28 215
Home/Hospital 4 0 1 12 0 0 18 35
Hubert H.  Bancroft Elementary 63 71 48 54 45 41 66 388
Isador Cohen Elementary 59 43 38 25 40 41 33 279
James W Marshall Elementary 37 44 46 45 51 39 42 304
John Bidwell Elementary 49 36 46 38 22 28 27 246
John Cabrillo Elementary 37 34 34 43 36 39 54 277
John D Sloat Elementary 30 21 23 38 22 32 25 191
John H. Still K-8 48 60 58 63 76 68 95 468
John Morse Therapeutic Center 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Leataata Floyd Elementary 25 45 40 39 31 42 42 264
Leonardo da Vinci K - 8 School 112 85 95 91 94 94 93 664
Mark Twain Elementary 37 23 33 34 30 33 34 224
Martin Luther King Jr Elementary 63 40 36 48 29 26 43 285
Matsuyama Elementary 53 63 55 70 66 81 64 452
Nicholas Elementary 65 70 71 71 87 74 78 516
O W Erlewine Elementary 29 32 39 29 37 44 30 240
Oak Ridge Elementary 57 70 60 72 66 56 76 457
Pacific Elementary 94 95 88 104 92 115 99 687
Parkway Elementary School 75 59 53 67 66 55 59 434
Peter Burnett Elementary 48 47 60 57 53 64 59 388
Phoebe A Hearst Elementary 93 94 94 95 93 92 93 654
Pony Express Elementary 36 44 44 47 59 63 48 341
Rosa Parks K-8 School 40 41 47 36 40 50 49 303
Sequoia Elementary 55 58 60 48 58 52 64 395
Success Academy K-8 0 0 0 0 0 3 3 6
Susan B Anthony Elementary 59 51 41 38 43 43 34 309
Sutterville Elementary 39 47 55 60 63 64 57 385
Tahoe Elementary 75 33 31 44 32 32 32 279
Theodore Judah Elementary 88 53 45 47 58 64 61 416
Washington Elementary 45 48 49 46 34 33 53 308
William Land Elementary 47 41 54 46 55 49 57 349
Woodbine Elementary 40 44 43 44 36 28 32 267
TOTAL 2,774 2,661 2,645 2,737 2,736 2,738 2,830 19,121

ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS GENERAL EDUCATION ENROLLMENT TOTAL 
GENERAL 



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

MONTH 4, ENDING FRIDAY, DECEMBER 16, 2022
CUMULATIVE TOTAL ABSENCES

Page 8

A M Winn Elementary K-8 Waldorf 309 1,832 19,613 21,445 91.46%
Abraham Lincoln El 528 3,449 33,805 37,254 90.74%
Alice Birney Waldorf-Inspired K8 375 2,095 24,201 26,296 92.03%
Bret Harte Elementary 210 1,445 12,200 13,645 89.41%
Caleb Greenwood 492 1,935 31,911 33,846 94.28%
Camellia Basic Elementary 396 1,458 26,161 27,619 94.72%
Capital City School 212 1,409 13,731 15,140 90.69%
Caroline Wenzel Elementary 210 1,708 13,823 15,531 89.00%
Cesar Chavez ES 377 2,161 24,103 26,264 91.77%
Crocker/Riverside Elementary 620 2,558 40,801 43,359 94.10%
David Lubin Elementary 455 2,476 28,915 31,391 92.11%
Earl Warren Elementary 433 2,397 27,808 30,205 92.06%
Edward Kemble Elementary 517 3,666 31,682 35,348 89.63%
Elder Creek Elementary 704 3,502 45,488 48,990 92.85%
Ethel I Baker Elementary 597 4,252 37,347 41,599 89.78%
Ethel Phillips Elementary 446 3,245 27,788 31,033 89.54%
Father Keith B Kenny K-8 School 248 1,892 15,622 17,514 89.20%
Genevieve Didion Elementary 474 1,847 31,532 33,379 94.47%
Golden Empire Elementary 473 2,793 29,860 32,653 91.45%
H W Harkness Elementary 258 1,696 16,099 17,795 90.47%
Hollywood Park Elementary 253 1,919 15,142 17,061 88.75%
Home/Hospital 40 0 222                                                      222                             100.00%
Hubert H.  Bancroft Elementary 404 2,587 25,568 28,155 90.81%
Isador Cohen Elementary 317 2,217 19,740 21,957 89.90%
James W Marshall Elementary 333 2,057 21,287 23,344 91.19%
John Bidwell Elementary 259 1,935 15,830 17,765 89.11%
John Cabrillo Elementary 320 2,206 19,353 21,559 89.77%
John D Sloat Elementary 203 1,650 12,677 14,327 88.48%
John H. Still K-8 481 3,726 30,051 33,777 88.97%
John Morse Therapeutic Center 11 106 599 705 84.96%
Leataata Floyd Elementary 268 2,456 15,600 18,056 86.40%
Leonardo da Vinci K - 8 School 683 2,657 45,193 47,850 94.45%
Mark Twain Elementary 245 1,733 15,688 17,421 90.05%
Martin Luther King Jr Elementary 307 2,257 19,583 21,840 89.67%
Matsuyama Elementary 461 2,183 29,922 32,105 93.20%
Nicholas Elementary 532 4,031 33,264 37,295 89.19%
O W Erlewine Elementary 263 1,848 16,307 18,155 89.82%
Oak Ridge Elementary 460 3,349 28,544 31,893 89.50%
Pacific Elementary 688 4,428 43,462 47,890 90.75%
Parkway Elementary School 457 4,313 27,643 31,956 86.50%
Peter Burnett Elementary 406 2,114 25,691 27,805 92.40%
Phoebe A Hearst Elementary 655 2,589 43,252 45,841 94.35%
Pony Express Elementary 359 1,910 23,317 25,227 92.43%
Rosa Parks K-8 School 319 2,225 19,753 21,978 89.88%
Sequoia Elementary 417 3,142 25,730 28,872 89.12%
Success Academy K-8 6 77 150 227 66.08%
Susan B Anthony Elementary 311 1,616 20,345 21,961 92.64%
Sutterville Elementary 389 1,725 25,582 27,307 93.68%
Tahoe Elementary 312 2,155 19,458 21,613 90.03%
Theodore Judah Elementary 436 2,312 27,835 30,147 92.33%
Washington Elementary 333 2,340 20,725 23,065 89.85%
William Land Elementary 350 1,512 23,079 24,591 93.85%
Woodbine Elementary 294 2,272 17,503 19,775 88.51%
TOTAL 19,906                           121,463                  1,260,585                                           1,382,048                  91.21%

PERCENTAGE OF 
ATTENDANCE

ELEMENTARY TOTAL ENROLLMENT TOTAL ABSENCES ACTUAL DAYS OF ATTENDANCE DAYS ENROLLED



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

MONTH 4, ENDING FRIDAY, DECEMBER 16, 2022
CUMULATIVE TOTAL ABSENCES

Page 9

A M Winn Elementary K-8 Waldorf 64 355 4,157 4,512 92.13%
Albert Einstein MS 675 4,183 42,629 46,812 91.06%
Alice Birney Waldorf-Inspired K-8 110 546 7,167 7,713 92.92%
California MS 778 4,741 49,895 54,636 91.32%
Capital City School 106 2,157 4,637 6,794 68.25%
Fern Bacon MS 674 4,717 42,324 47,041 89.97%
Genevieve Didion K-8 110 403 7,305 7,708 94.77%
Home/Hospital 25 0 115 115 100.00%
John H. Still K-8 290 1,234 18,355 19,589 93.70%
John Morse Therapeutic Center 16 210 906 1,116 81.18%
Kit Carson 7-12 344 3,096 20,991 24,087 87.15%
Leonardo da Vinci K - 8 School 109 615 7,217 7,832 92.15%
Martin Luther King Jr K-8 24 193 1,903 2,096 90.79%
Rosa Parks K-8 School 425 3,211 26,291 29,502 89.12%
Sam Brannan MS 339 2,353 21,265 23,618 90.04%
School of Engineering and Science 235 988 15,637 16,625 94.06%
Success Academy K-8 10 63 289 352 82.10%
Sutter MS 1,071 4,591 70,546 75,137 93.89%
Will C Wood MS 681 4,535 43,308 47,843 90.52%
TOTAL 6,086                             38,191                    384,937                                      423,128                              90.97%

PERCENTAGE OF ATTENDANCEMIDDLE TOTAL ENROLLMENT TOTAL ABSENCES ACTUAL DAYS OF 
ATTENDANCE

DAYS ENROLLED



SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
ENROLLMENT AND ATTENDANCE REPORT

 MONTH 4, ENDING FRIDAY, DECEMBER 16, 2022
CUMULATIVE TOTAL ABSENCES

Page 10

American Legion HS 182 3,415 8,716 12,131 71.85%
Arthur A. Benjamin Health Prof 183 1,630 11,434 13,064 87.52%
C K McClatchy HS 2,333 16,416 147,513 163,929 89.99%
Capital City School 286 3,785 16,467 20,252 81.31%
Hiram W Johnson HS 1,593 13,960 98,841 112,801 87.62%
Home/Hospital 53 0 232 232 100.00%
John F Kennedy HS 1,833 12,528 117,440 129,968 90.36%
Kit Carson 7-12 181 1,084 11,962 13,046 91.69%
Luther Burbank HS 1,528 11,066 96,951 108,017 89.76%
Rosemont HS 1,457 10,447 91,688 102,135 89.77%
School of Engineering and Science 327 1,660 21,518 23,178 92.84%
West Campus HS 831 1,961 56,311 58,272 96.63%
Sacramento Accelerated Academy* 479 NA** NA** NA** NA**
TOTAL 11,266               77,952                    679,073                                          757,025                                   89.70%

TOTAL 
ENROLLMENT

TOTAL ABSENCES ACTUAL DAYS OF ATTENDANCE DAYS ENROLLED PERCENTAGE OF ATTENDANCE

TOTAL ALL SCHOOLS 37,258 237,606 2,324,594 2,562,201 90.73%

Students in Non 
Public Schools

Total
Enrollment

ADA ADA % % Change

2021-22 Actual 37,165 33,490 90.11%
2022-2023 Projected 36,193 0 0.00%

Month 01 234 37,212 33,827 92.56%
Month 02 247 37,265 33,754 92.27% -0.29%
Month 03 251 37,276 33,516 91.60% -0.67%
Month 04 252 37,258 33,245 91.13% -0.47%

PERCENTAGE OF ATTENDANCEHIGH SCHOOL ENROLLMENT TOTAL ABSENCES ACTUAL DAYS OF ATTENDANCE DAYS ENROLLED



-5,000

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

35,000

40,000

Elementary Middle High Total Variance Dependent
Charter

Non-Public
Schools

Independent
Charter

Adult Ed.

Month 1 9/23/2022 19,781 6,089 11,342 37,212 0 1,378 234 4,211 399
Month 2 10/21/2022 19,825 6,121 11,319 37,265 53 1,539 247 4,245 669
Month 3 11/18/2022 19,913 6,101 11,262 37,276 11 1,533 251 4,251 576
Month 4 12/16/2022 19,906 6,086 11,266 37,258 -18 1,525 252 4,261 545

19,781

6,089

11,342

37,212

0

1,378
234

4,211

399

19,825

6,121

11,319

37,265

53
1,539

247

4,245

669

19,913

6,101

11,262

37,276

11

1,533
251

4,251

576

19,906

6,086

11,266

37,258

-18
1,525

252

4,261

545

En
ro

llm
en

t

Monthly Attendance 


	8 March 2 2023 Board Agenda Final
	BOARD OF EDUCATION
	MEETING AND WORKSHOP
	AGENDA

	9.1 CCEE Agenda Cover Sheet 3-2-23 CCEE_
	Meeting Date:  March 2, 2023

	10.1 History Social Science k_12 Instructional Materials cover sheet
	Meeting Date:  March 2, 2023

	11.1 BP 6170.1 TK
	11.1 Agenda Cover Sheet - Revision to TK Policy
	SACRAMENTO CITY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
	BOARD OF EDUCATION
	Agenda Item 11.1
	Meeting Date:  March 2, 2023

	Subject: Revision of Board Policy 6170.1 Transitional Kindergarten
	☐ Information Item Only ☐ Approval on Consent Agenda ☐ Conference (for discussion only)
	X Conference/First Reading (Action Anticipated: 3/16/2023)
	☐ Conference/Action
	☐ Action
	☐ Public Hearing
	Division:  Academic Office/Early Learning and Care
	Recommendation:  NA
	Background/Rationale:
	The research clearly indicates that high-quality education for young learners is vitally important in assuring school success and plays a pivotal role in closing the achievement gap among groups of students. Children who participate in high-quality ea...
	Consequently, to ensure student readiness, it is vital that SCUSD provides quality Transitional Kindergarten (TK) programming to give students an additional year to mature socially, emotionally, cognitively, and physically. The proposed revisions to t...
	In 2021, legislation was passed that requires any school district operating a kindergarten to also provide a TK program for all children who turn four years old by September 1 by the year 2025–26. TK uses a modified kindergarten curriculum that is age...
	Financial Considerations:  N/A
	LCAP Goal(s):
	Goal 1: College Career Readiness
	Goal 2: Foundational Educational Experience with Equitable Opportunities for ALL students
	Documents Attached:
	List the documents included:
	Executive Summary
	Original copy of BP 6170.1, Transitional Kindergarten
	Redlined copy of BP 6170.1, Transitional Kindergarten
	Revised copy of BP 6170.1, Transitional Kindergarten
	Estimated Time of Presentation:  15 min
	Submitted by:  Yvonne Wright, Chief Academic Officer
	Approved by:  Jorge A. Aguilar, Superintendent

	11.1a Executive Summary-Revisoin of TK Board Policy 6170.1 FINAL
	I. Overview of Transitional Kindergarten, (formerly named Early Kindergarten)
	II. Driving Governance:
	III. Budget:
	IV. Goals, Objectives and Measures:
	V. Major Initiatives:
	VII. Lessons Learned/Next Steps:

	11.1b Policy 6170.1_ Transitional Kindergarten Proposed
	Policy Reference Disclaimer:

	11.1c Policy 6170.1_ Transitional Kindergarten Red-lined and RB edits
	Policy Reference Disclaimer:

	11.1d Policy 6170.1_ Transitional Kindergarten - Current
	Policy Reference Disclaimer:


	11.2 Approve Amendment No 1  SA23-00118
	Meeting Date:  March 2, 2023

	13.1a Grants Entitlements Etc
	13.1a Grants Entitlements Etc Cover Sheet3-2-23  FINAL
	Meeting Date:  March 2, 2023

	13.1a1 SA23-00461 HMC LBurbank Core 2
	SA23-00461 HMC LBurbank Core 2
	Article 5. Construction Cost Budget
	5.2. Architect shall complete all Services as described in Exhibit “A,” including all plans, designs, drawings, specifications and other Contract Documents, so that the cost to construct the work designed by the Architect will not exceed the Construct...
	5.4.3. If the Construction Cost Budget increases in phases subsequent to the Schematic Design Phase due to reasonably foreseeable changes in the condition of the construction market in the county in which the District is located, in so far as these ha...


	Article 6. Fee and Method of Payment
	6.1. The District shall pay Architect for all Services contracted for under this Agreement an amount equal to the following (“Fee”):
	An amount not to exceed Three Hundred Forty Thousand Dollars ($340,000) based on the rates set forth in Exhibit “D.”
	Reimbursable Expenses are in addition to compensation for Basic and Additional Services and will be billed at a multiple of 1.10% the expenses incurred. These charges include, but are not limited to, expenses incurred which are directly related to the...
	6.2. The District shall pay Architect the Fee pursuant to the provisions of Exhibit “D.”
	6.3. Architect shall bill for performance of Services under this Agreement in accordance with Exhibit “D.”
	6.4. No increase in Fee will be due from CCDs and/or change orders generated during the construction period to the extent caused by Architect’s error or omission.
	6.5. The Architect’s Fee set forth in this Agreement shall be full compensation for all of Architect’s Services incurred in the performance hereof as indicated in Exhibit “D.”
	6.6. Regardless of the structure of Architect’s Fee, the Architect’s Fee may be adjusted downward if the Scope of Services of this Agreement is reduced by the District in accordance with this Agreement.
	6.7. Neither the District’s review, approval of, nor payment for, any of the Services required under this Agreement shall be construed to operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement, and Architect shall remain liable to the District in acco...


	SA23-00461 HMC LBurbank Core 2
	EXHIBIT “A” – RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES OF ARCHITECT A-1
	EXHIBIT “B” – CRITERIA AND BILLING FOR EXTRA SERVICES B-1

	This Agreement for Architectural Services is made as of March 2, 2023, between the Sacramento City Unified School District, a California public school district (“District”), and HMC Group (“Architect”) (collectively “Parties”), for the following proj...
	Luther Burbank HS Core Academic Renovation, Phase 2 located at 3500 Florin Road, Sacramento, CA 95823
	Article 1. Definitions
	1.1. In addition to the definitions above, the following definitions of words or phrases shall apply when used in this Agreement, including all Exhibits:
	1.1.1. Agreement:  The Agreement consists exclusively of this document and all identified exhibits attached and incorporated by reference.
	1.1.2. Architect:  The Architect identified in the first paragraph of this Agreement, including all Consultants to the Architect.  The term Architect means the Design Professional in General Responsible Charge on this Project.
	1.1.3. As-Built Drawings (“As-Builts”):  Any document prepared and submitted by District’s Contractor(s) that details on a Conforming Set, the actual construction performed during the Project, including changes necessitated by Construction Change Docu...
	1.1.4. Bid Set:  The plans, drawings, and specifications at the end of the Construction Documents Phase that the Division of the State Architect (“DSA”) has approved and that the District can use to go out to bid for construction of the Project.
	1.1.5. Conforming Set:  The plans, drawings, and specifications at the end of the Bidding Phase that incorporate all addenda, if any, issued during the Bidding Phase.  The Architect shall ensure that DSA has approved all revisions to the Bid Set that ...
	1.1.6. Construction Budget:  The total amount of funds indicated by the District for the entire Project plus all other costs, including design, construction, administration, and financing.
	1.1.7. Construction Change Documents (“CCD”):  The documentation of changes to the DSA-approved construction documents.
	1.1.8. Construction Cost Budget: The total cost to District of all elements of the Project designed or specified by the Architect, as adjusted at the end of each design phase in accordance with this Agreement.  The Construction Cost Budget does not in...
	1.1.9. Construction Manager:  The District’s representative on the Project if the District retains a construction manager, project manager, or owner’s representative.
	1.1.10. Contractor:  One or more licensed contractors under contract with the District for construction of all or a portion of the Project.
	1.1.11. Consultant(s):  Any and all consultant(s), sub-consultant(s), subcontractor(s), or agent(s) to the Architect.
	1.1.12. District:  The Sacramento City Unified School District.
	1.1.13. DSA:  The Division of the State Architect.
	1.1.14. Extra Services:  District-authorized services outside of the scope in Exhibit “A” or District-authorized reimbursables not included in Architect’s Fee.
	1.1.15. Laboratory of Record: The District-designated laboratory(ies) for testing of concrete, soils, materials, and other required testing.
	1.1.16. Project:  District’s Luther Burbank High School at 3500 Florin Road, Sacramento, CA  95823.
	1.1.17. Record Drawings:  A final set of drawings prepared by the Architect that incorporates all changes from all As-Builts, sketches, details, and clarifications.
	1.1.18. Service(s):  All labor, materials, supervision, services, tasks, and work that the Architect is required to perform and that are required by, or reasonably inferred from, the Agreement, and that are necessary for the design and completion of t...
	1.1.19. Visually Verify: To verify to the fullest extent possible by physical inspection and reasonable investigation and without any destructive action.

	Article 2. Scope, Responsibilities, and Services of Architect
	2.1. Architect shall render the Services described in Exhibit “A,” commencing with receipt of a written Notice to Proceed signed by the District representative.  Architect’s Services will be completed in accordance with the schedule attached as Exhibi...
	2.2. Architect shall provide Services that shall comply with professional architectural standards, including the standard of care applicable to architects designing public school facilities and applicable requirements of federal, state, and local law,...
	2.3. The District intends to award the Project to Contractor(s) pursuant to a competitive bid process.  District reserves its right to use alternative delivery methods and the Architect’s scope of work may be adjusted accordingly.
	2.5. Architect shall contract for or employ at Architect’s expense, Consultant(s) to the extent deemed necessary for completion of the Project including, but not limited to: architects; mechanical, electrical, structural and civil engineers; landscape...
	2.6. Architect shall coordinate with District personnel or its designated representatives as may be requested and desirable, including with other professionals employed by the District for the design, coordination or management of other work related t...
	2.9. Architect shall direct and monitor the work of the District’s DSA project inspector(s) (“Project Inspector(s)”) and the Laboratory of Record.  Architect shall provide code required supervision of special inspectors not provided by the Laboratory ...
	2.10. Architect shall give efficient supervision to Services, using its best skill and attention.  Architect shall carefully study and compare all contract documents, drawings, specifications, and other instructions (“Contract Documents”) and shall at...
	2.11. Architect recognizes that the District may obtain the services of a Construction Manager and that Architect may have to assume certain coordination and management responsibilities, including tracking Requests for Information (“RFI”), providing R...

	Article 3. Architect Staff
	3.1. Architect has been selected to perform the Services herein because of the skills and expertise of key individuals.
	3.2. Architect agrees that the following key people in Architect’s firm shall be associated with the Project in the following capacities:
	Principal In Charge: Jeffrey Grau
	3.3. Architect shall not change any of the key personnel listed above without prior written approval by the District, unless said personnel cease to be employed by Architect.  In either case, the District shall be allowed to interview and approve repl...
	3.4. If any designated lead or key person fails to perform to the satisfaction of the District, then upon written notice Architect shall have five (5) calendar days to remove that person from the Project and replace that person with one acceptable to ...
	3.5. Architect represents that Architect has no existing interest and will not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which could conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of Services required under this Agreement and that no person hav...
	3.6. Architect shall comply with Education Code section 17302(a) and agrees that any plans and/or specifications included in the Services shall be prepared under the supervision of licensed personnel, and that licensed personnel shall be in “responsib...

	Article 4. Schedule of Services
	Architect shall commence Services under this Agreement upon receipt of a written Notice to Proceed and shall prosecute the Services diligently as described in Exhibit “A,” so as to proceed with and complete the Services in compliance with the schedule...
	Article 5. Construction Cost Budget
	5.1. Architect hereby accepts the District’s established Construction Cost Budget and Project scope.  In accordance with Exhibit “A,” the Architect shall have responsibility to further develop, review, and reconcile the Construction Cost Budget for th...
	5.2. Architect shall complete all Services as described in Exhibit “A,” including all plans, designs, drawings, specifications and other Contract Documents, so that the cost to construct the work designed by the Architect will not exceed the Construct...
	5.4.1. The lowest responsive base bid received is in excess of five percent (5%) of the Construction Cost Budget; or
	5.4.2. If the combined total of base bid and all additive alternates come in ten percent (10%) or more under the Construction Cost Budget; or
	5.4.3. If the Construction Cost Budget increases in phases subsequent to the Schematic Design Phase due to reasonably foreseeable changes in the condition of the construction market in the county in which the District is located, in so far as these ha...


	Article 6. Fee and Method of Payment
	6.1. The District shall pay Architect for all Services contracted for under this Agreement an amount equal to the following (“Fee”):
	An amount not to exceed Three Hundred Forty Thousand Dollars ($340,000) based on the rates set forth in Exhibit “D.”
	Reimbursable Expenses are in addition to compensation for Basic and Additional Services and will be billed at a multiple of 1.10% the expenses incurred. These charges include, but are not limited to, expenses incurred which are directly related to the...
	6.2. The District shall pay Architect the Fee pursuant to the provisions of Exhibit “D.”
	6.3. Architect shall bill for performance of Services under this Agreement in accordance with Exhibit “D.”
	6.4. No increase in Fee will be due from CCDs and/or change orders generated during the construction period to the extent caused by Architect’s error or omission.
	6.5. The Architect’s Fee set forth in this Agreement shall be full compensation for all of Architect’s Services incurred in the performance hereof as indicated in Exhibit “D.”
	6.6. Regardless of the structure of Architect’s Fee, the Architect’s Fee may be adjusted downward if the Scope of Services of this Agreement is reduced by the District in accordance with this Agreement.
	6.7. Neither the District’s review, approval of, nor payment for, any of the Services required under this Agreement shall be construed to operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement, and Architect shall remain liable to the District in acco...

	Article 7. Payment for Extra Services or Changes
	Any charges for Extra Services shall be paid by the District as described in Exhibit “B” only upon certification that the claimed Extra Service was authorized as indicated herein and that the Extra Services have been satisfactorily completed.  If any ...

	Article 8. Ownership of Data
	8.1. Pursuant to Education Code section 17316, this Agreement creates a non-exclusive and perpetual license for the District to use, at its discretion, all plans including, but not limited to, record drawings, specifications, estimates and other docum...
	8.2. Architect retains all rights to all copyrights over designs and other intellectual property embodied in the plans, record drawings, specifications, estimates, and other documents that Architect or its Consultants prepare or cause to be prepared p...
	8.3. Architect shall perform the Services and prepare all documents under this Agreement with the assistance of Computer Aided Design Drafting Technology (“CADD”) (e.g., AutoCAD).  Architect shall deliver to District all drawings in DWG format.  As to...
	8.4. In order to document exactly what CADD information was given to the District, Architect and District shall each date and sign a “hard” copy of reproducible documents that depict the information at the time Architect produces the CADD information....
	8.5. Following the termination of this Agreement, for any reason whatsoever, Architect shall promptly deliver to the District upon written request and at no cost to the District the following items (hereinafter “Instruments of Service”), which the Dis...
	8.5.1. One (1) set of the Contract Documents, including the bidding requirements, specifications, and all existing cost estimates for the Project, in hard copy, reproducible format.
	8.5.2. One (1) set of fixed image CADD files in DXF format of the drawings that are part of the Contract Documents.
	8.5.3. One (1) set of non-fixed image CADD drawing files in DXF or DWG or both formats of the site plan, floor plans (architectural, plumbing, structural, mechanical and electrical), roof plan, sections and exterior elevations of the Project.
	8.5.4. All finished or unfinished documents, studies, reports, calculations, drawings, maps, models, photographs, technology data and reports prepared by the Architect under this Agreement.
	8.5.5. The obligation of Section 8.5 of this Agreement shall survive the termination of this Agreement for any reason whatsoever.

	8.6. In the event the District changes or uses any fully or partially completed documents without Architect’s knowledge or participation or both, the District agrees to release Architect of responsibility for such changes, and shall hold Architect har...

	Article 9. Termination of Contract
	9.1. District’s Request for Assurances:  If District at any time reasonably believes that Architect is or may be in default under this Agreement, District may in its sole discretion notify Architect of this fact and request written assurances from Arc...
	9.2. District’s Termination of Architect for Cause:  If Architect fails to perform Architect’s duties to the satisfaction of the District, or if Architect fails to fulfill in a timely and professional manner Architect’s material obligations under this...
	9.3. District’s Termination of Architect for Convenience:  District shall have the right in its sole discretion to terminate the Agreement for its own convenience.  In the event of a termination for convenience, Architect may invoice District and Dist...
	9.4. Architect’s Termination of Agreement for Cause:  Architect has the right to terminate this Agreement if the District does not fulfill its material obligations under this Agreement and fails to cure such material default within sixty (60) days of ...
	9.5. Effect on Pre-Termination Services:  Except as indicated in this Article, termination shall have no effect upon any of the rights and obligations of the Parties arising out of any transaction occurring prior to the effective date of such terminat...
	9.6. Ceasing Services upon Termination:  If, at any time in the progress of the Design of the Project, the Governing Board of the District determines that the Project should be terminated, Architect, upon written notice from the District of such termi...
	9.7. Project Suspension:  If the District suspends the Project for more than one hundred twenty (120) consecutive days, Architect shall be compensated for Services performed prior to notice of that suspension. When the Project is resumed, the schedule...

	Article 10. Indemnity/Architect Liability
	10.3. Architect’s duty to indemnify under this Agreement shall apply during the term of this Agreement and shall survive any expiration or termination of this Agreement until any such Claim(s) are barred by the applicable statute of limitations and is...

	Article 11. Fingerprinting
	11.1. Pursuant to Education Code section 45125.2, the District has determined on the basis of scope of Services in this Agreement, that Architect, its Consultants and their employees will have only limited contact with pupils. Architect shall promptly...
	11.2. For all workers on District property, the Architect shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws regarding COVID-19.  Further, except to the extent the Order provides otherwise, the Architect and Architect’s personnel shall con...

	Article 12. Responsibilities of the District
	12.1. The District shall examine the documents submitted by the Architect and shall render decisions so as to avoid unreasonable delay in the process of the Architect’s Services.
	12.2. The District shall verbally or in writing advise Architect if the District becomes aware of any fault or defect in the Project, including any errors, omissions or inconsistencies in the Architect’s documents.  Failure to provide such notice shal...
	12.3. Unless the District and Architect agree that a hazardous materials consultant shall be a Consultant of the Architect, the District shall furnish the services of a hazardous material consultant or other consultants when such services are requeste...

	Article 13. Liability of District
	13.1. Other than as provided in this Agreement, District’s financial obligations under this Agreement shall be limited to the payment of the compensation provided in this Agreement.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, in no event s...
	13.2. District shall not be responsible for any damage to persons or property as a result of the use, misuse or failure of any equipment used by Architect, or by its employees, even though such equipment be furnished or loaned to Architect by District.

	Article 14. Nondiscrimination
	Architect agrees to comply with the provisions of the California Fair Employment and Housing Act as set forth in part 2.8 of division 3 of the California Government Code, commencing at section 12900; the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964, as set forth ...

	Article 15. Insurance
	15.1. Architect shall comply with the insurance requirements for this Agreement, set forth in Exhibit “E.”
	15.2. Architect shall provide certificates of insurance and endorsements to District prior to commencement of the work of this Agreement as required in Exhibit “E.”

	Article 16. Covenant against Contingent Fees
	Article 17. Entire Agreement/Modification
	Article 18. Non-Assignment of Agreement
	Article 19. Law, Venue
	19.1. This Agreement has been executed and delivered in the State of California and the validity, enforceability and interpretation of any of the clauses of this Agreement shall be determined and governed by the laws of the State of California.
	19.2. To the fullest extent permitted by California law, the county in which the District administration office is located shall be the venue for any action or proceeding that may be brought or arise out of, in connection with or by reason of this Agr...

	Article 20. Alternative Dispute Resolution
	20.1. All claims, disputes or controversies arising out of, or in relation to the interpretation, application or enforcement of this Agreement may be decided through mediation as the first method of resolution.  Notice of the demand for mediation of a...
	20.2. If a claim, or any portion thereof, remains in dispute upon satisfaction of all applicable dispute resolution requirements, the Architect shall comply with all claims presentation requirements as provided in Chapter 1 (commencing with section 90...
	20.3. Pending resolution of the dispute, Architect agrees it will neither rescind the Agreement nor stop the performance of the Services.
	Article 21. Tolling of Claims
	Architect agrees to toll all statutes of limitations for District’s assertion of claims against Architect that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to Contractors’ or subcontractors’ claims against District involving Architect’s work, until the Contrac...
	Article 22. Attorneys’ Fees
	Article 23. Severability
	Article 24. Employment Status
	24.1. Architect shall, during the entire term of Agreement, be an independent contractor and nothing in this Agreement is intended nor shall it be construed to create an employer-employee relationship, a joint venture relationship, or to allow the Dis...
	24.2. Architect understands and agrees that Architect’s personnel are not and will not be eligible for membership in or any benefits from any District group plan for hospital, surgical or medical insurance or for membership in any District retirement ...
	24.3. Should the District, in its discretion, or a relevant taxing authority such as the Internal Revenue Service or the State Employment Development Department, or both, determine that Architect, or any employee or Consultant of Architect, is an empl...
	24.4. Should a relevant taxing authority determine a liability for past services performed by Architect for the District, upon notification of such fact by the District, Architect shall promptly remit such amount due or arrange with the District to ha...
	24.5. A determination of employment status pursuant to the preceding two (2) paragraphs shall be solely for the purposes of the particular tax in question, and for all other purposes of this Agreement, Architect shall not be considered an employee of ...
	24.6. Nothing in this Agreement shall operate to confer rights or benefits on persons or entities not a party to this Agreement.

	Article 25. Certificate of Architect
	25.1. Architect certifies that the Architect is properly certified or licensed under the laws and regulations of the State of California to provide the professional services that it has herein agreed to perform.
	25.2. Architect certifies that it is aware of the provisions of the California Labor Code that require every employer to be insured against liability for workers compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that cod...
	25.3. Architect certifies that it is aware of the provisions of California Labor Code and California Code of Regulations that require the payment of prevailing wage rates and the performance of other requirements on certain “public works” and “mainten...

	Article 26. Cost Disclosure - Documents and Written Reports
	Article 27. Notice & Communications
	Article 28. [RESERVED]
	Article 29. District’s Right to Audit
	29.1. District retains the right to review and audit, and the reasonable right of access to Architect’s and any Consultant’s premises to review and audit the Architect’s compliance with the provisions of this Agreement (“District’s Right”). The Distri...
	29.2. The District’s Right includes the right to examine any and all books, records, documents and any other evidence of procedures and practices that the District determines is necessary to discover and verify whether Architect is in compliance with ...
	29.3. If there is a claim for additional compensation or for Extra Services, the District’s Right includes the right to examine books, records, documents, and any and all other evidence and accounting procedures and practices that the District determi...
	29.4. Architect shall maintain complete and accurate records in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices in the industry. Architect shall make available to the District for review and audit all Project-related accounting records and doc...
	29.5. Architect shall include audit provisions in any and all of its subcontracts, and shall ensure that these sections are binding upon all Consultants.
	29.6. Architect shall comply with these provisions within fifteen (15) days of the District’s written request to review and audit any or all of Architect’s Project-related records and information.
	Article 30. Other Provisions
	30.1. Each party warrants that it has had the opportunity to consult counsel and understands the terms of this Agreement and the consequences of executing it. In addition, each party acknowledges that the drafting of this Agreement was the product of ...
	30.2. The individual executing this Agreement on behalf of Architect warrants and represents that she/he is authorized to execute this Agreement and bind the CM to all terms hereof.
	30.3. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original. A facsimile or electronic signature shall be deemed to be the equivalent of the actual original signature. All counterparts so executed shall ...
	30.4. Architect shall share, credit, or reimburse District fifty percent (50%) of the amount of any tax deduction and/or credit Architect receives for District Projects under the Commercial Buildings Energy-Efficiency Tax Deduction, 26 U.S. Code § 179...

	Article 31. Exhibits “A” through “F” attached hereto are hereby incorporated by this reference and made a part of this Agreement.
	SCOPE OF PROJECT
	Project Name:  Luther Burbank Core Academic Renovation, Phase 2
	Construction Cost Budget:  $3,400,000 (Construction budget)

	BASIC SERVICES
	3. The District shall provide all information available to it to the extent the information relates to Architect’s scope of work.  This information shall include, if available,
	a. As-built;
	b. Physical characteristics;
	c. Legal limitations and utility locations for the Project site(s);
	d. Written legal description(s) of the Project site(s);
	e. Grades and lines of streets, alleys, pavements, and adjoining property and structures;
	f. Adjacent drainage;
	g. Rights-of-way, restrictions, easements, encroachments, zoning, deed restrictions, and boundaries and contours of the Project site(s);
	h. Locations, dimensions and necessary data with respect to existing buildings, other improvements and trees;
	i. Information concerning available utility services and lines, mechanical and other services, both public and private, above and below grade, including inverts and depths;
	j. Surveys, reports, as-built drawings, record drawings; and
	k. Subsoil data, chemical data, and other data logs of borings.
	Architect shall Visually Verify this information and all existing Project utilities, including capacity, and document the location of existing utility lines, telephone, water, sewage, storm drains and other lines on or around the Project to the extent...
	If Architect determines that the information or documentation the District provides is insufficient for purposes of design, or if Architect requires:  a topographical survey; a geotechnical report; structural, mechanical, and/or chemical tests; tests ...
	High Performance Schools.  If the District adheres to the Collaborative for High Performance School (“CHPS”) Best Practice Standards, the Services provided by the Architect shall incorporate the CHPS Best Practice Standards and criteria to the extent ...
	d. Based on survey and topography data provided by the District, input into computer and develop existing conditions base for the Schematic Design Phase.
	e. Administer Project as required to coordinate work with the District and among Consultants.
	f. Review District-provided standards for facilities and construction, including but not limited to designation of any material, product, thing or service by specific brand or trade name pursuant to Public Contract Code section 3400, subdivision (c).

	6. Meetings
	During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops minimally on a bi-weekly basis.
	10. Deliverables and Numbers of Copies
	Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:

	12. Meetings
	During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops minimally on a bi-weekly basis.
	9. Meetings
	During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops minimally on a bi-weekly basis.
	[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]
	Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:

	3. Meetings
	During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops minimally on a monthly basis.
	1. Contact potential bidders and encourage their participation in the Project.
	2. Coordinate the development of the bidding procedures and the construction Contract Documents with the District.
	6. Attend bid opening.
	7. Coordinate with Architect Consultants.
	8. Respond to District and potential bidder questions and clarifications.
	9. Deliverables and Number of Copies
	Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:
	7. As-Built Drawings.  Architect shall review and evaluate for District the Contractor(s)’ documentation of the actual construction performed during the Project that the Contractor(s) should prepare and submit as As-Builts.  As-Builts are documents th...
	8. Record Drawings.  Architect shall incorporate all information on all As-Builts, sketches, details, and clarifications, and prepare one (1) set of final Record Drawings for the District.  The Record Drawings shall incorporate onto one (1) set of dra...
	These drawings [or corrected specifications] have been prepared based on information submitted, in part, by others.  Architect has provided a review consistent with its legal standard of care.

	12. Deliverables and Number of Copies
	Within thirty (30) days of the end of this Phase, Architect shall provide to the District a hard copy of the following items produced in this Phase, together with one (1) copy of each item in electronic format:

	13. Meetings
	During this Phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops minimally on a bi-weekly basis.
	g. Architect shall review and prepare a package of all warranty and O&M documentation.
	h. Architect shall organize electronic files, plans and prepare a Project binder.
	i. Architect shall have primary responsibility to coordinate all Services required to close-out the design and construction of the Project with the District and among Consultants.

	3. Deliverables and Number of Copies
	a. Punch list; and
	b. Upon completion of the Project, all related Project documents, including As-Builts and Record Drawings.  These are the sole property of the District.

	4. Meetings
	During this phase, Architect shall attend, take part in, and, when indicated, conduct meetings, site visits, and workshops as needed.

	CRITERIA AND BILLING FOR EXTRA SERVICES
	The following Extra Services to the Agreement shall be performed by Architect if needed and if authorized or requested by the District:
	A. Providing services as directed by the District that are not part of the Basic Services of this Agreement, or otherwise included within Exhibit “A.”
	B. Providing deliverables or other items in excess of the number indicated in Exhibit “A.”  Before preparing, providing, sending, or invoicing for extra deliverables, Architect shall inform the District that expected deliverables may be in excess of t...
	C. Making revisions in drawings, specifications, or other documents when such revisions are required by the enactment or revisions of codes, laws, or regulations subsequent to the preparation of the Conforming Set.
	D. Providing consultation concerning replacement of work damaged by fire or other cause during construction and furnishing services required in connection with replacement of that work.
	E. Providing services made necessary by the default of Contractor(s).
	F. In the absence of a final Certificate of Payment or Notice of Completion, providing services more than ninety (90) days after the date of completion of work by Contractor(s) and after Architect has completed all of its obligations and tasks under t...
	G. Providing services as an expert and/or witness for the District in any mediation, arbitration, and/or trial in which the Architect is (1) not a party, and (2) did not in any way cause the dispute that is being adjudicated.
	H. The following rates, which include overhead, administrative cost, and profit, shall be utilized in arriving at the fee for Extra Services and shall not be changed for the term of the Agreement.
	I. The mark-up on any approved reimbursable item of Extra Services shall not exceed five percent (5%).
	1. The following items are approved for mark-up:
	a. Sub-consultant Invoices.
	2. Any approved item of Extra Services not identified in the above list may not be marked-up.
	J. Format and Content of Invoices (Extra Services Only)
	Architect acknowledges that the District requires Architect’s invoices to include detailed explanations of the Services performed.  For example, a six hour charge for “RFIs and CORs” is unacceptable and will not be payable.  A more detailed explanatio...
	SCHEDULE OF SERVICES
	A. Promptly after the execution of this Agreement, Architect shall prepare and submit for approval to the District a Schedule of Services showing the order in which Architect proposes to carry out Architect's Services (“Schedule of Services”).  The Sc...
	B. Architect shall complete Services required under Construction Documents Phase within _107__ calendar days (3 months) after written authorization from District to proceed, and as more specifically indicated below.  Excluded from this duration is the...
	C. The durations stated above include the review periods of 10 calendar days required by the District.
	D. All times to complete tasks set forth in this Exhibit are of the essence, as indicated in the Agreement.  If delays in the Schedule of Services are incurred as a result of the District’s inability to comply with requested meeting schedules, Archite...
	PAYMENT SCHEDULE
	A. Compensation
	1. The payment of consideration to Architect as provided herein shall be full compensation for all of Architect’s Services incurred in the performance hereof, including, printing and shipping of deliverables in the quantities set forth in Exhibit “A,”...
	2. The total compensation to Architect shall be as stated in Article 6 of the Agreement.
	3. District shall pay Architect as follows for all Services contracted for under this Agreement:
	B. Method of Payment
	1. Invoices shall be on a form approved by the District and are to be submitted to the District via the District’s authorized representative.
	2. Architect shall submit to District on a monthly basis documentation showing proof that payments were made to its Consultant(s).
	3. Architect shall submit to the District for approval a copy of the Architect’s monthly pay request format.
	4. Upon receipt and approval of Architect’s invoices, the District agrees to make payments of undisputed amounts within thirty (30) days of receipt of the invoice as follows:
	a. Pre- Design/Architectural Program Development Phase:
	Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-five percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) payment upon acceptance and approval of the Pre-Design/Architectural Program.
	b. For Schematic Design Phase:
	Monthly payments for the percentage of all Services complete up to ninety-five percent (95%) of the fee for the Phase; one hundred percent (100%) payment upon acceptance and approval of the Schematic Design Phase by the District.
	c. For Design Development Phase:
	d. For Construction Documents Phase:
	e. For Bidding Phase:
	f. For Construction Contract Administration Phase:
	g. For Close Out:
	INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS
	B. Architect shall procure, prior to commencement of the Services of this Agreement and maintain for the duration of the Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the ...
	C. Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance:  Coverage shall be at least as broad as the following scopes and limits. Umbrella or Excess Liability policies are acceptable where the need for higher liability limits is noted and shall provide liability cov...
	1. Commercial General Liability.  Two million dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage.  If Commercial General Liability or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggrega...
	2. Commercial Automobile Liability. One million dollars ($1,000,000) per accident for bodily injury and property damage.
	3. Workers' Compensation Liability.  For all of the Architect’s employees who are subject to this Agreement and to the extent required by the applicable state or federal law, Architect shall keep in full force and effect, a Workers' Compensation polic...
	4. Employers’ Liability.  For all of the Architect’s employees who are subject to this Agreement, Architect shall keep in full force and effect, an Employment Practices Liability policy with minimum liability coverage of two million dollars ($2,000,00...
	5. Professional Liability.  This insurance shall cover the prime design professional and his/her consultant(s) on a Claims Made basis for two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) aggregate limit subject to no more than two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000) ...

	D. District reserves the right to modify the limits and coverages described herein, with appropriate credits or changes to be negotiated for such changes.
	E. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retention:  Architect shall inform the District in writing if any deductibles or self-insured retention exceeds two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000).  At the option of the District, either:
	1. The District can accept the higher deductible;
	2. Architect’s insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retention as respects the District, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers; or
	F. Other Insurance Provisions:  The general liability and automobile liability policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:
	1. The District, its representatives, consultants, trustees, officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers (“Additional Insureds”) are to be covered as additional insureds as respects liability arising out of activities performed by or on beh...
	2. For any claims related to the projects, Architect’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the Additional Insureds.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the Additional Insureds shall be in excess of Architect’s insuranc...
	3. Architect shall provide an endorsement that the insurer waives the right of subrogation against District and its respective elected officials, officers, employees, agents, representatives, consultants, trustees, and volunteers.
	4. Architect’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.
	5. Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies including breaches of warranties shall not affect coverage provided to the Additional Insureds.
	6. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt r...
	7. Architect shall pay all insurance premiums, including any charges for required waivers of subrogation or the endorsement of additional insureds. If Architect fails to maintain insurance, District may take out comparable insurance, and deduct and re...
	8. Architect shall require all sub consultants to maintain the level of insurance Architect deems appropriate with respect to the consultant’s scope of the Work unless otherwise indicated in the Agreement. Architect shall cause the sub consultants to ...

	G. Acceptability of Insurers:  Insurance is to be placed with insurers admitted in California with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A: VII.  Architect shall inform the District in writing if any of its insurer(s) have an A.M. Best’s rating...
	1. Accept the lower rating; or
	2. Require Architect to procure insurance from another insurer.
	H. Verification of Coverage:  Prior to commencing with its provision of Services under this Agreement, Architect shall furnish District with:
	1. Certificates of insurance showing maintenance of the required insurance coverages; and
	2. Original endorsements affecting general liability and automobile liability coverage.  The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverages on its behalf.  All endorsements are to be received and approved by the...

	I. Copy of Insurance Policy(ies): Upon the District’s request, Architect will furnish District with a copy of all insurance policies related to its provision of Services under this Agreement.
	END OF EXHIBIT

	EXHIBIT “G”


	13.1a2 SA23-00359 Pro Youth
	SA23-00359PRO

	13.1a3 SA22-00181 Capitol Tech Solutions Amendment No. 1
	13.1a4 R23-02717 Ray Morgan backup
	13.1a5 Oak Ridge Fee Proposal Form - Addendum 1 - Otto Signed
	13.1a6 0490-453 Sutter HVAC Otto GMP FL Amendment 2
	13.1a7 SCUSD #460 Chavez_Kemble FL Amendment 01_R1

	13.1b Approve Personnel Transactions
	13.1b Personnel Transactions Cover Sheet
	Meeting Date:  March 2, 2023

	13.1b1 3-2-2023 Certificated Board Agenda
	Sheet1

	13.1b2 3-2-2023 Classified Board Agenda (003)
	Sheet1


	13.1c Approve Feb 16 2023 Minutes
	13.1c Approve February 16 2023 Minutes
	Meeting Date:  March 2, 2023

	13.1c1 Approve February 16 2023 Minutes
	BOARD OF EDUCATION
	MEETING AND WORKSHOP
	MINUTES


	13.1d Approve Oct 13 2022 Minutes
	13.1d Approve October 13 2022 Cover Sheet
	Meeting Date:  March 2, 2023

	13.1d1 October 13 2022 Minutes Template (002)
	BOARD OF EDUCATION
	MEETING AND WORKSHOP
	MINUTES


	13.1e Board Stipends Pritchett
	13.1e Board Stipends-Pritchett Other Duties Cover Sheet
	Meeting Date:  March 2, 2023

	13.1e1 Board Absence Resolution-Pritchett

	13.1f Expulsion Cover sheetAgenda Cover Sheet 22-23
	Meeting Date:  March 2, 2023

	14.1 Business and Financial Report Month 4
	14.1 Business and Financial Cover_3.2.23
	Meeting Date:  March 3, 2023

	14.1a FINAL BOARD REPORT MONTH 4
	AC Month 4 TraditionalSchool
	Elementary
	Middle
	HighSchool
	Totals
	Charter
	Adult

	AC Month 4 GradeByGrade
	Grade-by-Grade

	AC Month 4 CumTotalAbsences
	Elementary
	Middle
	HighSchool

	AC FY 2022-23 Monthly Attendance Trends District-Wide
	2022-2023






